
 
 

 

 To: All Members of the Council 
  

 
 

Town House, 
ABERDEEN, 21 June 2011 

 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 The Members of the COUNCIL are requested to meet in Council Chamber - Town 
House on WEDNESDAY, 29 JUNE 2011 at 10.30am. 
 
 
  

 
 

JANE G. MACEACHRAN 
HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

 
 
 

B U S I N E S S 
 

1 Declaration of By-Election results   
 

2 Admission of Burgesses   
 

3 Members are requested to resolve that any exempt business on this agenda be 
considered with the press and public excluded.   
 

4 Requests for Deputations   
 

 MINUTES OF COUNCIL 
 

5(a) Minute of Special Meeting of Council of 7th April 2011 - for approval (circulated 
separately)   
 

5(b) Minute of Meeting of Council of 27th April 2011 - for approval (circulated 
separately)   
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 MINUTES OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

6(a) Pamphlet of Minutes - for information (circulated separately)   
 

 BUSINESS STATEMENT AND OTHER MINUTES 
 

7(a) Business Statement  (Pages 1 - 8) 
 

 REFERRALS FROM COMMITTEES 
 

8(a) Housing and Environment Committee of 10th May 2011 - Security in Multi Storey 
Blocks Progress Report - Report by Director of Housing and Environment  (Pages 
9 - 16) 
 

8(b) Housing and Environment Committee of 10th May 2011 - Temporary 
Accommodation Units - Smoking Policy - Exception - Report by Director of Housing 
and Environment  (Pages 17 - 22) 
 

 GENERAL BUSINESS 
 

9(a) Accounts Commission Findings - Progress - Report by Chief Executive  (Pages 23 
- 32) 
 

9(b) Draft Financial Statements 2010/11  (Pages 33 - 66) 
  (i) Draft Statement of Accounts 2010/11 - Report by Head of Finance 

 
Members are requested to note that the draft accounts will be 
circulated separately 

 
(ii) Draft Pension Fund Financial Statements 2010/11 - Report by Head of 

Finance 
 

9(c) Committee Places, Appointment of Conveners, Vice Conveners and Depute 
Provost and Representation on various Outside Bodies, Boards and Trusts - 
Report by Director of Corporate Governance  (Pages 67 - 72) 
 

9(d) Aberdeen City Council Business Plan 2011/12 - 2015/16 - Report by Director of 
Corporate Governance  (Pages 73 - 124) 
 

9(e) For Aberdeen's Children - Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15 - Joint 
Report By Directors of Education, Culture and Sport and Social Care and 
Wellbeing  (Pages 125 - 176) 
 



 
 
 

9(f) Treasury Management Policy and Strategy - Report by Head of Finance - referred 
by Finance and Resources Committee of 17th June 2011  (Pages 177 - 182) 
 

9(g) Energy Cities Network - Report by Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure  (Pages 183 - 192) 
 

9(h) The Aberdeen City Council (Off-Street Car Parks) Order 2011 - Report by Director 
of Corporate Governance  (Pages 193 - 196) 
 

9(i) Formation of a Local Authority Trading Company - Report by Director of Social 
Care and Wellbeing  (Pages 197 - 200) 
 
 

 MOTIONS 
 

10(a) Councillor Graham   
  “That following the identification of the Haudagain Roundabout as the worst in 

Europe, that as a matter of urgency this Council calls on the Scottish 
Government (1) to identify its option for the Haudagain Roundabout; and (2) to 
bring forward the time period for the works at the roundabout to begin; and that 
this Council also writes to NESTRANS and Aberdeenshire Council asking them 
to write to the Scottish Government in support of Aberdeen City Council.” 
 

10(b) Councillor Kevin Stewart MSP   
  “That this Council agrees that a referendum on the future of Union Terrace 

Gardens be held after the City Garden design competition is completed, calls on 
officers to produce a report about the practicalities and costings of holding a 
postal ballot of all Aberdeen electors and asks officers to investigate sourcing 
funding for the referendum from bodies other than the Council.” 
 

10(c) Councillor Young   
  “Council instructs officers to liaise with the Ashwood Parade business community 

in the Bridge of Don to investigate ways in which better signage and better 
awareness of their businesses can be obtained to the betterment of both the 
residents of Ashwood Parade and to the business community of Ashwood 
Parade.” 
 

10(d) Councillor Wisely   
  “That the Council review its decision CGL DS22 of 15.12.10 and consider 

reinstating the delivery service albeit on a reduced basis for those members who 
request it. The modest costs of approximately £5,000 to be met from reserves.” 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 BUSINESS THE COUNCIL MAY WISH TO CONSIDER IN PRIVATE 
 

11(a) Transition Extreme - Report by Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure  
(Pages 201 - 220) 
 

11(b) National Housing Trust Initiative - Report by Director of Housing and Environment  
(Pages 221 - 226) 
 

11(c) Options Appraisal and Outline Business Case for item 9(i)  (Pages 227 - 316) 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Martyn 
Orchard, tel. (52)3097 or email morchard@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 



 

CO
UN

CI
L 

 
BU

SIN
ES

S S
TA

TE
ME

NT
 

 
29
 JU

NE
 20

11
 

 No
. 

Mi
nu

te 
Re

fer
en

ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte

e D
ec
isi
on

 
 Up

da
te 

 
Le

ad
 

Of
fic

er(
s) 

Re
po

rt 
Du

e  
Re

po
rt 

Ex
pe

cte
d 

(if 
kn

ow
n) 

1. 
Co

un
cil 

16
.12

.09
 

Ar
tic

le 
19

 
 

50
m 

Sw
im

mi
ng

 Po
ol 

 Th
e 

Co
un

cil 
ap

pro
ve

d 
a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
reg

ard
ing

 d
es

ign
 

an
d 

pro
cu

rem
en

t i
ss

ue
s 

rel
ati

ng
 to

 
the

 5
0m

 P
oo

l. 
Th

e 
Co

un
cil 

ag
ree

d 
tha

t t
he

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
he

 p
roj

ec
t 

be
 tr

an
sfe

rre
d 

to 
Ab

erd
ee

n 
Sp

ort
s 

Vil
lag

e s
ub

jec
t to

 (a
) t

he
 pr

ov
isio

n o
f 

fur
the

r l
eg

al 
an

d 
fin

an
cia

l a
dv

ice
 in

 
res

pe
ct 

of 
an

y 
po

ten
tia

l r
isk

s 
to 

the
 

Co
un

cil;
 a

nd
 (b

) t
he

 o
the

r p
art

ne
rs 

co
nfi

rm
ing

 th
eir

 fi
na

nc
ial 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

n 
to 

the
 pr

oje
ct.

 
 Th

e 
Co

un
cil 

req
ue

ste
d 

tha
t 

Ab
erd

ee
n S

po
rts

 V
illa

ge
 pr

ov
ide

 th
e 

Co
un

cil 
wit

h 
a 

rep
ort

 w
ith

in 
fou

r 
mo

nth
s o

n h
ow

 th
ey

 pl
an

ne
d t

o d
riv

e 
the

 p
roj

ec
t 

for
wa

rd.
 T

his
 i
s 

sti
ll 

aw
ait

ed
. 

  

At 
its

 m
ee

tin
g 

of 
27

th
 A

pri
l, 

the
 

Co
un

cil 
ag

ree
d 

to 
de

leg
ate

 
au

tho
rity

 to
 th

e E
du

ca
tio

n, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 C
om

mi
tte

e 
to 

ma
ke

 a
ll 

ne
ce

ss
ary

 de
cis

ion
s a

t it
s m

ee
tin

g 
on

 2nd
 Ju

ne
 20

11
, in

 or
de

r to
 ke

ep
 

the
 p

roj
ec

t 
on

 t
rac

k, 
an

d 
tha

t 
off

ice
rs 

rep
ort

 ac
co

rdi
ng

ly.
  

 Th
e E

du
ca

tio
n, 

Cu
ltu

re 
an

d S
po

rt 
Co

mm
itte

e 
of 

2nd
 

Ju
ne

 
20

11
 

ap
pro

ve
d 

the
 r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
co

nta
ine

d 
wit

hin
 t

he
 r

ep
ort

, 
as

 
ou

tlin
ed

 b
elo

w,
 a

nd
 a

dd
ed

 a
n 

ad
dit

ion
al 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 at
 d(

v) 
“su

bje
ct 

to 
off

ice
rs 

rec
eiv

ing
 

cla
rifi

ca
tio

n 
fro

m 
Ab

erd
ee

ns
hir

e 
Co

un
cil 

tha
t th

eir
 re

ve
nu

e f
un

din
g 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

n r
em

ain
s i

nta
ct”

. 
 Th

e r
ep

or
t r
ec
om

me
nd

ed
:- 

tha
t C

om
mi

tte
e:-

 
(a)

 
no

te 
the

 c
on

ten
t 

of 
the

 
rep

ort
; 

(b)
 

no
te 

tha
t t

he
 d

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
co

st,
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

the
 m

os
t 

ec
on

om
ica

lly 
ad

va
nta

ge
ou

s 
ten

de
r 

for
 

the
 

10
 

lan
e 

op
tio

n 
is 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 
En

ter
pri

se
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

 (R
ep

ort
 to

 
co

me
 fro

m 
Ab

erd
ee

n 
Sp

ort
s V

illa
ge

) 
                    

24
.03

.10
 

                            

 

Agenda Item 7(a)

Page 1



 
2

No
. 

Mi
nu

te 
Re

fer
en

ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte

e D
ec
isi
on

 
 Up

da
te 

 
Le

ad
 

Of
fic

er(
s) 

Re
po

rt 
Du

e  
Re

po
rt 

Ex
pe

cte
d 

(if 
kn

ow
n) 

£2
1,9

18
,10

4 
an

d 
for

 th
e 

8 
lan

e 
op

tio
n 

is 
£2

1,6
38

,10
4 

co
mp

are
d t

o t
he

 pr
ev

iou
sly

 
rep

ort
ed

 es
tim

ate
d c

os
ts 

of 
£2

3,3
47

,25
9 f

or 
the

 10
 la

ne
 

op
tio

n a
nd

 £2
2,7

26
,79

4 f
or 

the
 8 

lan
e o

pti
on

; 
(c)

 
no

te 
tha

t t
he

 to
tal

 fu
nd

ing
 

av
ail

ab
le 

fro
m 

the
 o

the
r 

pa
rtn

ers
 

as
 

de
tai

led
 

in 
se

cti
on

 5
.3 

of 
the

 r
ep

ort
 

ha
s 

inc
rea

se
d 

fro
m 

the
 

pre
vio

us
 to

tal
 of

 £1
0 m

illio
n 

rep
ort

ed
 to

 C
ou

nc
il 

on
 1

5 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

10
 

to 
£1

4 
mi

llio
n. 

 T
his

 b
ein

g 
the

 
res

ult
 o

f t
he

 U
niv

ers
ity

 o
f 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

inc
rea

sin
g 

the
ir 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

n f
rom

 £5
 m

illio
n 

to 
£8

 m
illio

n a
nd

 A
be

rde
en

 
Sp

ort
s 

Vil
lag

e 
Ltd

. 
(A

SV
 

Lim
ite

d) 
ag

ree
ing

 
to 

un
de

rw
rite

 th
e 

sh
ort

fal
l o

f 
£1

 m
illio

n 
for

 th
e 

10
 la

ne
 

op
tio

n 
to 

en
su

re 
tha

t t
he

 
fun

din
g 

pa
ck

ag
e 

ca
n 

be
 

se
cu

red
. 

 T
he

 r
em

ain
ing

 
ba

lan
ce

 of
 ex

ter
na

l fu
nd

ing
 

co
mi

ng
 fr

om
 a

 £
5 

mi
llio

n 
gra

nt 
fro

m 
sp

or
tsc

otl
an

d; 
(d)

 
ag

ree
 to

 ap
pro

ve
 fu

nd
ing

 of
 

up
 to

 £8
 m

illio
n a

nd
 th

is 
be

 
me

t f
rom

 th
e 

No
n-H

ou
sin

g 
Ca

pit
al 

Pr
og

ram
me

 fo
r t

he
 

co
ns

tru
cti

on
 o

f a
 1

0 
lan

e 

                                   

                                   

Page 2



 
3

No
. 

Mi
nu

te 
Re

fer
en

ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte

e D
ec
isi
on

 
 Up

da
te 

 
Le

ad
 

Of
fic

er(
s) 

Re
po

rt 
Du

e  
Re

po
rt 

Ex
pe

cte
d 

(if 
kn

ow
n) 

po
ol 

su
bje

ct 
to:

 
(i) 

the
 C

orp
ora

te 
As

se
t 

Gr
ou

p, 
on

 b
eh

alf
 o

f 
the

 
Co

rpo
rat

e 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Te
am

, 
ma

na
gin

g t
he

 ov
era

ll 
sp

en
d 

of 
the

 N
on

-
Ho

us
ing

 
Ca

pit
al 

Pr
og

ram
me

 
in 

20
11

/12
 

to 
sta

y 
wit

hin
 

ap
pro

ve
d 

sp
en

din
g 

lim
its

 a
nd

 
to 

tak
e 

int
o 

ac
co

un
t 

the
 

fut
ure

 
ca

pit
al 

de
ma

nd
 

for
 

thi
s 

pro
jec

t in
 th

e b
ud

ge
t 

pro
ce

ss
 fo

r 2
01

2/1
3 

an
d 2

01
3/1

4; 
(ii)

 
the

 re
ve

nu
e 

su
pp

ort
 

for
 th

e o
ng

oin
g c

os
ts 

of 
the

 p
roj

ec
t b

ein
g 

ca
pp

ed
 a

t £
25

0,0
00

 
pe

r 
an

nu
m 

at 
20

10
/11

 p
ric

es
 w

ith
 

a 
rev

iew
 o

f 
fut

ure
 

ind
ex

ati
on

 o
nc

e 
the

 
fac

ility
 

is 
ne

ari
ng

 
co

mp
let

ion
 

of 
the

 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

 ph
as

e; 
(iii

) 
off

ice
rs 

rea
ch

ing
 a

n 
ag

ree
me

nt 
wit

h 
pa

rtn
ers

 in
 re

ga
rd 

to 
the

 
us

e 
of 

the
 

fac
iliti

es
 i

n 
lig

ht 
of 

the
 

po
ten

tia
l 

                                   

                                   

Page 3



 
4

No
. 

Mi
nu

te 
Re

fer
en

ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte

e D
ec
isi
on

 
 Up

da
te 

 
Le

ad
 

Of
fic

er(
s) 

Re
po

rt 
Du

e  
Re

po
rt 

Ex
pe

cte
d 

(if 
kn

ow
n) 

mi
gra

tio
n 

of 
sw

im
mi

ng
 c

lub
s 

to 
the

 ne
w 

fac
ility

;  a
nd

 
(iv

) 
off

ice
rs 

rea
ch

ing
 

ag
ree

me
nt 

on
 

a 
Tra

ns
fer

 A
gre

em
en

t 
Do

cu
me

nt,
 

wh
ich

 
wil

l 
for

ma
lise

 
the

 
tra

ns
fer

 
of 

res
po

ns
ibi

lity
 fo

r t
he

 
de

live
ry 

an
d 

op
era

tio
na

l 
ph

as
es

 
of 

the
 50

 m
etr

e p
oo

l 
pro

jec
t 

to 
AS

V 
Lim

ite
d. 

(e)
 

no
te 

tha
t 

the
 

mo
st 

ec
on

om
ica

lly 
ad

va
nta

ge
ou

s 
ten

de
r 

for
 

the
 5

0 
me

tre
 p

oo
l p

roj
ec

t 
wa

s 
su

bm
itte

d 
by

 
Co

ntr
ac

tor
 A

, a
nd

 s
ub

jec
t 

to 
the

 C
om

mi
tte

e 
ag

ree
ing

 
to 

ap
pro

ve
 fu

nd
ing

 o
n 

the
 

ba
sis

 o
f 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 
(d)

, t
o 

ins
tru

ct 
off

ice
rs 

to 
arr

an
ge

, in
 co

nju
nc

tio
n w

ith
 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

Un
ive

rsi
ty 

an
d 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

Sp
ort

s 
Vil

lag
e 

Ltd
., 

to 
ap

po
int

 C
on

tra
cto

r 
A 

as
 

the
 

Pr
inc

ipa
l 

Co
ntr

ac
tor

, b
as

ed
 o

n 
the

ir 
ten

de
r fi

gu
re 

for
 th

e 1
0 l

an
e 

op
tio

n 
wh

ich
 re

su
lts

 in
 a

n 
ov

era
ll d

ev
elo

pm
en

t c
os

t o
f 

£2
1,9

18
,10

4; 

                                   

                                   

Page 4



 
5

No
. 

Mi
nu

te 
Re

fer
en

ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte

e D
ec
isi
on

 
 Up

da
te 

 
Le

ad
 

Of
fic

er(
s) 

Re
po

rt 
Du

e  
Re

po
rt 

Ex
pe

cte
d 

(if 
kn

ow
n) 

(f) 
to 

ins
tru

ct 
off

ice
rs 

to 
rep

or
t 
ba

ck
 t
o 

the
 n

ex
t 

ap
pr
op

ria
te 

me
eti

ng
 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
in 

reg
ard

 to
 

the
 

pr
og

res
s 

on
 

the
 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 

on
 

ite
ms

 
d(i

ii) 
an

d (
iv)

 ab
ov

e; 
 an

d 
(g)

 
to 

no
te 

tha
t th

e p
rov

isio
n o

f 
a 

50
 m

etr
e 

po
ol 

ha
s b

ee
n 

inc
lud

ed
 w

ith
in 

the
 sc

op
e o

f 
the

 
W

ate
r 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Pla

n 
cu

rre
ntl

y 
un

de
rw

ay
, 

an
d 

wil
l a

lso
 b

e 
inc

lud
ed

 
wit

hin
 

the
 

rep
ort

 
to 

Co
mm

itte
e, 

du
e 

on
 

15
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11

. 
 

Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 
aw

are
 th

at 
his

tor
ica

lly 
the

re 
ha

s b
ee

n a
 re

co
gn

itio
n t

ha
t 

the
 

cit
y 

ha
s 

a 
gre

ate
r 

nu
mb

er 
of 

sw
im

mi
ng

 p
oo

ls 
for

 th
e 

siz
e 

of 
po

pu
lat

ion
 

tha
n 

els
ew

he
re.

  
sp

or
tsc

otl
an

d 
is 

pro
vid

ing
 

su
pp

ort
 

to 
mo

de
l 

the
 

ex
ist

ing
 

wa
ter

 
pro

vis
ion

 
an

d 
fut

ure
 n

ee
ds

. 
 T

he
 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
wil

l a
lso

 
tak

e 
ful

l 
ac

co
un

t 
of 

the
 

red
uc

ing
 

rev
en

ue
 

an
d 

ca
pit

al 
bu

dg
ets

 a
nd

 t
he

 
co

sts
 a

ss
oc

iat
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

50
 m

etr
e p

oo
l a

nd
 ar

e l
ike

ly 
to 

inc
lud

e a
 re

du
cti

on
 in

 th
e 

nu
mb

er 
an

d 
ran

ge
 

of 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 
En

ter
pri

se
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

                     

17
.08

.11
 

                           

Page 5



 
6

No
. 

Mi
nu

te 
Re

fer
en

ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte

e D
ec
isi
on

 
 Up

da
te 

 
Le

ad
 

Of
fic

er(
s) 

Re
po

rt 
Du

e  
Re

po
rt 

Ex
pe

cte
d 

(if 
kn

ow
n) 

fac
iliti

es
. 

  
2. 

Co
un

cil 
30

.06
.10

 
Ar

tic
le 

16
 

 

Th
e 

Cit
y 

Ga
rde

n 
Pr
oje

ct 
- 
Ne

xt 
St
ep

s 
 Th

e 
Co

un
cil 

ag
ree

d 
to 

rec
eiv

e 
qu

art
erl

y 
pro

gre
ss

 r
ep

ort
s 

on
 t

he
 

ma
tte

r. 
 

Th
e 

ma
tte

r w
as

 la
st 

rep
ort

ed
 to

 
Co

un
cil 

on
 2

3rd
 F

eb
rua

ry 
20

11
 

an
d 

the
 

Co
un

cil’
s 

Pr
oje

ct 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 

Gr
ou

p 
ha

d 
the

ir 
ina

ug
ura

l m
ee

tin
g o

n 2
2nd

 M
arc

h. 
Mi

nu
tes

 an
d a

ss
oc

iat
ed

 pa
pe

rs 
for

 
Pr

oje
ct 

Mo
nit

ori
ng

 
Gr

ou
p 

me
eti

ng
s 

wil
l b

e 
po

ste
d 

on
 th

e 
Co

un
cil’

s w
eb

sit
e o

nc
e a

pp
rov

ed
. 

 A 
rep

ort
 w

ill 
be

 in
clu

de
d 

in 
the

 
Inf

orm
ati

on
 Bu

lle
tin

. 
  

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 
En

ter
pri

se
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

 Pr
oje

ct 
Dir

ec
tor

, 
Ec

on
om

ic 
an

d 
Bu

sin
es

s 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

 

29
.06

.11
 

29
.06

.11
 

3. 
Co

un
cil 

 
15

.12
.10

 
Ar

tic
le 

13
 

Pr
og

res
s 

vis
-à-

vis
 t
he

 A
cc
ou

nts
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

 Fo
llo

w 
up

 R
ep

or
t 

 Th
e 

Ch
ief

 E
xe

cu
tive

 a
dv

ise
d 

tha
t a

 
rep

ort
 w

ou
ld 

be
 su

bm
itte

d t
o C

ou
nc

il 
on

 2
9th

 J
un

e 
20

11
 o

n 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 
pro

gre
ss

 si
nc

e 
the

 p
ub

lica
tio

n 
of 

the
 

Ac
co

un
ts 

Co
mm

iss
ion

’s 
fol

low
 u

p 
rep

ort
 in

 Ju
ly 2

00
9. 

  

A r
ep

ort
 is

 on
 th

e a
ge

nd
a. 

 
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
 

29
.06

.11
 

29
.06

.11
 

4. 
Ho

us
ing

 an
d 

En
vir

on
me

nt 
10

.05
.11

 
Ar

tic
le 

20
 

 

Mo
de

rni
sa
tio

n 
of 

the
 

Ho
us

ing
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

 Th
e 

Ho
us

ing
 

an
d 

En
vir

on
me

nt 
Co

mm
itte

e 
no

ted
 th

at 
a 

ful
l d

eta
iled

 
rep

ort
, in

clu
din

g a
rea

 te
am

 st
ruc

tur
es

 
an

d p
atc

h s
ize

s, 
wo

uld
 be

 pr
es

en
ted

 

Th
is 

ma
tte

r w
ill n

ow
 be

 re
po

rte
d t

o 
the

 
Ho

us
ing

 
an

d 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

Co
mm

itte
e o

n 2
5th

 Au
gu

st 
20

11
. 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 
Ho

us
ing

 an
d 

En
vir

on
me

nt 
29

.06
.11

 
Ho

us
ing

 an
d 

En
vir

on
me

nt 
25

.08
.11

 

Page 6



 
7

No
. 

Mi
nu

te 
Re

fer
en

ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte

e D
ec
isi
on

 
 Up

da
te 

 
Le

ad
 

Of
fic

er(
s) 

Re
po

rt 
Du

e  
Re

po
rt 

Ex
pe

cte
d 

(if 
kn

ow
n) 

to 
the

 m
ee

tin
g o

f C
ou

nc
il o

f 2
9th

 Ju
ne

 
20

11
. 

 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

DRAFT/ 
HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

 
10 May, 2011 

 
SECURITY SERVICES IN MAINSTREAM MULTI STOREY BLOCKS – 
PROGRESS REPORT  
 
With reference to article 30 of the minute of its previous meeting of 1 March, 
2011 the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which provided an update in relation to the provision of security 
services in multi storey blocks.  
 
By way of background the report reminded members that as per legislation (the 
Tenements (Scotland) Act 2004), the Council could not force any owner to pay 
for this work to be undertaken, as the security works were classed as an 
‘improvement’. The capital cost per owner was around £170 (£12,240 in total 
based on the original tender), and the annual operation and maintenance 
revenue charges would be between £37,400 and £56,000.  
 
The report advised as to the consultation which had been undertaken with the 
seventy two owners in the affected blocks (Hutcheon Court, Greig Court, 
Bayview Court, Northsea Court and Marischal Court); and outlined the response 
of owners as follows: 

• twenty two owners agreed to the proposals and agreed to contribute 
financially 

• seventeen owners disagreed with the proposals and did not agree to 
contribute financially 

• eleven owners agreed to the concept, but did not agree to contribute 
financially 

• five owners returned other comments, mainly questioning the requirement 
for the works to proceed.  

 
In addition to the above, thirteen owners had failed to respond, and four owners 
were still to be contacted.  
 
It was suggested, by way of the report, that the security services could be 
withheld from those owners who chose not to pay (ie owners who did not pay 
would have no access to the control room operatives or the ASBIT team 
services, and would have no additional remote concierge services to vet visitors). 
The report highlighted that this course of action did pose a risk to the overall 
security to the building, and could weaken the whole scheme to an extent.  
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) notes the procurement timetable (as detailed within the report);  

Agenda Item 8(a)

Page 9



 

 

(b) agrees that owners be provided with full access to the improved security 
services should they contribute financially to the cost of the service; and  

(c)  agrees that owners will not be provided with access to the improved 
security service if they do not agree to contribute financially to the cost of 
the service.  

 
The Convener, seconded by the Vice Convener, moved: 

that the report’s recommendations be approved, and to agree that the 
Convener and Vice Convener of this Committee would write to the new 
Minister responsible for housing to request that a review of the law be 
undertaken regarding the issues raised in this report, including repairs for 
Council properties that are part privately owned.   

 
Councillor Fletcher, seconded by Councillor Hunter, moved as an amendment: 

to instruct that the new security service be fully implemented, with the cost 
to be borne entirely from the Housing Revenue Account (HRA), noting that 
this is best value for the HRA in the long term; and to agree that the 
Convener and Vice Convener of this Committee would write to the new 
Minister responsible for housing to request that a review of the law be 
undertaken regarding the issues raised in this report, including repairs for 
Council properties that are part privately owned.   

 
On a division, there voted: for the motion (7) – the Convener; the Vice Convener; 
and Councillors Cormie, Dunbar, Jaffrey, Noble and Robertson; for the 
amendment (6) – Councillors Allan, Collie, Cooney, Fletcher, Hunter and Yuill.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the successful motion.  
 
 
In terms of Standing Order 36(3), Councillors Allan, Collie, Cooney, 
Fletcher and Hunter referred this matter to Council for its consideration.  
 

Page 10



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE    Housing and Environment   
 
DATE      10 May 2011 
 
DIRECTOR     Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Security Services in Mainstream Multi 

Storey Blocks – progress update 
 
REPORT NUMBER:      
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide an update to elected members 
on the provision of security services in multi storey blocks.  

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 

It is recommended that the Committee: 
 
1. Notes the procurement timetable 
2. Agrees that owners will be provided with full access to the improved 

security services should they contribute financially to the cost of the 
service.  

3. Agrees that owners will not be provided with access to the improved 
security services should they not agree to contribute financially to 
the cost of the service. 

  
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

A sum of £500K has been allocated in the 2011/2012 Housing 
Revenue Account capital budget to cover the capital purchase cost of 
the system. 
Also, a sum of £444k per annum has been allocated in the Housing 
Revenue Account to cover the revenue cost of managing and 
maintaining the service. 
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Human rights impacts and implications have been outlined in previous 
papers on this project. 
The implications of the Tenements (Scotland) Act 2004 have been 
outlined in the paper to Committee of 1 March 2011. 

Page 11



 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

5.1 Procurement process 
 
The timeline reported to Housing and Environment Committee 1 March 
was: 
 
Advertise Pre-Qualifying Questionnaire:   22 February 
Completed PQQs returned:  25 March 
Invitation To Tender issued:   6 April 
ITT responses:   20 May 
Evaluation and preferred supplier identification:   3 June 
 
 
Progress to date and the amended timeline is as follows: 
 
Advertise Pre-Qualifying Questionnaire:   25 February 
Completed PQQs returned:  28 March 
Invitation To Tender issued:   29 April 
ITT responses:   7 June 
Evaluation and preferred supplier identification:   21 June. 
 
Full installation of the system is likely to take around 6 months to 
complete after completion of the contract documentation. 
 
The initial work will focus on setting up the core system and control 
room and there would follow a phased roll out of provision on a block 
by block basis, with priority given to those blocks with known problems. 
 
 
5.2 Implications of the Tenements (Scotland) Act 2004 
 
As required by the Tenements (Scotland) Act 2004, a consultation 
exercise was carried out with the 72 owners of the five blocks where 
the Council intends to introduce access control measures. 
 
These blocks are: 

 
• Hutcheon 
• Greig 
• Bayview 
• Northsea 
• Marischal 

 
The consultation has been carried out using the following methods: 

 
• Initially face to face visits 

Page 12



• A letter was hand delivered explaining the scheme and giving 
owners the opportunity to come to a planned time within their 
common room 

• A further letter was issued enclosing a prepaid envelope with a 
date for return. 

 
Three questions were asked of the owners as well as giving them an 
indicative cost for the project of between £10 - £15 per month.  The 
questions asked were: 

  
• Are you in support of the Centralised control Room monitoring 

the CCTV cameras within your block? Yes or No 
 

• Are you in support of the Access Control Measures? Yes or No 
 

• If you are in support of the measures would you be prepared to 
pay towards the maintenance of the system? Yes or No   

 
To date we have received a total of 55 responses (76%). 
 
 
22 owners agreed to the proposals and agreed to contribute financially 
17 disagree with the proposals and did not agree to pay 
11 agreed to the concept but did not agree to pay 
5 returned other comments, mainly questioning the need for the works 

13 failed to respond and 4 are still to be contacted. 
 
It is clear, and perhaps not surprising, that the majority of owners have 
issues with the cost element. Interestingly, not one owner to date has 
raised any issues as regards the equality or human rights issues, which 
was a risk highlighted by the Council’s legal team. 

 
 Conclusion 

As previously reported to H&E Committee, the Tenements (Scotland) 
Act 2004 is very clear on the rights of owners in mixed tenure buildings. 
The additional security works are clearly an improvement as described 
in the Act and therefore the Council cannot at any time force the works 
upon the owners and demand payment.  A decision therefore needs to 
be taken as to whether the cost elements of the proposal should be 
borne in total from the HRA, or those owners who have indicated a 
willingness to pay should be asked to do so. 
The capital cost per owner is approximately £170, total value for all 
owners being around £12.24k (based on the original tender price) The 
annual operation and maintenance revenue charges would be 
somewhere between £37.4k and £56k. 

 
The only way that the Council can legally continue with this proposal is 
if it accepts that the owners will not be charged for the installation and 
ongoing maintenance of the system unless they specifically agree to 

Page 13



this. It remains an option for the Council to choose to withhold services 
from those owners who do not pay, as follows: 

 
a) no access to the Control Room operatives e.g. not given the 

emergency contact number 
b) no access to ASBIT team services (unless for statutory noise 

nuisance complaints). 
c) no additional remote concierge services to vet visitors ( door push 

button link to Control Room deactivated) 
 

Whilst withholding these services may encourage some owners to 
contribute financially, it may also present some risks to the overall 
security of the building. For example, if there is antisocial behaviour 
going on in or around the building it is in the Council’s own interests to 
receive reports on this whether from an owner or a tenant. Similarly, if 
an owner is not part of the remote access arrangements, this may 
weaken the whole scheme to an extent. 
 
5.3 Location of Control Room 
 
The initial plans were for the control room to be sited at Kittybrewster 
works depot in the first instance, with an option to relocate to a more 
suitable location in the future.   
 
With the imminent move of additional staff to Kittybrewster as part of 
the Marishcal project, space at this site is at a premium. Alternative 
sites have therefore been examined and it has been decided to base 
the control room in the Tillydrone Housing Office. Use will be made of 
the space which was formerly used for rent collection activities and this 
will enable the CCTV control room staff to be co-located alongside the 
Anti Social Behavior Investigations Team (ASBIT), providing obvious 
operational benefits. 
 
 

 
6. IMPACT 
 

Corporate 
The improvements to safety and security in the multi storeys will 
contribute to the achievement of one of the top ten strategic priorities 
outlined in the Community Plan update – namely 
 
Safety 
Violence and disorder – Reducing anti social, violence and drug and 
alcohol related problems 
 
Adoption of the recommendations will also contribute to the 
achievement of National Outcome 9, as outlined in the Single Outcome 
Agreement 2008 – 2011 “we live our lives safe from crime, disorder 
and danger"” 

Page 14



 
The recommendations also relate directly to the following policies 
outlined in Vibrant, Dynamic and Forward Looking 2007 –2011 
 
Housing 
Provide better secured controlled access to multi storey blocks 
 
Public  
There is likely to be interest in this report by members of the public 
 
. 

 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

Pete Leonard, Director of Housing and Environment 
pleonard@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 523899 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

DRAFT/ 
HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

 
10 May, 2011 

 
TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION UNITS – SMOKING POLICY EXCEPTION 
(H&E/11/042) 
 
With reference to article 26 of the minute of its meeting of 13 April, 2010, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and Environment 
which requested that an exemption be granted to the Council’s Temporary 
Accommodation Units from the Smoke Free at Work Policy.  
 
By way of background the report reminded members that a report was presented 
to this Committee at the aforementioned meeting on this issue, and at this time, 
the Committee did not approve the recommendations of officers. Since this time, 
the Licensing Committee had granted an HMO licence for 77 – 79 Bon Accord 
Street and 95 Bon Accord Street (article (tbc) of the minute of meeting of the 
Licensing Committee of 22 March, 2011 refers) but at this time, a number of local 
residents had raised concerns in relation to residents of the units smoking and 
drinking around the street corner. At this juncture, a number of members 
intimated that this was a management issue, and not one that would be resolved 
through approval of the recommendations.  
 
The report continued that the practice of not allowing smoking inside had led to a 
number of residents trying to smoke inside in a concealed way, and indicated 
that there had been several attempts to interfere with the fire detection system. 
Again, some members were of the opinion that this was a management issue 
that required to be tackled by officers.  
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a)  approves an exception to the Smoke Free at Work Policy as follows: 

• Smoking shall be permitted in designated areas (bedrooms) of the 
Homelessness Service Temporary Accommodation Units 

• The Homelessness Manager, in consultation with the Temporary 
Accommodation Senior Officer and Team Leaders of individual 
units will designate a proportion of individual rooms as smoking 
rooms; and  

(b) refers this report to the Corporate Policy and Performance Committee for 
its information.  

 

Agenda Item 8(b)

Page 17



 

 

At this juncture, Councillor Robertson circulated a letter from the Head of 
Community Safety at Grampian Fire and rescue, which set out the Service’s 
strong opposition to the proposal to allow an exception to the Smoke Free at 
Work Policy.  
 
The Convener, seconded by Councillor Fletcher, moved: 

that the report’s recommendations be approved, and that a detailed report 
be brought back to this Committee in six months.  

 
Councillor Robertson, seconded by Councillor Hunter, moved as an amendment: 

that this Committee does not agree that Temporary Accommodation Units 
should be exempt from the Smoke Free at Work Policy, and therefore 
instructs that the Policy is continued to be adhered to within the Council’s 
Temporary Accommodation Units.  

 
On a division, there voted: for the motion (7) – the Convener; the Vice Convener; 
and Councillors Cormie, Dunbar, Fletcher, Jaffrey and Noble; for the amendment 
(6) – Councillors Allan, Collie, Cooney, Hunter, Robertson and Yuill.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to adopt the successful motion.  
 
In terms of Standing Order 36(3), Councillors Allan, Collie, Cooney, Hunter 
and Robertson referred this matter to Council for its consideration.  
 

Page 18



Page 1 of 3 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE:   Housing & Environment  DATE: 10 May 2011 
 
DIRECTOR:      Pete Leonard  
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Temporary Accommodation Units – Smoking – Policy 

Exception 
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/11/042 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

This report seeks approval for exception to the Smoke Free at Work Policy for the 
City Councils’ Temporary Accommodation Units. 
 
  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  

It is recommended that Committee  
(a)  approves an exception to the Smoke Free at Work Policy as follows:  

• smoking shall be permitted in a designated areas (bedrooms) of the 
Homelessness Service Temporary Accommodation Units. 

• the Homelessness Manager in conjunction with the Temporary 
Accommodation Senior Officer and Team Leaders of individual units will 
designate a proportion of individual rooms as smoking rooms; and  

(b) refers this report to the Corporate Policy and Performance Committee for its 
information.  

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

There will be a requirement to install mechanical ventilation at these premises but 
this can be contained within the current budget. This will be funded through the 
Property costs - Repairs & Maintenance line.  
 
4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 

4.1. The proposal links to the Single Outcome Agreement and Vibrant, Dynamic 
& Forward Looking to ‘increase the number of temporary homes for 
homeless people across the City’ and ‘retain the 24 hours contact point for 
homeless people’.  It also links to the National Indicator and Target ‘All 
unintentionally homeless households will be entitled to settled 
accommodation by 2012’. 

Page 19



Page 2 of 3 

4.2. Our public services are high quality, continually improving, efficient and 
responsive to local people’s needs.  

4.3. The proposals will assist the Council to deliver against, in particular, one of 
the five key areas of activity – the services we provide and secure for the 
most vulnerable members of our community. 

4.4. There are direct links to the Housing Service Plan 2009 – 2012 – 
Modernisation of Service, the Resettlement & Homelessness Strategy (2009 
– 2013) and the Temporary Accommodation Strategy.  

 
5. OTHER  IMPLICATIONS 

A policy will be devised to minimise risks to staff from passive smoking. 
 
6. MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

6.1. Committee considered a report on this matter on 13 April 2010 and did not 
approve the recommendations. 

6.2. However, the renewal of the HMO licences for 77-79 and 95 Bon Accord 
Street were heard by the Licensing Committee on 22 March 2011. 

6.3. The Committee heard around 60 objections to the renewal of the licence. 
6.4. A licence was issued for 18 months only because we outlined how we would 

tackle the issues which were causing concern to the objectors. 
6.5. Issues which were raised by the objectors included residents of the 

Accommodation Units hanging around on the street corners causing fear to 
passers by. This included drinking and smoking. Agreeing to these 
recommendations would be one aspect of our commitment to lessening the 
impact of service users behaviours on our neighbours. 

6.6. The current practice of not allowing smoking at all within the temporary 
accommodation unit forces people to smoke outside. This might be all right if 
these were individual dwellings but in the accommodation unit smoking can 
become a group activity sometimes causing nuisance to the neighbourhood. 

6.7. The practice also has led to individuals trying to smoke in a concealed way 
with numerous attempts to interfere with the fire detection system. The 
overall risk to others could appear to increase as a result.  

6.8. Smoking areas are available to the rear of our premises but when residents 
use these areas they can often do so noisily thus again negatively impacting 
on the neighbourhood. 

6.9. The Smoke Free at Work Policy outlines the only exception to that policy will 
be in designated smoking areas in the Council’s residential homes for adults 
and older people, as these are considered to be a dwelling place. 

6.10. Temporary Accommodation Units would fall into the same category as it is 
the only home of the individuals at that time. 

Page 20



Page 3 of 3 

6.11. A full risk assessment for staff will be undertaken and discussed with staff 
and union officials. 

 
 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

Paul Hannan, Homelessness Manager 
 

 � (52)3128 
 � phannan@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Smoke Free at Work Policy 
 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE    Council     
 
DATE      29 June 2011    
 
LEAD OFFICER   Chief Executive      
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Accounts Commission Findings – progress 
 
REPORT NUMBER:       OCE/11/006 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

At its meeting on 15 December 2010, the Council heard an oral report 
by the Chief Executive providing an update on the actions taken by the 
Leadership Board to address the findings and recommendations of the 
Accounts Commission for Scotland on Aberdeen City Council: Reports 
by the Controller of Audit on the Audit of Best Value and Community 
Planning and the Property Sales Investigation. 
 
The Council resolved:- 
 
i) to note that a report would be submitted to the Council meeting 

on 29 June 2011 on the Council’s progress since the publication 
of the Accounts Commission’s follow up report in July 2009; and 

ii) to note that the Leadership Board would now be stood down, 
and that Group Leaders would meet once per committee cycle 
instead to review forthcoming Council business and any other 
matters of significance. 

 
This report provides the progress update requested by the Council. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION  

  
That the Council notes the content of the report and requests that the 
Chief Executive provides further reports as and when required to future 
meetings of the Council.  

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
There are no specific financial implications arising from this report, but 
its subject matter relates directly and indirectly to all the arrangements 
made by the Council to ensure a sustainable financial future for the 
organisation and the services it provides.  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 9(a)

Page 23



4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no other specific implications arising from this report, but its 
subject matter touches directly or indirectly on all aspects of the 
Council’s policy statement and the Single Outcome Agreement. 

 
5. MAIN ISSUES 

 
The Findings and Recommendations of the Accounts Commission on 
Aberdeen City Council: Reports by the Controller of Audit on the Audit 
of Best Value and Community Planning and on the Property Sales 
Investigation were before the Council at its meeting of 16 June 2008. 
 
As reported to the Council at its meeting on 19 August 2009 (report 
number OCE/09/002), on Thursday 30 July 2009, Audit Scotland 
published its progress report on the Council’s arrangements for best 
value and community planning.  The report includes the Accounts 
Commission’s findings and is available from the Audit Scotland website 
at http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/.  Elected members each received 
a copy of the report at that time. 
 
The Accounts Commission’s findings were as follows:- 
 
i) When the Accounts Commission published its findings on the Best 

Value audit on Aberdeen City Council in May 2008 following a 
public hearing, it requested a further report from the Controller of 
Audit in 12 months’ time.  The Commission accepts this report as 
fulfilling that requirement.  We recognise that the report gives a 
broad picture of the council’s performance based on the work of 
Audit Scotland and service inspectorates and does not attempt a 
comprehensive review of all service delivery.  We acknowledge the 
co-operation and assistance given to the audit process by elected 
members and officers of the council. 

 
 ii) The Commission is encouraged by the prompt and decisive action 

taken by the council, and taking into account the timescale, 
commends the council on its progress across a range of activity.  
We welcome in particular the steps taken to establish new 
management structures and a new senior management team, the 
early signs of changes in organisational culture and the progress in 
implementing a corporate performance management process.  

 
 iii) We are also pleased to note that the council has started to improve 

budget setting.  It now needs to build on this to establish robust and 
sustainable financial management and monitoring, which will be 
vital in addressing the challenging financial position it continues to 
face.  This is a key issue in any circumstances and will be all the 
more challenging for the council given the recession and the 
financial pressures facing local government. 

 

Page 24



 iv) In aggregate, the council has made a good start in addressing our 
findings on the initial Best Value audit report, and we believe that 
there is a very promising base for further improvement.  Inevitably 
at this stage the council still has much to do and it needs to ensure 
that the progress is sustained and supported throughout the 
organisation.  In doing so, it needs to mitigate the risks to its 
ambitious improvement programme arising from dependence on a 
small number of elected members and officers.  The council also 
needs to maintain a broad consensus to support the overall 
direction of travel and pace of change.    

 
 v) As part of the streamlining of scrutiny that the Scottish Government 

has asked the Accounts Commission to be involved in, Audit 
Scotland is currently working closely with other scrutiny bodies to 
deliver a shared risk assessment of councils.  The Controller of 
Audit’s report and these findings, showing a picture of encouraging 
initial progress but with some way to go, will feature in the next risk 
assessment of Aberdeen City Council which will, in turn, inform the 
nature and timing of future external scrutiny.   

 
The relevant statutory provisions required the Council to consider the 
Commission’s findings at a meeting of the Council within three months 
of receiving them.  This duty must be discharged by the full Council and 
not by a committee, sub-committee or officer.  After the Council has 
met, the Commission must be notified of any decisions made. 
 
The Council meeting on 30 September 2009 considered a report by the 
Chief Executive on behalf of the Leadership Board (report number 
OCE/09/008) and agreed a response to the Accounts Commission, 
copied to the Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Sustainable Growth, 
based on the Leadership Board’s consideration of the following 
matters.  A progress update is now noted below each bullet point:- 
 

• new management structures 
 

The Council meeting on 30 September 2009 marks the end of 
the first cycle of meetings of the Council’s new committee 
structure, introduced to clarify relationships, responsibilities and 
accountabilities within the Council.  Work continues on the 
development of new Standing Orders, Financial Regulations, 
Schemes of Delegation and Codes of Conduct to underpin the 
new management structures and the Council has agreed that a 
review should be undertaken following the first six months of 
operation of the new committee structure. 
 
update 
 
In the intervening period since August 2009, the Council’s 
Standing Orders, Financial Regulations, Schemes of Delegation 
and Codes of Conduct have been reviewed and updated; a 

Page 25



refreshed Local Code of Corporate Governance has been 
adopted and the envisaged review of the committee structure 
was reported to the Council meeting on 24 March 2010 (report 
number CG/10/031).  All these matters remain under review and 
wherever necessary proposed improvements will be brought 
forward to the relevant committee for decision.  The Chief 
Executive is in the early stages of giving consideration to revised 
decision-making structures to continue the improvements made 
in streamlining the work of the Council. 
 

• new senior management team 
 

The Director of Corporate Governance took up his post with the 
Council on 1 September 2009 completing the appointment 
process for the Council’s new Directors.  The Chief Executive 
and the Directors are now working jointly to agree and bring 
forward to Council recommendations for the sub-structure of 
Heads of Service across the five Directorates and the Office of 
Chief Executive.  The Chief Executive will liaise directly with the 
Leadership Board and elected members to discuss the rationale 
behind the sub-structure as it is developed.  The Council has 
agreed that the number of Heads of Service posts will be 
reduced from the current 25 to a maximum of 21 and that the 
posts will be advertised externally.  It is envisaged that 
appointments will be made during November and December 
2009. 
 
update 
 
In the intervening period since August 2009, the Council’s Head 
of Service structure was finalised and agreed at the Council 
meeting on 18 November 2009 (report number OCE/09/012) 
with the resulting 16 posts being advertised externally and filled 
during the first half of 2010.  At the Council’s Budget Meeting on 
10 February 2011, it was resolved that the Chief Executive be 
instructed to initiate a review of the Council’s management 
structure in the context of the priority based budget options for 
the period 2011/2016.  The Chief Executive will bring reports 
back to the Council at the appropriate time. 
 

• changes in organisational culture 
 

The Chief Executive and the Directors acknowledge the 
importance of setting and maintaining the Council’s ‘cultural 
tone’ (as it is described in Audit Scotland’s report).  Work 
continues at both a corporate and directorate level to develop 
and actively make use of a range of communication tools to 
ensure that the Council’s organisational culture is a positive 
influence in ensuring that the Council delivers the desired 
outcomes for those it serves.  The structure agreed by the 

Page 26



Council at its meeting on 25 March 2009 saw communications 
transferred to the Office of Chief Executive, a clear indication of 
the importance of this work as the Council moves forward.  A 
survey of all Council staff is due to take place in the coming 
months; this will establish a new baseline on staff views and 
opinions and indicate where work should be concentrated in 
order to enhance a positive cultural tone within the organisation. 
 
update 
 
The results of the 2010 staff survey were published in March 
2011 along with an outline of the actions to be taken as a result 
of the feedback that the survey provided.  In addition, the 
Council’s draft five year business plan which is also on the 
agenda for today’s meeting explicitly sets out the importance to 
its successful delivery of communication, community 
engagement and employee engagement.  The Chief Executive 
is personally committed to a proactive and ongoing programme 
of staff visits across the Council.  Directors and Heads of 
Service across the Council have held numerous staff briefings, 
workshop sessions and other fora to engage actively with staff. 
 

• corporate performance management process 
 

Given the centrality of clear responsibility and accountability in 
the Council’s new organisational structures at both Committee 
and Directorate level, and given the fundamental requirement for 
robust self-assessment as national scrutiny arrangements are 
transformed the importance of the Council’s corporate 
performance management processes are fully appreciated both 
by elected members and officers.  In seeking to deliver against 
timescale and within budget the priorities enshrined within the 
Single Outcome Agreement and Vibrant, Dynamic and Forward 
Looking it is recognised that performance management 
arrangements within the Council must be kept continually under 
review.  Each of the new Committees, the Corporate 
Management Team and each of the new Directorates will 
regularly receive, analyse and act on robust performance 
information. 
 
update 
 
Each of the service committees of the Council receives regular 
performance reports with the aim being that timely, relevant and 
robust information is presented to elected members.  The 
system in place continues to be kept under review and proposed 
improvements are reported to the appropriate committees for 
decision.  In addition, the How Good is Our Council model of self 
evaluation has been adopted as a means of supporting 
performance improvement. 

Page 27



 
• improved budget setting 

 
The Finance and Resources Committee on 17 September 2009 
received a report by the City Chamberlain on the proposed 
arrangements for setting the 2010/2011 budget.  The intention is 
to ensure that the improvements noted by the Accounts 
Commission in the findings are secured and built upon. 
 
update 
 
At the Council’s Budget Meeting of 11 February 2010, it was 
resolved that the 2011/2012 budget process should be 
undertaken on a priority based approach using zero based 
budgeting principles to provide the foundation for a fully-costed 
five year business plan for the council for 2011/2016.  The 
subsequent priority based budget options were reported to 
Council at its meeting on 15 December 2010 (report number 
CG/10/202) with further decisions being taken at the Council’s 
Budget Meeting on 10 February 2011. 
 

• robust and sustainable financial management and 
monitoring 

 
It is recognised that the quality of budget setting within the 
Council will be enhanced both by augmented to day-to-day 
financial management and monitoring and by improved medium 
to longer term financial planning.  Work is underway on both.  In 
particular on the former, the roll out across the Council of the 
Collaborative Planning tool will afford budget holders and those 
they report to at both officer and elected member level a much 
clearer insight into the operation of the budgets for which they 
are responsible and earlier opportunities to deal effectively with 
variances as they begin to occur. 
 
update 
 
The Corporate Management Team now receives a monthly 
finance performance report which provides a regular overview of 
the Council’s financial position enabling discussion and action as 
appropriate.  The report incorporates updates on revenue, 
capital, and treasury and savings information and provides for 
improved financial management and monitoring across the 
Council.  The reporting of financial information to Committee has 
been similarly revised.  The Council’s draft annual accounts for 
2010/2011 are also on the agenda for today’s meeting.  The 
Council has been an early adopter in publishing the revised 
annual governance statement and in terms of monitoring, the 
period since September 2009 has seen a significant shift in 

Page 28



focus for the Council’s Internal Audit activity in order to ensure it 
more effectively supports the delivery of the Council’s priorities. 
 

• progress to be sustained and supported throughout the 
organisation 

 
The Leadership Board, on behalf of the Council welcomed the 
Accounts Commission’s findings when they were received on 30 
July 2009.  The Leadership Board, the Chief Executive and the 
Corporate Management Team are united in seeking the means 
by which the progress to date is built upon and owned 
throughout the Council in order to ensure that appropriate 
outcomes are successfully delivered to those the Council 
serves. 
 
update 
 
As noted above, at its meeting on 15 December 2010 the 
Council took the decision to stand down the Leadership Board.  
The Group Leaders now meet once each committee cycle to 
review forthcoming Council business and any other matters of 
significance.  The most recent shared risk assessment: 
assurance and improvement plan for the Council produced by 
Audit Scotland on behalf of the Local Area Network (LAN) of 
inspection bodies notes:- “Evidence now shows an improving 
managerial leadership and performance picture although the 
council still faces some important challenges, notably that of 
making significant financial savings and maintaining 
improvement momentum at a time of considerable 
organisational change and in a highly charged political 
environment which presents risks to the efficient and effective 
conduct of business.”  Audit Scotland and other LAN colleagues 
will continue to monitor the situation as part of their ongoing 
engagement with the Council. 
  

• mitigate the risks of dependence on a small number of 
elected members and officers 

 
The establishment of the new committee structure with 
Conveners, Vice-Conveners, Group Spokespeople and 
committee members all with clarified responsibilities and 
accountabilities for a defined range of services assists in 
mitigating any risk there may have been in this regard.  Similarly, 
with the new Director group now complete and working to a 
shared corporate agenda with the Chief Executive any risk on 
the officer side is nullified. 
 
update 
 

Page 29



Appointments to the Heads of Service structure were completed 
during the first half of 2010 and subsequently each Directorate 
has revised its third tier structure.  The priority based budget 
options and the draft five year business plan together provide 
the revised corporate agenda to be delivered by the Council on 
behalf of the people served in the City.  
  

• maintain a broad consensus to support the overall direction 
of travel and pace of change 

 
The Leadership Board was established by the Council to work 
on its behalf to own and drive forward the Council’s improvement 
programme.  The Board continues to fulfil this role. 

 
 update 
 

As noted above, the Leadership Board has now been stood 
down with the Group Leaders taking on a role in relation to 
Council business and other significant matters.  In agreeing the 
revised Local Code of Corporate Governance at its meeting of 
25 November 2010 (report number OCE/10/021 the Corporate 
Policy and Performance Committee agreed that it would be 
helpful for the Council to work to the guidance contained in the 
Audit Scotland report Roles and Working Relationships – are 
you getting it right?  It is intended that work on this is undertaken 
during the coming recess period. 

 
6. IMPACT 
 

As at paragraph 4 above. 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Aberdeen City Council: Reports by the Controller of Audit on the Audit 
of Best Value and Community Planning and on the Property Sales 
Investigation - Audit Scotland, May 2008 
 
The Audit of Best Value and Community Planning, Aberdeen City 
Council Progress Report – Audit Scotland, July 2009 
 
Roles and Working Relationships – are you getting it right? – Audit 
Scotland, July 2010 
 
Shared Risk Assessment: Assurance and Improvement Plan 
2010/2013 – Audit Scotland, July 2010 
 
Shared Risk Assessment: Assurance and Improvement Plan 
2011/2014 – Audit Scotland, May 2011 

 
 

Page 30



8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Ciaran Monaghan 
Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive 
cmonaghan@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
(01224) 522293 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\7\AI00010741\$jfraxw5g.doc 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE:   Council 
 
DATE:   29 June 2011 
 
REPORT BY:   Head of Finance 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Draft Statement of Accounts 2010/11 
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG/11/079 

 
 
1.  PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide to elected members a copy of the 

Council’s draft 2010/11 Statement of Accounts, which are subject to audit. 
 
1.2 The Council is required by statute to annually present a set of draft 

accounts to Audit Scotland by 30 June and for elected members to receive 
a copy of these draft accounts by this due date. 

 
1.3 Following a report to the Finance and Resources Committee on 17 June 

2011 on the full year outturn for the Council, this report provides an 
overview of the year-end financial position and the resources of the 
Council as at 31 March 2011. 

 
2.  RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Council: 
 
a) note the Draft Statement of Accounts, and financial performance of the 

various Council accounts contained therein, which will be submitted to Audit 
Scotland by 30 June 2011; 

b) note that the audited Financial Statements will be presented to the Audit 
and Risk Committee, along with the external auditor's report to members in 
the Autumn, and will come back to a Council meeting thereafter; 

c) note that in accordance with the relevant strategies to maintain revenue 
balances the Council objective of retaining recommended levels of 
uncommitted balances has been achieved; and 

d) note and approve the various transfers between Council accounts and 
earmarking of sums against the General Fund, Housing Revenue Account 
and Common Good as at 31 March 2011 as detailed in paragraphs 6.3.10 
and 6.3.14. 

 
 

Agenda Item 9(b)

Page 33



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\7\AI00010741\$jfraxw5g.doc 

3.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 The financial implications of the Draft Financial Statements are detailed 

throughout the body of the report.  Particular attention should be drawn to 
the 2010/11 year end working balances that exist on the three main 
accounts, the General Fund, the Housing Revenue Account and the 
Common Good, which show the extent of commitments set against the 
fund balances held.  These details can be seen at section 6.3.14 below  

 
4.  SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 
4.1 It is the aim of the Council to maintain working balances to a level that 

provides sufficient scope to deal with unexpected or unforeseen events in 
order that this does not have a detrimental and immediate impact on 
service delivery.  At its meeting of 10 February 2011 the Council agreed 
that a sum, equivalent to 2.5% of net revenue expenditure and 
approximately £11 million, be maintained by the Council. 

 
4.2 The budget each year is produced in light of the Council priorities currently 

outlined in Vibrant, Dynamic and Forward Looking.  
 
5.  OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Every organisation has to manage the risks inherent in the operation of 

services on the scale of the Council.  These risks are minimised by the 
regular review of financial information by Services and corporately by 
Members.  This report forms part of the end of year reporting cycle and 
seeks to clarify the overall operating conditions and outcomes that have 
resulted in the past year. 

 
6.  REPORT 
 
6.1.1 There is a statutory requirement that an abstract of the accounts for each 

financial year be submitted to the Controller of Audit not later than 30 June 
in the next financial year. 

 
6.1.2 In effect this means that Financial Statements for 2010/11, which are 

prepared in accordance with the relevant Accounting Codes of Practice, 
require to be submitted by 30 June 2010 to Audit Scotland.   

 
6.1.3 There is also a requirement that the draft accounts be presented to 

Elected Members by 30 June each year. 
 
 
 

Page 34



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\7\AI00010741\$jfraxw5g.doc 

6.1.4 For ease of reference the report is broken down into the following 
sections: 

          
6.2 Link between the Statement of Accounts & General Fund 

Position 
6.3 Revenue   

  6.4 Capital 
  6.5 Inspection and Audit of Accounts 
 
6.2. Link between Statement of Accounts & General Fund Position 
 
6.2.1 In the 2007 Budget the Chancellor announced that there would be a 

requirement for Local Authorities to adopt International Financial 
Reporting Standards from 2010/11. 

 
6.2.2 The Statement of Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the 

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) based Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2010/11(the Code), 
with specific reference to IFRS 1 (First-time Adoption of IFRS), except 
where interpretation or adaptation to fit the public sector are detailed in the 
Code.  The Statement of Accounts are also based on the Best Value 
Accounting Code of Practice 2010/11 (BVACOP). 

 
6.2.3 The adoption of IFRS represents a major change in the way in which 

financial statements are presented, previously the Statement of Accounts 
were prepared in accordance with the previous Code of Practice 2009/10: 
A Statement of Recommended Practice (the SORP), which is largely 
based upon United Kingdom, Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 
(UKGAAP). 

 
6.2.4 In reading the Statement of Accounts members are asked to note the 

difference between the figures shown in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and the actual performance of the Council against 
which it can be measured by the Council Tax payer, which is presented in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

 
6.2.5 The figure to be aware of is the one described as “(Increase) / Decrease in 

the Year”, which is the actual movement on the individual Funds. 
 
6.2.6 The importance of the difference cannot be over emphasised, the reason 

being that the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows 
the financial performance for the year, measured in terms of the resources 
consumed and generated over the last 12 months. It takes account of the 
requirements of the IFRS based accounting standards. 

 
 

Page 35



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\7\AI00010741\$jfraxw5g.doc 

6.2.7 The impact of compliance with accounting standards is that many 
accounting entries are made which remove the obvious linkage between 
the figures presented in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and the way in which the Council is required to account for 
itself within a framework of raising Council Tax. 

 
6.2.8 The main differences are that in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement capital investment is accounted for as fixed assets 
are consumed, rather than as investment is financed; and retirement 
benefits are charged as future benefits are earned, rather than as 
amounts become payable to pension funds and pensioners. 

 
6.2.9 The General Fund Balance compares the Council’s spending against the 

Council Tax that it raised for the year, taking into account the use of 
reserves built up in the past and contributions to reserves earmarked for 
future expenditure.  It is upon this basis that the regular monitoring reports 
are prepared for Members’ consideration during the year. 

 
6.3. Revenue 
 
6.3.1 Members are requested to draw their attention to the Explanatory 

Foreword in the Statement of Accounts which summarises the financial 
position of the Council across its various accounts and provides 
commentary on the performance of the Council during the Financial Year. 

 
6.3.2 All of the figures are subject to the external audit process.  
 
6.3.3 In summary, the actual performance against budget of the Council was: 
 

  
2010/11 
Budget 
£'000 

2010/11 Actual 
(Surplus) / 

Deficit 
£'000 

(Favourable) / 
Adverse 

Movement 
£'000 

General Fund (2,353) (7,850) (5,497) 
Housing Revenue Account 0 (700) (700) 
Common Good 452 (279) (731) 

 
6.3.4 The actual movement on the reserves for the year is influenced by use of 

reserves and balances in year, transfers between accounts and IFRS 
accounting changes that were not part of the approved annual budgets.   

 
6.3.5 For the Common Good, transactions relating to proper accounting practice 

are applied to reflect the actual change in value from year to year.  This 
represents the sale of fixed assets and the revaluation of the investment 
properties that comprise the Common Good. 

 
 
 

Page 36



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\7\AI00010741\$jfraxw5g.doc 

6.3.6 The movement on the accounts is as follows: 
 
  

2010/11 
Actual 

(Surplus) / 
Deficit 
£'000 

2010/11 
Use of 

Reserves 
£'000 

2010/11 
IFRS 

Changes 
£'000 

2010/11 
Accounting 
Transactions 

£'000 

Actual 
(Favourable) 
/ Adverse 
Movement 
on Account 

£'000 
General Fund (7,850) 2,420 (691) - (6,121) 
Housing Revenue Account (700) - (123) - (823) 
Common Good (279) 0 0 (3,427) (3,706) 

 
 
6.3.7 The balance on the various accounts (prior to earmarking sums) at 31 

March 2011 can therefore be summarised as: 
 

  
1/4/10 
Balance 
£'000 

Movement 
in Year 
£'000 

Transfers 
£'000 

31/3/11 
Balance 
£'000 

General Fund (29,.345) (6,121) - (35,466) 
Housing Revenue Account (8,653) (823) 2,597 (6,879) 
Common Good * (63,477) (3,706) - (67,183) 

 
* The Common Good figures shown represent the value of investment properties held plus cash 
balances.  The value of cash balances at 31 March 2011 is £6.441 million. 
 
6.3.8 The transfers column referred to in the table reflects a transfer approved 

by the Housing and Environment Committee in January 2011.  This 
transfer was made to the General Fund, but is not shown in the above 
table against the General Fund as the sum was then transferred to the 
Capital Fund. 

 
6.3.9 The Council can operate a Capital Fund, under the Local Government 

(Scotland) Act 1975 and make specific withdrawals – to pay for capital 
expenditure or the repayment of loan debt principal.  It may also receive 
contributions from the sale of property and any other sums as directed by 
the Council. 

 
6.3.10 In 2010/11 a value of £6.884 million has been transferred to the Capital 

Fund in order to mitigate risks and to capture funding allocated as part of 
the budget for financial year 2011/12.  It is recommended that the Council 
approve this transfer as part of the year end closure of the accounts. 

 
6.3.11 The balance on the Capital Fund as at 31 March 2011 is £11.929 million. 
 
6.3.12 The earmarking of the account balances is important to ensure that the 

funds associated with specific projects and for specific purposes are 
recognised and set aside for that use.  Each year the Council has set 
aside funds in this way. 

Page 37



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\7\AI00010741\$jfraxw5g.doc 

 
6.3.13 The General Fund, Housing Revenue Account and Common Good all 

have balances that require to be earmarked and these fall into specific 
categories – financial risks; specific contingent risks; unspent grant 
income; specific projects; and for the Devolved Education Management 
scheme. 

 
6.3.14 A summary of the recommended earmarked sums as at 31 March 2011, 

included in the draft Statement of Accounts is (note, commitments on the 
Common Good are set against its cash balances): 

 
  

General 
Fund 
£'000 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 
£'000 

Common 
Good 
£'000 

Balance as at 31/3/11 (35,466) (6,879) (6,441) 
Earmarked Sums    
Financial Risks:    
   Equal Pay Costs 956   
   Workforce Reduction Costs 61   
   Service Redesign Costs 7,919   
Contingent Risks:    
   De-risk contingent liabilities 7.060   
   Central Heating Leases  197  
Unspent Grant Income:    
   Various grants received not yet spent 940   
Specific Projects:    
   Energy Efficiency Fund 457   
   Queens Links Reinstatement Fund 100   
   Ward Budgets 73   
   City Development Company 1,354   
   ‘The Green’ Townscape Project 507   
   Roads Maintenance 1,000   
   Scottish Secure Tenancy  250  
   Repairs & Maintenance  1,916  
   Greenfern Development   296 
   Gordon Highlanders Statue   89 
Devolved Education Management    
   Schools 1,620   
   Community Education Centres 2,130   
Total Earmarked balance 24,177 2,363 385 
    
Total Uncommitted balance (11,289) (4,516) (6,056) 
    
Recommended uncommitted balance (11,272) (3,770) (4,800) 

 
6.3.15 Recommended uncommitted balances are presently defined as: 

• General Fund - the approved level is 2.5% of net (2011/12) revenue 
expenditure, 

• Housing Revenue Account – 5% of (2011/12) gross expenditure; 

Page 38



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\7\AI00010741\$jfraxw5g.doc 

• Common Good – cash balances should be maintained by using the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) to annually uplift a sum previously 
approved by the Council. 

 
6.3.16 It is recommended that the earmarked balance, as detailed at 6.3.14, is 

approved and set aside as at 31 March 2011.  
 
6.4. Capital 
 
6.4.1 Capital expenditure is undertaken by the Council having regard to the 

Prudential Code for Finance in Local Authorities and considerations, in all 
years, of affordability and sustainability. 

 
6.4.2 Total capital expenditure in 2010/11 was £116.393 million, of which 

£52.991 million was spent on the Housing (HRA) programme and £63.402 
million on the General Fund programme 

 
6.4.3 The main service elements within the General Fund Capital programme 

comprise approximately £5.9 million on Education projects, £6.2 million on 
infrastructure improvements to Roads & Transportation, and £32 million 
on Corporate Accommodation projects, including £28 million on Marischal 
College.  The remaining balance of £19.3 million being spent on various 
other capital projects 

 
6.4.4 Examples of some of the main projects undertaken in 2010/11 included 

work on Marischal College, the Data Centre, equipment for the new  
schools, roads resurfacing works, ‘Ness’ landfill site, vehicles and work on 
the crematorium.  Specific housing related projects included the 
construction of new affordable housing, extra care adaptations, and the 
modernisation programme. 

 
6.4.5 The majority of costs were funded from a combination of finance through 

net borrowing (£72.1 million), the proceeds from the sale of assets, and 
income from grants and contributions, with the remainder being 
contributions from the revenue accounts (housing) (£22 million). 

 
6.5. Inspection and Audit of the Accounts  
 
6.5.1 Following submission of the draft accounts, upon being so requested by 

Audit Scotland, a notice of inspection will be placed in the press giving at 
least 14 days’ public notice of the commencement of the period during 
which the accounts and other documents will be available for public 
inspection. The accounts and other documents require to be made 
available for a period of not less than 15 full days during ordinary business 
hours. 

 

Page 39



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\7\AI00010741\$jfraxw5g.doc 

6.5.2 It is anticipated as in previous years, following the required timetable and 
notices, that the draft accounts will be available for public inspection in late 
July/early August. 

 
6.5.3 It should be noted that the unaudited accounts are prepared according to 

the requirements of the IFRS based Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting (the Code) and as a result are more complex and detailed 
than monitoring reports provided to Committee throughout the year.  

 
6.5.4 An analysis of the accounts will be presented to the Audit and Risk 

Committee and Council once the audit process has been completed, 
along with the external auditor’s report.  The audit process is scheduled 
for completion by 30 September 2011.  

 
7.  REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
Jonathan Belford 
Corporate Accounting Manager 
jbelford@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 522573  
 
8.  BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Draft Financial Statements for Financial Year 2010/11; 
Financial ledger data extracted for the period; 
Redetermination letters received from the Scottish Government; 
Previous reports to Finance and Resources Committee on General Fund 
Financial Monitoring for 2010/11. 

Page 40



                                                                

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\7\AI00010741\$ebaswkdb.doc 

                                                       Agenda Item 9(b)(ii) 
 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 
COMMITTEE:   Council 
 
DATE:   29 June 2011 
 
REPORT BY:   Head of Finance 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Draft Pension Fund Financial Statements 2010/11 
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG/11/080 

 
 
1.  PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide to elected members a copy of the 

Pension Fund’s draft 2010/11 Statement of Accounts, which are subject to 
audit. 

 
1.2 Following the introduction of new statutory requirements the Council is 

now required annually to present a set of draft Pension Fund accounts to 
Audit Scotland by 30 June separate from the accounts prepared by the 
City Council and for elected members to receive a copy of these draft 
accounts by this due date. 

 
1.3 Following a report to the Pensions Panel on 6 June 2011 on the full year 

outturn for the Pension Fund, this report provides an overview of the year-
end financial position and the assets of the Pension Fund and Transport 
Fund as at 31 March 2011. 

 
2.  RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Council: 
 
a) note the Draft Statement of Accounts, and financial performance of the 

Pension Fund,  Main Fund and Transport Fund contained therein, which will 
be submitted to Audit Scotland by 30 June 2011; 

b) note that  the new statutory requirements further require that the Financial 
Statement will be included in an Annual Report to be prepared and 
submitted to external audit review by 30 September 2011 

c) note that the audited Financial Statements will be presented to both the 
Audit and Risk Committee, and the Pension Panel along with the external 
auditor's report in the Autumn, and will come back to a Council meeting 
thereafter; 

Page 41



                                                                

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\7\AI00010741\$ebaswkdb.doc 

3.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 The financial implications of the Draft Financial Statements are detailed 

throughout the body of the report.   
 
4.  SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 
 None 
 
5.  OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Every organisation has to manage the risks inherent in the operation of 

services on the scale of the Pension Fund.  These risks are minimised by 
the regular review of financial information by the Head of Finance and 
corporately by the Pensions Panel.  This report forms part of the end of 
year reporting cycle and seeks to clarify the overall operating conditions 
and outcomes that have resulted in the past year. 

 
6.  REPORT 
 
6.1.1 There is a statutory requirement that an abstract of the accounts for each 

financial year be submitted to the Controller of Audit not later than 30 June 
in the next financial year. 

 
6.1.2 In effect this means that Financial Statements for 2010/11, which are 

prepared in accordance with the relevant Accounting Codes of Practice, 
require to be submitted by 30 June 2010 to Audit Scotland.   

 
6.1.3 There is also a requirement that the draft accounts be presented to 

Elected Members by 30 June each year. 
 
6.1.4 For ease of reference the report is broken down into the following 

sections: 
          

6.2. Accounting Requirements 
6.3 Accounts    

  6.4. Annual Report Requirements 
  6.5. Inspection and Audit of Accounts 
 
6.2. Accounting Requirements  
 

The Pension Fund financial statements should be prepared in accordance 
with proper accounting practices set out in the Code of practice on local 
authority accounting in the UK (the Code). 
 
The Code requires authorities to account for pension funds in accordance 
with IAS26 Retirement benefit plans. IAS26 provides guidance on the form 

Page 42



                                                                

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\7\AI00010741\$ebaswkdb.doc 

and content of the financial statements prepared by pension funds.  It 
compliments IAS19 Employee Benefits which deals with the determination 
of the costs of retirement benefits in the financial statement of employers. 
 

6.3. Accounts 
 
6.3.1 Members are requested to draw their attention to the Explanatory 

Foreword in the Statement of Accounts which summarises; 
• the statutory framework of the Pension Fund and Transport Fund,  
• the scheme membership, 
• its accounting policy with regard to the Fund’s investments and; 
• the Fund’s attitude to risk. 

 
The purpose of the Fund is to provide a sustainable and affordable final-
salary pension to its members, both present and future; 

 
 The aim of Aberdeen City Council as the administering authority is to; 
 

• Maintain employer contributions as nearly constant as possible and 
at reasonable cost to the taxpayers, scheduled and admitted 
bodies, having regard to the benefits being paid and those due to 
be paid at a future date; 

• to manage employers' liabilities effectively through regular review of 
contributions and additional contributions for early retirements 
which lead to a strain on funding; 

• to encourage membership; 
• to ensure that sufficient resources are available to meet all liabilities 

as they fall due; 
• to maximise the returns from investments within reasonable risk 

parameters; 
• to achieve excellent customer care; 
• to continually improve service delivery. 

 
6.3.2 The financial statement reflects the income and expenditure of the Fund’s 

and the value of the Funds investment assets.  The key items of note are 
the fall in employee contributions to the Fund as the number of new 
scheme members joining the Fund fall, in comparison to the rise the 
employer contribution rates to meet the long term fund deficit.  As at 31 
March 2010 the funding position as assessed by the scheme actuary was 
89% funded for the Main Fund and 90% funded for the Transport Fund.  A 
triennial valuation of the Fund is due as at 31 March 2011 and will be 
completed by the autumn.  The triennial valuation will set the employer 
contribution rate for all admitted and scheduled bodies for the period to 
2012 to 2015.  

 

Page 43



                                                                

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\7\AI00010741\$ebaswkdb.doc 

6.3.3 The Funds saw an increase in asset value over the 12 month period to 
31March 2011 for the Main Fund of £226 million and £7 million for the 
Transport Fund.  Full details of the investment performance of the Fund 
will be given in the new Pension Fund Annual Report. 

 
    

6.4. Annual Report Requirements 
 
6.4.1 Local authorities responsible for administering a pension fund 

(administering authorities) forming part of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) are required by a recent amendment to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (Administration) (Scotland) Regulations 
2008 to publish a pension fund annual report from 2010/11. 

 
6.4.2 The annual report is a publication separate from the authorities own 

statutory accounts and contains financials statements in respect of each 
pension fund maintained by an authority.  Authorities are required to 
publish the annual report by 1 December. 

 
6.4.3 Until 2009/10, pension fund financial statements were included in the 

administering authorities accounts and were therefore covered by the 
audit opinion of those accounts.  From 2010/11, pension fund financial 
statements are no longer included in the authorities’ accounts, and 
auditors are required to give a separate audit opinion on the financial 
statement in the Pension Fund annual report. 

 
6.4.4 In addition to the financial statements and notes, the report is required to 

contain; 
 

• A report about the management and financial performance of the 
funds during the year, a report explaining the authority’s investment 
policy and reviewing the performance during the year of the 
investments of each fund, and a report of the arrangements made 
during the year for the administration of the funds 

• A statement by the actuary of the level of funding disclosed by their 
valuation  

• The governance compliance statement, funding strategy statement, 
and statement of investment principles (or details where these can 
be obtained) 

• The extent to which levels of performance set out in the pension 
fund administration strategy have been achieved 

• Any other material which th authority considers appropriate  
 
6.5. Inspection and Audit of the Accounts  
 
6.5.1 The audit of the Pension Fund accounts is not subject of a separate audit 

appointment.  The appointed auditor to the City Council (the administering 

Page 44



                                                                

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\7\AI00010741\$ebaswkdb.doc 

authority) will be required to issue a separate audit opinion on the abstract 
relating to the Pension Fund. 

 
6.5.2 The deadlines that apply to the Pension Fund financial statements (as an 

abstract) are the same as those for the main accounts of the City Council 
i.e. they must be prepared and submitted for audit by 30 June.  The audit 
deadline set by the Accounts Commission of 30 September also applies.  
As stated above authorities are required to publish the Pension Fund 
annual report by 1 December 

 
6.5.3 However the following transitional arrangement apply for 2010/11 
 

• The financial statement element of the pension fund annual report 
requires to be prepared and submitted for audit by 30 June 2011 

• The remainder of the pension fund annual report requires to be 
prepared and submitted to auditors by 30 September 2011 

• Auditors are required to complete the audit process by 30 
November 2011 

 
6.5.4 Following submission of the draft accounts, upon being so requested by 

Audit Scotland, a notice of inspection will be placed in the press giving at 
least 14 days’ public notice of the commencement of the period during 
which the accounts and other documents will be available for public 
inspection. The accounts and other documents require to be made 
available for a period of not less than 15 full days during ordinary business 
hours. 

 
6.5.5 It is anticipated in line with the City Council financial statement, that the 

Pension Fund following the required timetable and notices, that the draft 
accounts will be available for public inspection in late July/early August. 

 
6.5.6 An analysis of the accounts will be presented to the Audit and Risk 

Committee and Pensions Panel once the audit process has been 
completed, along with the external auditor’s report.  The audit process is 
scheduled for completion by 30 November 2011.  

 
7.  REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
Joanne Hope 
Pensions Manager  
jhope@nespf.org.uk 
01224 814940  
 
8.  BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Draft Financial Statements for Financial Year 2010/11; 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

1 APRIL 2010 TO 31 MARCH 2011 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL, ADMINISTERING  
AUTHORITY FOR THE NORTH EAST  

SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
 

Page 47



CONTENTS 
 

1) Explanatory Foreword      Page No. 
 
Fund Structure          1  
Membership          2 
Investments          3  
Risk           4   
Actuarial Valuation         5 
Restatement of the 2009/2010 Accounts      5  
 

2) The Main Fund Accounts        6 
 
3) The Transport Fund Accounts        7  

 
4) Notes to the Accounts      

 
Note 1.   Actuarial Valuation        8  
Note 2.   Contributions receivable and Benefits Payable  10 
Note 3.   Transfer Values      11 
Note 4.   Investment Income Breakdown    11 
Note 5.   Investment Assets      12 
Note 6.   Derivative Contracts      14 
Note 7.   Breakdown of Sundry Debtors and Creditors  15 
Note 8.   Purchases and Sales     15 
Note 9 .  Stock Lending Arrangements    16 
Note 10. Transaction Costs      16 
Note 11. Related Party Transactions     16 
Note 12. Private Equity, Outstanding Commitments  17 
Note 13. Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC)   17 
Note 14. Compliance  with the Code     18 
Note 15. Investment Principles     18 
Note 16  Post Balance Sheet Date Events    18 

Page 48



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
ACCOUNTS 

 1

Explanatory Foreword 
 

FUND STRUCTURE 
 
The North East Scotland Pension Fund (The Main Fund) and the Transport Fund are 
administered by Aberdeen City Council within the Local Government Pension 
Scheme regulations.  
 
The Scheme was established under the Superannuation Fund Act 1972, it is a 
statutory scheme and is contracted out of the Second State Pension. The scheme is 
open to all employees of the scheduled bodies, except for those whose employment 
entitles them to belong to another statutory pension scheme (e.g. Police, Fire and 
Teachers).  
 
Employees of admitted bodies can join the scheme subject to their individual 
admission criteria which are out with the control of Aberdeen City Council. 
 

There are 13 scheduled bodies:

Aberdeen City Council Aberdeenshire Council The Moray Council 
 
Grampian Fire and Rescue Grampian Joint Police Board  
(Non Uniform)   (Non Uniform)  
 
Scottish Water   SPSA    Visit Scotland 
 
Aberdeen College  Banff and Buchan College  Moray College 
 
Northern Community Justice Authority Grampian Valuation Joint Board 
 
The Transport Fund was created in October 1986 for employees of the former 
passenger Transport Undertaking who transferred to the limited company now known 
as First Aberdeen, which was created at that time. 
 
A list of the admitted bodies is available from the office of the Head of Finance, 
Aberdeen City Council, The Town House, Broad Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1AH and is 
also contained with in the Annual Pension Fund Report. 
 
The Funds are built up from contributions from both employees and employing 
bodies, together with interest, dividends and rent from investments, out of which 
pensions and other benefits are paid.  
 
Transfer of pensions into and out of the Fund�s are reflected in the accounts on a 
cash basis. 
 
The Main Fund Accounts do not take account of liabilities to pay future pensions and 
benefits but rather summarises the transactions and net assets of the scheme.  
 

Page 49



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
ACCOUNTS 

 2

Orphan liabilities will be managed under the termination policy of the Fund as set out 
by the Scheme Actuary. 
 
Employee contributions are fixed by statute, with employer contributions being 
assessed every three years by an independent Actuary to determine the level of 
contributions necessary by employing bodies to ensure that the fund is able to meet 
all future benefits. 
 
With effect from 1 April 2009, employee contributions are based on a tiered rate as 
detailed below. 
 
Band Range  

 
Contribution Rate  

1 On earnings up to and including £18,000 5.5% 
2 On earnings above £18,000 and up to £22,000 7.25% 
3 On earnings above £22,000 and up to £30,000 8.5% 
4 On earnings above £30,000 and up to £40,000 9.5% 
5 On earnings above £40,000 12% 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
The Main Fund: 
 
The active membership of the Main Fund decreased from 24,419 employees at 31 
March 2010 to 21,268 as at 31 March 2011 and the number of pensioner and 
deferred members increased from 26,418 at 31 March 2010 to 28,710 as at 31 
March 2011. 
 

The Transport Fund: 
 
The contributing employees of the Transport Fund decreased from 136 as at 31 
March 2010 to 120 as at 31 March 2011 and the number of pensioner and deferred 
members increased from 530 at 31 March 2010 to 535 as at 31 March 2011. 
 
INVESTMENTS 
 
The monies belonging to the Main Fund and the Transport Fund are entirely 
managed by appointed Investment Fund Managers and are held separate from any 
of the employing bodies, which participate in the Main Fund, with the exception of a 
small investment in the Aberdeen City Council�s Loan Fund, which varies year on 
year and represents surplus cash from contributions not yet transferred to the Fund 
Managers. 
 
After meeting the cost of current benefits, all surplus cash is invested and the 
increasing value of investment is then available to meet further liabilities to 
employees within the fund. In addition to a contingent liability to meet future pension 
benefits payable to existing employees, the funds must also provide for the future 
payment of deferred pension benefits which have been preserved by former 
employees in respect of service prior to their leaving. 
 

Page 50



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
ACCOUNTS 

 3

The funds have been invested in accordance with the investment controls laid down 
in the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 
(Scotland) Regulations 2010, and quoted investments of the fund have been re 
valued to market value at 31 March 2011 with the gain/loss on revaluation being 
credited to the fund. 
 
Valuation of Investments 
 
All investments are valued at their market value at 31 March 2011 determined as 
follows: 
 
All stocks within the FTSE 100 are valued on the basis of the last traded price 
recorded on SETS (the Stock Exchange Electronic Trading Service), while all other 
listed securities are valued on the basis of the market conventions where primarily 
traded which is either last traded or bid market price. 
 
Investments held in foreign currency have been valued on the above basis and 
translated into sterling at the rate ruling at the balance sheet date. 
 
Managed funds including unit trusts are stated at the bid price of the latest prices 
quoted or the latest valuation by the Fund custodian. 
 
Private equity assets are independently valued by the appointed fund manager and 
general partners. Fair value is calculated by applying Private Equity and Venture 
Capital Valuation Guidelines. 
 
Unlisted investments are valued using one of the following methodologies: 
 

1. Earning Multiple (based on comparable quoted multiples and significant third 
party transactions) 

2. Price of Recent Investment 
3. Net Assets 
4. Discounted Cash Flows or Earnings from Underlying Business 
 

When applying as Earning Multiple the Fund Manager/General Partner will use the 
best estimate of maintainable earnings. In accordance with guidelines, discounts 
have been  
applied for size, quality of earnings, gearing and dependency on one customer 
where appropriate.  A Marketability Discount will also have been applied to reflect 
liquidity.  
 
Direct property investments are valued by an external valuer, in accordance of the 
Valuation Standards issued by The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. 
 

Page 51



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
ACCOUNTS 

 4

The valuer�s opinion of Market Value was primarily derived using: 
 
Comparable recent market transactions on arm�s length terms. 
 
A full copy of the valuer�s report including all general assumptions and definitions, 
is available on request from the Head of Finance, Aberdeen City Council, The 
Town House, Board Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1AH. 
 
Quoted Investments are valued at the bid price at the reporting date less a 
Marketability Discount to reflect the size of the holding and any formal restriction on 
trading in the relevant securities. 
 
Further information on the Main Fund and Transport Fund investments and other 
details are available in the annual report, which is available on request from the 
Head of Finance. 
 
RISK 
 
A key element to risk management is the structured delegation of powers from the 
Council to the Pensions Panel and then to senior officers. To complement the 
delegation to senior managers, there is an extensive and detailed accountability back 
to committee on how these delegations have been exercised.  Full details of the 
structure of delegated powers are contained in the Pension Fund Governance 
Statement.

Investment risk is recognised as falling into distinct areas: market risk (beta) and 
manager skill (alpha). The structure of the investment strategy reflects this and is 
designed with the support of external expert advice. Details are contained in the 
Statement of Investment Principles and the Funding Strategy Statement.

The operational management of investment risk forms the basis of quarterly 
reporting to the Pensions Panel and the Joint Investment Advisory Committee.  
 
The Fund�s approach to risk is dynamic, and can be revised in response to short 
term market events such as the credit crunch. 
 
Benefits risk is recognised as falling into distinct areas: operational risk (regulation 
compliance and staffing) and IT risks.  The risks associated with the operational 
payment of benefits and recording of pensioner records produces a complex set of 
risks, which are mitigated with the use of a dedicated Pension Fund administration 
system that is thoroughly and regularly tested, combined with the technical hierarchy 
checking of output by pension staff. 
 
It is recognised that all Fund services are very dependent upon third party contracts 
ranging from IT through to investment managers. All are subject to regular review 
and monitoring. 
 

Page 52



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
ACCOUNTS 

 5

ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
 
Detailed in the notes to the accounts, is the outcome of the 2008 Actuarial Valuation 
reflecting the future employer contribution rates required to meet the Main Fund and 
Transport Fund future liabilities. 
 
All employers with the effect from 31 March 2009 have the same employer 
contribution rate unless specified in the 2008 Actuarial Valuation or have been 
admitted to the Scheme after the 2008 Actuarial Valuation. 
 

RESTATEMENT OF THE 2009/2010 ACCOUNTS 
 
The Main Fund and the Transport Fund accounts have both been restated due to the 
inclusion of the Strain on the Fund income accrual.  
 

------------------------------------- 
Barry Jenkins CPFA, Head of Finance 29 June 2011 

 

Page 53



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS 
 

6

THE MAIN FUND ACCOUNTS 
 

Contributions Receivable   Notes  2009/2010 2010/2011  
 £�000  £�000 
 
Employee�s Contributions   2       26,515      26,417 
Employer�s Contributions   2       92,955      98,144 
Transfer Values     3         6,335        4,243 
Other Income                 157             42 
 125,962 128,846
Benefits Payable 
Retirement Pensions    2       63,649      67,636 
Retirement Allowances    2       18,250      24,550 
Death Gratuities    2         2,023        3,064 
Contributions Refunded                430           604 
Transfer Values     3         4,471        4,502 
Fund Administration             1,745        1,593 
 90,568 101,949

Net additions from dealings with members        35,394 26,897

Return on Investment 
Investment Income    4       32,532      42,574 
Change in market value of investments       512,556    165,476 
Investment management expenses          (4,629)       (8,853) 
Net return on investments        540,459 199,197

Net increase in the Fund during the year      575,853    226,094 
 
Opening net assets of the Fund    1,416,061 1,991,914

Net assets of the Fund at the end of the year   1,991,914 2,218,008

NET ASSETS STATEMENT 
Investment Assets 
Fixed Interest, Public Sector          43,962      40,670 
Fixed Interest, Corporate          15,421      17,085 
Fixed Interest, Overseas        103,422    106,459 
Equities, UK          481,882    546,147 
Equities, Overseas          423,703    483,590 
Pooled Vehicle          656,619    720,918 
Property, Unit Trusts                600           392 
Property, Direct          119,890    123,080 
Unit Trust, Other                  6,032        9,085 
Derivative Contracts (including, Futures, Options,6             (77)      (1,826) 
Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts and Swaps)      
Other, Private Equity           80,806      97,332 
Funds held by Investment Managers         41,499      57,462  
Net Investment Assets    5 1,973,759 2,200,394

Current assets     7 28,491      28,374 
 
Current Liabilities    7 (10,336) (10,760) 

Net assets of the Fund at the end of year   1,991,914 2,218,008

Barry Jenkins CPFA, Head of Finance, 29 June 2011  
 

Page 54



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS 
 

7

THE TRANSPORT FUND ACCOUNTS 
 

Contributions Receivable   Notes  2009/2010 2010/2011  
 £�000  £�000 
 
Employee�s Contributions   2        284           265 
Employer�s Contributions   2     2,629   3,271 
Transfer Values     3            0                0 
Other Income             259               250 
 3,172 3,786
Benefits Payable 
Retirement Pensions    2     2,121   2,254 
Retirement Allowances    2        972           653 
Death Gratuities    2            0                   0  
Transfer Values     3          86              73 
Fund Administration                            6        64 
 3,239 3,044

Net additions from dealings with members         (67) 742

Return on Investment 
Investment Income    4                 1,380     1,566 
Change in market value of investments     15,321     4,830     
Investment management expenses                        17         22       
Net return on investments      16,718 6,418

Net increase in the Fund during the year    16,651    7,160    
 
Opening net assets of the Fund     44,085 60,736

Net assets of the Fund at the end of the year    60,736 67,896

NET ASSETS STATEMENT 
Investment Assets 
Fixed Interest, Public Sector        8,665  11,732             
Fixed Interest, Overseas                    1,858     1,944     
Equities, UK        16,682  21,167     
Equities, Overseas         6,186    5,578     
Pooled Vehicle        19,953  22,611     
Property, Unit Trusts              47         51 
Indexed Linked Securities        2,191    1,915 
Funds held by Investment Managers       4,232    1,816  
Net Investment Assets    5 59,814 66,814

Current assets     7 1,139    1,226 
 
Current Liabilities    7 (217)     (144) 

Net assets of the Fund at the end of year    60,736 67,896

Barry Jenkins CPFA, Head of Finance, 29 June 2011   
 

Page 55



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

 8

Note 1. ACTUARIAL VALUATION REPORTS 
 
Actuarial reports for both the North East Scotland Pension Fund and the Transport Fund 
were provided as at 31 March 2008. 
 
Information from the 2008 Actuarial valuation is detailed below: 
 

Main Fund  Transport Fund 
 
Market value of assets at valuation £1,769,900,000 £53,100,000 
 
Liabilities     £2,142,200,000 £71,500,000 
 
Deficit     £   372,300,000 £18,400,000 
 
Employee�s contributions to 31 March 2011 are based on a tiered rate detailed in the 
explanatory notes to the accounts. 
 
Common Employer contribution rates as a percentage of pensionable payroll from 1 
April 2009. 
 
1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010  19.1%   24% 
1 April 2010 to 31 March 2011  19.2%   24% 
1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012  19.3%   24% 
 
Employer specific rates are detailed in the 2008 actuarial valuation reports, in addition to 
regular contributions, First Aberdeen are required to make annual individual adjustments. 
 
Valuation Assumptions 
 
Pension Increase    3.3% p.a  3.6% p.a 
Discount Rate    6.2% p.a  5.9% p.a 
Salary Increase    5.1% p.a  5.1% p.a 
Price Inflation    3.6% p.a  3.6% p.a 
 
The Projected Unit method was used for the valuation of the Main Fund. The Transport 
Fund used the Attained Age method for the employing body First Aberdeen, to reflect that 
this scheme was closed to new entrants from 31 March 1994. 
 
The level of funding in terms of the percentage of assets available to meet liabilities was; 
 
Funding Level:    83%   74% 
 
The Administering Authority�s long term funding target is to achieve and then maintain 
assets equal to 100% of projected accrued liabilities, assessed on an ongoing basis. 
 

Page 56



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

 9

The Administering Authority has adopted the following objectives to achieve the funding 
target: 
 

1. A Stepped increase over 3 years for employers in the Main Fund. 
2. A deficit recovery period of 25 years for the Main Fund. 

 
In determining the deficit recovery period the Administering Authority has had regard to: 
 

1. The responses made to the consultation with employers on the Funding Strategy 
Statement (FSS). 

2. The need to balance a desire to attain the target as soon as possible against the 
short term cash requirements which a shorter period would impose, and 

3. The Administering Authority�s views on the strength of the participating employers 
covenants in achieving the objective. 

 
The full Actuarial Report for both Funds are available from the office of the Head of 
Finance, Aberdeen City Council, The Town House, Board Street, Aberdeen, AB20 1AH. 
 

Page 57



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

 10

Note 2. Contributions Receivable and Benefits Payable. 
 

2009/2010 2010/2011 2009/2010 2010/2011 
 

Conts  Conts  Benefits Benefits 
 £�000  £�000  £�000  £�000 
 
Main Fund: 
 
Administering Authority   35,853  40,473 35,531 39,980 
Scheduled Bodies    70,623  71,526 38,788 45,224 
Admitted Bodies    12,994  12,562   9,603 10,046 
 
Total    119,470 124,561 83,922 95,250 
 

Transport Fund 2,913     3,536 3,093  2,907 

Main Fund: 
 
Employers 
Normal    80,319   79,376 
Special    12,636   18,768 
Additional             0            0 
 
Members 
Normal     26,515   26,417 
 
Total    119,470 124,561 
 

Transport Fund: 
 
Employers 
Normal          979    902 
Special       1,650 2,369 
Additional              0        0 
 
Members    
Normal          284            265 
 
Total        2,913 3,536 
 

Page 58



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

 11

Note 3. Transfer Values 
 

Main Fund   Transport Fund 
 

2009/2010 2010/2011 2009/2010 2010/2011 
 £�000  £�000  £�000  £�000 
Transfer Values Received 
 
Individual   6,335  4,243  0    0 
 
Transfer Values Paid 
 
Individual   4,471  4,502  86  73 
 

Note 4. Investment Income Breakdown  
 

Main Fund   Transport Fund 
 2009/2010 2010/2011 2009/2010 2010/2011 
 £�000  £�000  £�000  £�000 
 
Fixed Interest    6,184   9,221    461    693 
 
Equity Dividends  21,121 21,501    994    860 
 
Property, Unit Trust         42          4        0        0 
 
Rent      8,621   8,119        0        0 
 
Cash Deposit Interest      477      219      12      19 
 
Other (including P/L from 
Currency and Derivatives)  (2,214)   5,322        6      80 
 

34,231 44,387 1,473   1,652 
 
Non Recoverable Tax  (1,699) (1,812)     (93)     (86) 
 
Total    32,532 42,574 1,380  1,566 
 

Page 59



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

 12

Note 5. Investment Assets 
 
Market Value of assets for the Main Fund and the Transport Fund, the value and proportion 
which are under the management of each Fund Manager. 
 

The Main Fund 
 

31 March 2010 % Investment Assets   31 March 2011 % 
£�000         £�000 
 

656,620    32.9 State Street Global Advisors    713,589    32.2  
 399,040    20.1 Baillie Gifford       474,547    21.4 
 341,102    17.2 Blackrock Asset Management    381,184    17.2 
 182,142      9.2 AAM Global Ex UK      198,494      8.9 
 164,399      8.2 Baring Asset Managers     172,636      7.8 
 137,275      6.9 Aberdeen Property Investors    130,880      5.9 
 38,798      1.8 HarbourVest         45,536      2.1 
 36,993      1.9 Standard Life         52,743      2.4 
 7,436      0.4 Global Custodian        24,953      1.1 
 7,434      0.4 ACCPF           5,440      0.2 
 2,187      0.1 AAM Segregated Fund       0      0.0 
 600      0.0 RREEF              392      0.0  
 264      0.0 Capital International                 0      0.0 
 (531)      0.0 Rogge         0      0.0 
 
1,973,759    99.1      2,200,394    99.2 
 

Net Current Assets 
 

0 0.0 ACC Loan Fund Deposit         8,370      0.4 
 10,169      0.5 Bank Account            (317)      0.0 
 7,986      0.4  Sundry Debtors less Creditors              9,561      0.4 
 
1,991,914  100.0      2,218,008  100.0 
 

Page 60



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

 13

Transport Fund 
 
31 March 2010  % Investment Assets   31 March 2011 % 
£�000         £�000 
 
59,814   98.4  Aberdeen Asset Managers  66,814  98.4 
 

Net Current Assets 
 

889     1.5  ACC Loan Fund Deposit  644    1.0 
 2 0.0  Bank Account       2    0.0 
 31     0.1  Sundry Debtors less Creditors 436    0.6 
 
60,736 100.0            67,896   100.0 
 

Investments � Market Value Movement Analysis 
 
The change in the value of investments during 2010/2011 is set out below: 
 

The Main Fund 
 

Value at Purchases Sales  Change in  Value at 
 31 March     Market  31 March 
 2010      Value  2011 
 £�000  £�000  £�000  £�000  £�000 
 
Fixed Interest   162,805   90,834   (83,621)   (5,804)    164,214 
UK Equities    481,882 126,479 (115,343)   53,129    546,147 
Overseas Equities   423,703   74,187   (65,108)   50,808    483,590 
Pooled Vehicles   663,251 359,237 (352,851)   60,758    730,395 
Property    119,890     8,702     (3,200)    (2,312)    123,080 
Private Equity     80,806   18,381   (12,501)    10,646      97,332 
FX Contracts            (77)        (1,749)      (1,826) 
 

1,932,260 677,820 (632,624) 165,476 2,142,932 
 
Cash        41,499            57,462 
 

1,973,759       2,200,394 
 

Page 61



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

 14

The Transport Fund 
 

Value at Purchases Sales  Change in  Value at 
 31 March     Market  31 March 
 2010      Value  2011 
 £�000  £�000  £�000  £�000  £�000 
 
Fixed Interest 12,714 10,203   (7,402)      76  15,591    
UK Equities  16,682   5,337   (2,859) 2,007  21,167 
Overseas Equities   6,186   1,454   (2,464)    402    5,578 
Pooled Vehicles 20,000   3,935   (3,618) 2,345  22,662 
 

55,582 20,929 (16,343) 4,830  64,998 
 
Cash     4,232         1,816 
 

59,814       66,814 
 
Details of the investment assets between UK and Foreign, and Listed and Unlisted. 
 

Main Fund   Transport Fund 
 2009/2010 2010/2011 2009/2010 2010/2011 
 £�000  £�000  £�000  £�000 
 
UK Listed      874,261 969,387 28,938  45,443 
UK Unlisted      125,558 126,544          0           0 
 
Foreign Listed     857,380 961,542 26,644  19,555 
Foreign Unlisted       75,139   87,285                  0           0 
 
Other, Cash        41,421   55,636           4,232    1,816 
 

1,973,759 2,200,394 59,814  66,814 
 
Note 6. Derivative Contracts (including Futures, Options, Forward Foreign Exchange 
Contracts and Swaps). 
 Main Fund   Transport Fund 
 2009/2010 2010/2011 2009/2010 2010/2011 
 £�000  £�000  £�000  £�000 
 
Derivative Contracts    0          0  0  0 
Futures      0           0  0  0 
Options          0          0  0  0 
FX Contracts   (77)  (1,826) 0  0 
Swaps      0          0  0  0 
 
Total    (77)  (1,826) 0  0 
 

Page 62



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

 15

The Fund has used Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts to hedge the currency exposure 
on certain overseas investments and take strategic foreign currency positions.   
 
Note 7. Breakdown of Sundry Debtors and Creditors. 
 

Main Fund   Transport Fund 
 2009/2010 2010/2011 2009/2010 2010/2011 
Sundry Debtors  £�000  £�000  £�000  £�000 
 
Contributions     8,842  8,638      29       24 
Fund Manager Income    3,625  6,236    104     291 
Temp Loan Interest         17       20        1         1 
Debtors     3,881  2,818      11       95 
Vat             0         0        1         0 
Bank    10,169    (317)        2         2 
Deposits with Council Loan         0   8,370     889     644 
Fund  
Strain on the Fund    1,957           2,609     102     169      
 
Total    28,491  28,374 1,139  1,226 
 
Sundry Creditors 
 
Prepaid Rent     2,814   2,462         0       0 
Custody Fees         32          6         0       0 
Fund Manager Fees   1,076   2,928         0       0  
Creditors     1,400      752       127     60 
Vat      1,250      901         0       0 
Tax, Refund          11        20         0       0 
Tax, Payroll            0      987         0       0 
Lump Sum        762          0         0       0 
Retirement Benefits    2,710   2,670       90     84 
Other         281        34         0       0 
 
Total    10,336  10,760    217   144 
 
Note 8. Purchases and Sales 2010 /2011. 
 

Main Fund   Transport Fund 
 £�000    £�000 
 
Purchases   677,820   20,929  
 
Sales    632,624   16,343 
 

Page 63



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

 16

Note 9. Stock Lending Arrangements. 
 

Main Fund Collateral Transport Fund Collateral 
 £�000  Percentage £�000   Percentage 
Stock on Loan 
 
Equities  51,100         421 
Fixed Interest 25,288    1,319 
 
Total Exposure 76,388    1,740 
 
Total Collateral 80,450 105.32  1,802  103.56 
 
Stock Lending is the lending of stock from one investor to another that entitles the lender to 
continue to receive income generated by the stock plus an additional payment by the 
borrower. 
 
Collateral is held at a minimum of 102% in respect of each borrower, consisting of UK and 
Overseas Gilts, UK Equities, Certificates of Deposit and Letters of Credit. 
 
Note 10. Fund Manager Transaction Costs. 
 

Main Fund   Transport Fund 
 2009/2010 2010/2011 2009/2010 2010/2011 
 £�000  £�000  £�000  £�000 
 
Fee/Tax      802  546  16  26  
Commission      748  450    9  10 
 
Total    1,550  996  25  36 
 

Note 11. Related Party Transactions. 
 
Aberdeen City Council provides administration services for the Pension Fund, the costs of 
which are reimbursed by the Fund. 
 
The costs of the services for the Main Fund amounted to £1,063,242 (2010 - £1,058,754) 
and for the Transport Fund  £32,883 (2010 - £37,398). 
 
Prior to the remittance of excess cash to the Investment Fund Managers, surplus cash is 
invested as a temporary loan with the Council. At the year end this amounted to £8,370,000 
(2010 - £0m) and for the Transport Fund £644,000 (2010 - £889,000). 
 
Interest was received from the Council of £48,426 (2010 - £51,823) for the Main Fund and 
for the Transport Fund, £1,114 (2010 - £2,563). 
 

Page 64



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

 17

Note 12. Private Equity � Outstanding Commitments as 31 March 2011. 
 
As at 31 March 2011 the Main Fund had outstanding commitments in respect of Private 
Equity: 
 £

HarbourVest    14,644,873     
Standard Life    32,180,760 
NESPF      1,566,213 
 
Total     48,391,846 
 
Note 13. Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC). 
 
Additional voluntary contributions are not included in the Pension Fund Accounts in 
accordance with regulation 5(2)�(c) of the Pension Scheme ( Management and Investment 
of Funds) Regulations 2010 
 
The amount of additional voluntary contributions paid by members during the year is shown 
as income in the tables below. The closing net assets values represent the value of the 
separately invested additional voluntary contributions. These closing values are subject to 
revaluation and are not a calculation of the opening value together with the total income 
and expenditure. 
 
Standard Life � Financial statement for the period 6th April 2010 to 5 April 2011. 
 

£

Opening Net Asset Value   2,700,277 
 
Total Income        104,687 
Total Expenditure       372,166 
 
Closing Net Asset Value   2,628,383 
 
Prudential � Financial statement for the period 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2011. 
 

£

Opening Net Asset Value   17,673,527   
 
Total Income       2,779,123 
Total Expenditure      2,395,432 
 
Closing Net Asset Value   18,153,190 
 

Page 65



THE NORTH EAST SCOTLAND PENSION FUND 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

 18

Note 14. Compliance with the Code. 
 
The North East Scotland Pension Fund Accounts have been prepared in accordance with 
proper accounting practices set out in the Code of practice on local authority accounting in 
the UK (the Code). 
 
Note 15. Investment Principles. 
 
A Summary of the Statement of Investment Principles is available on the Pension Fund 
Website www.nespf.org.uk. A full version of the Statement of Investment Principles is 
available on request from Head of Finance, Aberdeen City Council, The Town House, 
Board Street, Aberdeen, AB10 1AH. 
 
The Statement of Investment Principles is reviewed on an annual basis by the Pensions 
Panel and in the light of any change to the investment strategy of the Pension Fund. 
 
Note 16. Post Balance Sheet Date Events 
 
There have been no material events that have occurred since the balance sheet date that 
require to be included in the statements. 

Page 66



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE:    Council  
 
DATE:      29 June 2011 
 
DIRECTOR:     Stewart Carruth 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Committee Places, Appointment of Conveners, 

Vice Conveners and Depute Provost, and 
Representation on various Outside Bodies, 
Boards and Trusts 

 
REPORT NUMBER:     CG/11/081 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
This report asks the Council to consider the composition of its Committees 
following the recent by-election results, and to take a number of decisions on 
outstanding issues relating to various positions.  
 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

That the Council:- 
(a) agree the composition of the various Committees, being guided by the 

indicative calculations as outlined in section 6.2 of the report; 
(b) agree the composition of the Urgent Business Committee; 
(c) appoint members to those Committees; 
(d) approve the appointments of the Depute Provost, Conveners and Vice 

Conveners as set out in section 6.3 of the report, suspending Standing 
Order 1(3) where applicable; and 

(e) appoint replacement members for the vacant positions as outlined in 
section 6.4 of the report. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The financial implications associated with this report are minimal. Approval of 
the various changes to Conveners, Vice Conveners and the Depute Provost 
will require to be reflected in the Senior Councillor allowances.  
 
 

4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
  

Approval of the report will ensure that the Council’s decision making body will 
reflect the political landscape following the by-elections. Filling the various 
vacancies on outside bodies, boards and trusts should satisfy the wider 

Agenda Item 9(c)

Page 67



 

community, where such bodies, boards and trusts request the presence of 
elected members.  

 
 
5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Officers in Corporate Governance will undertake the various tasks associated 
with the changes to be made as a result of this report.  

 
 
6. REPORT 
 
6.1 By-election Results 

 
As members will be aware, the Council held a by-election on 19th May 
2011, and on 20th May, Councillor Neil MacGregor was elected to 
Aberdeen City Council in the Dyce/Bucksburn/Danestone ward. 

 
A further by-election is to take place on 23rd June 2011, and on 24th June, 
a new Councillor will be elected to Aberdeen City Council in the 
Airyhall/Broomhill/Garthdee ward. 

 
Following these by-elections, the political make-up of the Council will have 
altered as discussed below.  

 
6.2 Composition and Membership 
 

Standing Order 29(1) provides that in appointing Committees and Sub-
Committees, the Council shall, so far as possible, give effect to the 
principles regarding political balance set out in the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989. Although the statute itself is not in force, this Council 
has always considered it a matter of best practice to adhere to the 
principles. 
 
Section 15 of the Act provides that in allocating seats on ordinary 
Committees to political groups, three principles are to be observed:- 
 
(a) not all the seats of the body are to be allocated to a particular 

group; 
(b) the majority of seats on the body are to be allocated to the group 

having a majority of seats on the Council; and 
(c) the number of seats on ordinary Committees which are allocated to 

each group bears the same proportion to the total number of seats 
on those Committees as the number of seats held by the group on 
the Council does to the whole membership of the Council. 

 
Current position (prior to second by-election result):- 
 
SNP    - 14 members (14/43 = 32.6%) 
Liberal Democrat  - 13 members (13/43 = 30.2%) 
Labour   - 10 members (10/43 = 23.3%) 

Page 68



 

Aberdeen Conservative  - 2 members  (2/43 = 4.7%) 
Conservative   - 2 members  (2/43 = 4.7%) 
Independent   - 1 member    (1/43 = 2.3%) 

 
The Act does not require that the allocation of seats in any particular 
Committee should follow these proportions, so long as the aggregate 
allocation across all of the Committees is correct. 
 
The Council at its meeting of 19th August 2009, agreed the following sizes 
for its Committees. 
 
Committee      Size 
Social Care and Wellbeing    15 
Education, Culture and Sport   18 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure  15 
Development Management Sub Committee 11 

 Housing and Environment    15 
 Audit and Risk     15 
 Corporate Policy and Performance  15 
 Finance and Resources    15 
 Appeals        9 
 Licensing      15 
      Total  143 
 

The total Committee places available relating to this report is 143, 
therefore, the following political calculation illustrates the number of 
Committee places available to each political group and the independent 
member on the Council - this is on an approximate basis as figures are 
rounded to the nearest whole number. It is important to emphasise that 
these are only indicative figures, and the position will change once the 
result of the second by-election is known.  
 
Political Group  Calculation  Number of Places 
 
SNP    (14/43) x143  47 
Liberal Democrat  (13/43) x 143  43  

 Labour   (10/43) x 143  33 
 Aberdeen Conservative (2/43) x 143    7 
 Conservative   (2/43) x 143    7 
 Independent   (1/43) x 143    3 
        140 
        

This leaves approximately three places vacant for the last remaining 
member, depending on the outcome of the second by-election. 
 
The Pensions Panel is regarded as one of the Council’s Regulatory 
Committees, however the report does not propose any changes to the 
number of members on it nor its composition. 
 
The Urgent Business Committee currently has 13 members and the 
Council may wish to consider its composition. 

Page 69



 

 
It is up to the Council to determine the allocation of the Committee places, 
and thereafter the political groups to notify the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services of their changes to reflect the results of the by-
elections.  

 
6.3 Appointment of Depute Provost, Conveners and Vice Conveners 
 
 Following the election of Councillors Mark McDonald and Kevin Stewart as 

Members of the Scottish Parliament, as a result of the Scottish Parliament 
election on 4th May 2011, the SNP Group on the Council has proposed 
changes to its Senior Councillor positions. These are outlined below - 
where there is a change to the position holder (indicated in bold) this 
requires to be approved by the Council via the suspension of Standing 
Order 1(3).  

 
 Committee Conveners 
 Finance and Resources    Councillor McCaig 
 Education, Culture and Sport   Councillor John West 
 Social Care and Wellbeing    Councillor Kiddie 
 Licensing Board     Councillor Jaffrey 
  
 Vice Conveners 
 Corporate Policy and Performance  Councillor Noble 
 Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Councillor Corall 
 Housing and Environment   Councillor Dunbar 
 Licensing Committee    Councillor Kirsty West 
 Grampian Fire and Rescue Board  Councillor Wendy Stuart 
 
 Other Positions 
 Depute Provost     Councillor Cormie 
 Baillie       Councillor Jaffrey 
 
6.4 Appointments to Outside Bodies, Boards, Trusts and Groups 
 

A number of changes also require to be made in relation to Outside 
Bodies, Boards, Trusts and Groups. 
 
Councillor Kevin Stewart MSP has resigned as a member of the following 
Boards, and requires to be replaced by the Council:- 

 
• NEM (SITA) Management Board 
• City Garden Project Management Board 
• Aberdeen Business Improvement District Board 

 
Councillor Leslie has resigned as a member of the following Outside 
Bodies, and requires to be replaced by the Council:-  
 

• Northern Community Justice Authority (substitute member) 
• Community Health Partnership 
• Alcohol and Drugs Partnership 

Page 70



 

• Alcohol Support Limited 
 

Former Councillor Clark requires to be replaced in relation to the following 
positions:- 
 

• Licensing Board 
• Older People’s Advisory Group (Chairperson) 
• Sports Ground Advisory Group 
• Taxi Consultation Group 
• Aberdeen Airport Consultative Committee      (as local member) 
• Aberdeen Committee for Older People      (Council appointment) 
• Aberdeen International Football Festival 
• Aberdeen Outdoor Access Forum (substitute) (Council 

appointment) 
• General Committee for Older People’s Week (Council appointment) 
• Gordon Highlanders Museum Board    (Council appointment) 
• Grampian Joint Older People’s Strategy   (Council appointment)  
• National Society for Clean Air and Environmental Protection 
• Royal Aberdeen Workshops for the Blind   (Council appointment)  

 
Former Councillor Cassie requires to be replaced in relation to the 
following position:- 
 

• Garthdee Alpine Sports Board    (as local member) 
 
 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 

Martyn Orchard 
Senior Committee Services Officer 
Tel (01224) 523097 
Email morchard@aberdeencity.gov.uk  

   
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 None. 
 

 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE: Council  
 
DATE:  29 June 2011 
 
DIRECTOR: Stewart Carruth 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: Aberdeen City Council Business Plan 2011/12 - 2015/16 
 
REPORT NUMBER:   CG/11/078 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
 This report seeks Council approval of the Aberdeen City Council Business 

Plan 2011/16. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

It is recommended that the committee: 
 
i. Approve the Business Plan for 2011-16; 

 
ii. Instruct the Director of Corporate Governance, in conjunction with the 

Corporate Management Team, to report to Corporate Policy and 
Performance Committee on a six-monthly basis on the progress with the 
delivery of the Business Plan. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

A financial plan is included at Section 6 within the Business Plan, which is 
attached as Appendix 1.  In summary, the Council approved its 2011/12 
General Fund Revenue Budget on 10 February 2011 which set the budget for 
that financial year and agreed the implementation of a number of service 
options. 
 
The assumptions on which the medium-term financial plan has been based 
are included within the Business Plan together with high level scenario 
planning / sensitivity testing showing the impact of changes in key variables. 

 
In accepting the grant settlement position for 2011/12, a number of conditions 
were met to secure the full funding package on offer.  Such wide-ranging 
requirements have not been so specifically tied in the past to the level of 
funding received and it is unclear whether this will continue in the future.  

 
 

Agenda Item 9(d)

Page 73



 

 

Based on the above the Council has ensured that a suitable budgetary 
provision is allowed for in the financial year 2011/12 to ensure that, in 
principle, the Council meets the commitments set out above.  It provides a 
framework for delivering the Council’s business and can be amended as 
factors impact on the Council. 
 
The full five-year position will become clearer when the financial settlement is 
announced towards the end of this year and work will continue on the options 
for future years. 
 

4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 

Preparation of the Business Plan started in 2010 and has included systematic 
appraisal and evaluation of options, against the Council’s key strategic 
priorities.  The proposals included within the Business Plan are also founded 
on extensive engagement with the community and other key stakeholders.  
The impact on communities of interest has been considered through the 
completion of Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessments for each 
option. 

 
 
5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Business Plan sets a route map to customer-centred, efficient services 
within the current financial and social context.  The proposals will have wide-
ranging implications for customers and staff.  Direct and significant 
implications from actions included within the Business Plan will be reported as 
necessary to the Council’s committees.   
 

6. REPORT 
 

The Aberdeen City Council Business Plan covers a five-year planning cycle 
from 2011-16 and will be subject to ongoing review and update. 

 
The period covered by the Business Plan will be one of significant change.  
The Plan sets out the social, political, economic and technological challenges 
ahead and maps out how the Council will respond by focussing its activity 
around the needs of its customers, embedding quality across its services and 
delivering increased efficiency.   

 
The Business Plan reflects the Council’s strategic priorities and details 
specific, priority-based actions.  Performance monitoring will be built around 
the delivery of these priorities and will sit alongside the Business Plan 
focussing on delivery of the Plan.   This will ensure that progress with the 
delivery of strategic options and the impact these have on the achievement of 
the Council’s strategic priorities will be monitored and regularly reported to 
elected members. 

 
 
 

Page 74



 

 

7. AUTHORISED SIGNATURE 
 

Stewart Carruth  
Director of Corporate Governance  
Tel 01224 522550 
Email scarruth@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

   
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

• Priority Based Budgeting: Final Draft Report (version 1.4b) – December 
2010 

• General Fund Revenue Budget 2011/12 and indicative 2012/13 to 
2015/16 Budget  - February 2010 

 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 Co

un
cil

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
Bu

sin
es

s 
Pl

an
 2

01
1/

12
 –

20
15

/1
6

Th
e 

Ne
xt

 F
ive

 Y
ea

rs

Page 77



 
2

Co
nte

nts
 

1. 
Ex

ec
uti

ve
 su

mm
ary

 ....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
.. 3

 

2. 
Vis

ion
 an

d s
tra

teg
y .
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
. 4

 

3. 
Se

cto
r a

na
lys

is .
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
 5 

4. 
Co

mm
un
ica

tio
n a

nd
 co

mm
un
ity
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
... 
8 

4.1
 
Ou

r a
pp

roa
ch

 to
 co

mm
un

ica
tio

n a
nd

 co
mm

un
ity
 en

ga
ge

me
nt .

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
.. 8

 
4.2

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 en

ga
ge

me
nt 

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

 9 
4.3

 W
ho

 ar
e o

ur 
cu

sto
me

rs?
 ...

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

... 
10

 
4.4

 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ork

ing
 ....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

.. 1
1 

5. 
Se

rvi
ce
 ov

erv
iew

 ...
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
. 1
2 

5.1
 
Wh

at 
se

rvi
ce

s w
ill w

e d
eli

ve
r? 
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

.. 1
2 

5.2
 
Ho

w 
wil

l w
e d

eli
ve

r? 
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

. 3
4 

5.3
 
Th

e t
ea

m 
to 

de
live

r ...
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

 36
 

6. 
 F

ina
nc
ial
 pl
an
 ...
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
....
.. 3

9 
6.1

 
Ho

w 
we

 ar
e f

un
de

d .
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

. 3
9 

6.2
 
As

su
mp

tio
ns

 ....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

. 3
9 

6.3
 F

un
din

g, 
sp

en
d a

nd
 sa

vin
gs

 ....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

. 4
1 

6.4
 
Se

ns
itiv

ity
 an

aly
sis

 ...
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

 42
 

 7. 
Ho

w 
wi
ll w

e m
ea
su
re 

ou
r p

erf
or
ma

nc
e?

 ...
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

... 
45

 

8. 
Ho

w 
do
 w
e m

an
ag
e r

isk
s w

hic
h m

igh
t im

pa
ct 
on
 th

e d
eli
ve
ry 
of 

the
 bu

sin
es
s p

lan
?..
....
....
....
....
....
....
 47

 

Page 78



 
3

1. 
Ex

ec
uti

ve
 su

mm
ar
y 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 C
ou
nc
il’s

 bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 co

ve
rs 
the

 fiv
e-y

ea
r 

pe
rio
d f

rom
 20

11
/12

 – 
20
15
/16

. It
 is
 a 

rol
lin
g f
ive

-ye
ar 

pla
n 

an
d w

ill b
e s

ub
jec

t to
 an

nu
al 
rev

iew
 an

d u
pd
ate

 in
 lin

e w
ith
 

ch
an
ge
s i
n t
he
 co

un
cil’

s p
rio
riti
es
 an

d e
me

rgi
ng
 ex

ter
na
l 

fac
tor

s w
hic

h i
mp

ac
t o
n t

he
 de

live
ry 
of 

its
 ob

jec
tiv
es
. 

 Th
e b

us
ine

ss
 pl
an
 id
en
tifi
es
 th
os
e f
ac
tor

s w
hic

h i
nfl
ue
nc
e t
he
 

ne
ed
s, 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d d

eli
ve
ry 
of 

ou
r s
erv

ice
s. 
Th

e p
lan

 
ou
tlin

es
 th

e a
cti
vit
ies

 an
d i
nit
iat
ive

s w
hic

h w
e w

ill u
nd
ert

ak
e t

o 
ac
hie

ve
 ou

r s
tra

teg
ic 
ob
jec

tiv
es
 w
hic

h, 
in 
tur

n, 
ref

lec
t th

e 
na
tio
na
l p
rio
riti
es
 se

t b
y t
he
 Sc

ott
ish

 G
ov
ern

me
nt,
 th
e 

Co
nc
ord

at 
an
d t
he
 Si

ng
le 
Ou

tco
me

 Ag
ree

me
nt.
 

 

 
Fig

. 1
 

 

Th
e b

us
ine

ss
 pl
an
 se

ts 
ou
t th

e c
ou
nc
il’s

 ke
y p

rio
riti
es
 an

d 
giv

es
 de

tai
ls 
of 
the

 m
ain

 ac
tio
ns
 w
ith
in 
ea
ch
 of

 th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 
fiv
e s

erv
ice

s. 
 Th

es
e a

re 
su
pp
ort

ed
 by

 ou
r p

rio
rity

-ba
se
d 

ap
pro

ac
h t
o e

sta
bli
sh
ing

 ou
r b

ud
ge
t. 

 Re
gu
lar
 re

po
rtin

g o
n t
he
 de

live
ry 
of 

the
 bu

sin
es
s p

lan
 w
ill b

e 
ma

de
 at
 co

mm
itte

e a
nd
 co

un
cil 

lev
el 
an
d w

ill f
orm

 a 
ke
y p

art
 

of 
the

 co
un
cil’

s p
ub
lic 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 re

po
rtin

g. 
 Th

e c
ou
nc
il is

 co
mm

itte
d t
o c

on
tin
ua
lly 

im
pro

vin
g i
ts 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
 an

d a
cti
ve
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
wit

h s
tak

eh
old

ers
, 

inc
lud

ing
 Ab

erd
ee
n c

itiz
en
s, 
vis

ito
rs,
 th

e b
us
ine

ss
 co

mm
un
ity
, 

pa
rtn

ers
 an

d i
ts 
em

plo
ye
es
. W

e s
ee
k a

 si
gn
ific

an
t c
ha
ng
e i
n 

mo
de
rni
sin

g t
he
 w
ay
 w
e w

ork
 an

d d
eli
ve
r o

ur 
se
rvi
ce
s. 
 Se

lf- 
ev
alu

ati
on
 is
 an

 im
po
rta

nt 
ele

me
nt 
in 
ac
hie

vin
g t
his

 an
d o

ve
r 

the
 lif
es
pa
n o

f th
is 
pla

n t
he
re 

wil
l b
e a

 fo
cu
s o

n i
nc
rea

sin
g o

ur 
ca
pa
cit
y t
o s

elf
-ev

alu
ate

, ta
kin

g a
n e

vid
en
ce
d a

pp
roa

ch
, 

bu
ild
ing

 up
on
 go

od
 pr

ac
tic
e a

lre
ad
y i
n p

lac
e a

nd
 le
arn

ing
 

thr
ou
gh
 be

nc
hm

ark
ing

 ag
ain

st 
the

 pr
iva

te 
an
d p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r. 
 

  
 

 
 

Jo
hn

 St
ew

art
 

 
 

 
Va

ler
ie 
Wa

tts
 

Co
un
cil 

Le
ad
er 

 
 

 
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
uti
ve
 

 

Page 79



 
4

2. 
Vis

ion
 an

d s
tra

teg
y 

 Vis
ion

 
 Ou

r v
isio

n i
s f
or 

Ab
erd

ee
n t
o b

e a
 vi
bra

nt,
 dy

na
mi
c a

nd
 

for
wa

rd 
loo

kin
g c

ity
. 

 ‘An
 ev

en
 be

tte
r p

lac
e t
o l
ive

 an
d w

ork
, w

he
re 

pe
op
le 
ca
n 

ex
pe
ct 
hig

h q
ua
lity

 se
rvi
ce
s t
ha
t m

ee
t th

eir
 ne

ed
s’.
 

  St
rat

eg
ic 
pr
ior

itie
s 

 Th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 pr
ior
itie

s f
or 

the
 ne

xt 
fiv
e y

ea
rs 
to 

de
live

r th
is 

vis
ion

 ar
e f

oc
us
ed
 on

 si
x k

ey
 ar

ea
s: 

 • 
Pr
ov
ide

 fo
r th

e n
ee
ds
 of
 th
e m

os
t v
uln

era
ble

 pe
op
le;
 

 
• 

He
lp 
to 
en
su
re 

tha
t a
ll s

ch
oo
lch

ild
ren

 re
ac
h t
he
ir p

ote
nti
al;
 

 
• 

Ma
na
ge
 ou

r w
as
te 

be
tte
r a

nd
 in
cre

as
e r

ec
yc
lin
g; 

 
• 

En
co
ura

ge
 th

e b
uil
din

g o
f n

ew
 af

for
da
ble

 ho
us
ing

; 
 

• 
En

su
re 

a s
us
tai
na
ble

 ec
on
om

ic 
fut

ure
 fo
r th

e c
ity
; 

 
• 

En
su
re 

eff
icie

nt 
an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
 de

live
ry 
of 

se
rvi
ce
s b

y t
he

 
co
un
cil 

an
d w

ith
 its

 pa
rtn

ers
. 

 

De
liv
eri

ng
 ou

r s
tra

teg
ic 
pr
ior

itie
s  

 In 
ord

er 
to 
de
live

r th
es
e p

rio
riti
es
 w
e w

ill: 
 

• 
Ma

ke
 be

st 
us
e o

f th
e f

ina
nc
ial
 re

so
urc

es
 

av
ail
ab
le 
to 
us
, e
ns
uri
ng
 be

st 
va
lue

 fo
r th

e 
pu
bli
c p

urs
e; 

• 
Ha

ve
 a 
fle
xib

le,
 sk

ille
d a

nd
 m
oti
va
ted

 w
ork

for
ce
; 

• 
Lis

ten
 to
, a
nd
 be

 re
sp
on
siv

e t
o, 

ou
r c
us
tom

ers
, s
ha
pin

g 
ou
r s
erv

ice
s a

rou
nd
 th
eir
 ne

ed
s a

nd
 fo
cu
sin

g o
ur 

res
ou
rce

s w
he
re 

the
y a

re 
mo

st 
ne
ed
ed
; a
nd
 

• 
W
ork

 cl
os
ely

 w
ith
 ou

r p
art

ne
rs,
 in
clu

din
g l
oc
al 

co
mm

un
itie

s, 
to 
de
live

r a
 si
ng
le 
se
t o
f o

utc
om

es
 fo

r a
ll 

the
 ci
tiz
en
s o

f A
be
rde

en
. 

 Th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 ac
tio
n a

nd
 fin

an
cia

l p
lan

s, 
inc

lud
ed
 in
 th

is 
bu
sin

es
s p

lan
, a

re 
bu
ilt 
on
 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 

the
se
 pr

ior
itie

s, 
an
d 

we
 w
ill m

ea
su
re 

ou
r p

erf
orm

an
ce
 in
 te
rm

s o
f o

ur 
su
cc
es
s i
n 

the
ir a

ch
iev

em
en
t. 

    

 

Page 80



 
5

3. 
Se

cto
r a

na
lys

is 
 Fig

ure
 2 

be
low

 sh
ow

s a
 hi
gh
 le
ve
l a
na
lys

is 
of 
iss

ue
s w

hic
h w

ill i
mp

ac
t o

n t
he
 co

un
cil 

thr
ou
gh
ou
t th

e p
eri
od
 of
 th
is 
pla

n. 
 

 

 
   

 
 

 
Fig

. 2
  

 

Page 81



 
6

 Ov
er 

the
 ne

xt 
fiv
e y

ea
rs 
the

 co
un
cil 

ha
s a

 ke
y r
ole

 in
 ad

dre
ss
ing

 ea
ch
 of

 th
es
e i
ss
ue
s. 
 

 (i) 
Fin

an
ce
 

 Th
e o

ve
ral
l e
co
no
mi
c o

utl
oo
k a

nd
 fis

ca
l p
os
itio

n f
or 

the
 pe

rio
d 

of 
the

 bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 is
 ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e e
xtr
em

ely
 ch

all
en
gin

g. 
Pu

bli
c s

ec
tor

 ne
t b
orr

ow
ing

 (e
xc
lud

ing
 fin

an
cia

l in
ter

ve
nti
on
s) 

wa
s £

13
9.4

 bi
llio

n i
n t
he
 ye

ar 
20
10
/20

11
.  P

ub
lic 

se
cto

r n
et 

de
bt 
(ex

clu
din

g f
ina

nc
ial
 in
ter

ve
nti
on
s) 
wa

s £
91
0.1

 bi
llio

n 
(eq

uiv
ale

nt 
to 

60
.1 
pe
rce

nt 
of 

GD
P)
 at
 th
e e

nd
 of

 Ap
ril 
20
11
.  

Th
is 
co
mp

are
s t
o £

76
3.5

 bi
llio

n (
53
 pe

r c
en
t o
f G

DP
) a

t th
e 

en
d o

f A
pri
l 2
01
0. 

 Th
is 
wil

l im
pa
ct 
dir
ec
tly
 on

 th
e D

ep
art

me
nt 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

Lim
it f
or 

the
 Sc

ott
ish

 G
ov
ern

me
nt 

ov
er 

the
 pe

rio
d 

of 
the

 C
om

pre
he
ns
ive

 Sp
en
din

g R
ev
iew

 w
hic

h w
ill m

ea
n a

 
red

uc
tio
n i
n b

ud
ge
t fo

r th
e c

ou
nc
il. 
Th

e c
ou
nc
il h

as
 re

ce
ive

d a
 

red
uc
tio
n i
n t
he
 ca

sh
 it 
rec

eiv
es
 by

 w
ay
 of

 G
en
era

l R
ev
en

ue
 

Gr
an
t fo

r 2
01
1/1

2 –
 so

me
thi
ng
 th

at 
is 
un
pre

ce
de
nte

d i
n t
he
 

his
tor

y o
f A

be
rde

en
 C
ity
 C
ou
nc
il. 

 Th
ere

 is
 al
so
 a 

cle
ar 

rel
ati
on
sh
ip 
be
tw
ee
n t

he
 pu

bli
c a

nd
 

pri
va
te 

se
cto

r. I
n S

co
tla
nd
, p
ub
lic 

se
rvi
ce
s a

cc
ou
nt 
for

 
ap
pro

xim
ate

ly 
47
% 

of 
GD

P w
hic

h w
ill m

ea
n t
ha
t a
ny
 do

wn
tur

n 
in 
pu
bli
c s

ec
tor

 bu
yin

g p
ow

er 
wil

l h
av
e a

 m
ult
ipl
ier
 ef
fec

t 
thr

ou
gh
ou
t th

e w
ho
le 
ec
on
om

y. 
Th

ere
 w
ill i

ne
vit
ab
ly 
be

 a 
red

uc
tio
n i
n t
he
 pu

bli
c s

ec
tor

 w
ork

for
ce
 an

d t
he
 In
de
pe
nd
en
t 

Bu
dg
et 

Re
vie

w 
pu
bli
sh
ed
 in
 20

09
 pr

ed
ict
ed
 be

tw
ee
n 5

.7%
 to
 

10
% 

red
uc
tio
n i
n p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r jo
bs
 in
 Sc

otl
an
d o

ve
r th

e n
ex
t 

fiv
e y

ea
rs.
 M
ore

ov
er,

 th
e p

os
sib

ility
 of

 co
un
cil 

tax
 be

ing
 fro

ze
n 

wil
l c
rea

te 
fur

the
r a

dd
ed
 pr

es
su
re 

on
 th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 fin
an
cia

l 
po
sit
ion

. T
he
re 

are
 al
so
 si
gn
ific

an
t c
os
t d

riv
ers

 ov
er 

the
 ne

xt 
fiv
e y

ea
rs 
inc

lud
ing

 co
sts

 an
d p

en
alt
ies

 as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 w
as
te,

 
an
 in
cre

as
e i
n t
he
 up

tak
e o

f u
niv

ers
al 
se
rvi
ce
s, 
wo

rkf
orc

e 
co
sts

 an
d i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

co
sts

, p
art

icu
lar
ly 
in 
rel
ati
on
 to

 ro
ad
s. 

 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il r
ec
eiv

es
 th
e s

ec
on
d l
ow

es
t fu

nd
ing

 in
 Sc

otl
an
d 

an
d i
t w

ill b
e i
mp

ort
an
t fo

r th
e c

ou
nc
il t
o c

on
tin
ue
 to
 pr

es
s f
or 

the
 be

st 
se
ttle

me
nt 
po
ss
ibl
e i
n l
igh

t o
f th

es
e f
ina

nc
ial
 

pre
ss
ure

s. 
 (ii)

 
De

mo
gr
ap
hic

s  
 Th

ere
 ar

e s
ign

ific
an
t d
em

an
d p

res
su
res

 on
 se

rvi
ce
s w

ith
in 

Ed
uc
ati
on
, C

ult
ure

 an
d S

po
rt a

nd
 So

cia
l C

are
 an

d W
ell
be
ing

 
ari
sin

g f
rom

 pr
oje

cte
d d

em
og
rap

hic
 tre

nd
s. 
Th

e p
op
ula

tio
n 

wit
hin

 th
e a

ge
 ra

ng
e 0

-15
 is
 ex

pe
cte

d t
o f
all
 in
 Sc

otl
an
d f

rom
 

90
8,0

04
 (2

01
0) 

to 
90
7,4

56
 (2

01
5).

 H
ow

ev
er,

 th
e p

roj
ec
tio
ns
 

for
 Ab

erd
ee
n s

ug
ge
st 
an
 in
cre

as
e i
n t
he
 sa

me
 pe

rio
d f

rom
 

33
,28

1 t
o 3

4,5
01
. T

his
 w
ill h

av
e a

n i
mp

ac
t o
n p

rim
ary

 sc
ho
ol 

rol
ls 
wh

ich
 ar

e e
xp
ec
ted

 to
 ris

e b
y 1

0%
 in
 th
e p

eri
od
 20

10
 to
 

20
15
.  A

t th
e s

am
e t

im
e, 

se
co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ol 
rol
ls 
are

 ex
pe
cte

d 
to 
fal
l b
y a

lm
os
t 6
%.

 Th
e p

op
ula

tio
n i
n t
he
 65

+ a
ge
 gr

ou
p i
s 

pro
jec

ted
 to
 ris

e i
n S

co
tla
nd
 fro

m 
88
0,9

37
 to
 99

0,9
29
 in
 th
e 

pe
rio
d 2

01
0 t
o 2

01
5. 
In 
Ab

erd
ee
n, 
thi
s a

ge
 gr

ou
p i
s p

roj
ec
ted

 
to 

ris
e b

y 1
1%

. T
his

 ha
s a

 si
gn
ific

an
t im

pa
ct 
on
 th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 
fut

ure
 pl
an
nin

g f
or 

ca
re 

of 
the

 el
de
rly
 w
hic

h i
s a

 m
ajo

r d
riv
er 

of 
de
ma

nd
 fo

r s
oc
ial
 ca

re 
an
d w

ell
be
ing

 se
rvi
ce
s. 
  T

he
 ci
ty 

his
tor

ica
lly 

att
rac

ted
 ne

w 
Sc

ots
 w
ith
 ov

ers
ea
s m

igr
an
ts 

es
pe
cia

lly 
fro

m 
ea
ste

rn 
Eu

rop
e i
n s

ea
rch

 of
 em

plo
ym

en
t 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

. T
his

 tre
nd
 is
 lik

ely
 to

 co
nti
nu
e o

ve
r th

e n
ex
t fi
ve
 

ye
ars

 an
d w

ill i
mp

ac
t o
n a

 ra
ng
e o

f s
erv

ice
s i
nc
lud

ing
 

ho
us
ing

, w
as
te,

 ed
uc
ati
on
 an

d s
oc
ial
 w
ork

. T
he
re 

are
 al
so
 

are
as
 of
 de

pri
va
tio
n w

ith
in 
the

 ci
ty 
an
d i
n 2

00
9 t

he
 Sc

ott
ish

 
Ind

ex
 of

 M
ult
ipl
e D

ep
riv
ati
on
 id
en
tifi
ed
 28

 ar
ea
s i
n A

be
rde

en
 

wh
ich

 ar
e p

art
icu

lar
ly 
dis

ad
va
nta

ge
d. 
Th

es
e a

re 
dis

trib
ute

d 
thr

ou
gh
ou
t th

e c
ity
 an

d n
ot 

co
nfi
ne
d t
o p

art
icu

lar
 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds
.

Page 82



 
7

(iii
) 

Po
liti
ca
l 

 Th
e p

oli
tic
al 
en
vir
on
me

nt 
in 
wh

ich
 th

e c
ou
nc
il w

ill o
pe
rat

e o
ve
r 

the
 ne

xt 
fiv
e y

ea
rs 
is 
to 

be
 sh

ap
ed
 by

 a 
se
rie
s o

f e
lec

tio
ns
 at

 
Sc

ott
ish

 Pa
rlia

me
nt,
 lo
ca
l g
ov
ern

me
nt 
an
d a

t U
K l

ev
el.
 Th

e 
ou
tco

me
 of

 th
es
e e

lec
tio
ns
 w
ill h

av
e a

n e
ffe
ct 
on
 a 
ran

ge
 of
 

fac
tor

s w
hic

h c
on
trib

ute
 to

 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 

loc
al 
se
rvi
ce
s. 
It i
s 

im
po
rta

nt 
tha

t th
e c

ou
nc
il is

 in
 a 

po
sit
ion

 to
 fle

x i
ts 
se
rvi
ce
s 

de
pe
nd
ing

 on
 th
e o

utc
om

e o
f th

es
e e

lec
tio
ns
 an

d t
he
 im

pa
ct 

tha
t th

is 
ha
s o

n p
oli
cy
 ei
the

r a
t a

 na
tio
na
l o
r lo

ca
l le

ve
l. 

Cu
rre

nt 
na
tio
na
l p
oli
cy
 di
sc
us
sio

ns
 an

d i
nit
iat
ive

s a
re 

po
int
ing

 
at 

rad
ica

l c
ha
ng
es
 in
 th
e m

od
el 
for

 de
live

ry 
of 

so
cia

l s
erv

ice
s, 

mo
vin

g a
wa

y f
rom

 un
ive

rsa
l, a

nd
 st
ate

-de
fin
ed
, s
erv

ice
s 

tow
ard

s m
od
els

 ba
se
d o

n s
oc
ial
 ci
tiz
en
sh
ip 
wh

ere
 in
div

idu
als

 
an
d l
oc
al 
co
mm

un
itie

s h
av
e m

ore
 re

sp
on
sib

ility
 fo

r d
efi
nin

g 
the

ir n
ee
ds
 an

d c
on
tro

llin
g h

ow
 th

e m
on
ey
 is
 sp

en
t.  
Po

ten
tia
l 

ea
rly
 im

pa
cts

 of
 th
is 
ap
pro

ac
h i
nc
lud

e a
 ne

ed
 to
 bu

ild
 

inc
rea

sin
g a

nd
 op

en
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
wit

h c
itiz

en
s; 
a n

ee
d t

o 
su
pp
ort

 so
cia

l c
ap
ac
ity
 at

 th
e l
oc
al 
lev

el;
 an

d t
he
 tra

ns
fer

 of
 

go
ve
rnm

en
t p
ow

ers
 an

d c
on
tro

l to
 lo
ca
l le

ve
l, w

ith
 th

e 
ac
co
un
tab

ility
 an

d r
es
po
ns
ibi
lity

 th
at 

thi
s e

nta
ils.

   

(iv
) 

Te
ch
no
log

y  
 Te

ch
no
log

y h
as
 a 

ke
y r
ole

 to
 pl
ay
 in
 th

e d
eli
ve
ry 
of 

co
un
cil 

se
rvi
ce
s o

ve
r th

e n
ex
t fi
ve
 ye

ars
.  T

he
 m
ov
e t

o M
ari
sc
ha
l 

Co
lle
ge
, th

e u
se
 of
 te
lec

are
 an

d t
he
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f s
elf
 

se
rvi
ce
 w
ill a

ll d
em

an
d i
nv
es
tm

en
t in

 te
ch
no
log

y a
nd
 re

qu
ire
 

clo
se
r w

ork
ing

 w
ith
 th

e p
riv
ate

 se
cto

r.  
 In
 ed

uc
ati
on
, w

e w
ill 

wid
en
 ac

ce
ss
 to
 le
arn

ing
 fo

r a
ll t
hro

ug
h t

he
 fle

xib
le 
us
e o

f 
tec

hn
olo

gy
.  W

hil
st 
inv

es
tm
en
t w

ill b
e r

eq
uir
ed
, th

is 
wil

l b
e o

n 
the

 ba
sis

 of
 sp

en
d t
o s

av
e (

or 
sp
en
d t
o c

on
str
ain

 gr
ow

th 
in 

co
sts

 of
 ol
de
r p

eo
ple

’s 
se
rvi
ce
s) 
by
 pr

om
oti
ng
 ci
tiz
en
s’ 

ind
ep
en
de
nc
e. 

 Te
ch
no
log

y w
ill a

lso
 fu

nd
am

en
tal
ly 
co
ntr

ibu
te 

to 
sh
ifti
ng
 th

e b
ala

nc
e o

f p
ow

er 
an
d r

es
po
ns
ibi
lity

 to
 th

e 
cit
ize

n r
ath

er 
tha

n t
he
 st
ate

/pu
bli
c s

erv
ice

s, 
by
 fa

cili
tat

ing
 a 

mo
re 

pe
rso

na
lise

d a
nd
 fle

xib
le 
ap
pro

ac
h t
o h

ow
 ci
tiz
en
s 

en
ga
ge
 w
ith
 pu

bli
c s

erv
ice

s. 
 Th

is 
giv

es
 ci
tiz
en

s g
rea

ter
 

ch
oic

e a
nd
 co

ntr
ol 
rat

he
r th

an
 be

ing
 pa

ss
ive

 re
cip

ien
ts 
of 

se
rvi
ce
s. 

   
       

Page 83



 
8

4. 
Co

mm
un

ica
tio

n a
nd

 co
mm

un
ity
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
4.1

 
Ou

r a
pp
ro
ac
h t
o c

om
mu

nic
ati
on
 an

d c
om

mu
nit

y e
ng

ag
em

en
t 

 
Th

is 
bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 ha

s b
ee
n p

rep
are

d f
oll
ow

ing
, a

nd
 

tak
ing

 ac
co
un
t o
f, e

xte
ns
ive

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
n a

nd
 

co
mm

un
ity
 en

ga
ge
me

nt.
  T

his
 in
clu

de
d: 

 • 
A c

orp
ora

te 
sta

ke
ho
lde

r b
rie
fin
g w

ith
 ar

ou
nd
 10

0 c
ity
 

sta
ke
ho
lde

rs 
an
d d

ire
cto

rat
e s

tak
eh
old

er 
bri
efi
ng
s; 

• 
A p

ub
lic 

su
rve

y  
wit

h o
ve
r 1

,10
0 r

es
po
ns
es
 re

ce
ive

d; 
• 

A C
ity
 Vo

ice
 su

rve
y w

ith
 ov

er 
70
0 r

es
po
ns
es
 re

ce
ive

d; 
• 

Int
ern

al 
co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
  w

ith
 a 

se
rie
s o

f s
taf
f b

rie
fin
gs
, 

wo
rks

ho
ps
 an

d u
se
 of

 th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 in
tra

ne
t, a

s a
 fo

cu
s 

for
 in
for

ma
tio
n o

n b
us
ine

ss
 pl
an
 ac

tiv
ity
; 

• 
Th

e c
ou
nc
il’s

 w
eb
sit
e p

rov
idi
ng
 in
for

ma
tio
n a

nd
 

en
co
ura

gin
g m

em
be
rs 
of 

the
 pu

bli
c t
o g

ive
 th

eir
 vi
ew

s; 
 

• 
10
0 c

ity
-w
ide

 ‘fr
on
t d
oo
rs’
 – 

the
 ci
ty’
s i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 po

int
s 

we
re 

us
ed
 to
 pr

om
ote

 an
d e

nc
ou
rag

e m
em

be
rs 
of 

the
 

pu
bli
c t
o c

om
ple

te 
a q

ue
sti
on
na
ire
. 

• 
Co

mm
un
ity
-le
d p

ub
lic 

me
eti
ng
s –

 th
e C

ou
nc
il L

ea
de
r, 

De
pu
ty 
Le
ad
er 

an
d d

ire
cto

rs 
pa
rtic

ipa
ted

 in
 a 
se
rie
s o

f 
pu
bli
c m

ee
tin
gs
 co

nv
en
ed
 by

 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 
the

 ci
ty’
s 

co
mm

un
ity
 co

un
cils

. 
• 

Fo
llo
w-
up
 co

rpo
rat

e, 
dir
ec
tor

ate
 an

d p
ub
lic 

sta
ke
ho
lde

r 
ev
en
ts.
 

 

Co
nti
nu
ing

 go
od
 co

mm
un
ica

tio
ns
 w
ith
 m

ea
nin

gfu
l, a

cti
ve
 an

d 
on
go
ing

 di
alo

gu
e w

ith
 th
e c

itiz
en
s o

f A
be
rde

en
 w
ill b

e c
en
tra

l 
to 

the
 ap

pro
ac
h w

hic
h t
he
 co

un
cil 

tak
es
 as

 it 
de
live

rs 
its
 

ov
era

ll b
us
ine

ss
 pl
an
 ob

jec
tiv
es
. 

 Th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 pr
inc

ipl
e a

im
 is
 to
 cr
ea
te 
a b

ett
er 

aw
are

ne
ss
 an

d 
un
de
rst
an
din

g o
f a

ll t
he
 co

un
cil’

s a
cti
vit
ies

 an
d s

erv
ice

s w
hic

h 
we

, a
lon

g w
ith
 ou

r p
art

ne
rs,
 de

live
r fo

r th
e c

itiz
en
s o

f 
Ab

erd
ee
n, 
ou
r fu

tur
e i
nv
es
tor

s a
nd
 ou

r v
isit

ors
 an

d t
o 

en
co
ura

ge
 ac

tiv
e p

art
icip

ati
on
 an

d e
ng
ag
em

en
t w

ith
 us

 as
 w
e 

de
live

r o
ur 

pla
ns
. 

 Ou
r o

bje
cti
ve
s a

re:
 

 • 
To

 of
fer

 ac
ce
ss
ibl
e a

nd
 tim

ely
 in
for

ma
tio
n a

bo
ut 
all
 

co
un
cil 

se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 ac

tiv
itie

s; 
• 

To
 pr

ov
ide

 op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a

ll t
o e

ng
ag
e i
n d

ial
og
ue
 

wit
h u

s, 
es
pe
cia

lly 
fac

e t
o f
ac
e; 

• 
To

 lis
ten

 an
d r

es
po
nd
 to
 th
e v

iew
s o

f o
ur 

pa
rtn

ers
, 

cit
ize

ns
, s
taf
f a

nd
 ot
he
r s
tak

eh
old

ers
 w
ith
 an

 in
ter

es
t in

 
the

 ci
ty;
 an

d 
• 

To
 sh

are
 ou

r p
lan

s a
nd
 as

pir
ati
on
s f
or 

the
 ci
ty.
 

 
 Th

e c
ou
nc
il w

ill d
o t

his
 th

rou
gh
 cr
ea
tin
g a

 va
rie
ty 
an
d w

ide
-ra

ng
ing

 m
ea
ns
 of
 co

mm
un
ica

tio
ns
 an

d e
ng
ag
em

en
t in

clu
din

g: 
 

• 
Op

en
 m
ee
tin
gs
 on

 th
e t
ran

sa
cti
on
 of
 ou

r fo
rm

al 
bu
sin

es
s; 

• 
Fa

ce
-to

-fa
ce
 an

d t
im
ely

 pu
bli
c m

ee
tin
gs
 on

 sp
ec
ific

 
iss

ue
s a

nd
 ac

tiv
itie

s; 

• 
An

 ef
fec

tiv
e a

nd
 ef
fic
ien

t c
us
tom

er 
co
nta

ct 
se
rvi
ce
 

thr
ou
gh
 ou

r n
etw

ork
 of

 in
for

ma
tio
n p

oin
ts 
an
d b

y 
tel
ep
ho
ne
 or

 em
ail
; 

• 
An

 in
ter

ac
tiv
e a

nd
 ea

sily
 ac

ce
ss
ibl
e w

eb
sit
e; 

Page 84



 
9

• 
Pr
ov
idi
ng
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 an
d c

os
t-e

ffe
cti
ve
 in
for

ma
tio
n 

an
d a

dv
ice

 on
 co

un
cil 

se
rvi
ce
s, 
de
cis

ion
s a

nd
 

ac
hie

ve
me

nts
; 

• 
Sh

ari
ng
 co

mm
un
ica

tio
ns
 an

d e
ng
ag
em

en
t 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 w
ith
 ou

r p
art

ne
rs 
in 
de
tai
lin
g j
oin

t 
ac
tiv
itie

s; 
• 

Co
nti
nu
ou
s a

nd
 on

go
ing

 di
alo

gu
e w

ith
 ou

r d
eli
ve
ry 

pa
rtn

ers
 in
 ot
he
r p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r o
rga

nis
ati
on
s, 
the

 
cit
y’s

 `a
ca
de
mi
c i
ns
titu

tio
ns
, th

e c
ity
’s 
bu
sin

es
s 

co
mm

un
ity
, o

the
rs 
in 
the

 pr
iva

te 
se
cto

r, v
olu

nta
ry 

an
d c

ha
rita

ble
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
s a

nd
 so

cia
l e
nte

rpr
ise

 
co
mp

an
ies

; a
nd
 

• 
Pa

id 
ad
ve
rtis

ing
 of

 en
ga
ge
me

nt 
ev
en
ts,
 w
he
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

. 
 

 Th
e c

ou
nc
il w

ill a
lso

 pl
ac
e a

n e
mp

ha
sis

 on
 ex

ce
lle
nt 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
 w
ith
 ou

r e
mp

loy
ee
s a

nd
 w
e p

lan
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to
 th
e w

ay
 in
 

wh
ich

 w
e i
nfo

rm
 an

d e
ng
ag
e w

ith
 al
l m

em
be
rs 
of 

sta
ff a

nd
 ou

r e
lec

ted
 m
em

be
rs.

 
 4.2

 
Co

mm
un
ity
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
 Th

e f
un
da
me

nta
l im

po
rta

nc
e o

f g
oo
d a

nd
 w
ort

hw
hil
e d

ial
og
ue
 be

tw
ee
n t
he
 co

un
cil 

an
d i
ts 
wid

e v
ari
ety

 of
 st
ak
eh
old

ers
 w
as
 br

ou
gh
t 

int
o r

en
ew

ed
 fo

cu
s d

uri
ng
 th

e f
orm

ati
on
 of
 th
is 
bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 w
ith
 th
e c

ou
nc
il a

do
pti
ng
 a 
pro

ac
tiv
e a

nd
 in
clu

siv
e a

pp
roa

ch
 to
 m
ak
e 

su
re 

tha
t a

s m
an
y p

eo
ple

 as
 po

ss
ibl
e p

art
icip

ate
d i
n t
he
 pr

oc
es
s a

nd
 ha

d a
n o

pp
ort

un
ity
 to
 co

ntr
ibu

te 
the

ir o
wn

 vi
ew

s o
n s

erv
ice

 
pri
ori
tie
s d

uri
ng
 th

e n
ex
t fi
ve
 ye

ars
. 

 Th
is 
inc

lus
ive

 an
d p

os
itiv

e a
pp
roa

ch
 w
as
 w
ide

ly 
we

lco
me

d a
nd
 re

su
lte
d i
n a

 si
gn
ific

an
t n
um

be
r o

f in
div

idu
als

, c
om

mu
nit
y g

rou
ps
, 

loc
al 
bu
sin

es
se
s a

nd
 pa

rtn
ers

 ac
tiv
ely

 en
ga
gin

g w
ith
 th

e c
ou
nc
il t
o ‘
ha
ve
 th

eir
 sa

y’ 
on
 fu
tur

e s
erv

ice
 pr

ior
itie

s. 
 Th

e c
ou
nc
il w

ill c
on
tin
ue
 w
ith
 th

is 
ap
pro

ac
h w

hic
h p

rov
ide

s f
or:

 
 • 

Ind
ivid

ua
l m

em
be
rs 
of 
the

 pu
bli
c, 
co
mm

un
ity
 gr

ou
ps
, lo

ca
l b
us
ine

ss
es
 an

d o
the

r p
ub
lic 

an
d v

olu
nta

ry 
se
cto

r p
art

ne
rs,
 to
 ha

ve
 

the
 op

po
rtu

nit
y t
o m

ak
e a

 di
rec

t in
pu
t in

to 
the

 de
sig

n a
nd
 de

live
ry 
of 

the
 co

un
cil’

s s
erv

ice
s; 
an
d 

• 
Ele

cte
d m

em
be
rs 
an
d c

ity
 co

un
cil 

off
ice

rs 
to 
list

en
 cl
os
ely

 an
d c

on
sid

er 
the

 vi
ew

s o
f c
oll
ea
gu
es
, c
itiz

en
s, 
me

mb
ers

 of
 th
e l
oc
al 

bu
sin

es
s c

om
mu

nit
y a

nd
 pa

rtn
ers

 in
 ot
he
r p

ub
lic 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
 an

d t
he
 vo

lun
tar

y s
ec
tor

. 
 Du

rin
g t
he
 pe

rio
d o

f th
is 
fiv
e-y

ea
r p

lan
, th

e c
ou
nc
il w

ill s
triv

e t
o c

on
tin
ua
lly 

im
pro

ve
 th

e w
ay
 it 
en
ga
ge
s w

ith
 al
l th

os
e w

ho
 ha

ve
 a 

sta
ke
 in
 co

un
cil 

se
rvi
ce
s n

ow
 an

d i
n t
he
 fu
tur

e.

Page 85



 
10

4.3
 
Wh

o a
re 

ou
r c

us
tom

ers
? 

 
 

Fig
. 3
 Sh

ow
ing

 an
 in
dic

ati
ve
 re

pr
es
en
tat
ion

 of
 m
an
y, 
bu

t n
ot 

all
, o
f th

e c
ou

nc
il’s

 cu
sto

me
rs.

 

Page 86



 
11

4.4
 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
or
kin

g 
   

 
 Fig

. 4
 Sh

ow
ing

 an
 in
dic

ati
ve
 re

pr
es
en
tat
ion

 of
 m
an
y, 
bu

t n
ot 

all
, o
f th

e c
ou

nc
il’s

 pa
rtn

ers
. 

Page 87



 
12

5. 
Se

rvi
ce
 ov

er
vie

w 
 5.1

 
   W

ha
t s
erv

ice
s w

ill 
we

 de
liv
er?

 
 Th

e 
co
un
cil 

cu
rre

ntl
y 

em
plo

ys
 o

ve
r 
10
,00

0 
sta

ff 
wo

rki
ng

 
ac
ros

s t
he
 ci
ty 
de
live

rin
g a

 w
ide

 ra
ng
e o

f s
erv

ice
s a

nd
 ha

s a
n 

an
nu
al 
ne
t b

ud
ge
t o

f £
45
0m

 w
hic

h i
s d

ist
rib
ute

d b
etw

ee
n f

ive
 

fun
cti
on
al 
dir
ec
tor

ate
s: 

 • 
Ed

uc
ati
on
, C

ult
ure

 an
d S

po
rt 

• 
So

cia
l C

are
 an

d W
ell
be
ing

 
• 

En
ter

pri
se
, P

lan
nin

g a
nd
 In
fra

str
uc
tur

e 
• 

Ho
us
ing

 an
d E

nv
iro
nm

en
t 

• 
Co

rpo
rat

e G
ov
ern

an
ce
 

         

                   

Page 88



 
13

Ed
uc
ati
on
, C

ult
ur
e a

nd
 Sp

or
t 

 
An

ne
tte

 B
ru
ton

 
Dir

ec
tor
 

 Ov
er 

the
 ne

xt 
fiv
e y

ea
rs 
Ed

uc
ati
on
, C

ult
ure

 an
d S

po
rt w

ill s
ee
 

sig
nif
ica

nt 
ch
an
ge
.  B

uil
din

g o
n o

ur 
str
ate

gie
s f
or 

lea
rni
ng
, 

cu
ltu
re 

an
d s

po
rt, 

we
 w
ill w

ork
 in
 an

 in
no
va
tiv
e a

nd
 cr
ea
tiv
e 

wa
y t
o p

rov
ide

 fle
xib

le 
an
d h

igh
-qu

ali
ty 
ed
uc
ati
on
 in
 sc

ho
ols

, 
su
pp
ort

 co
mm

un
ity
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d a

du
lt l
ea
rni
ng
 w
he
re 

it i
s 

mo
st 
ne
ed
ed
 an

d e
nh
an
ce
 th
e c

ult
ura

l a
nd
 he

rita
ge
 pr

ov
isio

n 
in 
the

 ci
ty 
of 

Ab
erd

ee
n. 
   

 Th
e f

oc
us
 of
 ou

r d
ire
cto

rat
e i
s, 
thr

ou
gh
 ne

w 
wa

ys
 of

 w
ork

ing
, 

to 
co
ntr

ibu
te 
to 
bu
ild
ing

 a 
‘cit

y o
f le

arn
ing

’ w
hic

h e
mp

ow
ers

 
ind

ivid
ua
ls 
to 
ful
fil 
the

ir p
ote

nti
al 
an
d t
o c

on
trib

ute
 to

 th
e 

ec
on
om

ic,
 so

cia
l a
nd
 cu

ltu
ral
 w
ell
be
ing

 of
 ou

r c
om

mu
nit
ies

. 
Ou

r p
rio
riti
es
 re

fle
ct 
the

 na
tio
na
l p
rio
riti
es
 se

t o
ut 
by
 th

e 
Sc

ott
ish

 G
ov
ern

me
nt,
 th
e C

on
co
rda

t a
nd
 th
e S

ing
le 
Ou

tco
me

 
Ag

ree
me

nt 
an
d e

nc
om

pa
ss
 th
e a

cti
vit
ies

 an
d i
nit
iat
ive

s w
hic

h 
we

 w
ill u

nd
ert

ak
e i
n o

rde
r to

 ac
hie

ve
 th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 ke
y 

str
ate

gic
 ob

jec
tiv
es
. T

he
se
 pr

ior
itie

s a
re 

se
t o
ut 

in 
the

 
fol
low

ing
 te

n t
he
me

s: 
  

• 
Cu

rric
ulu

m 
for

 Ex
ce
lle
nc
e: 

im
ple

me
nti
ng
 th
e n

ew
 

cu
rric

ulu
m 
for

 sc
ho
ols

; 
• 

Fit
-fo

r-p
urp

os
e s

ch
oo
ls 
/ le

arn
ing

 ce
ntr

es
: m

ak
ing

 su
re 

tha
t w

e h
av
e t

he
 rig

ht 
fac

iliti
es
 in
 th
e r

igh
t p

lac
e; 

• 
Le
arn

ing
 in
 th
e w

ide
r c
om

mu
nit
y: 
life

lon
g l
ea
rni
ng
 fo

r 
ev
ery

on
e; 

• 
Te

ch
no
log

y: 
us
ing

 te
ch
no
log

y f
or 

lea
rni
ng
; 

• 
He

alt
h a

nd
 w
ell
be
ing

: h
elp

ing
 pe

op
le 
to 
ma

ke
 th
e r

igh
t 

life
sty

le 
ch
oic

es
 fro

m 
an
 ea

rly
 ag

e a
nd
 th

rou
gh
ou
t th

eir
 

live
s; 

• 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
in 
art

s, 
cu
ltu
re 

an
d h

eri
tag

e: 
im
pro

vin
g t
he
 

qu
ali
ty 
of 

an
d i
mp

ac
t o
f a

rts
, c
ult
ure

 an
d h

eri
tag

e 
pro

vis
ion

s a
cro

ss
 th
e c

ity
; 

• 
He

lpi
ng
 th

os
e w

ith
 di
ffe
ren

t n
ee
ds
: h
elp

ing
 ev

ery
on
e 

rea
ch
 th
eir
 po

ten
tia
l; 

• 
Be

tte
r p

erf
orm

ing
/va

lue
 fo

r m
on
ey
: d

em
on
str
ate

 ou
r 

co
mm

itm
en
t to

 co
nti
nu
ou
s i
mp

rov
em

en
t; 

• 
Sk

ille
d a

nd
 tra

ine
d s

taf
f: c

on
tin
ua
lly 

de
ve
lop

ing
 ou

r s
taf
f 

thr
ou
gh
 tra

ini
ng
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

; a
nd
 

• 
W
ork

ing
 to

ge
the

r: m
ak
ing

 su
re 

se
rvi
ce
s w

ork
 to

ge
the

r in
 

the
 in
ter

es
ts 
of 

the
 le
arn

er.
 

 Un
de
rpi
nn
ing

 ou
r te

n p
rio
rity

 th
em

es
 ar

e t
he
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 to

 
im
pro

ve
 at

tai
nm

en
t a
nd
 ac

hie
ve
me

nt 
for

 al
l o
ur 

lea
rne

rs 
an
d 

to 
clo

se
 th
e g

ap
s i
n l
ea
rni
ng
, h

ea
lth
, p
art

icip
ati
on
 an

d 
em

plo
ym

en
t o
utc

om
es
 th

at 
ex
ist
 w
ith
in 
the

 ci
ty.
 O
ur 

ke
y 

pri
ori
tie
s a

re 
me

t th
rou

gh
 th

e p
rov

isio
n o

f a
 ra

ng
e o

f s
erv

ice
s 

an
d a

cti
vit
ies

. 

Pr
e-s

ch
oo
l a
nd
 sc

ho
ol 
ed
uc
ati
on
  

In 
ou
r p

re-
sc
ho
ol 
se
ttin

g w
ith
in 
pri
ma

ry 
sc
ho
ols

 an
d t
hro

ug
h 

ou
r p

art
ne
r p

rov
ide

rs 
we

 w
ill: 

 

Page 89



 
14

• 
Co

nti
nu
e t

o i
nv
es
t in

 le
ad
ers

hip
 an

d m
an
ag
em

en
t 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
at 
all
 le
ve
ls;
 

• 
Ad

jus
t th

e e
arl
y y

ea
rs 
tra

ini
ng
 pr

og
ram

me
 to
 pr

ior
itis

e 
se
lf-a

ss
es
sm

en
t tr

ain
ing

 an
d g

uid
an
ce
; 

• 
Inc

rea
se
 th
e i
nv
olv

em
en
t o
f p

riv
ate

 pa
rtn

ers
 in
 jo
int
 

tra
ini
ng
 an

d d
ev
elo

pm
en
t w

ith
 lo
ca
l a
uth

ori
ty 
pra

cti
tio
ne
rs 

in 
rel
ati
on
 to

 th
e i
mp

lem
en
tat

ion
 of
 cu

rric
ulu

m 
for

 
ex
ce
lle
nc
e a

ss
es
sm

en
t, r

ep
ort

ing
 an

d t
ran

sit
ion

; 
• 

Im
pro

ve
 ne

tw
ork

ing
 an

d c
om

mu
nic

ati
on
 be

tw
ee
n p

re-
sc
ho
ol 
se
ttin

gs
 an

d p
rim

ary
 to

 de
live

r im
pro

ve
d b

rea
dth

 
an
d d

ep
th,
 pr

og
res

sio
n a

nd
 co

nti
nu
ity
 of

 le
arn

ing
; a

nd
 

• 
Int

rod
uc
e n

urs
ery

 in
du
cti
on
 pr

og
ram

me
 fo

r s
en
ior
 le
ad
ers

 
in 
pri
ma

ry 
sc
ho
ols

. 

Ad
dit

ion
al 
su
pp
or
t n

ee
ds
 (A

SN
) 

W
e w

ill s
ee
k t
o i
mp

rov
e o

ur 
inc

lus
ion

 pr
ac
tic
e a

nd
 m
ee
t th

e 
ne
ed
s o

f th
os
e w

ith
 ad

dit
ion

al 
su
pp
ort

 ne
ed
s i
n t

he
 fo

llo
win

g 
wa

ys
: 

• 
De

ve
lop

 a 
be
tte

r u
nd
ers

tan
din

g o
f th

e n
ee
ds
 of
 sp

ec
ific

 
gro

up
s o

f le
arn

ers
 w
ho
 ha

ve
 ad

dit
ion

al 
su
pp
ort

 ne
ed
s i
n 

ord
er 

to 
fur

the
r im

pro
ve
 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 se

rvi
ce
s/p

rov
isio

n; 
• 

Fin
ali
se
 a 
mo

re 
co
he
ren

t a
pp
roa

ch
 an

d s
tra

teg
y f
or 

so
cia

l, 
em

oti
on
al,
 an

d b
eh
av
iou

ral
 ne

ed
s; 

• 
Im

pro
ve
 th
e e

ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of

 th
e p

up
il s

up
po
rt s

erv
ice

; 
• 

Co
nti
nu
e t

o f
oc
us
 on

 at
tai
nm

en
t a
nd
 ac

hie
ve
me

nt 
wit

hin
 

the
 AS

N 
se
cto

r b
y e

ns
uri
ng
 th

at 
go
od
 pr

ac
tic
e i
s i
de
nti
fie
d 

an
d a

do
pte

d m
ore

 w
ide

ly 
ac
ros

s t
he
 ci
ty;
 

• 
Bu

ild
 up

on
 ou

r c
urr

en
t w

ork
 to

 de
ve
lop

 ef
fec

tiv
e 

tra
ns
itio

ns
, p
art

icu
lar
ly 
for

 po
st-
16
/18

 ye
ar 

old
s w

ith
 

ad
dit
ion

al 
su
pp
ort

 ne
ed
s; 

• 
En

su
re 

eff
ec
tiv
e u

se
 of
 ou

r s
tag

ed
 in
ter

ve
nti
on
 ap

pro
ac
h 

to 
me

eti
ng
 ad

dit
ion

al 
su
pp
ort

 ne
ed
s; 

• 
Fin

ali
se
 ou

r re
vie

w 
of 

inc
lus

ion
 an

d d
ev
elo

p a
 re

fre
sh
ed
 

str
ate

gy
; 

• 
De

ve
lop

 a 
mo

re 
rob

us
t, o

utc
om

e-b
as
ed
 ap

pro
ac
h t
o t
he
 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
of 

ad
dit
ion

al 
su
pp
ort

 ne
ed
s s

erv
ice

s/ 
pro

vis
ion

, w
ith
 a 

str
on
ge
r fo

cu
s o

n t
he
 co

lle
cti
on
 an

d 
int
ell
ige

nt 
us
e o

f p
erf

orm
an
ce
, a
tta

inm
en
t a
nd
 

ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
da
ta 
to 
en
su
re 

all
 le
arn

ers
 ac

hie
ve
 th

eir
 fu

ll 
po
ten

tia
l; 

• 
Re

de
ve
lop

 C
ord

yc
e S

ch
oo
l a
s a

 ce
ntr

e o
f e

xc
ell
en
ce
 fo
r 

yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 w
ith
 so

cia
l, e

mo
tio
na
l a
nd
 be

ha
vio

ura
l 

ne
ed
s; 

• 
Es

tab
lish

 a 
mo

re 
tho

rou
gh
 pr

oc
es
s t
o g

ath
er 

pu
pil
 an

d 
pa
ren

t/c
are

r v
iew

s o
f s
erv

ice
s a

nd
 to
 us

e t
ho
se
 vi
ew

s t
o 

inf
orm

 an
d i
mp

rov
e s

erv
ice

 de
live

ry;
 

• 
Ex

plo
re 

an
d d

ev
elo

p t
he
 em

erg
ing

 m
od
el 
of 
lea

rni
ng
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

s a
nd
 hu

bs
 in
 or

de
r to

 fu
rth

er 
im
pro

ve
 th

e 
ex
pe
rie
nc
es
 an

d o
utc

om
es
 fo
r a

ll le
arn

ers
, b
ut 
pa
rtic

ula
rly
 

tho
se
 w
ith
 ad

dit
ion

al 
su
pp
ort

 ne
ed
s; 

• 
De

ve
lop

 a 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 st
rat

eg
y f
or 

ad
dit
ion

al 
su
pp
ort

 
ne
ed
s s

erv
ice

/pr
ov
isio

n, 
inc

lud
ing

 se
ek
ing

 gr
ea
ter

 
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r jo

int
 w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 vo

lun
tar

y 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
; a
nd
 

• 
En

su
re 

ad
dit
ion

al 
su
pp
ort

 ne
ed
s a

re 
ref

lec
ted

 in
 ou

r 
ap
pro

ac
h t
o a

nd
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f C
urr

icu
lum

 fo
r 

Ex
ce
lle
nc
e. 

     

Page 90



 
15

Cu
rri
cu
lum

 fo
r E

xc
ell
en
ce
  

W
e h

av
e m

ad
e g

oo
d p

rog
res

s i
n t

his
 cu

rric
ulu

m 
ref

orm
 w
hil
st 

rec
og
nis

ing
 th

at 
mu

ch
 st
ill n

ee
ds
 to

 be
 do

ne
. O

ur 
cu
rre

nt 
po
sit
ion

 in
vo
lve

s b
uil
din

g u
p c

ap
ac
ity
 ag

ain
 an

d i
mp

lem
en
tin
g 

ma
jor
 cu

rric
ulu

m 
de
ve
lop

me
nts

. O
ur 

pri
ori
tie
s f
or 

cu
rric

ulu
m 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
wil

l: 
 • 

Inc
rea

se
 pa

ce
 an

d p
rov

ide
 cl
ea
r g

uid
an
ce
 an

d p
oli
cy
 

inc
lud

ing
 le
arn

ing
 an

d t
ea
ch
ing

, li
ter

ac
y, 
nu
me

rac
y, 
he

alt
h 

an
d w

ell
be
ing

, s
cie

nc
e, 
as
se
ss
me

nt,
 re

po
rtin

g a
nd
 

mo
de
rat

ion
; 

• 
Im

pro
ve
 pu

pil
 tra

ns
itio

ns
 fro

m 
nu
rse

ry 
to 

pri
ma

ry 
an
d f

rom
 

pri
ma

ry 
to 

se
co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ol;
 

• 
Pr
ov
ide

 pe
rso

na
l s
up
po
rt f

or 
all
 pu

pil
s; 

• 
Ma

ke
 be

tte
r u

se
 of
 G
LO

W
; 

• 
Pr
ov
ide

 go
od
 qu

ali
ty 
an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
 pr

ofe
ss
ion

al 
de
ve
lop

me
nt;
 

• 
En

su
re 

tha
t th

e s
up
po
rt a

nd
 ch

all
en
ge
 of
 qu

ali
ty 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
off
ice

rs 
is 
ha
vin

g a
 si
gn
ific

an
t im

pa
ct;
 

• 
De

ve
lop

 su
pp
ort

 fo
r c
urr

icu
lum

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 

inc
lud

ing
 

se
co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ols

 cu
rric

ulu
m 

ne
tw
ork

s; 
an
d 

• 
Hig

hli
gh
t a

nd
 sh

are
 go

od
 pr

ac
tic
e. 

Alo
ng
sid

e t
he
 in
tro

du
cti
on
 of
 a 

cu
rric

ulu
m 
for

 ex
ce
lle
nc
e f

or 
all
 

pu
pil
s w

e w
ill d

eli
ve
r m

ore
 fle

xib
le 
rou

tes
 to
 le
arn

ing
 in
 th
e 

up
pe
r s
tag

es
 of
 se

co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ol 
an
d b

ey
on
d t

hro
ug
h o

ur 
Ab

erd
ee
n v

irtu
al 
ca
mp

us
 st
rat

eg
y. 
 

W
e w

ill f
oc
us
 on

 th
e s

en
ior
 ph

as
e a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
for

 sc
ho
ols

 
an
d l
ea
rn 

fro
m,
 an

d b
uil
d u

po
n, 

the
 fle

xib
le 
an
d o

pe
n 

ap
pro

ac
he
s t
o p

rog
res

sio
n a

nd
 ch

oic
e a

lre
ad
y d

ev
elo

pe
d i
n 

the
 co

lle
ge
s a

nd
 un

ive
rsi
tie
s i
n t

he
 ci
ty 
an
d r

eg
ion

.  T
he
 id
ea
 

of 
a v

irtu
al 
ca
mp

us
 co

uld
 be

 bu
ild
 ar

ou
nd
 fo
ur 

ma
in 
str
an
ds
 of

 
wo

rk 
an
d w

ou
ld 
de
ve
lop

 pa
ce
 an

d c
ha
lle
ng
e f
or 

ma
ny
 se

nio
r 

stu
de
nts

 in
 ou

r s
ch
oo
l, c

ou
ld 
op
en
 up

 ch
oic

es
 an

d b
uil
d 

fle
xib

le 
pa
thw

ay
s f
or 

lea
rne

rs.
  T

he
 pr

op
os
ed
 fo
ur 

str
an
ds
 of
 

wo
rk 
for

 th
e e

du
ca
tio
n a

uth
ori
ty 
an
d p

art
ne
rs 
are

:  
• 

In 
the

 sh
ort

 te
rm

, a
lig
nin

g s
ch
oo
l d
ay
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 an

d 
en
ab
le 
co
urs

ing
 ac

ros
s e

sta
bli
sh
me

nts
; 

• 
To

 de
ve
lop

 in
no
va
tiv
e a

nd
 IT

 ba
se
d w

ay
s o

f le
arn

ing
 

wh
ich

 co
mp

lem
en
t fa

ce
-to

-fa
ce
 te
ac
hin

g a
nd
 le
arn

ing
; 

• 
To

 de
ve
lop

 an
 op

en
 co

urs
ing

 ap
pro

ac
h t
o l
ea
rni
ng
 w
hic

h 
co
uld

 ta
ke
 pl
ac
e a

t s
ch
oo
l, c

oll
eg
e o

r u
niv

ers
ity
 in
 a 

‘vir
tua

l c
am

pu
s’;
 an

d 
• 

To
 de

ve
lop

 a 
cle

ar 
ap
pro

ac
h t
o t

he
 se

nio
r p

ha
se
 

cu
rric

ulu
m 

in 
se
co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ols

.  
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
cu
ltu
re 

an
d s

po
rt 

 In 
de
ve
lop

ing
 th

e s
erv

ice
s i
n c

om
mu

nit
y l
ea
rni
ng
, h

eri
tag

e, 
art

s, 
cu
ltu
re 

an
d s

po
rt w

e w
ill b

uil
d o

n e
xis

tin
g s

tro
ng
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

s a
nd
 w
ill s

ee
k t
o p

rov
ide

 se
rvi
ce
s t
hro

ug
h t
ho

se
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

s a
nd
 th
rou

gh
 ar

ms
 le
ng
th 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 an

d 
tru

sts
.  T

his
 w
ill i

nc
lud

e t
he
 fo

llo
win

g a
cti
on
s: 
 

 • 
Co

nti
nu
e t

o w
ork

 w
ith
 th

e A
be
rde

en
 Sp

ort
s T

rus
t –

 Sp
ort

 
Ab

erd
ee
n a

nd
 Ab

erd
ee
n S

po
rt V

illa
ge
 – 
to 
de
live

r e
ffic

ien
t 

an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
 pr

ov
isio

n o
f s
po
rt a

nd
 le
isu

re 
ac
tiv
itie

s 
thr

ou
gh
ou
t th

e c
ity
; 

• 
Inv

es
tig
ate

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 w
ith
in 
co
mm

un
ity
 

lea
rni
ng
 an

d d
ev
elo

pm
en
t a
nd
 th

rou
gh
 ot
he
r le

arn
ing

 
pro

vid
ers

 to
 en

ha
nc
e l
ea
rni
ng
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 w
ith
in 
sc
ho
ols

 
an
d l
ea
rni
ng
 es

tab
lish

me
nts

; 
• 

Co
nti
nu
e t

o p
rom

ote
 th
e p

art
icip

ati
on
 of

 th
e p

riv
ate

, p
ub
lic 

an
d v

olu
nta

ry 
se
cto

rs 
in 
ou
r p

lan
nin

g a
nd
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

pa
rtic

ula
rly
 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 ch

ild
ren

’s 
se
rvi
ce
s; 
co
mm

un
ity
 

lea
rni
ng
 an

d d
ev
elo

pm
en
t; n

eig
hb
ou
rho

od
 pl
an
nin

g a
nd
 

wit
hin

 ar
ts 
an
d c

ult
ura

l a
cti
vit
ies

; 

Page 91



 
16

• 
Es

tab
lish

 a 
ne
tw
ork

 of
 te
n l
ea
rni
ng
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
s a

cro
ss
 

the
 ci
ty 
to 
en
ab
le 
ou
tco

me
-fo

cu
ss
ed
 le
arn

ing
 di
sc
us
sio

ns
 

wit
hin

 a 
pa
rtn

ers
hip

 en
vir
on
me

nt;
 

• 
Es

tab
lish

 a 
ne
tw
ork

 of
 co

mm
un
ity
 le
arn

ing
 hu

bs
 an

d 
rel
ate

d p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
ac
tiv
ity
; 

• 
As

 pa
rt o

f o
ur 

mu
lti-
dis

cip
lin
ary

 ap
pro

ac
h t
o c

hil
d 

pro
tec

tio
n, 

im
ple

me
nt 

the
 jo
int
 ch

ild
 pr

ote
cti
on
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 

an
d c

on
tin
ue
 jo
int
 w
ork

ing
 to

 im
pro

ve
 th
e e

ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of

 
ch
ild
 pr

ote
cti
on
 se

rvi
ce
s a

nd
 to

 m
ee
t th

e n
ee
ds
 of

 
vu
lne

rab
le 
ch
ild
ren

 an
d f

am
ilie

s; 
• 

En
su
re 

tha
t y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
are

 ab
le 
to 
ac
ce
ss
 w
ork

 
pla

ce
me

nts
 in
 a 
mo

re 
pe
rso

na
lise

d w
ay
; 

• 
De

ve
lop

 16
+ l
ea
rni
ng
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
s i
n e

ve
ry 
se
co
nd
ary

 
sc
ho
ol;
 

• 
En

ha
nc
e o

ur 
yo
uth

 vo
ice

 an
d f
urt

he
r d

ev
elo

p y
ou
th 

pa
rtic

ipa
tio
n t
hro

ug
h s

ch
oo
ls 
an
d A

be
rde

en
 Yo

uth
 

Co
un
cil;

 
• 

Fa
cili

tat
e h

igh
 qu

ali
ty 
ad
ult
 le
arn

ing
 se

rvi
ce
s w

ith
 a 

pa
rtic

ula
r fo

cu
s o

n y
ou
th 

an
d a

du
lt l
ite
rac

y a
nd
 nu

me
rac

y; 
 

• 
Ag

ree
 ci
ty-
wid

e s
tra

teg
ies

 to
 cl
os
e t
he
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 ga
p; 
 

• 
En

ga
ge
 w
ith
 ‘h
ard

 to
 re

ac
h’ 
co
mm

un
itie

s a
nd
 in
div

idu
als

 
wo

rki
ng

 w
ith
 fro

nt 
lin
e s

erv
ice

s a
nd
 ag

en
cie

s t
o i
de
nti
fy 

an
d a

ss
es
s n

ee
ds
;  

• 
Im

ple
me

nt 
‘Vi
bra

nt 
Ab

erd
ee
n’ 
– a

 cu
ltu
ral
 st
rat

eg
y f
or 

Ab
erd

ee
n; 
 

• 
Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 ‘F
it f
or 

the
 Fu

tur
e’ 
str
ate

gy
 fo

r p
hy
sic

al 
ac
tiv
ity
 an

d s
po
rt; 

• 
de
ve
lop

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 ne
tw
ork

s a
nd
 lin

ks
 w
ith
 bo

th 
cu
ltu
ral
 

an
d n

on
 cu

ltu
ral
 bo

die
s e

.g.
 to
uri
sm

; a
nd
  

• 
Re

cru
it, 
de
ve
lop

 an
d r

eta
in 
vo
lun

tee
rs 
to 
su
pp
ort

 de
live

ry 
of 

cu
ltu
ral
, a

rts
 an

d h
eri
tag

e t
yp
e a

cti
vit
ies

. 
 Le
arn

ing
 an

d c
ult
ur
al 
es
tat

e a
nd
 fa
cil
itie

s 
 W
e w

ill c
on
tin
ue
 to

 de
ve
lop

 an
d i
mp

lem
en
t th

e l
ea
rni
ng
 es

tat
e 

str
ate

gy
 to

 en
su
re 

an
 af
for

da
ble

 an
d s

us
tai
na
ble

 le
arn

ing
 

es
tat
e w

hic
h m

ak
es
 be

st 
us
e o

f re
so
urc

es
, e
ns
uri
ng
 fo

cu
s o

n 
are

as
 of
 gr

ea
tes

t n
ee
d. 
 C
on
tin
uin

g t
he
 w
ork

 al
rea

dy
 be

gu
n 

on
 co

mm
un
ity
 fa

cili
tie
s a

nd
 th
e s

ec
on
da
ry 
sc
ho
ol 
es
tat
e w

e 
wil

l a
lso

 re
vie

w 
the

 co
nd
itio

n, 
su
ita
bil
ity
 an

d e
ffic

ien
cy
 of

 th
e 

pri
ma

ry 
sc
ho
ol 
es
tat
e a

nd
 br

ing
 fo

rw
ard

 a 
sh
ort

, m
ed
ium

 an
d 

lon
g-t

erm
 pl
an
 fo
r a

cti
on
.  W

e w
ill d

ev
elo

p p
rop

os
als

 fo
r th

e 
via

ble
 re

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 

Ab
erd

ee
n A

rt G
all
ery

 an
d t

he
 st
ora

ge
 

of 
the

 ci
ty's

 re
se
rve

 co
lle
cti
on
s. 
 In

 ad
dit
ion

, a
nd
 w
ith
in 

av
ail
ab
le 
bu
dg
ets

 w
e w

ill: 
 • 

De
ve
lop

 a 
tec

hn
olo

gy
 st
rat

eg
y f
or 

Ed
uc
ati
on
, C

ult
ure

 an
d 

Sp
ort

;  
• 

Fu
rth

er 
de
ve
lop

 on
lin
e l
ea
rni
ng
 w
ith
in 
co
mm

un
itie

s; 
an
d  

• 
En

su
re 

ne
w 
an
d e

xis
tin
g v

en
ue
s a

re 
fit 
for

 pu
rpo

se
 an

d 
ha
ve
 th

e c
ap
ac
ity
 fo

r d
ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f li
fel
on
g l
ea
rni
ng
 an

d 
cu
ltu
ral
 ac

tiv
itie

s. 
 

 
  

Page 92



 
17

 Ed
uc
ati
on

, C
ult

ur
e a

nd
 Sp

or
t –
 se

rvi
ce
 ov

erv
iew

 

Priority 1: Provide for the 
needs of the most vulnerable 
people 
 Priority 2: Help to ensure that 
all schoolchildren reach their 
potential 
 
Priority 3: Manage our waste 
better and increase recycling 
 
Priority 4: Encourage the 
building of new affordable 
housing 
 Priority 5: Ensure a 
sustainable economic future 
for the city 
 Priority 6:  Ensure efficient 
and effective delivery of 
services by the council and 
with its partners. 
 

Ch
ild

ren
 an

d y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

ac
ce

ss
 po

sit
ive

 le
arn

ing
 en

vir
on

me
nts

 an
d d

ev
elo

p t
he

ir s
kill

s, 
co

nfi
de

nc
e a

nd
 se

lf e
ste

em
 to

 th
e f

ull
es

t p
ote

nti
al 

x 
x 

 
 

 
 

W
e w

ill i
mp

rov
e t

he
 ou

tco
me

s f
or 

all
 ou

r c
hil

dre
n a

nd
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 
x 

x 
 

 
 

 
Ev

ery
on

e w
ill h

av
e a

cc
es

s t
o h

igh
-qu

ali
ty 

lea
rni

ng
 en

vir
on

me
nts

 an
d f

ac
iliti

es
 su

pp
ort

ing
 th

em
 to

 
ac

hie
ve

 th
eir

 fu
ll p

ote
nti

al 
 

x 
 

 
 

 
W

e w
ill e

nc
ou

rag
e p

eo
ple

 of
 al

l a
ge

s t
o p

lay
 an

 ac
tiv

e r
ole

 in
 th

eir
 le

arn
ing

 in
 or

de
r to

 m
ax

im
ise

 th
eir

 
po

ten
tia

l 
 

x 
 

 
 

 
W

e w
ill e

na
ble

 an
 ec

on
om

ica
lly 

ac
tiv

e p
op

ula
tio

n 
 

x 
 

 
x 

 
W

e w
ill e

nc
ou

rag
e a

cti
ve

 an
d a

pp
rop

ria
te 

us
e o

f te
ch

no
log

y t
o w

ide
n l

ea
rni

ng
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 
 

 
 

 
x 

x 
W

e w
ill e

nc
ou

rag
e p

eo
ple

 to
 ge

t in
vo

lve
d i

n r
ec

rea
tio

na
l a

cti
vit

ies
, le

isu
re 

pu
rsu

its
 an

d a
 w

ide
 va

rie
ty 

of 
sp

ort
s m

ax
im

isin
g t

he
 so

cia
l, e

du
ca

tio
na

l, h
ea

lth
 an

d e
co

no
mi

c b
en

efi
ts 

 
x 

 
 

x 
 

W
e w

ill p
rom

ote
 en

vir
on

me
nta

l s
us

tai
na

bil
ity

 
 

 
x 

 
x 

 
W

e w
ill i

mp
rov

e t
he

 qu
ali

ty 
an

d i
mp

ac
t o

f a
rts

, c
ult

ure
 an

d h
eri

tag
e p

rov
isio

n a
cro

ss
 th

e c
ity

 
 

x 
 

 
x 

 
W

e w
ill d

ev
elo

p m
ea

nin
gfu

l a
nd

 su
cc

es
sfu

l p
art

ne
rsh

ips
 th

at 
inc

rea
se

 op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 av

ail
ab

le 
to 

en
ga

ge
 in

 cu
ltu

ral
, a

rts
 an

d h
eri

tag
e a

cti
vit

ies
 

 
 

 
 

x 
 

W
e w

ill e
na

ble
 cr

ea
tiv

e o
pp

ort
un

itie
s f

or 
pra

cti
tio

ne
rs 

an
d a

rtis
ts 

to 
ret

ain
 cr

ea
tiv

e i
nd

ivid
ua

ls 
wit

hin
 

the
 ci

ty 
 

 
 

 
x 

 
W

e w
ill c

rea
te 

an
d c

ele
bra

te 
a c

ult
ura

l id
en

tity
 w

hic
h i

s r
ec

og
nis

ed
 lo

ca
lly,

 na
tio

na
lly 

an
d 

int
ern

ati
on

all
y 

 
x 

 
 

x 
 

W
e w

ill s
up

po
rt v

uln
era

ble
 ch

ild
ren

 to
 ac

hie
ve

 th
eir

 fu
ll p

ote
nti

al 
x 

x 
 

 
x 

 
W

e w
ill e

ns
ure

 ou
r s

erv
ice

s a
nd

 fa
cili

tie
s a

re 
ac

ce
ss

ibl
e t

o a
ll 

 
x 

 
 

 
x 

W
e w

ill s
im

pli
fy 

an
d s

tan
da

rdi
se

 se
rvi

ce
 pr

ov
isio

n t
arg

eti
ng

 re
so

urc
es

 to
 th

e r
igh

t a
rea

s a
nd

 he
lpi

ng
 

to 
ba

lan
ce

 bu
dg

ets
 

 
 

 
 

 
x 

W
e w

ill d
em

on
str

ate
 ou

r c
om

mi
tm

en
t to

 co
nti

nu
ou

s i
mp

rov
em

en
t 

 
 

 
 

 
x 

W
e w

ill f
os

ter
 a 

sk
ille

d w
ork

for
ce

 w
ith

 th
e k

no
wle

dg
e, 

un
de

rst
an

din
g a

nd
 ex

pe
rtis

e r
eq

uir
ed

 to
 ca

rry
 

ou
t th

eir
 du

tie
s 

 
 

 
 

 
x 

Page 93



 
18

 So
cia

l C
are

 an
d W

ell
be
ing

 

 
Fr
ed
 M
cB

rid
e 

Dir
ec
tor
 

 Ov
er 

the
 ne

xt 
fiv
e y

ea
rs 
the

 So
cia

l C
are

 an
d W

ell
be
ing

 
dir
ec
tor

ate
 w
ill p

rov
ide

 se
rvi
ce
s i
n t

he
 fo
llo
win

g t
hre

e a
rea

s: 
 • C

hil
dr
en
 an

d y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le.
 Th

es
e s

erv
ice

s m
ee
t th

e 
ne
ed
s o

f v
uln

era
ble

 ch
ild
ren

 in
clu

din
g: 
ch
ild
ren

 at
 ris

k o
f 

ha
rm

; c
hil
dre

n w
ho
 re

qu
ire
 ch

ild
 pr

ote
cti
on
 se

rvi
ce
s; 
ch
ild
ren

 
wh

o a
re 

loo
ke
d a

fte
r; c

hil
dre

n n
ee
din

g p
erm

an
en
t fa

mi
lie
s; 

ch
ild
ren

 w
ho
 ha

ve
 a 

dis
ab
ility

 an
d; 

yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 w
ho
 ha

ve
 

off
en
de
d o

r a
re 

at 
ris
k o

f o
ffe
nd
ing

. 
 • A

du
lts
. T

he
se
 se

rvi
ce
s m

ee
t th

e n
ee
ds
 of
 vu

lne
rab

le 
ad
ult
s 

inc
lud

ing
: th

os
e w

ho
 ar

e a
t ri
sk
 of
 ha

rm
 an

d a
bu
se
; w

ho
 ha

ve
 

me
nta

l h
ea
lth
 pr

ob
lem

s; 
su
bs
tan

ce
 m

isu
se
 pr

ob
lem

s; 
a 

lea
rni
ng
 di
sa
bil
ity
 an

d; 
tho

se
 w
ho
 ha

ve
 of
fen

de
d o

r a
re 

at 
ris
k 

of 
off
en
din

g i
.e.

 cr
im
ina

l ju
sti
ce
 se

rvi
ce
s. 

 • O
lde

r p
eo
ple

 an
d r

eh
ab
ilit
ati
on

. T
he
se
 se

rvi
ce
s m

ee
t th

e 
ne
ed
s o

f o
lde

r p
eo
ple

; p
eo
ple

 w
ith
 a 

dis
ab
ility

 or
 se

ns
ory

 
im
pa
irm

en
t; t
ho
se
 in
 ne

ed
 of
 re

ha
bil
ita
tio
n; 
se
rvi
ce
s f
or 

ad
ult
s 

at 
ris
k o

f h
arm

 an
d; 

se
rvi
ce
s w

hic
h m

ee
t th

e n
ee
ds
 of
 ca

rer
s. 

 In 
ad
dit
ion

, o
ve
r th

e n
ex
t fi
ve
 ye

ars
 th

e d
ire
cto

rat
e w

ill e
ns
ure

 
tha

t w
he
re 

pe
op
le’
s n

ee
ds
 an

d s
erv

ice
s c

ros
s t
he
 bo

un
da
rie
s 

of 
the

se
 th
ree

 ar
ea
s, 
the

 se
rvi
ce
 sh

all
 op

era
te 
in 
a c

oh
ere

nt 
an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
 w
ay
. T

his
 w
ill i

nc
lud

e w
he
re 

the
re 

are
 cr
os
s-

se
rvi
ce
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

s s
uc
h a

s: 
 • 

Yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 m
ov
ing

 in
to 
ad
ult
ho
od
; 

• 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

, c
on
tra

cti
ng
 an

d c
are

 m
an
ag
em

en
t; 

• 
Th

e i
mp

ac
t o
f s
ub
sta

nc
e m

isu
se
; a
nd
 

• 
Th

e w
ell
be
ing

 an
d p

rot
ec
tin
g p

eo
ple

 ag
en
da
s. 

 Th
e d

ire
cto

rat
e h

as
 a 

cle
ar 

res
po
ns
ibi
lity

 fo
r th

e w
ell
be

ing
 of

 
the

 ci
tiz
en
s o

f A
be
rde

en
, p
art

icu
lar
ly 
tho

se
 w
ho
 ar

e 
vu
lne

rab
le.
 Th

is 
inc

lud
es
 le
ad
ing

 th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o 

pu
bli
c h

ea
lth
 pr

om
oti
on
 an

d p
rev

en
tat
ive

 se
rvi
ce
s. 

 So
cia

l C
are

 &
 W

ell
be
ing

 vi
sio

n 
 • 

W
e b

eli
ev
e t

ha
t a

ll t
he
 ci
tiz
en
s o

f A
be
rde

en
 sh

ou
ld 
ha
ve
 

the
 op

po
rtu

nit
y t
o b

e i
n c

on
tro

l o
f th

eir
 ow

n f
utu

res
 an

d 
de
sti
nie

s a
nd
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 th
eir
 am

bit
ion

s a
nd
 as

pir
ati
on

s; 
• 

W
e a

ck
no
wle

dg
e t

ha
t p
eo
ple

 w
ill r

eq
uir
e v

ary
ing

 de
gre

es
 

of 
su
pp
ort

 to
 ac

hie
ve
 th
is 
an
d t

he
 di
rec

t ro
le 
of 

So
cia

l 
Ca

re 
an
d W

ell
be
ing

 w
ill b

e t
o p

rov
ide

 th
at 

su
pp
ort

 to
 th
e 

mo
st 
vu
lne

rab
le 
me

mb
ers

 of
 ou

r c
om

mu
nit
y o

n a
 fa
ir 

ba
sis

; 
• 

W
e w

ill w
ork

 cl
os
ely

 w
ith
 ot
he
r p

art
ne
rs 
to 
en
su
re 

tha
t 

su
pp
ort

 is
 pr

ov
ide

d e
arl
y e

no
ug
h t

o p
rev

en
t p
eo
ple

 
req

uir
ing

 m
ore

 in
tru

siv
e f

orm
s o

f s
up
po
rt a

nd
 in
ter

ve
nti
on
; 

• 
W
e w

ill i
de
nti
fy 
an
d r

es
po
nd
 to
 th
e s

oc
ial
 ca

re 
ne
ed
s o

f 
pe
op
le 
livi

ng
 in
 Ab

erd
ee
n, 

su
pp
ort

ing
 th

em
 w
he
re 

the
y 

ne
ed
 as

sis
tan

ce
 in
 th
eir
 da

ily 
live

s. 
Of
ten

 w
ork

ing
 in
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith
 ot

he
rs,
 w
e a

im
 to
 re

sp
on
d w

ith
 co

st-

Page 94



 
19

eff
ec
tiv
e, 

qu
ali
ty 
se
rvi
ce
s w

hic
h s

up
po
rt a

nd
 pr

om
ote

 th
e 

we
llb
ein

g a
nd
 sa

fet
y o

f p
eo
ple

 w
ho
 ar

e i
n g

rea
tes

t n
ee
d; 

an
d 

• 
W
e w

ill r
es
pe
ct 
an
d p

rom
ote

 pe
op
le’
s r
igh

ts,
 su

pp
ort

 th
eir
 

ind
ep
en
de
nc
e a

nd
 th
eir
 in
clu

sio
n i
n t
he
ir o

wn
 co

mm
un
ity
 

an
d r

es
pe
ct 
the

ir c
ho
ice

 w
he
rev

er 
it i
s p

os
sib

le.
 

 W
e w

an
t a
 so

cia
l w

ork
 se

rvi
ce
 th

at:
 

 
• 

He
lps

 st
aff
 to
 w
ork

 in
 a 

pe
rso

n-c
en
tre

d w
ay
 w
ith
 

ind
ivid

ua
ls;
  

• 
Tre

ats
 ev

ery
bo
dy
 w
ith
 re

sp
ec
t; 

• 
Lis

ten
s a

nd
 co

mm
un
ica

tes
 w
ith
 ot
he
rs 
in 
the

 
org

an
isa

tio
n a

nd
 va

lue
s p

eo
ple

’s 
ide

as
; 

• 
Su

pp
ort

s s
taf
f to

 do
 th
eir
 jo
b a

nd
 m
ak
es
 su

re 
tha

t th
ey
 

ha
ve
 th

e c
ha
nc
e t
o b

uil
d t

he
ir s

kill
s a

nd
 kn

ow
led

ge
; 

• 
En

co
ura

ge
s n

ew
 id
ea
s a

nd
 w
elc

om
es
 ch

all
en
ge
; 

• 
Ac

hie
ve
s v

alu
e f

or 
mo

ne
y, 
wo

rks
 ef

fic
ien

tly
 an

d 
ch
all
en
ge
s a

ny
 ru

les
 th
at 

are
n't
 ne

ed
ed
; 

• 
Is 
ha
pp
y f
or 

fee
db
ac
k a

nd
 lis

ten
s t
o c

om
pla

int
s a

nd
 

trie
s t
o m

ak
e t

hin
gs
 be

tte
r; 

• 
Kn

ow
s h

ow
 im

po
rta

nt 
it i
s t
o c

he
ck
 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 

se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 is
 al
wa

ys
 try

ing
 to

 im
pro

ve
 se

rvi
ce
s; 
an
d 

• 
Is 
ge
ttin

g b
ett
er 

at 
co
mm

un
ica

tin
g a

nd
 lis

ten
ing

 to
 al
l 

pe
op
le 
wh

o w
e s

erv
e. 

 W
ith
 th
es
e g

uid
ing

 pr
inc

ipl
es
 w
e b

eli
ev
e t

ha
t w

e c
an
 de

live
r 

se
rvi
ce
s t
ha
t h
av
e a

 re
al 
an
d l
as
tin
g i
mp

ac
t. 

 So
cia

l C
are

 &
 W

ell
be
ing

 gu
idi
ng
 pr

inc
ipl
es
 

 Ou
r g

uid
ing

 pr
inc

ipl
es
 ar

e t
ha
t w

e: 
 

• 
Gi
ve
 cl
ea
r a

nd
 ea

sy
-to

-un
de
rst
an
d i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 to

 
pe
op
le 
ab
ou
t w

ha
t w

e c
an
 an

d c
an
 no

t d
o; 

• 
He

lp 
pe
op
le 
to 
ha
ve
 as

 m
uc
h c

ho
ice

 an
d c

on
tro

l a
s 

po
ss
ibl
e o

ve
r th

eir
 liv

es
; 

• 
W
ork

 w
ith
 ot

he
rs 
to 
ad
dre

ss
 th
e i
ss
ue
s s

om
e p

eo
ple

 
ha
ve
 w
he
n u

sin
g o

rdi
na
ry 
se
rvi
ce
s, 
like

 he
alt
h, 

ho
us
ing

, le
isu

re 
an
d w

ork
; 

• 
Ma

ke
 su

re 
tha

t th
e s

erv
ice

s w
e o

ffe
r a

re 
the

 be
st 
the

y 
ca
n b

e a
nd
 if 
se
rvi
ce
s n

ee
d t

o b
e b

ett
er,

 w
ork

 to
 m
ak
e 

the
m 

be
tte

r; 
• 

Lis
ten

 to
 w
ha
t p
eo
ple

 sa
y, 
are

 op
en
 to
 ne

w 
ide

as
 an

d 
are

 th
ere

 w
he
n p

eo
ple

 ne
ed
 us

; 
• 

Lis
ten

 to
 w
ha
t c
are

rs 
sa
y, 
fin
d o

ut 
wh

at 
the

y n
ee
d, 

an
d 

su
pp
ort

 th
em

 to
 fe
el 
co
nfi
de
nt 

in 
the

ir r
ole

; a
nd
 

• 
De

live
r o

n o
ur 

sta
ted

 in
ten

tio
ns
. 

 So
cia

l C
are

 &
 W

ell
be
ing

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ou
tco

me
s 

 Th
e s

tra
teg

ic 
ou
tco

me
s f
or 

So
cia

l C
are

 an
d W

ell
be
ing

, fo
r 

ad
ult
s a

nd
 ch

ild
ren

, re
fle
ct 
the

 na
tio
na
l a
nd
 lo
ca
l p
rio
riti
es
. 

 
• 

Pe
op
le 
are

 pr
ote

cte
d f

rom
 ab

us
e, 
ne
gle

ct 
an
d h

arm
 

an
d f
ee
l s
afe

 in
 th
eir
 en

vir
on
me

nt;
 

• 
Pe

op
le 
are

 su
pp
ort

ed
 an

d c
are

d f
or 

in 
the

ir o
wn

 ho
me

 
or 

in 
ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 to
 th
eir
 ne

ed
s f
or 

as
 

lon
g a

s t
his

 is
 po

ss
ibl
e; 

• 
Pe

op
le 
are

 en
ab
led

 an
d s

up
po
rte

d i
nd
ivid

ua
lly 

or 
in 

gro
up
s t
o f

ind
 an

d p
ut 
in 
pla

ce
 th
e r

igh
t s
olu

tio
ns
 fo
r 

the
ir c

are
; a
nd
 

• 
Cit

ize
ns
 of

 al
l le

ve
ls 
of 
ne
ed
 an

d a
bil
ity
 ha

ve
 ac

ce
ss
 to
 

the
 fa
cili

tie
s o

f A
be
rde

en
 th
at 

wil
l s
up
po
rt t

he
m 

to 
ma

int
ain

 th
eir
 he

alt
h a

nd
 w
ell
be
ing

. 
  

Page 95



 
20

   So
cia

l C
are

 an
d W

ell
be
ing

 – 
se
rvi
ce
 ov

erv
iew

 
  

Priority 1: Provide for the needs of the 
most vulnerable people 
 
Priority 2: Help to ensure that all 
schoolchildren reach their potential 
 
Priority 3: Manage our waste better and 
increase recycling 
 
Priority 4: Encourage the building of 
new affordable housing 
 
Priority 5: Ensure a sustainable 
economic future for the city 
 
Priority 6: Ensure efficient and effective 
delivery of services by the council and 
with its partners. 
 

W
e w

ill t
ak

e s
tep

s t
o p

rot
ec

t th
e v

uln
era

ble
 in

clu
din

g a
cti

ve
ly 

inv
olv

ing
 vu

lne
rab

le 
ch

ild
ren

, a
du

lts
 

an
d t

he
ir c

are
rs 

in 
de

cis
ion

s a
ffe

cti
ng

 th
eir

 ca
re;

 ef
fec

tiv
e s

up
erv

isio
n a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f 

off
en

de
rs;

 an
d t

ak
ing

 in
to 

ac
co

un
t th

e s
afe

ty 
an

d w
ell

be
ing

 of
 ch

ild
ren

 liv
ing

 in
 fa

mi
lie

s a
ffe

cte
d b

y 
su

bs
tan

ce
 m

isu
se

 
x 

x 

 

 

 

 

W
e w

ill s
hif

t th
e b

ala
nc

e o
f c

are
 en

ab
lin

g p
eo

ple
 to

 liv
e a

s i
nd

ep
en

de
ntl

y a
s p

os
sib

le 
wit

ho
ut 

co
mp

rom
isin

g t
he

ir c
are

, s
afe

ty 
or 

pro
tec

tio
n 

x 
x 

 

x 
x 

x 
W

e w
ill p

rom
ote

 th
e p

ers
on

ali
sa

tio
n o

f s
erv

ice
s, 

cre
ati

ng
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r s

elf
-di

rec
ted

 su
pp

ort
 

an
d i

nd
ivid

ua
lise

d b
ud

ge
ts 

to 
em

po
we

r p
eo

ple
 in

 th
e d

eli
ve

ry 
of 

the
ir o

wn
 ca

re 
x 

x 
 

 
x 

x 
W

e w
ill i

mp
lem

en
t o

ur 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 st
rat

eg
y e

ns
uri

ng
 co

st-
eff

ec
tiv

e a
nd

 hi
gh

-qu
ali

ty 
se

rvi
ce

s 
tha

t a
re 

fai
rly

 pu
rch

as
ed

 an
d m

on
ito

red
 

x 

 

 

 

x 
x 

W
e w

ill i
mp

rov
e t

he
 us

e o
f re

so
urc

es
 w

ith
 cl

ea
r e

lig
ibi

lity
 cr

ite
ria

 w
ith

 al
l re

fer
ral

s r
ec

eiv
ing

 
co

ns
ist

en
t, h

igh
-qu

ali
ty 

res
po

ns
es

 ba
se

d o
n t

ho
rou

gh
, e

vid
en

ce
-ba

se
d a

ss
es

sm
en

ts 
of 

ne
ed

 an
d 

lea
din

g t
o c

are
 pl

an
s t

ha
t w

ill b
e s

ub
jec

t to
 m

on
ito

rin
g a

nd
 re

vie
w 

 
x 

x 
 

x 
 

x 
W

e w
ill w

ork
 cl

os
ely

 w
ith

 al
l p

art
ne

rs 
im

ple
me

nti
ng

 th
e I

nte
gra

ted
 C

hil
dre

n’s
 Se

rvi
ce

s A
ge

nd
a a

nd
 

en
su

re 
tha

t w
e d

o “
Ge

t it
 R

igh
t fo

r E
ve

ry 
Ch

ild
” s

o t
ha

t c
hil

dre
n a

nd
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 ge
t a

pp
rop

ria
te 

su
pp

ort
 at

 th
e r

igh
t ti

me
 

x 
x 

 
 

x 
 

W
e w

ill c
on

tin
ue

 to
 de

live
r e

ffe
cti

ve
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f th

e w
ork

for
ce

 by
 in

ve
sti

ng
 in

 le
ad

ers
hip

 
tra

ini
ng

 to
 en

co
ura

ge
 th

e d
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

f fl
ex

ibl
e a

nd
 cr

ea
tiv

e w
ork

ing
; s

up
po

rtin
g s

taf
f to

 ga
in 

the
 

sk
ills

 an
d k

no
wle

dg
e t

o p
rov

ide
 pe

rso
n c

en
tre

d s
erv

ice
s; 

an
d i

mp
lem

en
tin

g s
erv

ice
 de

live
ry 

str
uc

tur
es

 th
at 

se
ek

 to
 in

ter
ve

ne
 in

 pr
op

ort
ion

ate
 an

d t
im

ely
 w

ay
s, 

to 
en

su
re 

se
rvi

ce
s a

re 
de

live
red

 to
 m

an
ag

e a
nd

 re
du

ce
 ris

k 
x 

x 
 

 
 

x 

 

Page 96



 
21

En
ter

pr
ise

, P
lan

nin
g a

nd
 In
fra

str
uc
tur

e 

 
Go

rd
on

 M
cIn

tos
h 

Dir
ec
tor

 
 Th

e E
nte

rpr
ise

, P
lan

nin
g a

nd
 In
fra

str
uc
tur

e d
ire
cto

rat
e 

em
plo

ys
 ov

er 
1,0

50
 st
aff
, w

ork
ing

 ac
ros

s t
he
 ci
ty 
to 

de
live

r th
e 

fol
low

ing
 th

ree
 se

rvi
ce
s: 

 • 
Ec

on
om

ic 
an
d B

us
ine

ss
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t; 

• 
Pla

nn
ing

 an
d S

us
tai
na
ble

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t; a

nd
 

• 
As

se
t M

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 O
pe
rat

ion
s. 

 In 
de
ve
lop

ing
 an

 ef
fec

tiv
e s

erv
ice

 pl
an
 fo
r th

e d
ire
cto

rat
e, 

we
 

rec
og
nis

e t
ha
t th

e c
ity
’s 
en
ter

pri
se
, p

lan
nin

g a
nd
 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e 
iss

ue
s a

re 
clo

se
ly 
rel
ate

d t
o w

ide
r is

su
es
 in
 th
e n

ort
h e

as
t o
f 

Sc
otl
an
d a

s w
ell
 as

 Sc
otl
an
d a

nd
 th
e U

K a
s a

 w
ho
le.
 Th

e 
En

ter
pri
se
, P

lan
nin

g a
nd
 In
fra

str
uc
tur

e s
erv

ice
 m
us
t th

ere
for

e 
pro

vid
e t

he
 st
rat

eg
ic 
dir
ec
tio
n f
or 

Ab
erd

ee
n c

ity
 w
ith
in 
a w

ide
r 

ge
og
rap

hic
al 
co
nte

xt,
 w
hil
st 
co
nti
nu
ing

 to
 en

ga
ge
 w
ith
 lo
ca
l 

pe
op
le 
to 
en
su
re 

tha
t w

e m
ee
t th

e s
tat
ed
 ne

ed
s o

f 
co
mm

un
itie

s a
nd
 in
div

idu
als

. 

Ov
er 

the
 pe

rio
d o

f th
e b

us
ine

ss
 pl
an
 w
e w

ill s
ee
 th
e 

co
nti
nu
ing

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d s

tre
ng
the

nin
g o

f th
e E

nte
rpr

ise
, 

Pla
nn
ing

 an
d I
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

dir
ec
tor

ate
, s
o t
ha
t it
 co

nti
nu
es
 to
 

en
ga
ge
 w
ith
 m

an
ag
ers

 ac
ros

s a
ll c

ou
nc
il s

erv
ice

s a
nd
 

ex
ter

na
l p
art

ne
rs,
 on

 ke
y i
ss
ue
s e

ffe
cti
ng
 co

mm
un
itie

s. 
 Th

e m
ain

 ai
m 
of 

the
 di
rec

tor
ate

 is
 to
: 

 • 
en
ab
le 
Ab

erd
ee
n c

ity
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 in
cre

as
ed
 su

sta
ina

ble
 

ec
on
om

ic 
gro

wt
h f

or 
the

 be
ne
fit 
of 
all
 ci
tiz
en
s 

 W
e w

ill d
o t
his

 by
: 

 • 
en
su
rin
g p

eo
ple

 an
d c

om
mu

nit
ies

 ar
e g

en
uin

ely
 en

ga
ge
d 

in 
de
cis

ion
s r
ela

tin
g t
o e

nte
rpr

ise
, p

lan
nin

g a
nd
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
iss

ue
s i
n t
he
 ci
ty,
 an

d 
 

• 
wo

rki
ng

 w
ith
, a

nd
 ob

tai
nin

g c
om

mi
tm
en
t fr

om
, p
art

ne
r 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 be
tte

r a
nd
 m
ore

 ef
fic
ien

t 
En

ter
pri
se
, P

lan
nin

g &
 In
fra

str
uc
tur

e s
erv

ice
s a

cro
ss
 th
e 

cit
y. 

 W
e h

av
e s

et 
ou
rse

lve
s k

ey
 ta

rge
ts 
in 
ou
r s
erv

ice
 ar

ea
s. 
Th

es
e 

are
 se

t o
ut 
in 
de
tai
l b
elo

w 
an
d a

re 
es
se
nti
al 
in 
en
su
rin
g t
he
 

eff
ec
tiv
en
es
s a

nd
 ef
fic
ien

cy
 of

 ou
r s
erv

ice
s, 
no
w 
an
d f

or 
the

 
co
mi
ng
 ye

ars
. 

 De
live

rin
g t
he
se
 ou

tco
me

s w
ill b

e t
he
 re

sp
on
sib

ility
 of

 th
e 

se
nio

r m
an
ag
em

en
t te

am
 of
 En

ter
pri
se
, P

lan
nin

g a
nd
 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re.
  

    

Page 97



 
22

Vis
ion

 an
d p

rio
rit
ies

 
 Ab

erd
ee
n i
s o

ne
 of
 th
e w

orl
d’s

 m
ajo

r e
ne
rgy

 ci
tie
s. 

 Th
e c

ha
lle
ng
e f
or 

Ab
erd

ee
n o

ve
r th

e n
ex
t 3
0 -

 40
 ye

ars
 is
 to

 
en
su
re 

tha
t it
 re

ma
ins

 a 
glo

ba
l e
ne
rgy

 ci
ty.
 O
ur 

str
ate

gic
 

pri
ori
tie
s a

re 
the

ref
ore

 to
: 

 • 
En

co
ura

ge
 fu

tur
e e

co
no
mi
c a

nd
 bu

sin
es
s d

ev
elo

pm
en
t in

 
the

 ci
ty;
 

• 
De

live
r a

n u
p-t

o-d
ate

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 
pla

n f
or 

the
 ci
ty;
 

• 
Pr
ote

ct 
an
d e

nh
an
ce
 ou

r h
igh

 qu
ali
ty 
na
tur

al 
an
d b

uil
t 

en
vir
on
me

nt;
 

• 
Su

pp
ort

 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 

a f
ull
y i
nte

gra
ted

 tra
ns
po
rt n

etw
ork

; 
• 

En
su
re 

the
 co

un
cil’

s p
hy
sic

al 
as
se
ts 
are

 m
an
ag
ed
 an

d 
ma

int
ain

ed
 in
 a 
co
st-
eff
ec
tiv
e m

an
ne
r; a

nd
 

• 
De

live
r o

ur 
sta

tut
ory

 re
sp
on
sib

iliti
es
 ef
fec

tiv
ely

 an
d 

eff
icie

ntl
y. 

 In 
pu
rsu

ing
 th

es
e p

rio
riti
es
 w
e w

ill c
on
trib

ute
 to
 th
e f

oll
ow

ing
 

Na
tio
na
l O

utc
om

es
: 

 
• 

W
e l
ive

 in
 a 
Sc

otl
an
d t
ha
t is

 th
e m

os
t a

ttra
cti
ve
 pl
ac
e 

for
 do

ing
 bu

sin
es
s i
n E

uro
pe
; 

• 
W
e r

ea
lise

 ou
r fu

ll e
co
no
mi
c p

ote
nti
al 
wit

h m
ore

 an
d 

be
tte
r e

mp
loy

me
nt 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r o

ur 
pe
op
le;
 

• 
W
e a

re 
be
tte

r e
du
ca
ted

, m
ore

 sk
ille

d a
nd
 m
ore

 
su
cc
es
sfu

l, r
en
ow

ne
d f
or 

ou
r re

se
arc

h a
nd
 in
no
va
tio
n; 

• 
W
e h

av
e t

ac
kle

d t
he
 si
gn
ific

an
t in

eq
ua
litie

s i
n S

co
ttis

h 
so
cie

ty;
 

• 
W
e l
ive

 in
 w
ell
-de

sig
ne
d, 

su
sta

ina
ble

 pl
ac
es
 w
he
re 

we
 

are
 ab

le 
to 
ac
ce
ss
 th
e a

me
nit
ies

 an
d s

erv
ice

s w
e n

ee
d; 

• 
W
e v

alu
e a

nd
 en

joy
 ou

r b
uil
t a

nd
 na

tur
al 
en
vir
on
me

nt 
an
d p

rot
ec
t it
 an

d e
nh
an
ce
 it 
for

 fu
tur

e g
en
era

tio
ns
; 

• 
W
e t
ak
e p

rid
e i
n a

 st
ron

g, 
fai
r a

nd
 in
clu

siv
e n

ati
on
al 

ide
nti
ty;
 an

d 
• 

Ou
r p

ub
lic 

se
rvi
ce
s a

re 
hig

h q
ua
lity

, c
on
tin
ua
lly 

im
pro

vin
g, 
eff

icie
nt 
an
d r

es
po
ns
ive

 to
 lo
ca
l p
eo
ple

's 
ne
ed
s. 

 Ov
er 

the
 ne

xt 
fiv
e y

ea
rs 
we

 pl
an
 to
 de

live
r o

ur 
se
rvi
ce
s i
n a

 
dif
fer

en
t w

ay
 w
ith
 a 

gre
ate

r fo
cu
s o

n i
nc
om

e g
en
era

tio
n a

nd
 

de
live

rin
g w

ha
t w

e d
o i
n p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
wit

h o
the

r o
rga

nis
ati
on
s 

or 
bu
sin

es
se
s. 
 In

 pa
rtic

ula
r w

e w
ill b

e r
e-e

xa
mi
nin

g h
ow

 w
e 

be
st 
us
e a

nd
 m
an
ag
e t
he
 co

un
cil'

s a
ss
ets

 to
 bo

th 
red

uc
e 

co
sts

 an
d c

rea
te 

inc
om

e. 
  

 W
e w

ill e
nc
ou
rag

e t
he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
Ab

erd
ee
n o

ve
r w

ha
t 

wil
l b
e a

 cr
itic

al 
fiv
e-y

ea
r p

eri
od
 fo

r th
e c

ity
 an

d i
ts 
ec
on
om

y. 
 

W
e w

ill f
ina

lise
, a
nd
 th
en
 do

 ev
ery

thi
ng
 w
e c

an
, to

 de
live

r th
e 

co
nte

nt 
of 

the
 Lo

ca
l D

ev
elo

pm
en
t P

lan
. 

 Div
ers

ific
ati
on
 of
 th
e e

co
no
my

 is
 vi
tal
 an

d A
be
rde

en
 is
 w
ell
 

pla
ce
d t
o p

art
icip

ate
 in
 th

e r
en
ew

ab
le 
en
erg

y r
ev
olu

tio
n t

ha
t is

 
cu
rre

ntl
y u

nd
erw

ay
, b

ut 
we

 w
ill n

ee
d t

o a
cti
ve
ly 
pro

mo
te 

Ab
erd

ee
n a

lon
gs
ide

 ou
r p

art
ne
rs 
in 
the

 Ab
erd

ee
n R

en
ew

ab
le 

En
erg

y G
rou

p (
AR

EG
) a

nd
 Ab

erd
ee
n C

ity
 an

d S
hir
e 

Ec
on
om

ic 
Fu

tur
e (

AC
SE

F).
  In

de
ed
, it
 is
 ou

r in
ten

tio
n t
o b

e 
on
e o

f th
e l
ea
de
rs 
in 
the

 U
K i

n d
ev
elo

pin
g a

 pr
oa
cti
ve
, 

pra
gm

ati
c a

pp
roa

ch
 to
 en

co
ura

gin
g a

ll a
sp
ec
ts 
of 

a c
arb

on
 

ne
utr

al 
ec
on
om

y a
nd
 to
 pl
ay
 a 

lea
d r

ole
 w
ith
in 
the

 Eu
rop

ea
n 

Un
ion

 an
d, 

in 
pa
rtic

ula
r, t

he
 N
ort

h S
ea
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

, in
 th

is 
reg

ard
.   

 W
e w

ill c
on
tin
ue
 to

 pr
om

ote
 bu

sin
es
s t
ou
ris
m 
an
d t
o a

ttra
ct 

mo
re 

ne
w 
ev
en
ts 
to 
the

 ci
ty 
wh

ilst
 in
ve
sti
ga
tin
g n

ew
 w
ay
s t
o 

ge
ne
rat

e f
un
din

g t
o h

elp
 w
ith
 th

is 
im
po
rta

nt 
wo

rk.
  W

e w
ill, 

in 
the

 m
ea
nti
me

, c
on
tin
ue
 to

 su
pp
ort

 th
e A

be
rde

en
 Ex

hib
itio

n 
an
d C

on
fer

en
ce
 C
en
tre

 as
 an

 in
ter

na
tio
na
l-c
las

s v
en
ue
 in
 

Page 98



 
23

wh
ich

 to
 ho

ld 
ma

jor
 ex

hib
itio

ns
 an

d c
on
fer

en
ce
s s

uc
h a

s 
Of
fsh

ore
 Eu

rop
e a

nd
 Al

l E
ne
rgy

. 
 In 

the
 oi
l a
nd
 ga

s s
ec
tor

, w
e w

ill b
e w

ork
ing

 w
ith
 ou

r p
art

ne
rs 

in 
AC

SE
F a

nd
 ot

he
rs,
 in
clu

din
g O

il a
nd
 G
as
 U
K, 

to 
ma

xim
ise

 
the

 in
ve
stm

en
t in

 th
e N

ort
h S

ea
 w
hil
st 
fur

the
r d

ev
elo

pin
g 

Ab
erd

ee
n a

s a
n i
nte

rna
tio
na
l e
ne
rgy

 hu
b, 

inc
lud

ing
 vi
tal
 

tra
ns
po
rta

tio
n l
ink

s b
y a

ir, 
roa

d, 
rai
l a
nd
 se

a. 
 Int

ern
ati
on
al 
tra

de
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
ha
s b

ee
n a

t th
e c

ore
 of
 ou

r 
wo

rk 
for

 ov
er 

25
 ye

ars
 si
nc
e t

he
 oi
l p
ric
e d

rop
pe
d i
n 1

98
6. 
 

W
e w

ill c
on
tin
ue
 to

 pr
om

ote
 tra

de
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

thr
ou
gh
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 
me

an
s, 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e A

be
rde

en
 C
ity
 an

d S
hir
e 

Ex
po
rt S

urv
ey
, h

os
tin
g i
nw

ard
 vi
sit
s, 
tra

de
 m
iss

ion
s a

nd
 

se
mi
na
rs 
as
 w
ell
 as

 ou
r v
ari
ou
s i
nte

rna
tio
na
l d
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e W

orl
d E

ne
rgy

 C
ity
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
, o
ur 

pro
gra

mm
e o

f m
em

ora
nd
a o

f u
nd
ers

tan
din

g a
nd
 tw

inn
ing

 
ag
ree

me
nts

 w
ith
 ci
tie
s s

uc
h a

s S
tav

an
ge
r. 

 W
e a

re 
cu
rre

ntl
y d

ev
elo

pin
g a

 C
ity
 C
en
tre

 Fr
am

ew
ork

 to
 

gu
ide

 fu
tur

e d
ev
elo

pm
en
ts 
in 
tha

t a
rea

 an
d w

e l
oo
k f
orw

ard
 to

 
tak

ing
 so

me
 si
gn
ific

an
t s
tep

s t
o r

ev
ita
lise

 w
ha
t m

an
y p

eo
ple

 
se
e a

s b
ein

g o
ne
 of
 th
e m

os
t c
ruc

ial
 pa

rts
 of
 th
e n

ort
h e

as
t 

ec
on
om

y. 
 Th

is 
wil

l, u
nd
ou
bte

dly
, b

e a
 ch

all
en
gin

g t
as
k i
n t

he
 

pre
dic

ted
 fin

an
cia

l c
lim

ate
 bu

t w
e a

im
 to
 do

 al
l th

at 
we

 ca
n t

o 
fac

ilita
te 
the

 re
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
Un

ion
 St

ree
t a
nd
 its

 im
me

dia
te 

en
vir
on
s. 

 In 
the

 m
ea
nti
me

, w
e a

re 
alm

os
t u
niq

ue
 as

 be
ing

 a 
cit
y w

ith
 its

 
ha
rbo

ur 
co
mi
ng
 rig

ht 
int
o i
ts 
ce
ntr

e. 
 Th

e h
arb

ou
r is

 a 
vit
al 
pa
rt 

of 
ou
r e

co
no
mi
c m

ix 
an
d w

e w
ill w

ork
 cl
os
ely

 w
ith
 th

e h
arb

ou
r 

bo
ard

 to
 he

lp 
de
ve
lop

 an
d d

eli
ve
r a

 m
as
ter

 pl
an
 fo
r th

e f
utu

re 
su
cc
es
s o

f th
e w

ide
r h

arb
ou
r a

rea
 an

d i
ts 
int
eg
rat

ion
 w
ith
 th
e 

cit
y c

en
tre

 an
d t

o o
the

r a
dja

ce
nt 

co
mm

un
itie

s. 
 

Th
ere

 ar
e s

ev
era

l k
ey
 pr

oje
cts

 w
hic

h w
e a

im
 to
 ha

ve
 at

 
va
rio
us
 st
ag
es
 of

 co
mp

let
ion

 du
rin
g t
he
 lif
e o

f th
is 
fiv
e-y

ea
r 

bu
dg
et.
  In

 th
e f

irs
t y
ea
r w

e w
ill s

ee
 th
e c

om
ple

tio
n o

f th
e 

ren
ov
ate

d M
ari
sc
ha
l C

oll
eg
e a

s t
he
 co

un
cil'

s n
ew

 co
rpo

rat
e 

he
ad
qu
art

ers
 w
hil
st 
we

 w
ill a

lso
 se

e t
he
 co

mp
let
ion

 of
 th
e 

£1
20
m 

sc
ho
ols

 3R
s P

roj
ec
t.  
In 

the
 m
idd

le 
ye
ars

 w
e w

ill s
ee
 

pro
gre

ss
 w
ith
 th

e E
ne
rge

tic
a c

orr
ido

r fr
om

 Ab
erd

ee
n A

irp
ort

 to
 

Pe
ter

he
ad
 an

d h
op
efu

lly 
the

 co
mm

en
ce
me

nt 
of 

the
 W

es
ter

n 
Pe

rip
he
ral
 R
ou
te.
  B

y t
he
 en

d o
f th

e f
ive

 ye
ars

, th
e s

ea
sc
ap
e 

sh
ou
ld 
als

o l
oo
k d

iffe
ren

t w
ith
 th

e e
sta

bli
sh
me

nt 
of 
the

 
Of
fsh

ore
 W

ind
 D
ep
loy

me
nt 
Ce

ntr
e i
n A

be
rde

en
 ba

y. 
 W
e w

ill b
e d

oin
g t
hin

gs
 di
ffe

ren
tly
 an

d f
isc

al 
co
nd
itio

ns
 w
ill b

e 
ch
all
en
gin

g b
ut 
the

 fo
reg

oin
g d

em
on
str
ate

s t
ha
t w

e w
ill b

e 
wo

rki
ng

 ha
rd 

as
 an

 En
ter

pri
se
, P

lan
nin

g a
nd
 In
fra

str
uc
tur

e 
Te

am
 to

 de
live

r c
on
tin
ue
d e

co
no
mi
c s

uc
ce
ss
 an

d p
ros

pe
rity

 
for

 th
e e

co
no
my

 de
sp
ite
 th
e r

ela
tiv
e l
ac
k o

f re
so
urc

es
 

pro
vid

ed
 to

 us
 by

 ou
r fu

nd
ers

.

Page 99



 
24

 En
ter

pr
ise

, P
lan

nin
g &

 In
fra

str
uc
tur

e –
 se

rvi
ce
 ov

erv
iew

 

Priority 1: Provide for the needs 
of the most vulnerable people 
 

Priority 2: Help to ensure that all 
schoolchildren reach their 
potential 
 
Priority 3: Manage our waste 
better and increase recycling 
 

Priority 4:  Encourage the 
building of new affordable 
housing 
 
Priority 5: Ensure a sustainable 
economic future for the city 
 
Priority 6: Ensure efficient and 
effective delivery of services by 
the council and with its partners. 
 

W
e w

ill w
ork

 w
ith

 ou
r p

art
ne

rs 
to 

att
rac

t v
isit

ors
, w

ork
ers

 an
d i

nv
es

tm
en

t to
 pr

ote
ct 

the
 ec

on
om

ic 
fut

ure
 of

 th
e c

ity
  

x 
 

x 
 

x 
 

W
e w

ill e
nc

ou
rag

e t
he

 gr
ow

th 
of 

loc
al 

bu
sin

es
se

s t
hro

ug
h s

up
po

rt o
f e

xis
tin

g b
us

ine
ss

 se
cto

rs 
an

d d
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

f n
ew

 se
cto

rs 
x 

 
 

 
x 

 
W

e w
ill f

ac
ilita

te 
ne

w 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
jec

ts 
to 

im
pro

ve
 Ab

erd
ee

n’s
 liv

ing
 an

d w
ork

ing
 en

vir
on

me
nt 

 
x 

 
x 

x 
 

W
e w

ill p
rov

ide
 ef

fec
tiv

e m
ark

eti
ng

 an
d g

rap
hic

 de
sig

n s
erv

ice
s, 

att
rac

t m
ajo

r e
ve

nts
 an

d m
ain

tai
n 

int
ern

ati
on

al 
tw

inn
ing

 lin
ks

 to
 m

ak
e t

he
 ci

ty 
an

 at
tra

cti
ve

 pl
ac

e t
o v

isit
 an

d l
ive

 
 

x 
 

 
x 

x 
W

e w
ill m

ain
tai

n a
n u

p-t
o-d

ate
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n f

or 
the

 ci
ty 

to 
giv

e a
n a

pp
rop

ria
te 

str
ate

gic
 

co
nte

xt 
to 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
wit

hin
 th

e c
ity

 
x 

x 
 

x 
x 

 
W

e w
ill p

rot
ec

t a
nd

 en
ha

nc
e o

ur 
hig

h-q
ua

lity
 na

tur
al 

an
d b

uil
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

t th
rou

gh
 su

pp
ort

 of
 

ini
tia

tiv
es

 in
clu

din
g o

pe
n s

pa
ce

, n
atu

re 
co

ns
erv

ati
on

, th
e c

ity
’s 

gra
nit

e h
eri

tag
e a

nd
 ca

rbo
n 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
 

 
 

x 
x 

x 
 

W
e w

ill s
up

po
rt t

he
 de

live
ry 

of 
a f

ull
y i

nte
gra

ted
 tra

ns
po

rt n
etw

ork
 to

 su
pp

ort
 m

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 

ec
on

om
ic 

gro
wt

h 
x 

 
 

 
x 

 
W

e w
ill e

ns
ure

 th
e c

ou
nc

il’s
 ph

ys
ica

l a
ss

ets
 ar

e m
an

ag
ed

 an
d m

ain
tai

ne
d i

n a
 co

st-
eff

ec
tiv

e 
ma

nn
er 

to 
de

live
r m

ax
im

um
 ef

fec
tiv

en
es

s a
nd

 ef
fic

ien
cy

 in
 su

pp
ort

 of
 ou

r s
tra

teg
ic 

pri
ori

tie
s a

nd
 

im
pro

ve
 ac

ce
ss

ibi
lity

 to
 ou

r c
us

tom
ers

 
x 

x 
x 

 
x 

x 
W

e w
ill d

eli
ve

r o
ur 

sta
tut

ory
 re

sp
on

sib
iliti

es
 ef

fec
tiv

ely
 an

d e
ffic

ien
tly

 
 

 
 

 
x 

x 
 

Page 100



 
25

Ho
us
ing

 an
d E

nv
iro

nm
en
t 

 
Pe

te 
Le
on

ard
 

Dir
ec
tor

 
 En

vir
on
me

nt 
se
rvi
ce
s 

 Ab
erd

ee
n S

cie
nti

fic
 Se

rvi
ce
s L

ab
or
ato

ry 
 

 Th
is 
se
rvi
ce
 w
ork

s c
los

ely
 w
ith
 pu

bli
c h

ea
lth
 bo

die
s a

cro
ss
 th
e 

no
rth

 ea
st 
of 
Sc

otl
an
d t
o h

elp
 to
 ke

ep
 th
e p

ub
lic 

sa
fe 
fro

m 
illn

es
s f
rom

 fo
od
bo
rne

 di
se
as
e a

nd
 ot
he
r e

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 he

alt
h 

ris
ks
. T

he
 se

rvi
ce
 op

era
tes

 as
 a 

co
st-
ne
utr

al 
(£1

8k
 su

rpl
us
 

ov
er 

a g
ros

s i
nv
es
tm

en
t o
f £

87
6k
) s
tat
uto

ry 
se
rvi
ce
 pr

ov
ide

r o
f 

co
mp

reh
en
siv

e, 
ye
t h

igh
ly 
sp
ec
ial
ise

d, 
tes

tin
g a

nd
 ad

vis
ory

 
se
rvi
ce
 to

 th
e p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r, p
riv
ate

 bu
sin

es
se
s a

nd
 m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 pu
bli
c t
hro

ug
ho
ut 
the

 no
rth

 ea
st 
of 
Sc

otl
an
d. 
Th

e 
lab

ora
tor

y m
ee
ts 
qu
ali
ty 
sta

nd
ard

s a
nd
 is
 ac

cre
dit
ed
 by

 
UK

AS
. It
 is
 an

 of
fic
ial
 co

ntr
ol 
lab

ora
tor

y f
or 

foo
d a

nd
 fe
ed
, 

ch
em

ica
l a
na
lys

is 
an
d m

icr
ob
iol
og
ica

l e
xa
mi
na
tio
n. 
It i
s a

lso
 

an
 ap

po
int
ed
 ag

ric
ult
ure

 an
aly

st 
an
d o

ffe
rs 
a c

om
pe
titi
ve
 

pu
bli
c a

na
lys

t s
erv

ice
. 

 

Th
e f

ive
-ye

ar 
bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 fo
r th

is 
se
rvi
ce
 is
 to

 re
vie

w 
bu
sin

es
s m

od
ell
ing

 in
 or

de
r to

 m
ain

tai
n i
ts 
co
st-
ne
utr

al 
sta

tus
 

an
d c

rea
te 
inc

om
e g

en
era

tio
n b

y i
de
nti
fyi
ng
 ef

fic
ien

cy
 

pro
jec

ts;
 hi
gh
-va

lue
 w
ork

 st
rea

ms
; a
nd
 to
 te
nd
er,

 ca
ptu

re 
an
d 

ma
xim

ise
 se

rvi
ce
 pr

ov
isio

n t
o c

urr
en
t a
nd
 fu
tur

e c
lie
nts

 an
d 

the
 pr

iva
te 

se
cto

r.  
 Tr
ad
ing

 st
an
da
rd
s a

nd
 en

vir
on
me

nta
l h
ea
lth

 
se
rvi

ce
 

 
 Th

is 
se
rvi
ce
 w
ork

s t
o k

ee
p t
he
 pu

bli
c s

afe
 fro

m 
illn

es
s f
rom

 
foo

db
orn

e d
ise

as
e a

nd
 ot

he
r e

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 he

alt
h r

isk
s. 
It h

as
 

a k
ey
 ro

le 
in 
en
su
rin
g t
he
 he

alt
h a

nd
 sa

fet
y o

f p
eo
ple

 
em

plo
ye
d i
n s

ho
ps
, o
ffic

es
 an

d o
the

r p
rem

ise
s n

ot 
co
ve
red

 by
 

the
 H
ea
lth
 an

d S
afe

ty 
Ex

ec
uti
ve
.  T

he
se
 ci
ty-
wid

e s
erv

ice
s 

inc
lud

e: 
 • 

Fo
od
 an

d a
nim

al 
fee

d 
reg

ula
tio
n 

• 
Inf

ec
tio
us
 di
se
as
e 

co
ntr

ol 
• 

Pla
nn
ing

 an
d l
ice

ns
ing

 
lia
iso

n 
• 

Pu
bli
c h

ea
lth
 & 

sta
tut
ory

 
nu
isa

nc
e 

• 
Po

llu
tio
n c

on
tro

l 
• 

Co
nta

mi
na
ted

 la
nd
 

• 
Pe

st 
an
d d

og
 co

ntr
ol 

• 
Mo

rtu
ary

 pr
ov
isio

n 

• 
Po

rt h
ea
lth
 

• 
An

im
al 
he
alt
h a

nd
 

we
lfa
re 

reg
ula

tio
n 

• 
Co

ntr
ol 
of 
co
un
ter

fei
t 

go
od
s a

nd
 in
tel
lec

tua
l 

pro
pe
rty
 

• 
Re

gu
lat
ion

 of
 un

de
rag

e 
sa
les

 
• 

W
eig

hts
 an

d m
ea
su
res

 
reg

ula
tio
n 

• 
Pr
od
uc
t s
afe

ty 
 

• 
Pe

tro
leu

m,
 fir
ew

ork
s 

an
d e

xp
los

ive
s l
ice

ns
ing

 
 Th

e c
ou
nc
il in

ve
sts

 £8
02
k a

 ye
ar 

in 
the

se
 se

rvi
ce
s. 
Th

e 
ma

jor
ity
 of

 ac
tiv
itie

s a
re 

rel
ate

d t
o f
ulf
illin

g a
 st
atu

tor
y d

uty
.  

Page 101



 
26

Tra
din

g S
tan

da
rds

 m
on
ito
r a

pp
rox

im
ate

ly 
3,0

00
 tra

din
g 

pre
mi
se
s w

hil
st 
the

 En
vir
on
me

nta
l H

ea
lth
/C
om

me
rci
al 
Te

am
 

mo
nit
or 

ap
pro

xim
ate

ly 
 2,

00
0 r

eg
ist
ere

d f
oo
d b

us
ine

ss
es
 a 

ye
ar 

an
d 4

,00
0 w

ork
pla

ce
s w

he
re 

the
 se

rvi
ce
 ha

s a
 st
atu

tor
y 

rol
e i
n h

ea
lth
 an

d s
afe

ty 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 an

d e
nfo

rce
me

nt.
  

Th
e f

ive
-ye

ar 
bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 fo
r th

is 
se
rvi
ce
 is
 to

 re
vie

w 
op
era

tio
ns
 an

d s
tru

ctu
re 

to 
sa
ve
 m

on
ey
 an

d t
o p

rov
ide

 an
 

ag
ile
 w
ork

for
ce
 w
ith
 fle

xib
le 
tea

ms
 th
at 
are

 ab
le 
to 

res
po
nd
 to
 

em
erg

ing
 an

d e
vo
lvin

g p
res

su
res

. P
ote

nti
al 
pa
rtn

ers
hip

s o
the

r 
loc

al 
au
tho

riti
es
 an

d g
ov
ern

me
nt 
ag
en
cie

s a
re 

be
ing

 ex
plo

red
. 

 St
ree

t s
ce
ne
 se

rvi
ce
s  

 Th
is 
se
rvi
ce
 w
ork

s t
o m

ain
tai
n a

nd
 im

pro
ve
 th
e h

igh
 st
an
da
rd 

of 
gre

en
sp
ac
e a

nd
 st
ree

tsc
ap
e e

nv
iro
nm

en
t fo

r th
e c

itiz
en
s o

f 
Ab

erd
ee
n. 
It i
nc
lud

es
 de

sig
n a

nd
 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 of

 pa
rks

 an
d 

ga
rde

ns
, a
me

nit
y l
an
d i
nc
lud

ing
, a

rbo
ric
ult
ure

, c
ou
ntr

ys
ide

 
se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 w
oo
dla

nd
, p

lay
 ar

ea
s, 
be
rea

ve
me

nt 
se
rvi
ce
s 

inc
lud

ing
 cr
em

ato
ria
 an

d c
em

ete
rie
s, 
all
otm

en
ts,
 st
ree

t 
cle

an
sin

g, 
be
ac
h c

lea
ns
ing

, g
raf

fiti
 an

d f
ly-
tip
pin

g r
em

ov
al 
an
d 

pu
bli
c c

on
ve
nie

nc
es
. T

he
 co

un
cil 

inv
es
ts 
£8
.5 
mi
llio

n i
n 

gro
un
ds
 m
ain

ten
an
ce
, £
3.2

5 m
illio

n i
n s

tre
et 

cle
an
sin

g a
nd
 

£3
60
k i
n p

ub
lic 

toi
let
s. 
Be

rea
ve
me

nt 
se
rvi
ce
s’ 
gro

ss
 bu

dg
et 

is 
£1
.26

5 m
illio

n a
nd
 th
is 
is 
co
ve
red

 by
 in
co
me

 w
ith
 a 

£4
93

k 
su
rpl
us
. 

 Cu
rre

nt 
as
se
ts/
lia
bil
itie

s a
re:

 18
.4 
mi
llio

n s
q m

 of
 gr

as
s c

ut 
be
tw
ee
n 3

 - 1
4 c

uts
 pe

r y
ea
r, 1

.8 
mi
llio

n l
ine

ar 
me

tre
s o

f 
ch
an
ne
l to

 sw
ee
p, 

13
,00

0 s
tre

et 
tre

es
 an

d o
ve
r 3

84
 he

cta
res

 
of 

wo
od
lan

d (
es
t. 4

00
,00

0 t
ree

s) 
plu

s a
dd
itio

na
l c
urr

en
t 

pla
nti
ng
 of
 20

0,0
00
 tre

es
, 1

,20
0 l
itte

r b
ins

, 8
00
 do

g b
ins

, o
ve
r 

17
0 p

lay
 ar

ea
s, 
17
 ce

me
ter

ies
 an

d t
he
 cr
em

ato
riu
m 

(ap
pro

xim
ate

ly 
30
0 b

uri
als

 a 
ye
ar 

an
d 2

,25
0 c

rem
ati
on

s),
 ni
ne
 

pu
bli
c c

on
ve
nie

nc
es
, fo

ur 
he
cta

res
 of
 be

ac
h. 

Ot
he
r a

ss
ets

 in
clu

din
g b

en
ch
es
; fo

otp
ath

s; 
dra

ina
ge
 sy

ste
ms

; 
ste

ps
; s

ign
s; 

me
mo

ria
ls;
 w

all
s; 

fen
cin

g; 
rai
lin
gs
; f

ou
nta

ins
; 

po
nd
s; 
sta

tue
s; 
an
d o

the
r s

tru
ctu

res
. T

he
re 

are
 al
so
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

bu
ild
ing

s a
ss
oc
iat
ed
 w
ith
 th

e s
erv

ice
. 

 Th
e f

ive
-ye

ar 
bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 fo
r th

is 
se
rvi
ce
 is
 to

 lo
ok
 at

 al
l 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 m
ax
im
ise

 in
co
me

 ge
ne
rat

ion
, d
riv
e o

ut 
se
rvi
ce
 ef

fic
ien

cie
s a

nd
 to

 id
en
tify

 se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 as

se
ts 
wh

ich
 

ca
n b

e s
top

pe
d o

r re
du
ce
d. 
To

ge
the

r w
ith
 so

me
 se

rvi
ce
s f
rom

 
the

 EP
&I 

dir
ec
tor

ate
 al
ter

na
tiv
e d

eli
ve
ry 
mo

de
ls 
are

 be
ing

 
ex
plo

red
, s
uc
h a

s s
tra

igh
tfo

rw
ard

 co
ntr

ac
tin
g o

ut 
an
d 

ou
tso

urc
ing

 vi
a a

 pu
bli
c/p

riv
ate

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 or
 ar

m’
s-l
en

gth
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
org

an
isa

tio
n. 

 Wa
ste

 se
rvi

ce
s 

 Th
is 
se
rvi
ce
 in
clu

de
s t
he
 fo
llo
win

g s
erv

ice
 ar

ea
s: 
wa

ste
 

dis
po
sa
l, f
ou
r h

ou
se
ho
ld 
wa

ste
 re

cy
clin

g c
en
tre

s, 
50
 

ho
us
eh
old

 re
cy
clin

g p
oin

ts,
 ho

us
eh
old

 w
as
te 
co
lle
cti
on
s, 

rec
yc
lin
g c

oll
ec
tio
ns
, fo

od
 an

d g
ard

en
 w
as
te 

co
lle
cti
on
s, 

co
mm

erc
ial
 w
as
te 

co
lle
cti
on
s a

nd
 sp

ec
ial
 w
as
te 

co
lle
cti
on
s. 

 In 
20
09
/10

 th
e c

ou
nc
il in

ve
ste

d £
15
.1m

 ne
t in

 w
as
te 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
se
rvi
ce
s (
£6
.6 

co
lle
cti
on
, £
8.4

m 
dis

po
sa
l). 
Th

is 
de
live

red
 se

rvi
ce
 to

 11
0,7

96
 ho

us
eh
old

s a
nd
 2,
20
0 t

rad
e 

cu
sto

me
rs,
 m
an
ag
ing

 12
3,0

00
 to
nn
es
 of

 m
un
icip

al 
so
lid
 

wa
ste

, 9
,40

0 t
on
ne
s o

f w
hic

h w
as
 co

mm
erc

ial
 w
as
te,

 re
cy
cle

d 
26
.8%

 of
 w
as
te 
eq
ua
tin
g t
o 1

4,7
20
 to
nn
es
 of
 re

cy
cla

te,
 

co
mp

os
ted

 12
,44

5 t
on
ne
s o

f k
itc
he
n a

nd
 ga

rde
n w

as
te,
 

pro
vid

ed
 re

cy
clin

g c
oll
ec
tio
ns
 to
 72

,00
0 h

ou
se
ho
lds

 
(fo

rtn
igh

tly
), p

rov
ide

d f
oo
d a

nd
 ga

rde
n w

as
te 

co
lle
cti
on

 to
 

51
,00

0 h
ou
se
ho
lds

 (fo
rtn

igh
tly
), p

rov
ide

d s
om

e o
n-s

tre
et 

pa
pe
r to

 te
ne
me

nt 
pro

pe
rtie

s.  
Th

e c
ou
nc
il t
hro

ug
h i
ts 
wa

ste
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
se
rvi
ce
s c

on
tra

cto
r (S

ITA
 U
K L

im
ite
d) 

ma
na
ge
s 

its
 w
as
te 

thr
ou
gh
 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 
fac

iliti
es
 in
 th
e n

ort
h e

as
t. T

he
 

Page 102



 
27

clo
se
d l
an
dfi
ll s

ite
 at
 N
es
s F

arm
 is
 cu

rre
ntl
y s

ub
jec

t to
 a 
£1
7 

mi
llio

n r
es
tor

ati
on
 pr

oje
ct.
  

 Th
ere

 ar
e a

 nu
mb

er 
of 
ma

jor
 co

st 
pre

ss
ure

s a
ffe
cti
ng
 th
e 

wa
ste

 bu
dg
et 
ov
er 

the
 ne

xt 
fiv
e y

ea
rs:
 N
ati
on
al 
Po

licy
 - Z

ero
 

W
as
te 
Pla

n w
ork

 to
wa

rds
 70

% 
Re

cy
clin

g, 
5%

 la
nd
fill 

by
 20

25
 

an
d 6

0%
 re

cy
clin

g b
y 2

02
0, 

La
nd
fill 

Ta
x E

sc
ala

tor
 – 
ris
e b

y 
£8
/to
nn
e p

er 
ye
ar 

to 
£8
0/t
on
ne
 in
 20

14
/15

, c
ha
ng
e o

f la
nd
fill 

dis
po
sa
l p
oin

t (a
dd
itio

na
l tr
an
sp
ort

 co
sts

 £1
3/t
on
ne
) p

ote
nti
al 

fin
es
 fro

m 
Sc

ott
ish

 G
ov
ern

me
nt 
for

 ex
ce
ed
ing

 la
nd
fill 

all
ow

an
ce
s, 
lan

dfi
ll b

an
s, 
res

tric
tio
ns
 on

 in
pu
ts 
to 
en
erg

y f
rom

 
wa

ste
 pl
an
ts 
an
d t
he
 ad

op
tio
n o

f a
 na

tio
na
l c
arb

on
 m
etr

ic 
for

 
as
se
ss
ing

 re
cy
clin

g p
erf

orm
an
ce
. 

 
Th

e f
ive

-ye
ar 

bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 fo
r th

is 
se
rvi
ce
 is
 to

 re
vie

w 
the

 
cu
rre

nt 
wa

ste
 st
rat

eg
y a

nd
 de

ve
lop

 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 

pri
ce
d 

sc
en
ari
os
 fo
r im

ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f th
e m

os
t e
ffe
cti
ve
 w
ay
 to
 

div
ert

 w
as
te 
fro

m 
lan

dfi
ll a

nd
 to
 m
ee
t n
ati
on
al 
tar

ge
ts.
 Th

is 
is 

to 
inc

lud
e p

ote
nti
al 
joi
nt 
wo

rki
ng
 an

d i
nv
es
tm

en
t o
pp
ort

un
itie

s 
wit

h A
be
rde

en
sh
ire
 an

d M
ora

y c
ou
nc
ils,

 ex
plo

rin
g t
he
 

po
ten

tia
l fo

r a
 si
ng
le 
wa

ste
 se

rvi
ce
 pr

ov
isio

n p
os
sib

ly 
via

 a 
pu
bli
c/p

riv
ate

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

. 
 Ho

us
ing

 se
rvi

ce
s 

 Th
e c

ou
nc
il o

wn
s a

nd
 m
an
ag
es
 ap

pro
xim

ate
ly 
23
,00

0 c
ou
nc
il 

ho
us
es
.  T

he
re 

is 
a s

ep
ara

te,
 rin

gfe
nc
ed
 bu

dg
et 

an
d c

os
ted

 
bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 fo

r c
ou
nc
il h

ou
sin

g a
nd
 th
ere

for
e s

oc
ial
 ho

us
ing

 
do
es
 no

t fe
atu

re 
in 
thi
s f
ive

-ye
ar 

bu
sin

es
s p

lan
. 

 Ho
me

les
s s

erv
ice

 
 Th

e c
ou
nc
il h

as
 a 

sta
tut
ory

 re
sp
on
sib

ility
 fo

r s
erv

ice
s t
o t

he
 

ho
me

les
s a

nd
 in
ve
sts

 a 
ne
t £
93
5k
 in
 th
es
e s

erv
ice

s. 
 Th

ere
 

are
 pr

es
en
tly
 th

ree
 ho

ste
ls 
an
d 2

50
 te
mp

ora
ry 
fur

nis
he
d f

lat
s, 

the
 la
tte

r u
tilis

ed
 fro

m 
the

 co
un
cil’

s s
oc
ial
 ho

us
ing

 st
oc
k. 

Th
ere

 ha
s b

ee
n a

 su
bs
tan

tia
l in

cre
as
e i
n h

om
ele

ss
 

pre
se
nta

tio
ns
 co

mp
are

d t
o r

ec
en
t y
ea
rs.
 C
urr

en
tly
 th

e c
ou
nc
il 

req
uir
es
 to

 us
e a

 su
bs
tan

tia
l a
mo

un
t o
f b

ed
 an

d b
rea

kfa
st 

ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 to
 m
ee
t it
s s

tat
uto

ry 
du
ty,
 w
hic

h i
s 

un
ac
ce
pta

ble
 bo

th 
in 
co
st 
an
d t
he
 im

pa
ct 
on
 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 lif
e 

of 
ind

ivid
ua
ls 
an
d f
am

ilie
s. 
Ke

y i
ss
ue
s f
or 

thi
s s

erv
ice

 in
clu

de
: 

 • 
Un

su
sta

ina
ble

 co
st 
pre

ss
ure

s f
or 

tem
po
rar

y 
ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
; 

• 
Im

pe
nd
ing

 ch
an
ge
s i
n 2

01
2 t

o r
ule

s a
rou

nd
 pr

ior
itie

s 
wh

ich
 w
ill b

rin
g i
nc
rea

se
s i
n d

em
an
d; 

• 
Ch

an
gin

g e
mp

ha
sis

 fro
m 
ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 to

 pr
ev
en
tio
n 

an
d a

dv
ice

; a
nd
 

• 
Pr
es
su
res

 on
 lo
ca
l a
uth

ori
ty 
es
tat

es
. 

 Th
e f

ive
-ye

ar 
bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 fo
r th

is 
se
rvi
ce
 is
 to

: 
 

• 
Re

du
ce
 de

ma
nd
 by

 in
ve
sti
ng
  in

 ad
dit
ion

al 
res

ou
rce

s 
de
dic

ate
d t
o e

arl
y i
nte

rve
nti
on
 an

d p
rev

en
tio
n a

nd
 

su
pp
ort

 ac
tiv
itie

s; 
an
d  

• 
Me

et 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
de
ma

nd
 m
ore

 co
st 
eff
ec
tiv
ely

 w
hil
st 

de
live

rin
g a

 be
tte

r q
ua
lity

 of
 te
mp

ora
ry 
ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 

ex
pe
rie
nc
e b

y i
ntr

od
uc
ing

 a 
pri
va
te 

se
cto

r le
as
ing

 
sc
he
me

 de
sig

ne
d t
o r

eli
ev
e p

res
su
re 

fro
m 

bo
th 
the

 us
e 

of 
be
d a

nd
 br

ea
kfa

st 
ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 as

 w
ell
 as

 ou
r 

ow
n h

ou
sin

g r
es
ou
rce

s. 
Th

is 
ma

y a
lso

 ha
ve
 a 

po
sit
ive

 
im
pa
ct 
on
 re

du
cin

g d
em

an
d. 

 Pr
iva

te 
se
cto

r h
ou
sin

g 
 

 Th
is 
se
rvi
ce
 w
ork

s t
o p

rot
ec
t th

e p
ub
lic 

fro
m 
po
or 

qu
ali
ty 

pri
va
te 

se
cto

r h
ou
sin

g a
nd
 m
ain

tai
n t
he
 bu

ilt 
en
vir
on
me

nt 
an
d 

gra
nit
e h

eri
tag

e. 
Th

e s
erv

ice
 m

on
ito
rs 
the

 co
nd
itio

n o
f 

bu
ild
ing

s, 
pro

vid
es
 fin

an
cia

l s
up
po
rt f

or 
dis

ab
led

 ad
ap
tat

ion
s 

Page 103



 
28

an
d w

he
re 

ne
ce
ss
ary

 en
for

ce
s r
ep
air
s. 
Th

e s
erv

ice
 w
ork

s t
o 

rai
se
 th

e s
tan

da
rd 

of 
pri
va
te 

ren
ted

 ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 by

 
en
for

cin
g H

ou
se
s i
n M

ult
ipl
e O

cc
up
ati
on
 (H

MO
) le

gis
lat
ion

.  
Th

e s
erv

ice
 al
so
 m
an
ag
es
 th

e s
tat
uto

ry 
reg

ist
rat

ion
 pr

oc
es
s 

for
 pr

iva
te 

se
cto

r la
nd
lor
ds
 w
hic

h i
s s

elf
 fin

an
cin

g f
rom

 th
e 

reg
ist
rat

ion
 fe

es
 re

ce
ive

d. 
 Th

e c
ou
nc
il c

urr
en
tly
 in
ve
sts

 £2
,64

9,6
03
 in
 pr

iva
te 

se
cto

r 
ho
us
ing

 w
hil
st 
the

 H
MO

 lic
en
se
 fe
e i
nc
om

e s
up
po
rts
 th
e c

os
t 

of 
HM

O 
ac
tiv
ity
. A

be
rde

en
 cu

rre
ntl
y h

as
 87

0 H
MO

 lic
en
ce
s i
n 

op
era

tio
n. 

 Th
e f

ive
-ye

ar 
bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 fo
r th

is 
se
rvi
ce
 is
 to

: 
 

• 
red

uc
e t
he
 co

sts
 of
 th
e s

ch
em

e o
f a

ss
ist
an
ce
 as

 pa
rt o

f 
the

 tra
ns
itio

n t
o n

ew
 fu
nd
ing

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 un

de
r th

e 
Ho

us
ing

 (S
co
tla
nd
) A

ct 
20
06
 w
ith
 th

e e
nd
ing

 of
 se

rio
us
 

dis
rep

air
 no

tic
es
 an

d t
he
 as

so
cia

ted
 gr

an
ts;
 an

d 
• 

inv
es
t in

 ad
dit
ion

al 
res

ou
rce

s t
o i
nv
es
tig
ate

 an
d r

ed
uc
e 

the
 nu

mb
er 

of 
lan

dlo
rds

 op
era

tin
g w

ith
ou
t a

 H
MO

 
lice

ns
e 

 Co
mm

un
ity
 sa

fet
y 

 Th
is 
se
rvi
ce
 pr

ov
ide

s a
 cu

sto
me

r-fo
cu
se
d, 
hig

hly
-vi
sib

le 
se
rvi
ce
 to

 he
lp 
en
su
re 

sa
fet

y, 
cle

an
lin
es
s a

nd
 a 
fre

e f
low

 of
 

tra
ffic

 in
 ou

r c
om

mu
nit
ies

. S
erv

ice
 pr

ior
itie

s a
re:

 
 

• 
To

 ac
hie

ve
 hi
gh
 st
an
da
rds

 of
 cu

sto
me

r c
are

 an
d 

sa
tis
fac

tio
n; 
 

• 
To

 im
pro

ve
 cl
ea
nli
ne
ss
, m

ak
ing

 ef
fec

tiv
e u

se
 of
 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
po
we

rs 
wh

en
 ap

pro
pri
ate

;  
• 

To
 en

for
ce
 pa

rki
ng
 re

gu
lat
ion

s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
e f
ree

 flo
w 

of 
tra

ffic
 an

d i
mp

rov
e r

oa
d s

afe
ty;
  

• 
To

 re
du
ce
 an

tis
oc
ial
 be

ha
vio

ur,
 cr
im
e a

nd
 th
e f

ea
r o

f 
cri
me

;  
• 

To
 w
ork

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 ou

r c
om

mu
nit
ies

 an
d 

pa
rtn

er 
ag
en
cie

s; 
an
d  

• 
To

 m
ain

tai
n a

 hi
gh
 pr

ofi
le 
wit

hin
 ou

r c
om

mu
nit
ies

. 
 Th

e c
ity
 w
ard

en
 se

rvi
ce
 op

era
tes

 ac
ros

s t
he
 ci
ty 
an
d i
s a

 ne
t 

pro
vid

er 
of 
fun

ds
 fo
r th

e c
ity
 th

rou
gh
 th
eir
 pa

rki
ng
 en

for
ce
me

nt 
an
d o

the
r d

uti
es
. T

he
y i
ss
ue
 ar

ou
nd
 46

00
0 p

en
alt
y n

oti
ce
s 

an
d a

rou
nd
 35

0 f
ixe

d p
en
alt
y n

oti
ce
s f
or 

litt
eri
ng
 an

d d
og
 

fou
lin
g. 

 Th
e c

ity
 w
ard

en
s w

ork
 cl
os
ely

 w
ith
 ke

y p
art

ne
r a

ge
nc
ies

, 
pro

vid
ing

 a 
hig

h p
rof

ile
 co

mm
un
ity
 pr

es
en
ce
, e
nfo

rci
ng
 

pa
rki
ng
 an

d s
om

e e
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 re

gu
lat
ion

s, 
pro

ac
tiv
ely

 
tac

klin
g a

nti
so
cia

l b
eh
av
iou

r b
y c

oo
rdi
na
tin
g c

ou
nc
il s

erv
ice

s 
an
d e

xte
rna

l p
art

ne
rs 
to 
foc

us
 th
eir
 re

so
urc

es
 at

 id
en
tifi
ed
 

ind
ivid

ua
ls,
 fa
mi
lie
s o

r lo
ca
tio
ns
. E

arl
y i
nte

rve
nti
on
, c
rim

e 
red

uc
tio
n m

ea
su
res

 an
d d

ive
rsi
on
ary

 ac
tiv
itie

s a
re 

the
 m
ain

 
too

ls 
us
ed
 to
 re

du
ce
 th
e a

nti
so
cia

l b
eh
av
ior
 bl
igh

tin
g 

co
mm

un
itie

s. 
 Sa

fet
y i
s o

ne
 of
 th
e t
en
 pr

ior
ity
 ch

all
en
ge
 fo

rum
s f
or 

Th
e 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 Al

lia
nc
e (

TA
CA

), w
hic

h c
arr

ies
 ou

t th
e s

tat
uto

ry 
rol
e o

f C
om

mu
nit
y P

lan
nin

g P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
an
d t
he
 co

un
cil 

fac
ilita

tes
 th
e m

ult
i-a
ge
nc
y A

be
rde

en
 C
om

mu
nit
y S

afe
ty 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 to
 pr

oa
cti
ve
ly 
ide

nti
fy 
an
d t
ac
kle

 th
e p

rio
rity

 is
su
es
 

ac
ros

s t
he
 ci
ty.
 Th

e p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
ha
s p

rod
uc
ed
 st
rat

eg
ic 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
pla

ns
 to
 en

su
re 

an
 in
tel
lig
en
ce
-le
d b

us
ine

ss
 pl
an
 

ap
pro

ac
h. 
Th

e f
ive

 pr
ior
ity
 ar

ea
s i
de
nti
fie
d f

or 
20
10
 to
 20

13
 in
 

the
 ci
ty 
are

: 
 

• 
Vio

len
ce
 in
clu

din
g, 
alc

oh
ol-
rel
ate

d v
iol
en
ce
 an

d 
do
me

sti
c v

iol
en
ce
; 

• 
Co

mm
un
ity
 fir
e s

afe
ty;
 

Page 104



 
29

• 
An

tis
oc
ial
 be

ha
vio

ur;
 

• 
Ro

ad
 sa

fet
y; 
an
d 

• 
Co

mm
erc

ial
 se

xu
al 
ex
plo

ita
tio
n. 

 Th
e f

ive
-ye

ar 
bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 fo
r th

is 
se
rvi
ce
 is
 to

: 
 

• 
Re

vie
w 
the

 op
era

tio
n a

nd
 st
ruc

tur
e o

f th
e c

om
mu

nit
y 

sa
fet

y s
erv

ice
 an

d  
• 

Co
nti
nu
e t

o i
nv
es
t in

 th
e C

om
mu

nit
y S

afe
ty 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

str
ate

gic
 pr

ior
itie

s w
ith
in 
the

 co
nte

xt 
of 

red
uc
ing

 pu
bli
c 

se
cto

r fi
na
nc
es
. 

 Em
erg

en
cy
 pl
an
nin

g /
 ci
vil
 co

nti
ng
en
cie

s 
 Th

is 
se
rvi
ce
 pr

ov
ide

s e
me

rge
nc
y p

lan
nin

g a
nd
 ex

pe
rtis

e a
nd
 

su
pp
ort

 to
 Ab

erd
ee
n, 
Ab

erd
ee
ns
hir
e a

nd
 M
ora

y c
ou
nc
ils 

on
 a 

sh
are

d s
erv

ice
s b

as
is.
 Ab

erd
ee
n C

ity
 C
ou
nc
il is

 th
e e

mp
loy

ing
 

au
tho

rity
 fo

r fo
ur 

sta
ff. 

 Th
e t
ea
m 

als
o h

as
 a 

rol
e i
n 

co
ord

ina
tin
g b

us
ine

ss
 co

nti
nu
ity
 ac

tiv
itie

s. 
 Th

e t
hre

e l
oc
al 
au
tho

riti
es
 in
ve
st 
£2
55
,61

2 i
n t
he
se
 ac

tiv
itie

s. 
Ab

erd
ee
n C

ity
 C
ou
nc
il’s

 in
ve
stm

en
t is

 £9
6,9

48
 

 Th
e t

ea
m 

wo
rks

 cl
os
ely

 w
ith
 th

e G
ram

pia
n S

tra
teg

ic 
Co

mm
an
d G

rou
p (

SC
G)
 su

pp
ort

 te
am

, w
hic

h i
s m

an
ag
ed
 by

 
the

 po
lice

. 
 Th

e f
ive

-ye
ar 

bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 fo
r th

is 
se
rvi
ce
 is
 to

 re
du
ce
 co

sts
 

by
 re

vie
win

g e
ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
, im

pro
vin

g j
oin

t w
ork

ing
 an

d 
ex
plo

rin
g p

ote
nti
al 
ma

rke
t te

sti
ng
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

. 
 

Page 105



 
30

 
 Ho

us
ing

 an
d E

nv
iro

nm
en
t –
 se

rvi
ce
 ov

erv
iew

 

Priority 1: Provide for the needs of the 
most vulnerable people 
 

Priority 2: Help to ensure that all 
schoolchildren reach their potential 
 

Priority 3: Manage our waste better 
and increase recycling 
 

Priority 4:. Encourage the building of 
new affordable housing 
 

Priority 5: Ensure a sustainable 
economic future for the city 
 

Priority 6:.Ensure efficient and 
effective delivery of services by the 
council and with its partners. 
 

W
e w

ill d
ev

elo
p o

ur 
ho

us
ing

 se
rvi

ce
s t

o b
e f

lex
ibl

e t
o s

up
po

rt t
he

 ne
ed

s a
nd

 as
pir

ati
on

s o
f o

ur 
ten

an
ts 

x 
x 

 
 

 
 

W
e w

ill i
mp

rov
e c

lea
nli

ne
ss

 an
d s

ec
uri

ty 
in 

ou
r m

ult
i-s

tor
ey

 bl
oc

ks
 

x 
 

 
 

 
 

W
e w

ill w
ork

 to
 pr

ote
ct 

the
 pu

bli
c f

rom
 po

or-
qu

ali
ty,

 pr
iva

te 
se

cto
r h

ou
sin

g a
nd

 to
 m

ain
tai

n t
he

 
bu

ilt 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

an
d g

ran
ite

 he
rita

ge
 

x 
x 

 
 

 
x 

W
e w

ill r
ed

uc
e h

om
ele

ss
ne

ss
 by

 im
pro

vin
g p

rov
isio

n a
nd

 pr
ev

en
tio

n a
cti

vit
ies

 
x 

x 
 

x 
 

 
W

e w
ill p

lay
 ou

r p
art

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ork
ing

 on
 co

mm
un

ity
 sa

fet
y, 

pro
tec

tin
g v

uln
era

ble
 pe

op
le,

 
he

alt
h a

nd
 w

ell
be

ing
 an

d o
the

r c
om

mu
nit

y p
lan

nin
g p

rio
riti

es
 

x 
 

 
 

x 
 

W
e w

ill r
eta

in 
a l

arg
e s

toc
k o

f q
ua

lity
, w

ell
-m

ain
tai

ne
d a

ffo
rda

ble
 ho

us
ing

 m
atc

hin
g t

he
 hi

gh
es

t o
f 

sta
nd

ard
s 

x 
 

 
x 

 
 

W
e w

ill b
uil

d n
ew

 ho
us

es
 to

 in
cre

as
e p

rov
isio

n o
f a

ffo
rda

ble
 ho

us
es

 fo
r th

e c
ou

nc
il 

x 
x 

 
x 

 
 

W
e w

ill c
rea

te 
a P

rop
ert

y S
erv

ice
s L

LP
 to

 de
live

r s
tra

teg
ic 

ho
us

ing
 pr

ior
itie

s a
nd

 to
 ra

ise
 

ad
dit

ion
al 

inc
om

e 
x 

 
 

x 
 

 
W

e w
ill c

on
trib

ute
 to

 th
e r

eg
en

era
tio

n o
f th

e c
ity

 
x 

 
 

 
x 

 
W

e w
ill d

ev
elo

p t
he

 w
as

te 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s t

o i
nc

rea
se

 th
e a

mo
un

t o
f w

as
te 

be
ing

 di
ve

rte
d 

fro
m 

lan
dfi

ll 
 

 
x 

 
x 

x 
W

e w
ill c

on
trib

ute
 to

 a 
Gr

ee
ne

r, C
lea

ne
r a

nd
 Sa

fer
 C

ity
 th

rou
gh

 de
ve

lop
ing

 an
d i

mp
rov

ing
 ou

r 
Gr

ou
nd

s M
ain

ten
an

ce
 an

d S
tre

et 
Cle

an
ing

 se
rvi

ce
s 

 
 

x 
 

x 
x 

W
e w

ill p
rot

ec
t th

e h
ea

lth
, s

afe
ty 

an
d r

igh
ts 

of 
co

ns
um

ers
 an

d t
he

 pu
bli

c t
hro

ug
h d

ev
elo

pin
g a

 
mo

re 
foc

us
ed

 an
d i

mp
rov

ed
 En

vir
on

me
nta

l H
ea

lth
 & 

Tra
din

g S
tan

da
rds

 se
rvi

ce
 an

d P
ub

lic 
An

aly
st 

se
rvi

ce
 

x 
 

 
 

x 
x 

  

Page 106



 
31

Co
rp
or
ate

 G
ov
ern

an
ce
  

St
ew

art
 C
arr

uth
 

Dir
ec
tor

 
 Ov

er 
the

 ne
xt 
fiv
e y

ea
rs 
Co

rpo
rat

e G
ov
ern

an
ce
 w
ill s

ee
 

sig
nif
ica

nt 
str
uc
tur

al 
an
d c

ult
ura

l c
ha
ng
e w

hic
h w

ill r
es
ult
 in
 a 

hig
h-v

alu
e, 

sm
all
er 

dir
ec
tor

ate
. M

an
y o

f th
e s

erv
ice

s c
urr

en
tly
 

pro
vid

ed
 by

 C
orp

ora
te 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e w

ill b
e d

eli
ve
red

 in
 a 

dif
fer

en
t w

ay
 in
 co

nju
nc
tio
n w

ith
 ot

he
r p

ub
lic 

an
d p

riv
ate

 
se
cto

r o
rga

nis
ati
on
s w

ith
 a 

co
nti
nu
ed
 em

ph
as
is 
on
 im

pro
vin

g 
the

 qu
ali
ty 
of 

se
rvi
ce
s p

rov
ide

d a
nd
 re

ali
sin

g s
av
ing

s. 
Th

e 
im
pe
rat

ive
 is
 cl
ea
r in

 so
 fa

r a
s t
he
 gr

ea
ter

 th
e e

ffic
ien

cy
 an

d 
eff
ec
tiv
en
es
s o

f s
up
po
rt s

erv
ice

s t
he
 m
ore

 th
e c

ou
nc
il c

an
 

ch
an
ne
l it
s f
oc
us
 an

d b
ud
ge
t o
n d

eli
ve
rin
g f

ron
tlin

e s
erv

ice
s 

for
 th

e c
itiz

en
s o

f A
be
rde

en
.  T

he
 se

rvi
ce
s o

ve
r th

e n
ex
t fi
ve
 

ye
ars

 w
ill b

e d
eli
ve
red

 w
ith
in 
an
 es

tim
ate

d b
ud
ge
t o
f £

30
M.
 

  Ov
er 

the
 ne

xt 
tw
o y

ea
rs 
we

 w
ill c

on
tin
ue
 to
 im

ple
me

nt 
the

 
int
ern

al 
tra

ns
for

ma
tio
n o

f C
orp

ora
te 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e s

erv
ice

s a
nd
 

mo
ve
 to

 ex
ter

na
lise

 in
 pa

rtic
ula

r, t
ho
ug
h n

ot 
ex
clu

siv
ely

, 
tra

ns
ac
tio
na
l s
erv

ice
s i
n H

um
an
 R
es
ou
rce

s a
nd
 

Or
ga
nis

ati
on
al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt,

 Fi
na
nc
e, 

IC
T a

nd
 C
us
tom

er 
Se

rvi
ce
s. 
Th

is 
wil

l b
rin
g b

ad
ly 
ne
ed
ed
 in
ve
stm

en
t in

 
tec

hn
olo

gy
, g
ive

 op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r tr

an
sfe

rre
d s

taf
f to

 bu
ild
 

the
ir s

kill
s a

nd
 de

ve
lop

 th
eir
 ca

ree
rs,
 pr

ov
ide

 ac
ce
ss
 to
 tri
ed
 

an
d t
es
ted

 pr
oc
es
se
s, 
ex
pe
rtis

e a
nd
 kn

ow
-ho

w 
for

 th
e c

ou
nc
il 

an
d l
ay
 th

e f
ou
nd
ati
on
 fo
r a

 br
oa
d b

as
e o

f p
ote

nti
al 
cu
sto

me
r 

gro
wt
h i
n t

he
 pu

bli
c s

ec
tor

 fo
r o

the
r p

rov
ide

rs.
  

 It i
s n

ot 
wit

ho
ut 

ris
k a

nd
 th
e r

ole
 of
 th
e r

eta
ine

d e
lem

en
ts 
of 

the
 co

un
cil 

wit
hin

 C
orp

ora
te 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e w

ill h
av
e a

n 
im
po
rta

nt 
pa
rt t

o p
lay

 in
 m
an
ag
ing

 th
e i
nte

rfa
ce
 be

tw
ee
n t

he
 

res
t o
f th

e c
ou
nc
il a

nd
 th
e e

xte
rna

lise
d o

rga
nis

ati
on
, d
ec
isio

n-
ma

kin
g i
n m

an
y o

f th
e s

erv
ice

 ar
ea
s p

rov
ide

d e
xte

rna
lly,

 
an
aly

sis
 an

d s
tra

teg
y w

hic
h d

ov
eta

ils 
wit

h t
he
 re

st 
of 
the

 
co
un
cil.

 Th
e c

ha
ng
es
 by

 ot
he
r s
erv

ice
s w

hic
h a

re 
ref

lec
ted

 
wit

hin
 th

e b
us
ine

ss
 pl
an
 w
ill i

mp
ac
t d

ire
ctl
y o

n t
he
 ty
pe
 an

d 
sc
ale

 of
 se

rvi
ce
s p

rov
ide

d b
y C

orp
ora

te 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e. 

It i
s 

po
ss
ibl
e t
ha
t in

 fu
tur

e o
the

r s
erv

ice
s c

ou
ld 
de
cid

e t
o 

co
mm

iss
ion

 su
pp
ort

 se
rvi
ce
s f
rom

 ot
he
r o

rga
nis

ati
on
s a

nd
 

thi
s w

ill d
riv
e a

 gr
ea
ter

 fo
cu
s o

n c
us
tom

er 
se
rvi
ce
, p

ric
e a

nd
 

qu
ali
ty 
of 

the
 se

rvi
ce
 de

live
red

.   
  

 In 
ad
dit
ion

, w
e w

ill d
ev
elo

p a
 fra

me
wo

rk 
ag
ree

me
nt 
for

 le
ga
l 

se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 ai
m 

to 
sh
are

 le
ga
l a
nd
 de

mo
cra

tic
 se

rvi
ce
s w

ith
 

oth
er 

pu
bli
c s

ec
tor

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
s. 
Th

ere
 ar

e o
pp
ort

un
itie

s t
o 

wo
rk 
tog

eth
er 

wit
hin

 th
e p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r. H
ow

ev
er 

the
 pa

ce
 an

d 
sc
ale

 of
 ch

an
ge
 re

qu
ire
s t
o b

e i
nc
rem

en
tal
ly 
inc

rea
se
d 

pa
rtic

ula
rly
 ag

ain
st 
a b

ac
kg
rou

nd
 of
 pu

bli
c s

ec
tor

 re
for

m 
an
d 

fin
an
cia

l c
ha
lle
ng
es
 w
hic

h a
re 

im
pa
cti
ng
 on

 fro
ntl
ine

 se
rvi
ce
s. 
 

 Co
mm

un
ity
 pl
an
nin

g w
ill a

lso
 ha

ve
 a 

ke
y r
ole

 to
 pl
ay
 in
 

bri
ng
ing

 pa
rtn

ers
 to

ge
the

r a
nd
 th
ere

 is
 th
e n

ee
d f
or 

a g
rea

ter
 

em
ph
as
is 
on
 ho

w 
to 

de
live

r m
ore

 ef
fec

tiv
e d

eli
ve
ry 
wh

ich
 

req
uir
es
 al
l k
ey
 pa

rtn
ers

 to
 un

de
rst
an
d a

nd
 m
ak
e b

es
t u
se
 of
 

the
 co

mb
ine

d r
es
ou
rce

 of
 pa

rtn
ers

. T
he
re 

ne
ed
s t
o b

e g
rea

ter
 

cla
rity

 on
 th

e p
urp

os
e o

f c
om

mu
nit
y p

lan
nin

g a
t a
 tim

e w
he
n 

in 
ma

ny
 ca

se
s s

erv
ice

s a
re 

be
ing

 de
ve
lop

ed
 an

d d
eli
ve
red

 
org

an
ica

lly 
at 

se
rvi
ce
 an

d c
om

mu
nit
y l
ev
el.
 

Page 107



 
32

Th
e i
mp

ac
t o
n s

taf
f o
f th

es
e c

ha
ng
es
 w
ill b

e s
ign

ific
an
t, b

oth
 

for
 tra

ns
fer

red
 an

d r
eta

ine
d s

taf
f. T

his
 w
ill m

ea
n t
ha
t 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
n a

nd
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
wit

h s
taf
f w

ill b
e h

igh
ly 

im
po
rta

nt 
ov
er 

the
 pe

rio
d. 
Th

e C
orp

ora
te 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
 G
rou

p h
as
 a 

ke
y r
ole

 in
 fa

cili
tat

ing
 th

is 
en
ga
ge
me

nt 
wh

ich
 w
ill b

e d
eli
ve
red

 by
 a 

va
rie
ty 
of 

me
an

s 
inc

lud
ing

 br
ief
ing

s, 
dro

p-i
n s

es
sio

ns
 an

d p
od
ca
st 
se
ss
ion

s. 
Ot
he
r s
tak

eh
old

ers
 to
o w

ill r
eq
uir
e t

o b
e e

ng
ag
ed
 on

 th
e w

ay
 

ah
ea
d a

nd
 an

 en
ga
ge
me

nt 
pla

n f
or 

Co
rpo

rat
e G

ov
ern

an
ce
 

wil
l b
e d

ev
elo

pe
d f
or 

all
 ou

r s
tak

eh
old

ers
 in
clu

din
g p

art
ne
rs,
 

tra
de
s u

nio
ns
, a
nd
 ot
he
r s
erv

ice
s. 
 

 Th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 

all
 of

 th
is 
ch
an
ge
 w
ill p

lac
e d

em
an
ds
 on

 
Co

rpo
rat

e G
ov
ern

an
ce
 se

rvi
ce
s. 
At 

a h
igh

 le
ve
l, t
he
 se

rvi
ce
s 

wil
l s
im
ult
an
eo
us
ly 
co
nti
nu
e t
o d

eli
ve
r it
s b

us
ine

ss
 as

 us
ua
l 

se
rvi
ce
s, 
su
pp
ort

 ot
he
r s
erv

ice
s a

nd
 m
an
ag
e i
ts 
ow

n c
ha
ng
e. 

In 
ord

er 
to 

su
pp
ort

 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 

se
rvi
ce
s, 
se
rvi
ce
 le
ve
l 

ag
ree

me
nts

 w
ill b

e e
sta

bli
sh
ed
 be

tw
ee
n C

orp
ora

te 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e a

nd
 ot
he
r s
erv

ice
s t
o m

an
ag
e d

em
an
d, 
pro

vid
e 

cla
rity

 an
d e

na
ble

 pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 to
 be

 m
ea
su
red

. In
 ad

dit
ion

, 
the

 es
tab

lish
me

nt 
of 

the
 Pr

og
ram

me
 M
an
ag
em

en
t O

ffic
e w

ill 
als

o b
e k

ey
 to

 su
pp
ort

ing
 ot

he
r s
erv

ice
s a

lbe
it w

ith
 su

pp
ort

 
fro

m 
ex
ter

na
l p
rov

ide
rs 
if t
he
re 

is 
a g

ap
 in
 ca

pa
cit
y o

r 
ca
pa
bil
ity
 w
hic

h i
s i
mp

ing
ing

 on
 ou

r a
bil
ity
 to

 de
live

r.  
 In 

su
mm

ary
, p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r re
for

m 
an
d f

ina
nc
ial
 ch

all
en
ge
s w

ill 
ov
er 

the
 ne

xt 
fiv
e y

ea
rs 
se
e s

ign
ific

an
t c
ha
ng
e w

ith
in 
the

 
pu
bli
c s

ec
tor

 an
d t
his

 w
ill i

mp
ac
t o
n t
he
 co

un
cil 

an
d i
n t
he
 w
ay
 

tha
t C

orp
ora

te 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e s

erv
ice

s w
ill b

e d
eli
ve
red

. It
 w
ill b

e 
a c

ha
lle
ng
ing

 tim
e f
or 

all
 st
aff
 as

 w
ell
 as

 on
e t
ha
t w

ill p
rov

ide
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r s
taf
f to

 bu
ild
 on

 th
eir
 sk

ills
 an

d e
xp
eri
en
ce
s. 

Th
ere

 w
ill b

e a
 sc

ali
ng
 do

wn
 in
 nu

mb
ers

 of
 st
aff
 w
ith
in 
the

 
dir
ec
tor

ate
 an

d a
s f
ar 

as
 po

ss
ibl
e t

his
 w
ill b

e m
an
ag
ed
 

thr
ou
gh
 re

de
plo

ym
en
t o
r n

atu
ral
 tu

rno
ve
r. L

ea
de
rsh

ip 
wil

l b
e 

req
uir
ed
 fro

m 
se
nio

r, a
s w

ell
 as

 ot
he
r s
taf
f to

 en
su
re 

tha
t 

the
se
 ch

an
ge
s a

re 
ma

na
ge
d, 
tha

t s
taf
f a
nd
 ot
he
r s
tak

eh
old

ers
 

are
 en

ga
ge
d a

nd
 th
at 
op
po
rtu

nit
y f
or 

im
pro

ve
d s

erv
ice

s i
s 

gra
sp
ed
.   

                           

Page 108



 
33

  Co
rp
or
ate

 G
ov
ern

an
ce
 – 
se
rvi
ce
 ov

erv
iew

 
 

Priority 1: Provide for the needs 
of the most vulnerable people 
 
Priority 2: Help to ensure that all 
schoolchildren reach their 
potential 
 
Priority 3: Manage our waste 
better and increase recycling 
 
Priority 4: Encourage the 
building of new affordable 
housing 
 
Priority 5: Ensure a sustainable 
economic future for the city 
 
Priority 6: Ensure efficient and 
effective delivery of services by 
the council and with its partners. 
 

W
e w

ill e
ns

ure
 va

lue
 fo

r m
on

ey
 by

 ch
all

en
gin

g s
pe

nd
 th

rou
gh

 a 
pri

ori
ty-

ba
se

d a
pp

roa
ch

 to
 

bu
dg

eti
ng

 an
d p

lan
nin

g 
 

 
 

 
 

x 
W

e w
ill m

ark
et 

tes
t a

nd
 be

nc
hm

ark
 ou

r s
erv

ice
s a

ga
ins

t b
es

t in
 cl

as
s a

cro
ss

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 
se

cto
rs  

 
 

 
 

 
x 

W
e w

ill e
ns

ure
 be

st 
va

lue
 in

 pr
oje

cts
 th

rou
gh

 a 
pro

gra
mm

e m
an

ag
em

en
t fr

am
ew

ork
 

 
 

 
 

 
x 

W
e w

ill w
ork

 w
ith

 ou
r p

art
ne

rs 
to 

ide
nti

fy 
an

d d
eli

ve
r e

ffic
ien

cie
s f

rom
 ef

fec
tiv

e p
roc

ure
me

nt 
 

 
 

 
 

x 
W

e w
ill i

mp
rov

e o
ur 

co
rpo

rat
e I

CT
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e t
o s

up
po

rt t
he

 bu
sin

es
s i

n c
os

t-e
ffe

cti
ve

 
wa

ys
 

 
 

 
 

 
x 

W
e w

ill e
ng

ag
e w

ith
 ot

he
r lo

ca
l a

uth
ori

tie
s a

nd
 pu

bli
c s

ec
tor

 ag
en

cie
s t

o m
ax

im
ise

 ef
fic

ien
cy

 
an

d i
nc

om
e g

en
era

tio
n  

 
 

 
 

 
x 

W
e w

ill d
ev

elo
p a

 fle
xib

le 
Co

rpo
rat

e W
ork

for
ce

 Pl
an

 w
hic

h a
lig

ns
 ou

r w
ork

for
ce

 w
ith

 
av

ail
ab

le 
bu

dg
et 

an
d o

ur 
pri

ori
tie

s 
 

 
 

 
 

x 
W

e w
ill e

ns
ure

 th
at 

se
rvi

ce
s h

av
e e

ffe
cti

ve
 su

cc
es

sio
n p

lan
nin

g i
n p

lac
e 

 
 

 
 

 
x 

W
e w

ill r
ev

iew
 th

e r
an

ge
 of

 sk
ills

 on
 a 

se
rvi

ce
-by

-se
rvi

ce
 ba

sis
 an

d e
ns

ure
 th

ere
 ar

e h
igh

ly 
sk

ille
d a

nd
 m

oti
va

ted
 em

plo
ye

es
 

 
 

 
 

 
x 

W
e w

ill d
ev

elo
p a

nd
 im

ple
me

nt 
a f

lex
ibl

e c
us

tom
er 

se
rvi

ce
s m

od
el 

to 
en

ab
le 

eff
icie

nt 
an

d 
hig

h-q
ua

lity
 se

rvi
ce

 de
live

ry,
 en

su
rin

g s
kill

ed
 an

d m
oti

va
ted

 em
plo

ye
es

 
 

 
 

 
 

x 
W

e w
ill s

ys
tem

ati
ca

lly 
en

ga
ge

 in
ter

na
l c

us
tom

ers
, e

xte
rna

l c
us

tom
ers

 an
d o

ur 
pa

rtn
ers

, 
em

be
dd

ing
 th

eir
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 to

 sh
ap

e t
he

 se
rvi

ce
s w

e d
eli

ve
r  

 
 

 
 

 
x 

W
e w

ill a
cti

ve
ly 

en
ga

ge
 w

ith
 pa

rtn
ers

 to
 de

ve
lop

 ef
fec

tiv
e c

om
mu

nit
y p

lan
nin

g, 
bu

ild
ing

 ne
w 

rel
ati

on
sh

ips
 an

d p
urs

uin
g i

nn
ov

ati
ve

 ap
pro

ac
he

s t
o s

erv
ice

 pl
an

nin
g, 

inc
lud

ing
 a 

de
live

ry 
mo

de
l b

as
ed

 on
 th

e p
lac

e 
 

 
 

 
x 

x 
W

e w
ill d

ete
rm

ine
 th

e q
ua

lity
 an

d l
ev

el 
of 

se
rvi

ce
s t

ha
t a

 th
ird

-pa
rty

 pr
ov

ide
r w

ou
ld 

be
 ab

le 
to 

pro
vid

e w
ith

 a 
vie

w 
to 

ex
ter

na
lisi

ng
 th

os
e e

lem
en

ts 
of 

se
rvi

ce
 

 
 

 
 

 
x 

 

Page 109



 
34

5.2
 
Ho

w 
wi
ll w

e d
eli
ve
r?
 

 Ov
er 

the
 ne

xt 
fiv
e y

ea
rs 
the

 de
live

ry 
of 

the
 se

rvi
ce
s w

ith
in 
the

 
co
un
cil 

wil
l c
ha
ng
e s

ign
ific

an
tly
.  A

s w
e r

es
po
nd
 to
 th
e 

ch
an
gin

g d
em

an
ds
, in

cre
as
ing

 fin
an
cia

l c
on
str
ain

ts,
 a 
gre

ate
r 

un
de
rst
an
din

g o
f c
us
tom

er 
req

uir
em

en
ts 
an
d e

me
rgi
ng
 

tec
hn
olo

gic
al 
ad
va
nc
es
, th

e t
yp
e, 

lev
el 
an
d s

ha
pe
 of
 se

rvi
ce
 

wil
l b
e a

lte
red

 to
 m
ee
t th

es
e d

em
an
ds
. 

 Th
e c

ou
nc
il w

ill m
ov
e f

rom
 an

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
 w
hic

h 
pre

do
mi
na
tel
y d

eli
ve
rs 

se
rvi
ce
s t
o a

n o
rga

nis
ati
on
 w
hic

h 
str
ate

gic
all
y m

an
ag
es
 or

 co
mm

iss
ion

s s
erv

ice
s. 
Ho

we
ve
r, i
t 

wil
l c
on
tin
ue
 to
 de

live
r c
ert

ain
 se

rvi
ce
s i
n h

ou
se
 w
he
re 

it 
be
lie
ve
s t
ha
t it
 is
 in
 th
e b

es
t p
os
itio

n t
o e

ns
ure

 va
lue

 fo
r 

mo
ne
y a

nd
 de

live
r a

 po
sit
ive

 im
pa
ct 
on
 ci
tiz
en
s. 
   

 Th
e s

hif
t in

 th
e o

pe
rat

ing
 m

od
el 
of 
the

 co
un
cil 

wil
l b
e 

ch
ara

cte
ris
ed
 by

 a 
mo

ve
 to

 gr
ea
ter

 us
e o

f a
lte
rna

tiv
e d

eli
ve
ry 

me
ch
an
ism

s a
cro

ss
 a 
ran

ge
 of

 se
rvi
ce
s. 
Th

e n
atu

re 
of 
the

se
 

me
ch
an
ism

s w
ill b

e d
ete

rm
ine

d a
nd
 de

live
red

 as
 pa

rt o
f a

 
pro

gra
mm

e t
o i
mp

lem
en
t th

e k
ey
 ac

tio
ns
 ar

isin
g f

rom
 th
is 

bu
sin

es
s p

lan
.  A

 pr
og
ram

me
 of
fic
e t
o t
ak
e t
he
se
 ac

tio
ns
 

for
wa

rd 
wil

l b
e f

orm
ed
 la
te 

in 
20
10
/11

 fo
r 2

01
1/1

2. 
 

 An
 im

po
rta

nt 
fac

tor
 of
 th
e s

uc
ce
ss
 w
ill b

e a
n i
nte

gra
ted

 
ap
pro

ac
h w

he
re 

de
pe
nd
en
cie

s b
etw

ee
n s

erv
ice

s a
re 

rec
og
nis

ed
 an

d i
nc
orp

ora
ted

 in
 de

live
rin
g s

erv
ice

s. 
In 

ad
dit
ion

, it
 w
ill m

ea
n d

ev
elo

pin
g n

ew
 an

d b
uil
din

g o
n e

xis
tin
g 

rel
ati
on
sh
ips

 w
ith
 th

e p
ub
lic,

 vo
lun

tar
y a

nd
 pr

iva
te 

se
cto

rs 
to 

en
su
re 

tha
t th

e m
ark

et 
is 
rea

dy
 to

 pr
ov
ide

 se
rvi
ce
s. 

 As
 th

is 
typ

e o
f tr

an
sfo

rm
ati
on
al 
ch
an
ge
 ta
ke
s t
im
e t
o d

eli
ve
r, i
t 

is 
like

ly 
tha

t s
ign

ific
an
t b
en
efi
ts 
wil

l b
e d

eli
ve
red

 in
 la
ter

 ye
ars

, 
wh

ich
 m

ea
ns
 th
at 

we
 w
ill s

ee
k t
o d

riv
e o

ut 
ea
rly
 ye

ar 
be
ne
fits

 

thr
ou
gh
 in
ter

na
l tr
an
sfo

rm
ati
on
, e
ffic

ien
cie

s i
n p

roc
ure

me
nt 

an
d i
nc
om

e g
en
era

tio
n. 
  

 A g
rea

t d
ea
l o
f w

ork
 is
 al
rea

dy
 ta

kin
g p

lac
e t
o r

es
tru

ctu
re,

 
rev

iew
 ca

pa
cit
y a

nd
 ca

pa
bil
ity
  a

nd
 st
rea

ml
ine

 in
ter

na
l 

pro
ce
ss
es
 to
 dr

ive
 ou

t in
eff
icie

nc
ies

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

e c
ou
nc
il 

is 
be
st 
pla

ce
d t
o m

ov
e t

o e
xte

rna
l d
eli
ve
ry 
of 

se
rvi
ce
s. 
Th

is 
wil

l c
on
tin
ue
 in
 th
e e

arl
y y

ea
rs 
of 

the
 pl
an
 to
 de

live
r b

en
efi
ts.
    

 All
 se

rvi
ce
s w

ill u
nd
erg

o s
ign

ific
an
t c
ha
ng
e a

nd
 ov

er 
the

 ne
xt 

fiv
e y

ea
rs 
cit
ize

ns
 ar

e l
ike

ly 
to 

se
e c

ha
ng
es
 in
 th

e l
oc
ati
on
 an

d 
sty

le 
of 

sc
ho
ol,
 le
arn

ing
 an

d t
ea
ch
ing

 in
 th
e c

las
sro

om
, th

e 
wa

y o
ur 

ga
lle
rie
s a

nd
 m
us
eu
ms

 ar
e m

an
ag
ed
, th

e m
an
ne
r in

 
wh

ich
 ou

r w
as
te 

is 
dis

po
se
d o

f, d
iffe

ren
t m

od
els

 of
 m
an
ag
ing

 
ho
us
ing

, in
ve
stm

en
t in

 ou
r ro

ad
s, 
a s

hif
t in

 th
e w

ay
 w
e s

up
po
rt 

ou
r e

lde
rly
, y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
an
d a

du
lts
 w
ith
 di
ffe
ren

t n
ee
ds
 an

d 
the

 ap
pro

ac
h t
ak
en
 to
 de

live
rin
g k

ey
 su

pp
ort

 se
rvi
ce
s. 
  

 Th
e c

ou
nc
il w

ill a
lso

 le
ad
 a 
co
lla
bo
rat

ive
 ap

pro
ac
h, 
an
d w

ith
 

ou
r p

art
ne
rs 
de
live

r s
erv

ice
s o

n a
 ci
ty-
wid

e b
as
is.
 

 All
 of

 th
is 
ac
tiv
ity
 w
ill h

av
e a

 m
ajo

r im
pa
ct 
on
 st
aff
, a
nd
 w
ith
 

thi
s i
n m

ind
 w
e w

ill p
ut 

in 
pla

ce
 sy

ste
ma

tic
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
wit

h 
sta

ff i
n o

rde
r th

at 
the

y a
re 

inf
orm

ed
 an

d i
nv
olv

ed
 in
 th

e 
de
sig

n, 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d d

eli
ve
ry 
of 

se
rvi
ce
s. 
 

 In 
ord

er 
to 
de
live

r, t
he
 co

un
cil 

wil
l m

ov
e f

rom
 a 
pro

jec
t to

 a 
pro

gra
mm

e-b
as
ed
 ap

pro
ac
h, 
en
co
mp

as
sin

g o
nly

 th
os
e 

pro
jec

ts 
in 
all
 se

rvi
ce
s t
ha
t a
re 

co
ntr

ibu
tin
g t
o t
he
 ne

w 
de
live

ry 
mo

de
l fo

r th
e c

ou
nc
il. 
 O
ur 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 in
dic

ato
rs 
wil

l b
e 

mo
re 

me
an
ing

ful
 an

d w
ill p

rov
ide

 a 
foc

us
 fo
r th

e d
eli
ve
ry 
of 

the
 bu

sin
es
s p

lan
. 

Page 110



 
35

W
ith
 th
is 
as
 co

nte
xt,
 th
e i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 of
 th
is 
bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 

an
d d

eli
ve
ry 
of 

se
rvi
ce
s w

ill b
e b

as
ed
 on

 th
e f
oll
ow

ing
 fiv

e 
pri
nc
ipl
es
: 

 
1. 

Tr
an
sfo

rm
 th

e w
ay
 pu

bli
c s

erv
ice

s a
re 

de
liv
ere

d 
 

 
• 

To
 pr

ov
ide

 be
tte

r v
alu

e f
or 

pu
bli
c s

ec
tor

 sp
en
din

g 
ac
ros

s t
he
 ci
ty,
 w
hic

h i
s f
oc
us
ed
 on

 be
tte
r s
erv

ice
s 

de
live

rin
g o

utc
om

es
 m
ore

 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d e
ffe
cti
ve
ly.
 

Th
is 
wil

l b
e a

ch
iev

ed
 by

 de
ve
lop

ing
 ne

w 
wa

ys
 of

 
de
live

rin
g s

erv
ice

s a
nd
 re

wa
rdi
ng
 an

d r
ec
og
nis

ing
 

go
od
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 as

 w
ell
 as

 ch
all
en
gin

g p
oo
r 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
; 

 2. 
Fo

cu
s i
nv
es
tm
en
t fo

r lo
ng

-te
rm

 su
sta

ina
ble

 
ec
on

om
ic 
gr
ow

th 
of 

the
 ci
ty 
an
d s

ur
ro
un

din
g a

rea
  

 • 
To

 se
cu
re 

ne
w 
lon

g-t
erm

, p
riv
ate

 se
cto

r in
ve
stm

en
t 

ha
nd
 in
 ha

nd
 w
ith
 de

ve
lop

ing
 ou

r o
wn

 as
se
ts 
to 

de
live

r 
aff
ord

ab
le 
ho
us
ing

,  t
o r

es
ha
pe
 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
 of

 
ed
uc
ati
on
 an

d c
ult
ure

 an
d t
o d

ev
elo

p s
us
tai
na
ble

 
co
mm

un
itie

s; 
       

3. 
Su

pp
or
t p

eo
ple

 an
d c

om
mu

nit
ies

 to
 he

lp 
the

ms
elv

es
  

 • 
To

 su
pp
ort

 in
div

idu
als

 an
d l
oc
al 
co
mm

un
itie

s t
o d

eli
ve
r 

se
rvi
ce
s, 
by
 bu

ild
ing

 ca
pa
cit
y w

ith
in 
co
mm

un
itie

s w
hic

h 
wil

l e
nc
ou
rag

e t
he
m 

to 
be
co
me

 in
vo
lve

d a
nd
 to
 ta

ke
 

res
po
ns
ibl
e f

or 
the

se
 se

rvi
ce
s; 

 4. 
De

liv
er 

se
rvi
ce
s w

hic
h m

ee
t p

eo
ple

’s 
ne
ed
s  

 
 • 

To
 un

de
rst
an
d t
he
 ne

ed
s o

f c
itiz

en
s w

ho
 liv

e a
nd
 w
ork

 
in 
Ab

erd
ee
n, 

an
d r

ed
uc
e t

he
 cu

ltu
re 

of 
de
pe
nd
en
cy
 

an
d e

xp
ec
tan

cy
 on

 co
un
cil 

se
rvi
ce
s e

xc
ep
t w

he
re 

the
re 

is 
rea

l n
ee
d; 
an
d  

 5. 
Wo

rk 
in 
pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 ot
he
r p

ub
lic
 se

cto
r 

or
ga
nis

ati
on

s, 
the

 pr
iva

te 
an
d v

olu
nta

ry 
se
cto

rs 
 

 • 
To

 fo
ste

r in
teg

rat
ed
 w
ork

ing
 be

tw
ee
n s

ec
tor

s t
o 

op
tim

ise
 pu

bli
c, 
vo
lun

tar
y a

nd
 pr

iva
te 

sp
en
d f
or 

the
 

be
ne
fit 
of 
the

 ci
tiz
en
s, 
co
mm

un
itie

s a
nd
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
s 

wo
rki
ng

 w
ith
in 
the

 ci
ty.
 

      

Page 111



 
36

5.3
 
Th
e t
ea
m 
to 

de
liv
er 

 Ou
r v
isio

n s
ets

 ou
t th

e n
ee
d f

or 
a h

igh
ly 
sk
ille

d a
nd
 m
oti
va
ted

 w
ork

for
ce
 w
hic

h w
ill d

eli
ve
r h

igh
-qu

ali
ty,
 co

st-
eff

ec
tiv
e a

nd
 cu

sto
me

r-
ce
ntr

ic 
se
rvi
ce
s. 
 Bu

ild
ing

 on
 th
e k

no
wle

dg
e a

nd
 ab

ility
 w
hic

h w
e a

lre
ad
y d

em
on
str
ate

, w
e a

re 
co
mm

itte
d t
o l
ea
rni
ng
 fro

m 
oth

ers
 

an
d d

ev
elo

pin
g o

ur 
sk
ills

 fu
rth

er.
  T

he
 m
an
ag
em

en
t s
tru

ctu
re 

of 
the

 co
un
cil 

is 
sh
ow

n i
n F

igu
re 

5 b
elo

w 
tog

eth
er 

wit
h a

rea
s o

f 
res

po
ns
ibi
lity

.  D
uri
ng
 th

e n
ex
t fi
ve
 ye

ars
 w
e c

om
mi
t to

 a 
rev

iew
 of

 th
e s

tru
ctu

res
 w
ith
in 
the

 co
un
cil 

to 
en
su
re 

ou
r re

so
urc

es
 ar

e b
es
t 

ma
tch

ed
 to

 de
live

r o
ur 

vis
ion

.   

 
Fin

an
ce
 

Le
ga

l &
 D
em

oc
rat

ic 
Hu

ma
n R

es
ou

rce
s &

 
Or

ga
nis

ati
on

al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Cu
sto

me
r S

erv
ice

  
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
 

IC
T 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Pl

an
nin

g 
Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

Sc
ho

ols
 & 

Ed
uc
ati
on
 

Es
tab

lish
me

nts
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 

Ed
uc
ati
on

al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt,

 Po
licy

 
an

d P
erf

orm
an

ce
 

Ch
ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

Ad
ult
 Se

rvi
ce
s 

Ol
de

r P
eo

ple
 & 

Re
ha

bil
ita
tio
n 

Ec
on

om
ic/
Bu

sin
es
s 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Pr
oje

ct 
Dir

ec
tio
n 

As
se
t M

an
ag

em
en

t &
 

Op
era

tio
ns
 

Pla
nn

ing
 an

d 
Su

sta
ina

ble
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

En
vir
on

me
nt 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Ho
us
ing

 an
d C

om
mu

nit
y 

Sa
fet

y 
Re

ge
ne

rat
ion

 &
 H
ou

sin
g 

Inv
es
tm

en
t 

 Fig
. 5
 

 
 

 

Ch
ief
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
 

Di
rec

tor
 

Co
rp
or
ate

 
Go

ve
rn
an
ce

 

Di
rec

tor
 

Ed
uc
ati
on

 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt

 
 

Di
rec

tor
  

So
cia

l C
are

 an
d 

We
llb
ein

g 
Di
rec

tor
 

En
ter

pr
ise

 
Pla

nn
ing

 an
d 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 

Di
rec

tor
 

Ho
us
ing

 an
d 

En
vir
on

me
nt 

Page 112



 

37
 

(i) 
    
Ou

r a
pp
ro
ac
h t
o e

mp
loy

ee
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
 

Su
cc
es
sfu

l d
eli
ve
ry 
of 

the
 se

rvi
ce
 op

tio
ns
 ou

tlin
ed
 in
 th
e b

us
ine

ss
 pl
an
 is
 de

pe
nd
en
t o
n t
he
 qu

ali
ty 
an
d c

om
mi
tm
en
t o
f o

ur 
em

plo
ye
es
.  W

e r
ec
og
nis

e t
ha
t w

e a
lre
ad
y h

av
e a

 w
ork

for
ce
 w
hic

h h
as
 a 
str
on
g p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r a
nd
 w
ork

 et
ho
s a

nd
 is
 m

oti
va
ted

 
to 

do
 a 

go
od
 jo
b f

or 
the

 ci
tiz
en
s o

f A
be
rde

en
. 

 Th
e c

ha
lle
ng
e o

ve
r th

e n
ex
t fi
ve
 ye

ars
 w
ill b

e t
o c

on
tin
ue
 to
 de

live
r h

igh
 qu

ali
ty 
se
rvi
ce
s w

ith
 a 

sm
all
er 

co
re 

wo
rkf
orc

e, 
a 

res
tric

ted
 bu

dg
et 
an
d i
nc
rea

sin
g c

us
tom

er 
ex
pe
cta

tio
ns
.  T

his
 w
ill d

ep
en
d o

n h
ow

 w
ell
 w
e e

ng
ag
e o

ur 
em

plo
ye
es
 an

d w
ill 

req
uir
e a

 m
uc
h g

rea
ter

 em
ph
as
is 
on
 an

d u
nd
ers

tan
din

g o
f e
mp

loy
ee
 en

ga
ge
me

nt.
 

 ‘En
ga
ge
d’ 
em

plo
ye
es
 un

de
rst
an
d t

he
 bu

sin
es
s n

ee
ds
, a
re 

co
mm

itte
d t
o t

he
ir w

ork
 an

d a
dd
 va

lue
 to
 th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on
.  E

ffe
cti
ve
 

em
plo

ye
e e

ng
ag
em

en
t h
as
 be

en
 sh

ow
n t

o b
en
efi
t o
rga

nis
ati
on
s t
hro

ug
h i
nc
rea

se
d p

erf
orm

an
ce
 an

d r
ete

nti
on
.  I
t a
lso

 be
ne
fits

 
em

plo
ye
es
 th

rou
gh
 gr

ea
ter

 jo
b s

ati
sfa

cti
on
 an

d u
ltim

ate
ly 
cu
sto

me
rs 
thr

ou
gh
 po

sit
ive

 im
pa
ct 
on
 se

rvi
ce
 de

live
ry.
   

 En
ga
ge
me

nt 
de
pe
nd
s o

n h
ow

 th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on
 de

als
 w
ith
 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 
fac

tor
s i
nc
lud

ing
: 

 • 
Ho

w 
we

 co
mm

un
ica

te 
• 

Ho
w 
we

 w
ork

 to
ge
the

r a
s c

oll
ea
gu
es
, te

am
s, 
se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 w
ith
 pa

rtn
ers

 
• 

Th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 ou

r le
ad
ers

hip
 an

d m
an
ag
em

en
t 

• 
Ho

w 
we

 tre
at 

ou
r e

mp
loy

ee
s i
n t

erm
s o

f b
ein

g f
air
, fl
ex
ibl
e a

nd
 fa
mi
ly 
frie

nd
ly 

• 
Ho

w 
we

 m
an
ag
e p

erf
orm

an
ce
 an

d r
ew

ard
 ou

r e
mp

loy
ee
s  

• 
Ho

w 
we

ll w
e m

an
ag
e o

ur 
em

plo
ye
es
’ h
ea
lth
, s
afe

ty 
an
d w

ell
be
ing

 
• 

Th
e a

va
ila
bil
ity
 of

 tra
ini
ng
, d

ev
elo

pm
en
t a
nd
 ca

ree
r o

pp
ort

un
itie

s 
• 

Ho
w 
sa
tis
fie
d e

mp
loy

ee
s a

re 
wit

h t
he
ir w

ork
 an

d w
ith
 th
eir
 em

plo
ye
r. 

 Th
e l
ev
el 
of 

cu
rre

nt 
sa
tis
fac

tio
n w

ith
 th
e a

bo
ve
 w
as
 m

ea
su
red

 th
rou

gh
 th

e 2
01
0 E

mp
loy

ee
 O
pin

ion
 Su

rve
y. 
 An

 ac
tio
n p

lan
 ha

s 
be
en
 pu

t in
 pl
ac
e t
o b

uil
d o

n t
he
 po

sit
ive

 ou
tco

me
s o

f th
is 
su
rve

y a
nd
 at

 th
e s

am
e t

im
e b

rin
g a

bo
ut 
im
pro

ve
me

nts
 in
 ar

ea
s s

uc
h 

as
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 an

d a
pp
rai
sa
l, c

om
mu

nic
ati
on
 an

d j
ob
 sa

tis
fac

tio
n. 

 As
 pa

rt o
f th

is 
ac
tio
n p

lan
, a
nd
 in
 de

live
rin
g o

n t
he
 bu

sin
es
s p

lan
, w

e a
re 

als
o c

om
mi
tte
d t
o p

rov
idi
ng
: 

 • 
Str

on
g, 
vis

ibl
e l
ea
de
rsh

ip 
 

• 
Cla

rity
 of

 vi
sio

n a
nd
 di
rec

tio
n 

• 
Op

en
 an

d h
on
es
t c
om

mu
nic

ati
on
 on

 de
cis

ion
s a

ffe
cti
ng
 em

plo
ye
es
 at
 as

 ea
rly
 a 

sta
ge
 as

 po
ss
ibl
e 

Page 113



 

38
 

• 
Me

ch
an
ism

s f
or 

em
plo

ye
es
 to

 fe
ed
ba
ck
 vi
ew

s, 
su
gg
es
tio
ns
 an

d i
nn
ov
ati
on
s 

• 
Co

ns
ult
ati
on
 an

d i
nv
olv

em
en
t, w

he
re 

thi
s i
s p

os
sib

le,
 in
for

ma
tio
n w

he
re 

it i
s n

ot 
an
d c

lar
ity
 of

 w
hic

h i
s b

ein
g o

ffe
red

. 
• 

On
go
ing

 an
d r

eg
ula

r m
on
ito
rin
g o

f e
mp

loy
ee
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
thr

ou
gh
 a 
ran

ge
 of

 m
ea
ns
 in
clu

din
g f

oc
us
 gr

ou
ps
, b
rie
fin
gs
 an

d 
tec

hn
olo

gy
.  

 

Page 114



 

39
 

42
%

18
%

14
%26
%

Gr
an

t
Co

un
cil 

tax
No

n-d
om

es
tic

 ra
tes

Fe
es

 an
d c

ha
rge

s

6. 
Fin

an
cia

l p
lan

 
 

6.1
 
Ho

w 
we

 ar
e f
un
de
d 

 Th
e c

ou
nc
il r
ec
eiv

es
 fu
nd
ing

 th
rou

gh
 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 

so
urc

es
, 

wh
ich

 in
clu

de
: 

 • 
Ge

ne
ral
 R
ev
en
ue
 G
ran

t; 
• 

Co
un
cil 

tax
; 

• 
No

n-d
om

es
tic
 ra

tes
; 

• 
Fe

es
 an

d c
ha
rge

s. 
 

Fig
ure

 6 
sh
ow

s t
he
 pe

rce
nta

ge
 of
 co

un
cil 

fun
din

g b
y s

ou
rce

. 
  

6.2
 
As

su
mp

tio
ns
 

 Th
e f

oll
ow

ing
 as

su
mp

tio
ns
 ha

ve
 be

en
 m
ad
e (

an
d a

re 
by
 no

 m
ea
ns
 ex

ha
us
tiv
e) 

wit
hin

 th
e f

ive
-ye

ar 
bu
sin

es
s p

lan
.   
 

 
• 

Ge
ne
ral
 R
ev
en
ue
 G
ran

t is
 as

su
me

d t
o f
all
 as

 fo
llo
ws

:- 
 

Ye
ar 

2 
Ye
ar 

3 
Ye
ar 

4 
Ye
ar 

5 
2.5

% 
2%

 
1%

 
sta

tic
 

 
• 

A s
ma

ll in
cre

as
e i
n t
he
 nu

mb
er 

of 
pro

pe
rtie

s o
n t
he
 co

un
cil 

tax
 ch

arg
e i
s b

ud
ge
ted

 fo
r in

 20
11
/12

 bu
t th

ere
aft
er 

rem
ain

s s
tat

ic;
 

 • 
No

 pa
y a

wa
rds

 ha
ve
 be

en
 bu

ilt 
int
o t
he
 bu

sin
es
s p

lan
 fo

r y
ea
rs 
1 o

r 2
 fo

r a
ny
 st
aff
 gr

ou
p, 

an
d t
he
rea

fte
r 1

% 
ha
s b

ee
n 

as
su
me

d; 
 

• 
De

mo
gra

ph
ic 
ch
an
ge
s i
n t

he
 el
de
rly
 po

pu
lat
ion

 ha
ve
 be

en
 m
od
ell
ed
 w
ith
in 
So

cia
l C

are
 an

d W
ell
be
ing

; 
 

Fig
. 6
 

Page 115



 

40
 

• 
Inc

rea
se
d k

ins
hip

 ca
rer

s a
llo
wa

nc
es
 ha

ve
 be

en
 fa
cto

red
 in
 ov

er 
the

 fiv
e-y

ea
r m

od
el;
 

 
• 

Th
e f

ull
-ye

ar 
im
pa
ct 
of 
the

 un
ita
ry 
ch
arg

e i
n r

ela
tio
n t
o t
he
 3R

’s 
Pr
oje

ct 
ha
s b

ee
n b

uil
t in

to 
the

 m
od
el;
 

 
• 

Ad
dit
ion

al 
co
st 
pre

ss
ure

s a
nd
 re

du
cti
on
s f
or 

ad
dit
ion

al 
wa

ste
 di
sp
os
al 
co
sts

 an
d L

an
dfi
ll A

llo
wa

nc
e/T

ax
 ne

t im
pa
ct 
is 

es
tim

ate
d b

as
ed
 on

 cu
rre

nt 
leg

isla
tio
n; 

 
• 

It i
s a

ss
um

ed
 th
at 
the

 co
un
cil 

wil
l b
e s

ub
jec

t to
 th
e n

ew
 ca

rbo
n a

cc
ou
nti
ng
 re

gu
lat
ion

s a
nd
 th
is 
ha
s t
he
ref

ore
 be

en
 

fac
tor

ed
 in
; 

 
• 

Inc
rea

se
d c

os
t o
f h

om
ele

ss
ne
ss
 an

d t
he
 in
cre

as
ing

 tre
nd
s o

f p
eo
ple

 pr
es
en
tin
g t
he
ms

elv
es
 as

 ho
me

les
s; 

 
• 

Pr
ov
isio

ns
 an

d s
pe
cif
ic 
all
ow

an
ce
s a

re 
ca
ptu

red
 w
ith
in 
the

 m
od
el 
for

 ite
ms

 su
ch
 as

 no
n-d

om
es
tic
 ra

tes
, c
ap
ita
l 

fin
an
cin

g c
ha
rge

s, 
uti
lity

 bi
lls 

etc
. 

 
• 

An
 al
low

an
ce
 fo
r a

lte
rna

tiv
e, 

se
rvi
ce
-de

live
ry 
mo

de
ls 
ha
s b

ee
n m

ad
e; 

 
• 

An
y c

os
t o
f re

du
nd
an
cy
 as

so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 se

rvi
ce
 op

tio
ns
 ba

se
d o

n a
 vo

lun
tar

y s
ch
em

e i
s i
nh
ere

nt 
wit

hin
 th

e m
od
el 
an
d 

ba
se
d o

n t
he
 cu

rre
nt 
pro

file
 of
 em

plo
ye
es
 w
ith
in 
the

 co
un
cil;

 
 

• 
A c

ap
ita
l p
rog

ram
me

 of
 £4

0 m
illio

n i
n 2

01
1/1

2, 
£2
7 m

illio
n i
n 2

01
2/1

3 a
nd
 £1

7 m
illio

n t
he
rea

fte
r h

as
 be

en
 as

su
me

d; 
 

• 
An

 av
era

ge
 Lo

an
s P

oo
l R

ate
 of
 be

tw
ee
n 5

.25
% 

an
d 6

% 
ha
s b

ee
n u

se
d o

ve
r th

e p
eri
od
 of
 th
e b

us
ine

ss
 pl
an
. 

  
It c

an
 be

 se
en
 th
at 
the

 co
mp

lex
itie

s o
f a

n o
rga

nis
ati
on
 th
at 
pro

vid
es
 a 

wid
e-r

an
gin

g l
ist
 of

 se
rvi
ce
s d

oe
s r
eq
uir
e a

 gr
ea
t d

ea
l 

of 
es
tim

ati
on
 to
 pr

oje
ct 
int
o t
he
 fu
tur

e. 
 Th

is 
is 
do
ne
 in
 a 
tim

e o
f e

co
no
mi
c u

nc
ert

ain
ty 
wit

hin
 bo

th 
the

 U
nit
ed
 Ki

ng
do
m 
an
d 

wo
rld
 ec

on
om

ies
. 

 Ind
ee
d, 
the

 co
un
cil 

ha
s r
ec
eiv

ed
 a 

red
uc
tio
n i
n t

he
 ca

sh
 it 
rec

eiv
es
 by

 w
ay
 of

 G
en
era

l R
ev
en
ue
 G
ran

t fo
r 2

01
1/1

2 –
 

so
me

thi
ng
 th
at 

is 
un
pre

ce
de
nte

d i
n t
he
 hi
sto

ry 
of 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 C
ou
nc
il. 
 Th

is 
giv

es
 an

 in
dic

ati
on
 of

 th
e d

iffi
cu
ltie

s i
n t

ryi
ng
 

to 
pro

jec
t w

ith
 ce

rta
int
y i
nto

 th
e m

ed
ium

 te
rm

. 
  

Page 116



 

41
 

6.3
 
Fu
nd
ing

, s
pe
nd
 an

d s
av
ing

s 
 Th

e c
ou
nc
il’s

 ex
pe
cte

d f
un
din

g, 
sp
en
d a

nd
 sa

vin
gs
 w
hic

h a
re 

ba
se
d o

n t
he
se
 as

su
mp

tio
ns
 ar

e: 
 

 
Ye

ar 
1 

(20
11

/12
)  

Ye
ar 

2 
(20

12
/13

) 
Ye

ar 
3 

(20
13

/14
) 

Ye
ar 

4 
(20

14
/15

) 
Ye

ar 
5 

(20
15

/16
) 

 
£'0

00
 

£'0
00

 
£'0

00
 

£'0
00

 
£'0

00
 

Fu
nd

ing
 

(45
0,3

11
) 

(44
1,6

62
) 

(43
4,9

59
) 

(43
1,5

60
) 

(43
1,3

54
) 

Ot
he

r fu
nd

ing
 

(10
.27

6) 
 

 
 

 
Cu

rre
nt 

sp
en

d 
47

6,1
64

 
49

1,6
55

 
51

1,5
00

 
52

6,2
76

 
53

6,7
17

 
Ind

ica
tiv

e s
ho

rtfa
ll 

15
,57

7 
49

,99
3 

76
,54

1 
94

,71
6 

10
5,3

63
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  Th

e c
ou
nc
il a

pp
rov

ed
 its

 20
11
/12

 G
en
era

l F
un
d R

ev
en
ue
 Bu

dg
et 

on
 10

 Fe
bru

ary
 20

11
 w
hic

h s
et 
the

 bu
dg
et 
for

 th
at 
fin
an
cia

l 
ye
ar 

an
d a

gre
ed
 th
e i
mp

lem
en
tat

ion
 of
 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 

se
rvi
ce
 op

tio
ns
.  T

he
 fo

llo
win

g s
erv

ice
 op

tio
ns
 w
ere

 ap
pro

ve
d i
n 2

01
1/1

2 
an
d t
he
 ne

t s
av
ing

s f
rom

 th
es
e o

pti
on
s a

re:
 

 
Se

rvi
ce

 op
tio

ns
 ac

ce
pte

d:
 

20
11

/12
 

20
12

/13
 

20
13

/14
 

20
14

/15
 

20
15

/16
 

 
£’0

00
 

£’0
00

 
£’0

00
 

£’0
00

 
£’0

00
 

Co
rpo

rat
e G

ov
ern

an
ce

 
(1,

85
6) 

(7,
52

9) 
(8,

86
3) 

(9,
22

7) 
(9,

99
1) 

So
cia

l C
are

 an
d W

ell
be

ing
 

(1,
38

4) 
(10

,27
6) 

(14
,20

1) 
(14

,72
5) 

(15
,39

0) 
Ed

uc
ati

on
, C

ult
ure

 an
d S

po
rt 

(2,
76

7) 
(8,

60
6) 

(11
,33

0) 
(13

,96
0) 

(13
,45

3) 
Ho

us
ing

 an
d E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
(68

8) 
(3,

62
6) 

(5,
37

0) 
(8,

73
1) 

(11
,79

8) 
En

ter
pri

se
, P

lan
nin

g a
nd

 In
fra

str
uc

tur
e 

(1,
49

8) 
(3,

17
2) 

(9,
41

6) 
(10

,11
6) 

(11
,43

2) 
Co

un
cil-

wid
e o

pti
on

s 
(7,

38
4) 

(6,
52

7) 
(8,

01
5) 

(8,
54

9) 
(9,

51
1) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

To
tal

 se
rvi

ce
 op

tio
ns

 
(15

,57
7) 

(39
,73

5) 
(57

,19
5) 

(65
,30

8) 
(71

,57
5) 

   Th
is 
cle

arl
y d

em
on
str
ate

s t
he
 co

un
cil’

s c
om

mi
tm

en
t to

 im
ple

me
nti
ng
 a 
ful
ly-
co
ste

d b
us
ine

ss
 pl
an
 ov

er 
the

 m
ed
ium

 te
rm

, w
ith
 

so
me

 £7
2 m

illio
n o

f s
av
ing

s b
ein

g d
eli
ve
red

 by
 20

15
/16

. 
 

Fig
. 7
    

 
 

 
 

 
 

    
 (N

ote
: B

rac
ke

ts 
de

mo
ns

tra
te 

inc
om

e) 

Fig
. 8
 

Page 117



 

42
 

No
tw
ith
sta

nd
ing

 th
e s

erv
ice

 op
tio
ns
 in
 Fi
gu
re 

8 t
ha
t h
av
e b

ee
n a

cc
ep
ted

 by
 co

un
cil,

 th
e r

es
ult
ing

 ga
p w

ill b
e f

ille
d b

y f
urt

he
r 

se
rvi
ce
 op

tio
ns
 w
hic

h w
ill b

e c
on
sid

ere
d a

s p
art

 of
 th
e i
ter

ati
on
 pr

oc
es
s o

f re
vie

win
g t
he
 bu

sin
es
s p

lan
.  I
n a

dd
itio

n, 
it i
s l
ike

ly 
tha

t o
ve
r th

e p
eri
od
 of
 th
e f

ive
 ye

ars
, th

ere
 w
ill b

e s
ign

ific
an
t c
ha
ng
es
 in
 th
e l
ev
el 
of 
fun

din
g a

nd
 sp

en
d w

hic
h w

ill i
mp

ac
t o
n t

he
 

lev
el 
of 

sa
vin

gs
 re

qu
ire
d. 

  6.4
 
 

Se
ns
itiv

ity
 an

aly
sis

 
 Th

e f
oll
ow

ing
 se

ns
itiv

ity
 an

aly
sis

 sh
ow

s t
he
 im

pa
ct 
on
 th
e f
un
din

g s
ho
wn

 in
 Fi
gu
re 

7 i
f th

e a
ss
um

pti
on
s o

n g
ran

t fu
nd
ing

 an
d 

co
un
cil 

tax
 ar

e v
ari
ed
 as

 de
tai
led

 in
 th
e t
ab
le.
 

 
 

   W
ha
t th

is 
an
aly

sis
 sh

ow
s i
s t
ha
t if
 th
e g

ran
t to

 th
e c

ou
nc
il w

as
 to

 be
 in
cre

as
ed
, in

 ca
sh
 te
rm

s, 
by
 1%

 pe
r a

nn
um

 fro
m 
the

 
20
11
/12

 gr
an
t s
ett
lem

en
t b

y y
ea
r 5

 th
e c

ou
nc
il w

ou
ld 
be
 in
 re

ce
ipt
 of
 an

 ad
dit
ion

al 
£3
1.8

73
 m
illio

n o
r £

18
.20

1 m
illio

n c
om

pa
red

 
to 

the
 gr

an
t b
ein

g f
roz

en
 ov

er 
the

 pe
rio
d. 

 C
lea

rly
 th

is 
ca
n b

e v
ari
ed
 to

 re
fle
ct,
 sa

y, 
a f

roz
en
 gr

an
t s
ett

lem
en
t fo

r y
ea
rs 
2 a

nd
 3 

an
d, 
sa
y, 
a 1

% 
inc

rea
se
 in
 ye

ars
 4 
an
d 5

.  T
his

 sh
ow

s t
he
 co

un
cil 

to 
be
 in
 re

ce
ipt
 of
 an

 ad
dit
ion

al 
£9
.68

4 m
illio

n. 
 Sim

ila
rly
 a 

1%
 in
cre

as
e i
n c

ou
nc
il t
ax
 ov

er 
the

 bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 pe

rio
d w

ill r
es
ult
 in
 th
e g

en
era

tio
n o

f a
dd
itio

na
l in

co
me

 ov
er 

the
 

pe
rio
d a

s w
ill a

n a
ss
um

pti
on
 th
at 
the

 nu
mb

er 
of 

Ba
nd
 D
 pr

op
ert

ies
 w
ill g

row
 by

 0.
5%

 pe
r a

nn
um

. 
 W
ha
t th

is 
se
ns
itiv

ity
 an

aly
sis

 sh
ow

s i
s t
ha
t a

 sm
all
 m
ov
em

en
t in

 th
e l
ev
el 
of 

co
un
cil 

tax
 or

 gr
an
t fu

nd
ing

 w
ill h

av
e q

uit
e a

 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
im
pa
ct 
on
 th
e o

ve
ral
l b
us
ine

ss
 pl
an
 m

od
el.
  T

he
 co

un
cil 

is 
cu
rre

ntl
y a

wa
itin

g f
urt

he
r d

eta
ils 

on
 th
e l
ike

ly 
se
ttle

me
nt 
for

 
the

 fin
an
cia

l y
ea
r 2

01
2/1

3. 
 

 
Ye

ar 
2 

(20
12

/13
) 

Ye
ar 

3 
(20

13
/14

) 
Ye

ar 
4 

(20
14

/15
) 

Ye
ar 

5 
(20

15
/16

) 
 

£'0
00

 
£'0

00
 

£'0
00

 
£'0

00
 

1%
 in

cre
as

e i
n g

ran
t 

11
,78

5 
21

,75
2 

28
,40

4 
31

,87
3 

Gr
an

t fr
oz

en
 at

 20
11

/12
 le

ve
l 

8,4
18

 
14

,98
4 

18
,20

1 
18

,20
1 

Fre
ez

e y
ea

r 2
/3,

 1%
 ye

ar 
4/5

 
0 

0 
6,4

35
 

9,6
84

 
1%

 in
cre

as
e i

n c
ou

nc
il t

ax
 

1,0
66

 
2,1

43
 

3,2
31

 
4,3

30
 

0.5
% 

inc
rea

se
 - c

ou
nc

il t
ax

 pr
op

ert
ies

 
53

3 
1,6

05
 

2,6
87

 
3,7

80
 

Fig
. 9
 

Page 118



 

43
 

Fig
. 1
0 

A s
im
ila
r a

na
lys

is 
ca
n a

lso
 be

 ap
pli
ed
 to
 th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 co
st 
ba
se
 ov

er 
the

 sa
me

 pe
rio
d. 
 Th

is 
ex
am

ine
s t
he
 m
ajo

r a
rea

s o
f s
pe
nd
 

tha
t is

 su
bje

ct 
to 
inc

rea
sin

g c
os
ts 
ov
er 

the
 bu

sin
es
s p

lan
 pe

rio
d t
o d

ete
rm

ine
 th
e i
mp

ac
t o
f th

es
e a

ss
um

pti
on
s v

ary
ing

. 
 Th

e l
arg

es
t c
os
t th

e c
ou
nc
il f
ac
es
 is
 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 st
aff
 co

sts
.  A

s s
uc
h a

 se
ns
itiv

ity
 an

aly
sis

 ha
s b

ee
n a

pp
lie
d t
o t
he
 ap

pli
ca
tio
n 

of 
pa
y a

wa
rds

.  A
t p

res
en
t n
o p

ay
 aw

ard
 ha

s b
ee
n f

ac
tor

ed
 in
to 
the

 m
od
el 
for

 20
11
/12

 an
d 2

01
2/1

3 b
as
ed
 on

 cu
rre

nt 
go
ve
rnm

en
t a
nn
ou
nc
em

en
ts 
aro

un
d p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r p
ay
.  A

 1%
 pa

y a
wa

rd 
is 
the

n f
ac
tor

ed
 in
 fo

r fu
tur

e y
ea
rs.
   

  Th
e t

ab
le 
be
low

 illu
str
ate

s h
ow

 th
e c

os
t b
as
e w

ou
ld 
va
ry 
an

nu
all
y g

ive
n a

 di
ffe
ren

t s
et 
of 

as
su
mp

tio
ns
: 

 
 

   A 1
% 

pa
y a

wa
rd 

ea
ch
 ye

ar 
inc

rea
se
s c

os
ts 
an
nu
all
y b

y a
pp
rox

im
ate

ly 
£4
.5 
mi
llio

n w
he
re 

ex
ten

din
g t
he
 pa

y f
ree

ze
 fo

r a
n 

ad
dit
ion

al 
ye
ar 

res
ult
s i
n a

 sa
vin

g f
or 

ye
ar 

3 w
hil
e t

his
 co

st 
inc

rea
se
s i
n y

ea
r 5

, a
ss
um

ing
 a 
2%

 pa
y a

wa
rd.

 
 Th

e o
the

r m
ajo

r c
os
t th

e c
ou
nc
il in

cu
rs 
is 
in 
rel
ati
on
 to

 th
e c

ap
ita
l p
rog

ram
me

 an
d t
he
 re

ve
nu
e i
mp

ac
t o
n a

dd
itio

na
l b
orr

ow
ing

.  
Fo

r e
ve
ry 
£1
 m

illio
n o

f a
dd
itio

na
l b
orr

ow
ing

 th
e r

es
ult
 is
 an

 ad
dit
ion

al 
ch
arg

e o
f a

pp
rox

im
ate

ly 
£7
50
,00

0 p
er 

an
nu
m.
  T

he
ref

ore
, 

thi
s c

lea
rly
 de

mo
ns
tra

tes
 th
e n

ee
d f
or 

the
 co

un
cil 

to 
ma

int
ain

 th
e c

urr
en
t p

roj
ec
ted

 le
ve
l o
f c
ap
ita
l in

ve
stm

en
t. 

 To
 pu

t th
is 
in 
co
nte

xt,
 an

 ad
dit
ion

al 
£3
 m
illio

n o
f in

ve
stm

en
t fr

om
 ye

ar 
2 t

o 4
 w
ill r

es
ult
 in
 in
cre

as
ed
 ca

pit
al 
fin
an
cin

g c
ha
rge

s i
n 

ye
ar 

5 o
f a

pp
rox

im
ate

ly 
£7
 m

illio
n. 

 Fin
all
y, 
the

re 
are

 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 
fac

tor
s w

hic
h t
he
 co

un
cil 

is 
req

uir
ed
 to
 co

mp
ly 
wit

h, 
eit
he
r th

rou
gh
 le
gis

lat
ive

 re
qu
ire
me

nts
 or

 
be
ca
us
e t
he
y a

re 
for

me
d b

y n
ati
on
al 
ag
ree

me
nts

. 
 Th

ere
 ar

e a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
ex
am

ple
s t
ha
t re

lat
e t
o l
eg
isla

tiv
e r

eq
uir
em

en
ts 
su
ch
 as

 w
as
te 

pe
na
ltie

s w
hic

h a
re 

pla
cin

g a
n i
nc
rea

se
d 

bu
rde

n o
n t

he
 co

un
cil’

s c
os
t b
as
e a

s n
ati
on
al 
an
d i
nte

rna
tio
na
l ta

rge
ts 
are

 im
po
se
d u

po
n l
oc
al 
au
tho

riti
es
.  T

his
 pl
ac
es
 an

 
ad
dit
ion

al 
rev

en
ue
 bu

rde
n o

n t
he
 20

11
/12

 re
ve
nu
e b

ud
ge
t o
f £
2.2

 m
illio

n. 
 

 
 

Ye
ar 

2 
(20

12
/13

) 
Ye

ar 
3 

(20
13

/14
) 

Ye
ar 

4 
(20

14
/15

) 
Ye

ar 
5 

(20
15

/16
) 

 
 

£'0
00

 
£'0

00
 

£'0
00

 
£'0

00
 

1%
 pe

r a
nn

um
 

 
4,4

42
 

4,4
86

 
4,5

81
 

4,5
77

 
0%

 ye
ars

 2/
3, 

2%
 th

ere
aft

er 
 

0 
(4,

44
2) 

(1)
 

4,3
47

 

Page 119



 

44
 

Co
nv
ers

ely
, th

ere
 ar

e a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
na
tio
na
l a
gre

em
en
ts 
tha

t th
e c

ou
nc
il h

as
 en

ter
ed
 in
to 

wh
ich

 ne
ed
 to
 be

 re
vie

we
d a

s t
he
y a

re 
no
 lo
ng
er 

su
sta

ina
ble

 or
 af
for

da
ble

 in
 th
e m

ed
ium

 te
rm

.  A
ga
in,
 as

 an
 ex

am
ple

, th
is 
wo

uld
 in
clu

de
 th

e M
cC

ron
e A

gre
em

en
t 

wh
ich

 di
rec

tly
 im

pa
cts

 on
 te
ac
hin

g s
taf
f.  
Th

is 
ag
ree

me
nt 

inf
lue

nc
es
 an

d s
ha
pe
s t
he
 nu

mb
er 

of 
co
nta

ct 
ho
urs

 te
ac
hin

g s
taf
f h

av
e 

wit
h p

up
ils 

as
 w
ell
 as

 th
eir
 ov

era
ll a

rch
ing

 te
rm

s a
nd
 co

nd
itio

ns
 al
l o
f w

hic
h a

re 
aim

ed
 at
 im

pro
vin

g t
he
 st
an
da
rd 

of 
tea

ch
ing

. 
 Ag

ain
 pu

ttin
g t
his

 in
 co

nte
xt 
if t
he
 co

nta
ct 
tim

e w
as
 in
cre

as
ed
 w
ith
in 
all
 pr

im
ary

 an
d s

ec
on
da
ry 
sc
ho
ols

 th
e c

ou
nc
il w

ou
ld 
be
 ab

le 
to 

ac
hie

ve
 ov

er 
£7
 m
illio

n o
f re

du
ce
d c

os
ts 
an
nu
all
y. 
 Th

is 
is 
no
w 
be
ing

 ad
dre

ss
ed
 th
rou

gh
 th
e s

ett
lem

en
t a

gre
em

en
t w

ith
 th
e 

Sc
ott

ish
 G
ov
ern

me
nt.
 

 In 
su
mm

ary
, a

s t
he
 se

ns
itiv

ity
 an

aly
sis

 de
mo

ns
tra

tes
, it
 is
 hi
gh
ly 
like

ly 
tha

t th
e l
ev
els

 of
 fu
nd
ing

, c
os
ts 
an
d s

ho
rtfa

lls 
wil

l c
ha
ng
e, 

res
ult
ing

 in
 a 
fur

the
r re

vie
w 
of 

the
 se

rvi
ce
 op

tio
ns
. 

 

Page 120



 

45
 

 7.
 
Ho

w 
wi
ll w

e m
ea
su
re 

ou
r p

erf
or
ma

nc
e?
 

 Th
is 
im
pa
ct 
of 
the

 de
live

ry 
of 

thi
s b

us
ine

ss
 pl
an
 w
ill b

e m
ea
su
red

 in
 th
e f
oll
ow

ing
 w
ay
s: 

 1. 
Pu

bli
c s

erv
ice

 va
lue

 
 Me

as
uri
ng
 pu

bli
c v

alu
e f
oc
us
es
 bo

th 
on
 th
e p

ub
lic 

inv
es
tm

en
t in

 se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 on

 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 

im
pro

ve
d r

es
ult
s f
or 

cit
ize

ns
 an

d 
co
mm

un
itie

s. 
 Th

rou
gh
 th

e e
va
lua

tio
n o

f o
utc

om
e m

ea
su
res

 w
e w

ill d
em

on
str
ate

 th
e i
mp

ac
ts,
 be

ne
fits

 an
d c

on
se
qu
en
ce
s o

f th
e 

ac
tiv
itie

s d
riv
en
 th

rou
gh
 th
e b

us
ine

ss
 pl
an
 an

d t
hro

ug
h t

he
 re

co
rdi
ng
 of

 w
ho
le 
sy
ste

m 
ac
co
un
tin
g w

e w
ill s

ho
w 
the

 co
st 
of 

tho
se
 

ac
tiv
itie

s. 
 Fo

llo
win

g t
he
 fo

rm
al 
ag
ree

me
nt 

of 
the

 co
un
cil’

s b
ud
ge
tar

y o
pti
on
s i
n F

eb
rua

ry 
20
11
, a
 m
od
el 
of 
pu
bli
c s

erv
ice

 va
lue

 w
ill 

be
 po

pu
lat
ed
 fo

r th
is 
bu
sin

es
s p

lan
, li
nk
ing

 ou
r p

rio
riti
es
 to

 lo
ca
l o
utc

om
es
 ea

ch
 of
 w
hic

h w
ill b

e m
on
ito
red

 th
rou

gh
 th

e a
pp
rop

ria
te 

me
tric

s. 
 2. 

Se
lf-e

va
lua

tio
n 

 Th
e c

ou
nc
il h

as
 be

gu
n, 
an
d i
s d

ev
elo

pin
g, 
a p

rog
ram

me
 of
 se

lf-e
va
lua

tio
n u

sin
g t
he
 m
od
el 
‘Ho

w 
Go

od
 is
 O
ur 

Co
un

cil?
’  A

s w
ell
 as

 
be
ing

 an
 im

po
rta

nt 
too

l to
 m
an
ag
e i
mp

rov
em

en
t, s

elf
-ev

alu
ati
on
 by

 co
un
cils

 is
 a 

req
uir
em

en
t o
f p

ha
se
 tw

o o
f A

ud
it S

co
tla
nd
’s 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 fo
r T

he
 Au

dit
 of
 Be

st 
Va

lue
 an

d C
om

mu
nit
y P

lan
nin

g (
BV

2).
   

 3. 
Re

gu
lat
ion

 an
d i
ns
pe
cti
on

 
 Th

e v
ari
ou
s b

od
ies

 re
sp
on
sib

le 
for

 in
sp
ec
tio
n a

nd
 re

gu
lat
ion

 of
 th
e c

ou
nc
il’s

 se
rvi
ce
, o

pe
rat

ing
 as

 a 
Lo
ca
l A

rea
 N
etw

ork
, c
urr

en
tly
 

un
de
rta

ke
 an

 an
nu
al 
rol
lin
g e

va
lua

tio
n o

f th
e c

ou
nc
il a

nd
 de

ve
lop

 a 
ris
k-b

as
ed
 as

su
ran

ce
 an

d i
mp

rov
em

en
t p
lan

 (A
IP)

.  T
he
 AI

P 
ha
s t
hre

e e
lem

en
ts 
to 

it: 
 

• 
An

 as
se
ss
me

nt 
of 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 ag

ain
st 
ou
tco

me
s 

• 
An

 as
se
ss
me

nt 
of 
the

 pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 of
 in
div

idu
al 
se
rvi
ce
s 

• 
An

 as
se
ss
me

nt 
of 

co
rpo

rat
e m

an
ag
em

en
t a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 

 Th
e i
ns
pe
cti
on
 an

d r
eg
ula

tio
n t
im
eta

ble
 fo
r 2

01
1/1

3 i
s s

ho
wn

 ov
erl
ea
f: 

   

Page 121



 

46
 

As
su
ran

ce
 an

d I
mp

ro
ve
me

nt 
Pla

n 
 

 
20
11
-12

 (Y
ea
r 2

) 
 

Iss
ue
s f
or
 sc

ru
tin

y /
im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

 
Sc

ru
tin

y b
od

ies
 / C

ou
nc
il p

ote
nti

al 
inv

olv
em

en
t 

Sh
are

d R
isk

 As
se
ss
me

nt/
rev

ise
d A

ss
ura

nc
e a

nd
 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

n 
 

Lo
ca
l A

rea
 N
etw

ork
 (L

AN
) 

Fin
an
cia

l s
tra

teg
y 

LA
N 
(sc

rut
iny

 an
d /
or 

su
pp
ort

ed
 se

lf-e
va
lua

tio
n),

 Ab
erd

ee
n 

Cit
y C

ou
nc
il (
se
lf-e

va
lua

tio
n) 

Co
rpo

rat
e I
mp

rov
em

en
t P

lan
: s
ub
jec

t to
 an

nu
al 
ex
ter

na
l a
ud
it  

 
Re

gu
lar
 m

on
ito
rin
g t
hro

ug
ho
ut 
ye
ar 

– a
pp
oin

ted
 ex

ter
na
l 

au
dit
or 

  
 

20
12
-13

 (Y
ea
r 3

) 
 

Iss
ue
s f
or
 sc

ru
tin

y /
im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

 
Sc

ru
tin

y b
od

ies
 / C

ou
nc
il p

ote
nti

al 
inv

olv
em

en
t 

Sh
are

d R
isk

 As
se
ss
me

nt 
/ re

vis
ed
 As

su
ran

ce
 an

d 
Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Pla

n 
 

Lo
ca
l A

rea
 N
etw

ork
 (L

AN
) 

Au
dit
 Sc

otl
an
d B

es
t V

alu
e 2

 – 
tar

ge
ted

 co
rpo

rat
e a

ss
es
sm

en
t 

wo
rk 
aro

un
d t

he
 co

un
cil’

s c
ha
ng
e a

ge
nd
a –

 in
clu

din
g 

lea
de
rsh

ip,
 cu

ltu
re,

 go
ve
rna

nc
e a

rra
ng
em

en
ts,
 sc

rut
iny

, 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 im

pro
ve
me

nt,
 an

d t
he
 

str
ate

gic
 us

e o
f re

so
urc

es
 (fi
na
nc
ial
, p
eo
ple

 an
d a

ss
ets

). 
  

Au
dit
 Sc

otl
an
d/H

en
de
rso

n L
og
gie

 

Co
mp

eti
tiv
en
es
s 

LA
N 
(sc

rut
iny

 an
d /
or 

su
pp
ort

ed
 se

lf-e
va
lua

tio
n),

 Ab
erd

ee
n 

Cit
y C

ou
nc
il (
se
lf-e

va
lua

tio
n) 

Co
rpo

rat
e I
mp

rov
em

en
t P

lan
: s
ub
jec

t to
 an

nu
al 
ex
ter

na
l a
ud
it  

 
Re

gu
lar
 m

on
ito
rin
g t
hro

ug
ho
ut 
ye
ar 

- a
pp
oin

ted
 ex

ter
na
l 

au
dit
or 

Page 122



 

47
 

8. 
Ho

w 
do

 w
e m

an
ag
e r

isk
s w

hic
h m

igh
t im

pa
ct 
on

 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
the

 bu
sin

es
s p

lan
? 

 Ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t is

 ce
ntr

al 
to 
str
ate

gic
 pl
an
nin

g a
nd
 op

era
tio
na
l d
eli
ve
ry 
wit

hin
 th

e c
ou
nc
il. 
 As

 w
ith
 an

y p
lan

, th
ere

 ar
e c

urr
en
t, 

an
d t
he
re 

wil
l b
e f

utu
re,

 ris
ks
 w
hic

h i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 de

live
ry 
of 

thi
s b

us
ine

ss
 pl
an
.  A

n a
ss
es
sm

en
t o
f b

us
ine

ss
; p
oli
tic
al;
 fin

an
ce
; 

tec
hn
olo

gic
al;
 le
gis

lat
ive

; p
eo
ple

; c
us
tom

er 
/ c
itiz

en
; e

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
: p
art

ne
rsh

ip;
 so

cia
l; m

an
ag
em

en
t / 
pro

fes
sio

na
l ri
sk
 ha

s b
ee
n 

ca
rrie

d o
ut 
an
d r

isk
s h

av
e b

ee
n i
de
nti
fie
d a

nd
 ev

alu
ate

d i
n t
erm

s o
f th

e l
ike

lih
oo
d o

f th
eir
 oc

cu
rre

nc
e a

nd
 th
e i
mp

ac
t th

es
e c

ou
ld 

ha
ve
.  S

ign
ific

an
t a
cti
on
s t
o m

itig
ate

 th
es
e r

isk
s h

av
e b

ee
n p

ut 
in 
pla

ce
 an

d f
urt

he
r m

itig
ati
on
 w
ill f

oll
ow

.  S
pe
cif
ica

lly 
‘po

litic
al’
 ris

ks
, 

wh
ich

 m
igh

t im
pa
ct 
on
 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 

the
 bu

sin
es
s p

lan
, h
av
e b

ee
n i
de
nti
fie
d a

nd
 ar

e t
o b

e c
on
sid

ere
d b

y a
ll m

em
be
rs 
of 
the

 
co
un
cil.

 
 Th

e o
ve
ral
l le

ve
l o
f ri
sk
 w
ill b

e c
on
tin
uo
us
ly 
rev

iew
ed
, re

po
rte

d t
o a

nd
 co

ns
ide

red
 by

 se
nio

r m
an
ag
ers

 an
d e

lec
ted

 m
em

be
rs.
  E

ac
h 

pro
jec

t w
ith
in 
the

 ov
era

ll p
rog

ram
me

s o
f w

ork
 in
itia

ted
 to
 de

live
r th

e b
us
ine

ss
 pl
an
 w
ill c

on
sid

er 
an
d a

cti
ve
ly 
ma

na
ge
 pr

oje
ct 
ris
k. 

 Th
e o

ve
ral
l g
ov
ern

an
ce
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 fo

r ri
sk
 m

an
ag
em

en
t a
re 

sh
ow

n i
n F

igu
re 

11
 ov

erl
ea
f. 

Page 123



 

48
 

 
 Fig

. 1
1 

Page 124



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Council      
 
DATE     29 June 2011   
 
DIRECTORS   Annette Bruton and Fred McBride  
 
TITLE OF REPORT  For Aberdeen’s Children - Integrated Children’s 

Services Plan 2011-15   
 
REPORT NUMBER: ECS/11/042  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1.1 For Aberdeen’s Children is the Integrated Children’s Services Plan 
for 2011-15.  It sets out our vision, mission and priorities for 
children and young people’s services in Aberdeen over the next 
four years.   

 
1.2 Every local authority in Scotland is required to publish a plan which 

sets out how it will improve the outcomes for children and young 
people through the services that are delivered by the council and its 
partner agencies.  The Integrated Children’s Services Plan is a 
statutory report, required under the Children (Scotland) Act 1995.   

 
1.3 The Integrated Children’s Services Plan has been developed by the 

Integrated Children’s Services Partnership which represents all the 
key public and third sector agencies that deliver services for 
children and young people in the city.   It was agreed by the 
Integrated Children’s Services Partnership on 23 May 2011.  The 
partnership welcomed additional final comments on the plan during 
the consultation period. 

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
  

2.1 It is recommended that council considers and formally approves the 
Integrated Children’s Services Plan 2011-15, For Aberdeen’s 
Children, on behalf of the council; and 

 
2.2 That the report be submitted to The Aberdeen City Alliance (TACA) 

for ratification by all community planning partners. 
 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
3.1 The Integrated Children’s Services Partnership is committed to 

protecting the quality of services to children and young people 
despite the current pressures on resources.  

Agenda Item 9(e)

Page 125



 

 
3.2 The resources required to deliver the priorities set out in the 

Integrated Children’s Services Plan 2011-15 will come from all 
partner agencies.  Within the council, most resources have already 
been identified from existing budgets and there are no further 
financial implications at this time. 

 
3.3 Section 8 (page 38) of the Integrated Children’s Services Plan 

2011-15 provides a breakdown of the planned spend for the year 
2011-12 to give an indication of the level of expenditure on 
children’s services in Aberdeen.  This section will be updated 
annually. 

 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1 The planning and delivery of high quality integrated services for 
children and young people will contribute to them being safe, 
nurtured, healthy, active, included, respected and responsible, as 
outlined in our vision for the children and young people of 
Aberdeen.  It should also reduce the risk of children falling through 
the system and not having their needs met effectively. 

 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
5.1 Every local authority in Scotland is required to publish a plan which 

sets out how it will improve the outcomes for children and young 
people through the services that are delivered .by the Council and 
its partner agencies.  The Integrated Children’s Services Plan is a 
statutory report, required under the Children (Scotland) Act 1995.   

 
5.2 In 2009, the Children and Young People’s Strategic Planning 

Group undertook a review of the governance and planning to 
support the delivery of integrated children’s services.  The purpose 
was to ensure we had the joint governance and leadership in place 
to oversee the delivery of the local children’s services priorities set 
out in the Integrated Children’s Services Plan and the Single 
Outcome Agreement.  The review focussed on how well services 
had worked together, the way we worked and how we reported our 
progress.   

 
5.3 As a result of the review a new partnership structure was approved 

by the council in April 2010 and then ratified by our community 
planning partnership.   The structure provides a focus on improving 
outcomes for children and young people and supports the 
implementation of the 2011-2015 Integrated Children’s Services 
Plan. 

 
5.4 All partners are committed to strengthening leadership and 

governance to developing the shared plan and delivering integrated 

Page 126



 

children’s services. The structure we have in place will help us work 
in a more collaborative way to achieve our key aims and priorities.   

 
5.5 The Integrated Children’s Services Plan 2011-15 is the high level 

plan that sets out partners’ commitment to work together to deliver 
high quality public services, improve outcomes and achieve better 
value in areas that are a priority locally.    

 
5.6 Our Vision: 

We are working towards the day when every child and young 
person in Aberdeen enjoys being young and at the same time feels 
safe, nurtured, healthy, active, included, respected and 
responsible.  We will do this by coming together as workers, 
parents and carers to make sure every child and young person 
achieves their full potential and is supported to participate in 
decisions that affect them. 

 
5.7 Our Mission: 

We will promote and deliver integrated services of the highest 
quality that are accessible to all.  We are committed to the UN 
Convention on the Rights of the Child and will promote the rights 
and responsibilities of all those who use services for children.  Our 
aim is to ‘Get It Right for Every Child’ and in so doing improve the 
outcomes for all children and young people in the city by raising 
achievement and attainment and reduce inequality by ensuring a 
common, co-ordinated approach across all agencies that supports 
the delivery of appropriate, proportionate and timely help to all 
children as they need it. 

 
5.8 The plan has been agreed by all partners and will be overseen by 

the Integrated Children’s Services Partnership.  It was agreed by 
the Integrated Children’s Services Partnership on 23 May 2011.  
The partnership welcomed additional final comments on the plan 
during the consultation period. 

 
5.9 The plan is intended for staff working in services for children and 

young people and those who work in services that will impact on 
children and young people in the council, Grampian Police, NHS 
Grampian and in the Third Sector.  It will be of interest to other 
bodies with a specific interest in services for children and young 
people such as the Children’s Hearing System, the Children’s 
Panel, and the North East Scotland Child Protection Committee. 
The plan will also be of interest to inspectors of children’s services, 
other local authorities and the Scottish Government.  We will 
produce a summary version for parents and young people. 

 
5.10 The plan sets out the strategic objectives and high level actions for 

services for children and young people over the next four years.  It 
focuses on five key outcome themes for children and young people 
that we want to see improved and which will help us achieve our 
vision. The five outcomes themes are 

 

Page 127



 

• Getting the Best Start in Life  
• Achieving their Potential  
• Responsible and Included Citizens  
• Safe and Protected  
• Successful Transitions to Adulthood  
 

5.11 The Integrated Children’s Services Partnership is committed to 
improving outcomes for children, young people and their families 
and closing the gap between children in need and their peers. In 
order to reduce that gap partners will focus on improving outcomes 
for children in the early years, children who are looked after, have 
additional support needs, disabilities, or social emotional and 
behavioural needs and those young people not in employment, 
education or training.   

 
5.12 An important aspect of delivering improved outcomes for children 

and young people will include implementing the third phase of the 
national Getting it Right for Every Child programme. The Getting it 
Right implementation plan was approved by the Integrated 
Children’s Services Partnership in February 2011.  

 
5.13 Getting it Right for Every Child provides us all with a common 

approach to working together to deliver better outcomes for 
children and to measuring success across all eight wellbeing 
indicators set out in our vision for Aberdeen’s children.  The 
Integrated Children’s Services Partnership will oversee the delivery 
of the Integrated Children’s Services Plan 2011-2015 and the 
Integrated Children’s Services Management Team will oversee the 
delivery of key processes to support multi-agency working, 
including the Getting it Right Implementation Plan.  

 
5.14 The Integrated Children’s Services Plan 2011-15 includes: 

 
• Our vision 
• Our mission 
• Our governance structure and planning arrangements 
• A profile of Aberdeen and the position of children and young 

people 
• Involving children and young people 
• Getting it right for every child in Aberdeen  
• Key themes and priorities 
• Information on workforce, training and development and 

resources.  
 

 
5.15 The Integrated Children’s Services Plan 2011-15 will be updated 

annually to monitor performance and to show how working together 
to provide services has made a difference to improving the lives of 
children and young people in the city. 

 
5.16 The word version of the Integrated Children’s Services Plan  

Page 128



 

2011-15 is attached.  The final printed version will include 
illustrations and graphs from the Children and Young People’s 
Audit. 

 
5.17 It is recommended that council considers and formally approves the 

Integrated Children’s Services Plan 2011-15, For Aberdeen’s 
Children, on behalf of the council.  It will then be submitted to The 
Aberdeen City Alliance (TACA) for ratification by all community 
planning partners. 

 
 

6. IMPACT 
 

6.1 The Integrated Children’s Services Plan supports the delivery of the 
Council’s commitments set out within ‘Vibrant, Dynamic and 
Forward Looking’, with particular reference to actions 1-13 under 
Education and 1-14 under Health and Care. 

 
6.2 It will also support progress towards meeting the National 

Outcomes outlined within the Single Outcome Agreement, with 
particular reference to the following: 

 
• National Outcome 4 – Our young people are successful 

learners, confident individuals, effective contributors and 
responsible citizens.  

• National Outcome 5 – Our children have the best start in life 
and are ready to succeed.  

• National Outcome 8 – We have improved the life chances of 
children and young people and families at risk.  

 
6.3 An Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA) was 

carried out on 10 May 2011.  Positive impacts were identified for all 
children and young people in the city, but specifically: 

 
• Children and young people in need 
• Children in their early years 
• Children who are looked after  
• Children with additional support needs, disabilities, or social 

emotional and behaviour needs  
• Young people not in employment, education or training.   

 

Page 129



 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
  7.1 Key National Policies / Reports: 
 

• Children (Scotland) Act 1995 
• Equality Act 2010 
• National Care Standards 
• For Scotland’s children 
• Getting it Right for Every Child 
• Early Years Framework 
• Health for all Children (Hall 4) 
• A Curriculum for Excellence 
• Education (Additional Support for Learning) (Scotland) Act 

2004 (as amended 2009) and respective codes of practice 
• Supporting children’s learning: code of practice 2010 
• Disability Discrimination Act 
• Delivering Healthy Futures (2007) 
• Equally Well (2008) 
• National Delivery Plan for Specialist Children’s Services 
• National Guidance for Child Protection in Scotland (2010) 
• Protecting Children and Young People: Framework for 

Standards 
• Looked After Children: We Can and Must Do Better 
• Looked After Children (Scotland) Regulations 2009 
• The Adoption and Children (Scotland) Act 2007 
• Housing (Scotland) Act 2001 
• Homelessness etc (Scotland) Act 2003 
• The Children’s Hearings (Scotland) Bill 2010  
• Preventing Offending by Young People: A Framework for 

Action (2008) 
• More Choices, More Chances: A Strategy to Reduce the 

Proportion of Young People Not in Education, Employment 
or Training 

 
 7.2 Key Local Strategies / Reports: 
 

• Aberdeen City: Children and Young People’s Audit 2010/11 
• Aberdeen City Council Vibrant, Dynamic and Forward 

Looking 
• Aberdeen City Council 5-Year Business Plan 
• Aberdeen City Single Outcome Agreement 
• Aberdeen City Council Corporate Parenting Policy 
• Aberdeen Learning Strategy 
• Aberdeen City Child Protection Action Plan 
• Aberdeen City Operational Guidance for Getting it Right for 

Every Child 
• Aberdeen Inclusion Strategy 
• Early Years Framework Implementation Plan 2010 
• More Choices More Chances Local Strategy 2010-13 

Page 130



 

• NHS Grampian Local Health Plan 
• NHS Grampian Our Children Our Future: A Strategy for 

Protecting Children (2010) 
• Youth Justice Strategy 2010-13 

 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Louise Beaton 
Principal Planning Officer 
Communities, Culture and Sport 
Education, Culture and Sport. 
lbeaton@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
Telephone: (81)4794 

 

Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 1

 
Foreword 
 
Welcome to For Aberdeen’s Children 2011-15.  The plan sets out our vision and 
priorities for children and young people’s services over the next four years.   
 
The plan has been developed by the Integrated Children’s Service Partnership 
which represents all the key public and third sector agencies that deliver services 
for children and young people in the city.  
 
As a partnership we are committed to improving outcomes for children, young 
people and their families and closing the gap between children in need and their 
peers. In order to reduce that gap we will focus on improving outcomes for children 
in the early years, children who are looked after, have additional support needs, 
disabilities, or social emotional and behaviour needs and those young people not in 
employment, education or training.   
 
We are committed to protecting the quality of services to children and young 
people despite the pressures on resources.  
 
We recognise the crucial role of parents, carers, families and volunteers in 
improving outcomes for children and young people and the need to support them 
to do so.  We also recognise that all children and young people need to have a 
sense of belonging and all communities must value the positive contribution young 
people can make to their localities.   
 
Our Vision 
We are working towards the day when every child and young person in Aberdeen 
enjoys being young and at the same time feels safe, nurtured, healthy, active, 
included, respected and responsible.  We will do this by coming together as 
workers, parents and carers to make sure every child and young person achieves 
their full potential and is supported to participate in decisions that affect them. 
 
Our Mission 
We will promote and deliver integrated services of the highest quality that are 
accessible to all.  We are committed to the UN Convention on the Rights of the 
Child and will promote the rights and responsibilities of all those who use services 
for children.  Our aim is to ‘Get It Right for Every Child’ and in so doing improve the 
outcomes for all children and young people in the city by raising achievement and 
attainment and reduce inequality by ensuring a common, co-ordinated approach 
across all agencies that supports the delivery of appropriate, proportionate and 
timely help to all children as they need it. 
 
We hope that you find this plan both interesting and informative. 
 
Aberdeen City Council 
Aberdeen City Youth Council 
Aberdeen Council of Voluntary Organisations 
Grampian Police 
NHS Grampian 

Page 133



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 2

 
Contents               Page
          
 
1. Introduction           3 
 
 
2. Partnership Working – Governance Structure and Planning    6 

Arrangements 
 
 
3. Profile of Aberdeen and the Position of Children and Young People          10 
 
 
4. Involving Children and Young People              16 
 
 
5. Getting it Right for Every Child in Aberdeen             19 
 
 
6. Key Themes and Priorities                21 
 
 
7. Workforce Training and Development              36
        
 
8. Resources - What we spend on services              38 
 
   
 
 
Appendices  
 
1. Key National Policies and Reports              40 
2. Key Local Strategies and Reports               41 
3. Membership of the Integrated Children’s Services Partnership          42 
4. Membership of the Integrated Children’s Services Management Team      42 
5. List of Consultees                 43 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 134



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 3

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Why do we have a plan? 
 
Every local authority in Scotland is required to publish a plan which sets out how it 
will improve the outcomes for children and young people through the services that 
are delivered by the council and its partner agencies.  The Integrated Children’s 
Services Plan is a statutory report, required under the Children (Scotland) Act 
1995.   
 
The Integrated Children’s Services Plan 2011-15 is the high level plan that sets out 
the council and our partners’ commitment to work together to deliver high quality 
services, improve outcomes and achieve better value in areas that are a priority 
locally.   The plan is overseen by the Integrated Children’s Services Partnership. It 
will be updated annually to show how working together to provide services has 
made a difference to improving the lives of children and young people in the city. 
 
1.2 Who is this plan for? 
 
The plan is intended for staff working in services for children and young people and 
those who work in services that will impact on children and young people in the 
council, Grampian Police, NHS Grampian and in the Third Sector.  It will be of 
interest to other bodies with a specific interest in services for children and young 
people such as the Children’s Hearing System, the Children’s Panel, and the North 
East Scotland Child Protection Committee. The plan will also be of interest to 
inspectors of children’s services, other local authorities and the Scottish 
Government.  We will produce a summary version for parents and young people. 
 
1.3 What is its purpose? 
 
The community planning partnership’s single outcome agreement with the Scottish 
Government sets out the most important priorities for local people in the city. The 
priorities that are relevant to children, young people, and families are included in 
the Integrated Children’s Services Plan.  The progress we make towards delivering 
those outcomes will be monitored by the Integrated Children’s Services 
Partnership and will be reported to our community planning partnership - The 
Aberdeen City Alliance and the Scottish Government via the single outcome 
agreement. 
 
The plan sets out the strategic objectives for services for children and young 
people over the next four years.  It focuses on five key outcome themes and action 
plans for children and young people that we want to see improved and which will 
help us achieve our vision. The five outcomes themes are: 
 
• Getting the Best Start in Life  
• Achieving their Potential  
• Responsible and Included Citizens  
• Safe and Protected  
• Successful Transitions to Adulthood 

Page 135



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 4

 
1.4 Getting it Right for Every Child 
 
An important aspect of delivering improved outcomes for children and young 
people will include implementing the third phase of the national ‘Getting it Right’ 
programme. Our Getting it Right Implementation Plan was approved by the 
Integrated Children’s Services Partnership in February 2011.  
 
Getting it right for every child provides us all with a common approach to working 
together to deliver better outcomes for children and to measuring success across 
all eight wellbeing indicators set out in our vision for Aberdeen’s children.  The 
Integrated Children’s Services Partnership will oversee the delivery of the 
Integrated Children’s Services Plan 2011-2015 and the Integrated Children’s 
Services Management Team will oversee the delivery of key processes to support 
multi-agency working, including the Getting it Right Implementation Plan.  
 
1.5 Self Evaluation 
 
The HMIE document ‘Improving services for children: A Guide to Evaluating 
Services for Children and Young People Using Quality Indicators’ published in 
October 2006 emphasises the need to focus on impact and outcomes when 
evaluating services.  We will use those quality indicators to support our 
assessment of performance and to highlight areas for improvement as we move 
towards further integrated provision of children’s services. 
 
We will introduce this programme of self-evaluation using one common theme per 
year, as part of a 3-year continuous cycle as follows:   
 
Year 1 – How well do we meet the needs of our stakeholders? 
Year 2 – How good is our management? 
Year 3 – How good is our delivery of services for children and young people? 
 
In addition we will evaluate one aspect of ‘How good is our leadership?’ and one 
aspect of ‘What key outcomes have we achieved?’. This programme will begin in 
May 2011. In addition to this, each of the outcome groups will evaluate the impact 
of key processes on outcomes for children according to their priority development 
themes. 
 
1.6 Inspections 
 
During 2010-11, considerable self-evaluation activity has taken place across 
integrated children’s services during the inspection process: INEA 2 follow through 
inspection of the education function of the council; SWIA follow-up inspection of the 
social work function of the council; Scottish Housing Regulator follow-up inspection 
of the housing function of the council; and most recently HMIE undertook a joint 
multi-agency child protection inspection which included an inspection of the 
fostering and adoption service. 
 
 
 

Page 136



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 5

 
As a result of the inspections we have agreed specific areas of focus for action for 
the council and our partners.  These include:  
 
• Raising attainment and increasing expectations in order to improve the life 

chances of all young people;  
• Further develop leadership at all levels in taking forward Curriculum for 

Excellence;  
• Implementing the significant improvements identified in the city-wide review to 

better support the needs of all children and young people, particularly those 
with social, emotional and behavioural needs; 

• Clarifying the role and function of the different screening groups; 
• Reviewing approach to the initial assessment of risk and ensure any approach 

used is appropriate, evidence based and consistently used; 
• Completing work on social work performance management; 
• Developing a commissioning strategy for children and families; and 
• Implementing actions from the HMIE multi-agency child protection inspection. 
 
1.7 Communications 
 
Effective partnership working and service delivery relies on good communication.    
We have agreed a shared communications plan to support the work of the 
Integrated Children’s Services Partnership and Management Team and the five 
outcome groups. 
 
The communications plan focuses on the strategic communication requirements of 
all partners delivering integrated children's services.  
 
The objectives of the communication activity across integrated children's services 
will be to: 
 
• Develop an information sharing approach to support the work of all partners 

engaged in planning and delivering integrated children’s services; 
• Develop a partnership approach to stakeholder engagement by using 

partners' existing communication channels and processes; 
• Develop consistent messages and presentations to ensure there is 

coherence to the communication activity that takes place across integrated 
children's services and in line with the Integrated Children’s Services Plan; 

• Use new technologies and social media platforms to best advantage; 
• Raise awareness of integrated children's services activity internally and 

externally; 
• Communicate with children, young people, families and communities in 

using existing and new communication tools; and to 
• Monitor national developments and undertake future scanning to ensure that 

our approach remains fit for purpose, innovative and responsive. 

Page 137



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 6

 
2. Partnership Working - Governance Structure and Partnership Planning 

Arrangements 
 
2.1 Background 
 
In 2009, the Children and Young People’s Strategic Planning Group undertook a 
review of the governance and planning to support the delivery of integrated 
children’s services.  The purpose was to ensure we had the joint governance and 
leadership in place to oversee the delivery of the local children’s services priorities 
set out in the Integrated Children’s Services Plan and the single outcome 
agreement.  The review focussed on how well services had worked together, the 
way we worked and how we reported our progress.   
 
As a result of the review a new partnership structure that would focus on improving 
outcomes for children and young people and support the implementation of the 
2011-2015 Integrated Children’s Services Plan was approved in April 2010 by the 
council and our community planning partnership.  
 
All partners are committed to strengthening the leadership and governance to 
developing the shared plan and delivering integrated children’s services. The 
structure we have in place will help us work in a more collaborative way to achieve 
our key aims and priorities.   
 
2.2 Integrated Children’s Services Planning Groups 
 
The Integrated Children’s Services Partnership is the high-level strategic planning 
group responsible for ensuring that we improve services and deliver the better 
outcomes for children and young people in the city that are set out in the Integrated 
Children’s Services Plan 2011-2015 and in the single outcome agreement.  
 
The role and remit of the partnership is to lead the integrated children’s services 
agenda and planning process; provide leadership and governance; set and agree 
policy and strategy; set and agree budget; ensure effective communication at all 
levels and among all partners; to ensure effective stakeholder engagement; and to 
remit priority work programmes to the Integrated Children’s Services Management 
Team. 
 
The Integrated Children’s Services Management Team will lead the operational 
implementation of integrated children’s services and the national ‘Getting it Right’ 
for every child programme. The group will develop and deliver the key themes and 
priorities as set out in the Integrated Children’s Services Plan; quality assure and 
performance manage integrated children’s services; develop workforce, training 
and development to support integrated working; consult and engage with children 
and families; deliver the children and young people’s audit; and remit priority work 
programmes to the five outcome groups. 
 

Page 138



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 7

 

2.3 NHS Grampian 
 
NHS Grampian provides both universal and targeted services to expectant 
mothers, children and their families. These services have a key role in delivering 
on the five outcomes themes.  
 
Maternity services will work closely with children’s services to deliver on the Early 
Years Framework ensuring the best start in life. Local guidance has been 
refreshed on HALL 4 supporting good health for every child in the early years. A 
national pathway for vulnerable families will be progressed in the city along with an 
examination of the family nurse partnership pilot and how it applies to our approach 
in supporting successful teenage mothers and fathers.  
 
NHS Grampian is working in partnership with the Health Boards of the North to 
develop improved specialist services for young people with the most complex 
mental health problems. This will include a better community service in Aberdeen 
as well as improved patient services locally and in Dundee over the life of this plan. 
 
Working with the Scottish Government Health Department significant 
developments are progressing across a range of specialties based at the Royal 
Aberdeen Children’s Hospital. This includes an increase in the numbers of 
specialist nurses who will support children and young people at home and in 
school with lifelong conditions such as cystic fibrosis in order that they achieve 
their full potential. 
 
NHS Grampian is working with Aberdeen City Council to support the role of 
corporate parent. Over the life of this plan we hope to ensure that looked after 
children gain better access to universal and targeted health services. This will build 
on the improvements already achieved in accessing dentistry. Our Board is 
committed to better understanding the needs of this group of children and young 
people.    
 
2.4 The Children & Young People’s Voluntary Sector Providers Forum 

(CYPVSPF) 
 
The Children & Young People’s Voluntary Sector Providers Forum is the key 
reference group for the third sector that enables voluntary organisations, 
community groups, charities and social enterprises a route to engaging with the 
planning and delivery of integrated children’s services in the city.  
 
Jointly these groups will: 
 
• Ensure effective planning and governance of services to children and young 

people and for the single outcome agreement priorities; and 
 
• Support progress towards meeting the national outcomes with particular 

reference to: 
 
 

Page 139



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 8

 
National Outcome 4 – Our young people are successful learners, confident 
individuals, effective contributors and responsible citizens.  
 
National Outcome 5 – Our children have the best start in life and are ready 
to succeed.  
 
National Outcome 8 – We have improved the life chances of children and 
young people and families at risk.  

 
 
 
 

Page 140



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 9

The Governance Structure for Integrated Children’s Services in Aberdeen 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Integrated Children’s Services Partnership  
(ICSP) 

Integrated Children’s Services Management 
Team (ICSMT)  

 

Getting the Best 
Start in Life   

Outcome Group
   

Achieving their 
Potential  

Outcome Group  
Responsible & 

Included Citizens  
Outcome Group  

Safe and Protected 
Outcome Group  

Successful Transitions 
to Adulthood Outcome 

Group 

The Aberdeen City Alliance (TACA)  
 

Chair: Georgette 
Cobban / Children 
and Young People’s 
Voluntary Sector 
Providers Forum 
 
Support: 
Liz Gillies / Grace 
Brown, ACC, ECS  

Chair: David Leng / 
ACC, ECS  
 
Support: Gail 
Woodcock / ACC, 
ECS  
 

Chair: Susan Devlin / 
ACC, SC&WB  
 
Support: Nicola Williams / 
ACC, SC&WB 

Chair: Fred McBride / 
ACC, SC&WB  
 
Support: Mairi Anne 
Macdonald / ACC 
SC&WB  
 

Chair: Patricia Cassidy / 
ACC, ECS  
 
Support: Sheila 
Sansbury / John Cairns, 
ACC, ECS  

Remit  
Single Outcome Agreement, Regional Shared 
Services, Community Representation and 

Political Representation   

Remit  
Leadership & Governance, Strategy, Policy & 

Planning, Budget, Communication, Key 
Stakeholder Engagement  

Remit  
Delivery of Key Processes (e.g. GIRFEC), 

Front Line Practice, QA&PM, ICSP 
Implementation, WFTD and Self Evaluation   

The Children & Young People’s 
Voluntary Sector Providers Forum 
(CYPVSPF) 
Remit 
To support the third sector to engage in 
the planning and delivery of integrated 
children’s services.  
 

P
age 141



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 10 

 
3. Profile of Aberdeen and the Position of Children and Young People in 

Aberdeen  
 

3.1 Profile of Aberdeen  
 
Aberdeen is the third largest city in Scotland with a population of around 210,000. It 
is a city of international significance. It is the commercial hub that drives the 
regional economy of the North East of Scotland. The influence of the oil and gas 
industry over the past 30 years has been considerable, helping to raise living 
standards in the city and contributing to income levels that have been considerably 
above the UK and Scottish averages. Aberdeen has developed into a vibrant and 
cosmopolitan city. It is a premier centre for business, education, retailing, leisure 
and culture.  It is served by established road and rail links, a modern harbour and 
airport.  It has a wealth of important listed buildings, conservation areas and other 
cultural and artistic assets. 
 
Aberdeen is however a city of contrasts, it is ranked the 14th most deprived local 
authority in Scotland. There are significant health, social, educational and 
economic inequalities across the city and these pose challenges to the way we 
plan and deliver services for children and young people to ensure we have good 
quality universal services and targeted services for those most in need. 
 
3.2 Position of Children and Young People in Aberdeen 
 
There are nearly 67,000 people in Aberdeen aged 0-25 (31.3% of the total 
population).  In the period to 2033, this figure is expected to fall to just below 
60,000, a decrease of 9%.  The 0-7 age group will initially rise, and then decline for 
the remainder of the period to 2033.  The 5-14 age group is projected to increase 
until 2023, after which it will fall to its 2008 level by 2033.  The 12-19 age group will 
be relatively stable, while there is projected to be a significant decline in the 20-25 
age group. 
 
Changes within the 0-25 age group will have implications for the future delivery of 
services for children and young people.   However, although decreases are 
expected in some age groups, it should not be assumed that this will necessarily 
mean a lower demand for children’s services.  Several factors suggest that the 
demand for services will change rather than decline – for example, the impact of 
substance misuse and the increasing number of substance misusers who are 
parents, the rise in the number of children on the child protection register where 
substance misuse is identified as impacting on their capacity to parent and the rise 
in the number of children with permanent plans for alternative care as a result of 
parental substance misuse.  
 
Apart from services for the elderly, the 0-25 age group uses, or has the potential to 
use, virtually all of the services provided by the Aberdeen City Council, NHS 
Grampian and the other public and third sector agencies in Aberdeen.  However, 
the 0-25 population is unevenly distributed across the city and local service 
provision does not always reflect an area’s demographic profile or the needs of 
service users. 
 

Page 142



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 11 

 
3.3 Getting the Best Start in Life 
 
There are 15,522 children in Aberdeen aged 0-7 (7.3% of the total population).  
There has been an increase in the pre-school population in 2009-10 and 2010-11.  
This has implications for pre-school provision and eventual demand for mainstream 
primary education. 
 
Evidence shows that giving young children the best start in life, by ensuring they 
have the best health, care, learning and play experiences, will improve the 
outcomes for them as adults, and as a consequence will make a significant 
contribution to society.  The economic return on early years investment is 
significantly higher than at other stages by improving their personal and societal 
outcomes. 1  The quality of the child’s relationships with its parent or carer and the 
experiences they have in their home is also critical to the child’s physical and 
mental health and educational attainment.2 
 
Children’s health is determined, in part, by their environments and the health 
behaviours of their parents and carers.  Studies have shown there are significant 
variations among communities in the city and that the life circumstances of children 
and young people who live in more deprived areas may be contributing to poorer 
long term outcomes. 
 
Low birth weight rates in Aberdeen are higher than the Scottish average.  A variety 
of social and environmental factors have been shown to be associated with low 
birth weight.  These include: maternal smoking, maternal age, deprivation and drug 
and alcohol use.  Neighbourhoods with the highest smoking rates among pregnant 
women are in the most deprived areas of the city.  These neighbourhoods also 
have the highest rates of teenage pregnancies. 
 
We are committed to giving young children the best start in life. The joint Early 
Years Framework Implementation Plan sets out the actions we have agreed to 
allow us to deliver integrated universal early years services to all families with 
young children and to provide additional support for families and children most in 
need.  
 
Priorities include: implementing pre-birth-3 training, infant mental health training 
and awareness; improving informal community based childcare and childcare for 
working parents; identifying health and additional support needs early;  improving 
access to play for all children; improving the quality of children’s and parents’ 
engagement in learning, service planning and community engagement/life long 
learning; Implementing early levels of curriculum for excellence and improve 
assessment across all sectors; continuing to improve all services and to support 
the development and expansion of the early years workforce. 
 

                                                           
1 OECD Starting Well 2  
2 Annual Report 2006 Chief Medical Officer 

Page 143



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 12 

 
3.4 Achieving their Potential 
 
The pupil population (aged 3-18) of the Aberdeen City Council schools is 26,578 
(Census, 2009) but this is predicted to fall slightly in the period to 2012.  Based on 
the 2009 census, approximately 12% of those pupils attend an independent school. 
Approximately 9% of pupils have English as an additional language. In 2009, 
16.9% of pupils in primary schools were entitled to free school meals, slightly lower 
than the overall Scottish entitlement rate of 17.4%. In secondary schools, 10.9% of 
Aberdeen pupils were entitled to free meals compared to a Scottish average of 
12.9%. 
 
The number of pupils attending primary schools decreased in 2009 but the rate of 
decrease has been very small in the last 4 years.  The number of pupils attending 
secondary schools has also decreased in 2009 although the rate of decrease has 
slowed.  The number of pupils attending special schools increased in 2009 
although numbers have been stable in the last few years. 
 
High level priorities will include improving literacy and attainment for S4 pupils; 
implementing the Curriculum for Excellence; ensuring that learning and teaching is 
consistently at a high standard across all schools; refining approaches to ensuring 
continuous improvement; increasing our pace of progress to support children and 
young people with Additional Support Needs; providing high quality and efficient 
school buildings and building on the work on learning communities and the 
approach to learning hubs. 
 
In March 2009, there were 701 looked after children - 1.6% of the city’s total 0-18 
population. Most of these children are looked after in the community, including 220 
who were at home with their parents. The percentage of children looked after at 
home in Aberdeen in 2009-10 was 61%.  The number of children looked after away 
from home was 39%.    A child is ‘looked after away from home’ when they do not 
live with their parents and live in foster care or residential care.  Around one in 
eight looked after children are in residential accommodation, mostly in a residential 
school or in a local authority children’s home.  
 
The number of looked after children in Aberdeen is higher than the national 
average, but more children are now being looked after at home than in previous 
years.  In 2009-10, 9.42% of children looked after away from home had 
experienced three or more placements in the current care period.  This is a 
reduction of 23.5% from the previous year.  Further efforts are being made to 
reduce the number of moves children experience during each care period. 
 
Although school rolls have decreased in the last few years, the number of school 
pupils who are looked after has increased.  Achieving their whole potential is a high 
level priority for looked after children and looked after and accommodated children. 
 
Fostering and adoption services for looked after children obtained good or very 
good evaluations from the Care Commission in 2009 and 2010. 
 
 
 

Page 144



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 13 

 
3.5 Safe and Protected 
 
The Aberdeen City Child Protection Sub-Committee, in conjunction with the North 
East of Scotland Child Protection Committee (NESCPC), is responsible for 
improving the work that agencies do together to make sure that children are 
protected in Aberdeen. 
 
As at 31 March 2010 there were 119 children from 72 families in Aberdeen with a 
Child Protection Plan. This is 3.4% per thousand of the population of children in 
Aberdeen.  This means that professionals had concerns about the safety of these 
children and agreed that they needed a multi-agency protection plan.  The names 
of all the children who have a protection plan are on the Child Protection Register. 
Over 60% of these children were significantly impacted by parental alcohol or drug 
misuse. 
 
In November 2008, HMIE inspected how well services work together to protect 
children in Aberdeen and in June 2009, an interim follow-through inspection report 
was published.  
 
The report found that chief officers of the agencies involved had responded 
positively to the main points for action in the original inspection report.  We have 
embarked on a major restructuring of services, including the social work and 
education services, to provide the foundations on which to build and make 
sustainable improvements.   
 
A further inspection of services to protect children took place in March 2011.  This 
was completed by the new inspection agency Social Care and Social Work 
Improvement Scotland (SCSWIS).  The inspection report was published on  
9 June 2011 and indicated that there had been significant improvements in the way 
that agencies work together to protect children in Aberdeen.  Aberdeen has met 
the Scottish Government requirement for a positive child protection inspection.   
 
The inspection evaluations were as follows: 
 
Children are listened to and respected Good 
Children are helped to keep safe Satisfactory 
Response to immediate concerns Satisfactory 
Meeting needs and reducing long term harm Satisfactory 
Self-evaluation Weak 
Improvements in performance Good 
 
While much has been achieved, there is still work to do, and the inspection report 
helpfully suggests some actions which the Aberdeen City Child Protection Sub-
Committee will take forward, along with the North East of Scotland Child Protection 
Committee (NESCPC).  These actions are to: 
 
• Ensure that vulnerable children and families get the help they 
 need quickly. 
• Make it easier for people to report concerns about children and 
 ensure that staff respond to these concerns without delay. 
 

Page 145



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 14 

 
• Improve the help and support for children to recover from abuse 
 and neglect. 
• Develop and put in place effective ways of reviewing the quality of 
 services to improve key processes and outcomes for children. 
 
The inspection report is available to read or download on the SCSWIS website at 
http://www.scswis.com/index.php?option=com_docman&task=cat_view&gid=288&I
temid=378 
 
3.6 Responsible and Included Citizens 
 
Between 2004-05 and 2006-07 there was a 13% increase in the number of young 
offenders in Aberdeen from 1483 to 1680.  However, between 2006-07 and 2008-
09 the number of offenders decreased by 16% with there being 1403 young 
offenders in 2008-09.  This is the lowest number of young offenders in Aberdeen 
since data started being collected in 2004-05. 
 
For two years in a row there has been a reduction in the overall number of young 
offenders in Aberdeen, the number of crime files and charges.  There has also  
been a reduction in the number of referrals to SCRA on offence grounds and the 
number of persistent offender offence referrals.  This may suggest that some of the 
steps that have been taken to work with young offenders at an early stage are 
starting to have an impact.   
 
The one area which saw an increase between 2007-08 and 2008-09 was the 
number of children referred to SCRA. The implementation of police warnings and 
restorative justice warnings was one of way of dealing with offenders early and to 
try and reduce referrals to SCRA.  However, this data would suggest that more 
effective ways of dealing with young people early need to be introduced to try and 
further reduce referrals to SCRA so that only those in need of compulsory 
measures are being reported.  This is currently being implemented via multi 
agency Pre Referral Screening meetings. Although there was an increase in 
number of children referred there was a decrease in number of offence referrals 
received.   
 
3.7 Successful Transitions to Adulthood 
 
The destinations that young people move onto post secondary education are a key 
indicator of success in adult life. There is a growing body of research that shows 
young people who disengage from school between the ages of 16 and 19 are 
significantly more likely to be economically inactive adults which has both an 
economic and human cost.  Vulnerable school leavers, such as those from more 
deprived areas, with additional support needs, or looked after children, are less 
likely to enter positive destinations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 146



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 15 

 
The number of school leavers in the city moving into a positive destination in 2009-
10 increased from 82.7% to 85.6%.  The figure compares well with our comparator 
authorities average of 85.8%. Ten out of our 12 secondary schools have 
demonstrated an increase in positive destinations compared to 2008-09, including 
2 secondary schools in areas of deprivation. The number of young people who are 
in the 'unknown' category fell from 4% to 1.4% which is still higher than the national 
figure of 0.6%, but is a considerable improvement and evidence that our More 
Choices More Chances partnership approach is having a positive impact on some 
of our most vulnerable young people.  
 
There has been an increase in the number of young people entering higher 
education (HE), further education (FE), training placements, employment & 
volunteering - 1516 young people compared to 1431 in 2008-2009.  The numbers 
entering higher and further education in Aberdeen increased from 61.4 to 63.8% in 
2009-2010, higher than the national average of 62.8%.  HE and FE destination 
values in secondary schools ranged between 46.5% and 83.7%. The proportion of 
young people entering employment remained stable in Aberdeen and nationally at 
18.5%, a reflection of the current difficult economic climate.  The proportion of 
young people classified as unemployed and seeking employment reduced slightly 
and is now 12%, slightly higher than the national figure of 11.3%.  The proportion 
classified as unemployed and not seeking employment increased very slightly to 
1.1%, with small numbers causing fluctuations.  This is still lower than the national 
figure of 1.3%.  
 
The introduction of 16+ Learning Choices programme and Activity Agreements will 
build on the good practice that is evident locally. These programmes ensure that all 
young people receive an appropriate, relevant, attractive offer of learning, well in 
advance of their statutory school leaving date.  It also contributes to the delivery of 
Curriculum for Excellence entitlements, which includes support for positive and 
sustained destinations, with a particular focus on improving the skills and life 
opportunities of all school leavers.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 147



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 16 

 
4. Involving Children and Young People  
 
4.1 Aberdeen City Council 
 
Aberdeen City Council has a leadership role to promote engagement and has 
established a range of structures to formally involve children and young people in 
the democratic life of the city.  They include: 
 
• Aberdeen City Youth Council 
• Student Forum 
• School Councils 
• Issue based forums such as Grade A peer education project, LGBT, Young 

Carers, Parkour Network 
• Neighbourhood Youth Forums 
• Young people on the Civic Forum, Licensing Forum and ADP 
• Community Councils 
 
In addition, consultation is embedded into day to day practice from pre-school 
children to secondary pupils and all services consult and involve children and 
young people in service design and development.  
 
The Children’s Rights Service offers an ‘arm’s length’ support to children and 
young people who are looked after by the local authority.  Services include: the 
promotion of children’s rights; advocacy and representation; helping young people 
to use the complaints procedure; and monitoring of services for looked after 
children and young people and those moving on. 
 
The Education, Culture and Sport Directorate of Aberdeen City Council monitors 
the position of children and young people in Aberdeen on an annual basis through 
the Children and Young People’s Audit.   

 
The Chair of Aberdeen City Youth Council is an active member of the Integrated 
Children’s Services Partnership. 
 
Partners also have a role to consult and engage with children and young people 
about the planning and delivery of their services. 
 
4.2 High Level Consultations 
 
Recent examples of high level consultations undertaken with children and young 
people in Aberdeen include: 
 
• Online voting and election event for Aberdeen City Youth Council. 
• Aberdeen City Council: 5 Year Business Plan. 
• Open Space Strategy and Local Development Plan. 
• Student Forum consultation day. 
• Learning Strategy.  The Aberdeen City Council Arts Education Team led on 

the design and delivery of a range of consultation events on learning where 
children and young people use different art forms to gather ideas and 
opinions. 

Page 148



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 17 

 
• Strategic Music Partnership.  The Arts Education Team worked with 

Aberdeen City Council, Aberdeenshire Council and 60 local music providers 
to develop and overarching strategic music partnership and vision for music 
with children and young people in the North East of Scotland. 

• Projects and individuals supported by the Arts Education Team received 
seven nominations across five categories in the Aberdeen City Council 
Children’s and Young People’s Services Awards, winning in four. 

• An online survey monkey of the views of children and young people about 
how safe and protected they feel.  Over 2000 young people completed the 
survey. 

 
The Aberdeen City Youth Council held a ‘Hear My Voice’ Consultation event in 
November 2010 as part of its annual consultation with children and young people.  
The purpose of the event was to re-evaluate the previous manifesto and issue 
based priorities which were laid out in the manifesto document named ‘Read My 
Lips’. 
 
The Youth Council plans to establish an action plan over the next five 
years (2011-2016) provisionally called ‘Hear My Voice’.  All secondary schools, 
community based youth provision and third sector partners were invited to 
encourage young people to participate in the ‘Hear My Voice’ consultation.  The 
following themes were presented at the event with questions to debate and tease 
out from young people what the important issues are for them. 
 
• Drug and alcohol education 
• Employment and volunteering 
• Education and children’s services 
• Crime and youth justice 
• The community and youth rights 
• Transport and infrastructure 
• Equality and democracy 
• Open space and the environment 
• Media and stereotypes 
• The budget 
 
After an initial pilot consultation period the themes have now been updated and 
approved by Aberdeen City Youth Council.  In addition, a consultation target on 
5000 responses has been set by the Youth Council to provide a stronger mandate 
and help the Youth Council set priorities around: 
 
• Drugs and crime 
• Employment and education 
• Community 
• Transport and open space 
• The Budget 
 
 
 
 

Page 149



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 18 

 
Recent examples of involvement by Aberdeen City Youth Council and Scottish 
Youth Parliament members include: 
 
• Picture the Change Manifesto consultation: Scottish Youth Parliament 

Manifesto consultation for 2011 
• Scottish Children’s Commissioner Right Blether Project - this sets out the new 

Commissioner’s work plan for the next three years 
• British Youth Council election and annual meeting attendance 
• Young Scot local investigation team national initiative which will report back to 

the Scottish Government Drug Policy Unit 
• General Election awareness campaign. 
• Integrated Children’s Services conference 
• Licensing Forum representation and attendance at meetings 
• Civic Forum representation 
• Women’s Alliance representation 
• Local Housing Strategy 2012-17. 
 

Page 150



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 19 

 
5. Getting it Right for Every Child in Aberdeen  
 
The 10 Core Components of the national Getting it Right programme are:  
 
• A focus on improving outcomes for children, young people and their families 

based on a shared understanding of well-being. 
• A common approach to gaining consent and to sharing information where 

appropriate. 
• An integral role for children, young people and families in assessment, 

planning and intervention. 
• A co-ordinated and unified approach to identifying concerns, assessing 

needs, agreeing actions and outcomes, based on the well-being indicators. 
• Streamlined planning, assessment and decision-making processes that lead 

to the right help at the right time. 
• Consistent high standards of co-operation, joint working and communication 

where more than one agency needs to be involved, locally and across 
Scotland. 

• A lead professional to co-ordinate and monitor inter-agency activity where 
necessary. 

• Maximising the skilled workforce within universal services to address needs 
and risks at the earliest possible time. 

• A confident and competent workforce across all services for children, young 
people and their families. 

• The capacity to share demographic, assessment and planning information 
electronically, within and across agency boundaries, through the national 
eCare programme where appropriate. 

 
The local Getting it Right Implementation Plan identifies the actions required by all 
partners to implement the third phase of the programme.  It sets out the detailed 
programme of change to ensure we continue to deliver integrated services, 
improve the responsiveness of services, ensure that our services are accessible 
but more importantly that we better meet the individual needs of children, young 
people and their families.   
 
The plan identifies how we will take a common approach to assessing and 
planning with children, young people and their families so that they can be enabled 
to reach their full potential. It also describes how we will deliver joint training to 
ensure all partners have a shared understanding of language and practice so that 
we can work better together with families to improve outcomes for the most 
vulnerable children and young people.  It also sets out how we will know that what 
we are doing is making a difference to those who use our services. 
 
The impact of early intervention and a more coordinated approach that places the 
child and their family at the centre of our approach should allow us to demonstrate 
improved outcomes for children and young people and signs of progress against 
key indicators.   
 
 
 
 

Page 151



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 20 

 
We will monitor the overall position of children and young people in the city 
annually.  In addition, data will be collated across the following key areas to 
measure the impact of implementing the Getting it Right approach.   
 
Success Indicators 
Increased attainment and achievement for all children and young people in Aberdeen 
Meeting the Performance Indicators as set out in the Aberdeen Learning Strategy 
Increased proportion of health targets for 0-5 year olds up to 100% by 2013 
Reduced rate of recorded accidents 
Increased attainment for lowest 20% attaining in schools  
Increased attainment of looked after children 
Decrease in exclusions from secondary schools  
Increased proportion of school leavers moving into positive and sustained destinations  
Increased proportion of social work reports completed within time intervals  
Reduced offence referrals to the reporter 
100% of young people will be seen by a supervising officer within 15 working days  
Reduced length of time for children being accommodated  
Reduced number of children offending in residential placements  
Reduce time for LAC waiting for adoptive / permanence placements 
Reduced rate of LAC (away from home) per 100,000  
Reduced number of welfare referrals to the reporter 
The number of children re-registering on the Child Protection Register within two years of 
a previous episode of registration 
% of looked after young people and families at risk supported to stay together within their 
own communities 
% of children looked after away from home with 3 or more placements in the current care 
episode 
% of children in Kinship Care whose carer’s needs are being met 
% of children who are looked after away from home who have a Pathway Plan 
% of children and young people looked after away from home given an exit interview on 
the service they received. 
% of review meetings for which social work reports were completed within agreed 
timescales 
% of pre-school, partner provider, school, learning community, multi-agency and thematic 
inspections with a positive report 
Number of days that children are placed in bed and breakfast accommodation 
Provision of respite services, under 3’s provision and support for young carers meets 
demand 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 152



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 21 

 
6. Key Themes and Priorities  
 
In order to achieve our vision, we will focus on the following five key outcome 
themes and action plans for children and young people over the next four years: 
 
• Getting the Best Start in Life  
• Achieving their Potential  
• Responsible and Included Citizens  
• Safe and Protected  
• Successful Transitions to Adulthood 
 
6.1 Getting the Best Start in Life 
 
The Getting the Best Start in Life Outcome Group will co-ordinate the delivery of 
the Early Years Framework Implementation Plan 2010. 
 
Its priorities are: 
 
•  A coherent approach 
• Capacity building and engaging children, families and communities to secure 

outcomes for themselves 
• Breaking cycles of poverty, inequality and poor outcomes in and through the 

early years 
• Engagement and empowerment of children, families and communities 
• using the strength of universal services to deliver prevention and early 

intervention 
• Putting quality at the heart of service delivery 
• Services that meet the needs of children and families 
• Improve outcomes and children’s quality of life through the plan 
• Simplifying and streamlining delivery  
• Ensuring more effective collaborations. 
 
Why? (The purpose of the outcome group) 
 
The purpose of the Getting the Best Start in Life Outcome Group is to work 
together to: 
 
• Ensure that consistently high quality, affordable, accessible childcare services 

are available to meet the changing needs of families in the city 
• Ensure the continuing development of quality childcare services 
• Identify gaps in provision 
• Support the childcare workforce 
• Continue to promote equality and inclusion across all services 
• Promote better outcomes for children, young people and families 
• Promote cross-sector investment in learning through play 
• Ensure accessible, comprehensive up-to-date information on all services for 

children and young people is available to parents and professionals. 
 
 

Page 153



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 22 

 
What? (How will service meet the needs of children and families?) 
 
• Monitoring and evaluation returns will inform development and delivery of 

high quality services 
• Consultation with children and parents / carers will inform ongoing 

development of services 
• Comprehensive training programme provides core training, continuous 

professional development and accredited qualifications opportunities for the 
early years and childcare workforce 

• The Best Start in Life Outcome Group and sub groups offer opportunities to 
gather information from practitioners on the needs of children and families 

• Play, childcare and learning opportunities engage our youngest citizens 
helping to build capacity within their own communities. 

 
How? (How working together will improve the quality of services)  
 
• Effective, efficient inter-agency communication will result in seamless delivery 

of services to children and families 
• Robust and comprehensive evidence base will be developed to inform service 

delivery 
• All services are engaged with quality improvement processes to improve 

service quality 
• Provision for children with complex needs being developed including 

wraparound childcare. 
 
So What? (How will we know we have made a difference?) 
 
• Improved inspection grades (SCSWIS/ HMIE) 
• GIRFEC principles embedded in all early years and childcare services 

resulting in better outcomes for children. 
• Attainment levels increased. 
• Children entering primary 1 are confident learners 
• Parents engage positively with their children 
• Communities demonstrate increased capacity 
• Successful outcomes for vulnerable children and hard to reach families 
• Children and family achievements and successes are celebrated 
• Parents training, volunteering and employment opportunities contribute to the 

economic growth of the city. 
 

Illustration of Good Practice - Hazlewood After School Club  
                    

Hazlewood After School Club is run by VSA and funded by Aberdeen Early Years 
and Childcare Partnership.  It supports parents of children with complex needs to 
access a specialist afterschool / holiday provision service to enable them to work or 
attend college.  This very specialised service is for children who would not manage 
within a mainstream setting due to the size, staffing ratios and training of the team.  
 
 
 
 

Page 154



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 23 

 
Susan is 9 years old, has complex needs, is on the autistic spectrum and requires 
very specialist care and support.  She started attending the afterschool club when 
she was 5.  Susan appears content in the setting, parallel playing along side her 
peers and seems happy to initiate her own activities.  Although she does not play 
with the other children she will often ask where the other ‘girls’ are.  She is not 
reliant on any one member of staff but will on occasion call all staff members 
‘Dorothy’. 
 
At a recent full day holiday session Susan’s behaviour became extremely difficult 
to manage, with her screaming and lashing out.  The afterschool club arranged for 
observations to be done.  These were analysed by VSA’s behaviour specialist who 
suggested a few things to try to help reduce these outbursts and make Susan’s full 
days less stressful for everyone. These suggestions were discussed in detail and 
agreed with Susan’s school. 
 
The specialist recommended: 
• Making Susan a schedule using pictures that she could recognise 
• Using a CD player at transition times to minimise any environmental sound for 

her. 
 

After putting this into place Susan managed to cope with full days allowing mum to 
continue with her job.  
                             
Mum’s quote  
“Without the help and support of the afterschool club I would be unable to work to 
support my family.   I have felt very isolated in the past as I have no family in this 
country to help.  The afterschool club gives my child a very rare chance to be with 
her friends which is very important to us as a family”. 
 
6.2 Achieving their Potential 
 
The Aberdeen Learning Strategy lists Aberdeen City Council’s 10 learning 
priorities.  These are to: 
 

• Implement the Curriculum for Excellence 
• Rebuild or refurbish schools and learning centres to ensure they are fit for 

purpose 
• Make sure services work together in the interests of the learner 
• Deliver learning in the wider community ensuring lifelong learning for 

everyone 
• Improve the use of technology for learning 
• Focus on health and wellbeing 
• Engage communities in arts, culture and heritage 
• Help those with different needs and ensure everyone reaches their potential. 
• Improve our overall performance and deliver value for money 
• Recruit, support and retain skilled and trained staff. 
 

The Achieving their Potential Outcome Group will lead on five of these priorities. 
 
 

Page 155



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 24 

 
Why? (The purpose of the outcome group) 
 
The purpose of the Achieving their Potential Outcome Group is to work together to 
monitor, provide overview and challenge in relation to strategies, plans and their 
implementation in the context of: 
 
• Curriculum for Excellence and engagement of partners 
• Learning Partnerships 
• Supporting schools and Learning Partnerships to Get it Right for Every Child 
• Health and wellbeing 
• Helping those with different needs and ensuring everyone reaches their 

potential. 
 
What? (How will service meet the needs of children and families?)  
 
We will monitor how well services meet the needs of children with particular 
reference to the relevant actions within the single outcome agreement: 
 
• Our children have the best start in life and are ready to succeed 
• Our young people are successful learners, confident individuals, effective 

contributors and responsible citizens. 
 

We will work in partnership to design and implement initiatives which contribute to 
the achievement of the national outcomes. 
 
How? (How working together will improve the quality of services)  
 
• Effective, efficient inter-agency communication will result in seamless delivery 

of services to children and families 
• Robust and comprehensive evidence base will be developed to inform service 

delivery 
• All services are engaged with quality improvement processes to improve 

service quality. 
 
So what? (How will we know we have made a difference?)  
 
• Improved inspection grades 
• GIRFEC principles embedded in all schools resulting in better outcomes for 

children 
• Attainment levels increased 
• Successful outcomes for vulnerable children and hard to reach families 
• Achievements and successes are celebrated 
• An effective network of Learning Partnerships is in place 
• Positive performance management information about health and wellbeing 

initiatives. 
 
 
 
 

Page 156



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 25 

 
Illustration of Good Practice – Jane’s Story 
 
I am Jane, I am 14 years old and I have been in care since I was nine because my 
mum and dad weren’t able to look after me.  That means I was a looked after child 
and they say that the council is my corporate parent.  I didn’t really know what that 
meant until a few years ago but the council have started to do more things to 
support me and make sure I am doing well at school and at home.  My social 
worker says it means that all of the council and other people that they work with 
are going to do for me what every good parent would do for their own child.    
 
I feel safe now because I live in place where I am supported well by other adults 
and they make sure I am home at a safe time, that I feel safe and secure in my 
home, I know how to keep myself safe when I am out with friends and they also 
teach me how to use the internet safely too.   
 
I know I am healthy because I get regular health assessments and I also have a 
dentist that I see regularly.  I was struggling to cope with how I felt about having to 
leave my family so I now speak to a counsellor.  I’m starting to feel better about the 
past and I am now able to think about what I would like to do when I leave school.  
 
I used to really struggle at school, I wasn’t getting any qualifications and I felt I 
wasn’t achieving very much.  Mrs Watson started to notice I was struggling, she is 
the designated senior manager for looked after children in school.  I was a bit 
worried when she first talked to me because I thought everyone would find out I 
didn’t live with my family but she told me that only she knew and that she was there 
to help me.  I met with her a few time so I could decide what help I needed and this 
was written up in my individual education plan.  This also meant that I joined a 
community group after school so I could do things that would help my confidence 
and school work.  I’m doing much better at school now, I got an achievement 
award last year for a project I did in school and Mrs Watson said she is confident 
that I am going to do well because I am have worked through lots of the goals I set 
myself to achieve in my plan.    
 
My social worker meets with me regularly and I feel that people do care about me 
and I can see that lots of people are trying to help me achieve what I want from my 
life.  It’s not the same as being able to stay with my family and I really miss them 
but I do get to see them more regularly as we have family contact visits and that 
time is special because we don’t argue so much anymore.  
 
I am much more active that I used to be as I go on group activities and I have 
joined some community clubs so we do things outdoors a lot.  I also go to school 
much more than I used to so I do lots in between classes.   
 
I know I am more responsible now and I show more respect for others.  I 
sometimes used to get into trouble when I was younger but I have made new 
friends and make better choices about what I do with my time.  When I got into 
trouble the last time I went to work with a local project and I have been doing more 
with the community.  I got to go on a trip to develop my confidence and skills.  It 
was so good I now know what I want to achieve when I leave school.  
 

Page 157



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 26 

 
I met with the carers advisors and spoke to my throughcare worker and they are 
speaking to the 16+ Learning Choices Team in school so I can get access to the 
right college course so I can achieve my potential and be economically 
independent when I leave care.    
 
6.3 Responsible and Included Citizens 
 
The Responsible and Included Citizens Outcome Group will co-ordinate the 
delivery of the Aberdeen Youth Justice Strategy 2010-13. 
 
Its priorities are: 
 
• Prevention 
• Early and effective intervention 
• Managing high risk 
• Victim and community confidence 
 
Why? (The purpose of the outcome group) 
 
The purpose of the Responsible and Included Citizens Outcome Group is to work 
together to: 
 
• Reduce the number of young people (under 18’s) involved in  anti-social 

behaviour, drug and alcohol use and offending 
• Monitor and evaluate services to ensure the development of quality services 

to meet the needs and manage the risks of these young people 
• Identify gaps in service provision 
• Ensure access to comprehensive training to provide the workforce with key 

knowledge and skills for undertaking assessment and intervention 
• Promote multi-agency working to ensure an appropriate, proportionate and 

timely response to meet young people’s needs and risks 
• Consult with children, young people and parents/carers to inform ongoing 

development of services 
• Engage with victims and communities to ensure their needs are being met 
• Promote better outcomes for children, young people and families. 
 
What? (How will service meet the needs of children and families?)  
 
• Provision of prevention and diversionary activities 
• Education for young people on risk and consequences of becoming involved 

in alcohol/drug se, anti-social behaviour or offending; 
• Work with communities to build a supportive environment for children and 

young people 
• Provide early intervention processes and services to meet the needs of young 

people at risk 
• Divert young people away from formal measure (Reporter/Court) where 

appropriate 
• Provide high quality services for young people and families to meet their 

needs and risks. 

Page 158



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 27 

 
• Develop effective ways of working with young people whom are difficult to 

engage 
• Provide wrap around support especially for high risk young people 
• Provide integrated processes and services across children and adult systems 
• Ensure young people have access to education, training and employment  

opportunities 
• Improve access to appropriate accommodation for young people 
• Ensure victims have access to a range of services to meet their needs. 
 

How? (How working together will improve the quality of services)  
 
• Intervene in a appropriate, proportionate and timely way to reduce escalation 

of needs and risks 
• Provide high quality assessments and interventions to meet the needs and 

manage risks of children and young people and families 
• Work in a multi-agency way to provide a wrap around package of support to 

meet the needs and mange the risks of young people 
• Improve transitions between the youth and adult systems 
• A range of services will work together to meet the needs of victims. 
 
So what? (How will we know we have made a difference?)  
 
• Reduction in number of young people using drugs and/or alcohol 
• Reduce demand for specialist drug services 
• Reduction in number of young people involved in anti-social behaviour 
• Current level of anti-social behaviour by young people maintained 
• Reduction in number of young people committing crimes 
• Reduction in the volume of youth crime 
• Increased victim and public confidence. 

 
Illustration of Good Practice - A better outcome for Keira 
 
Grampian Police picked up 12-year old Keira late one evening in the city centre, 
where she had been drinking alcohol for several hours – putting herself at 
considerable risk.  They took her home and talked to her and her parents.  The 
officers decided that this was a one-off incident.  Their usual next step would have 
been to refer her to the children’s reporter to consider the need for compulsory 
measures.  From this point it would have taken a few months before a children’s 
hearing was held, if one was considered necessary.  This would have been a lot of 
waiting and uncertainty for Keira and her parents. 
 
Instead, using the Getting it right approach, officers completed a concern form and 
agreed with Keira and her parents that the information would be shared with her 
school.  A plan to support her was prepared where her parents agreed to monitor 
her activities more closely and her guidance teacher explored with her what she 
had done.  Keira deeply regretted her behaviour, accepted the support offered and 
understood that the school would also be monitoring her behaviour. 
 
 
 

Page 159



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 28 

 
The Getting it right approach avoided bureaucracy, resulted in improved outcomes 
and speedier action.  Referral to the children’s reporter would still be an option but 
was not needed at this point. 
 
Nine months later there had been no further reported incidents and Keira had 
settled down very well.  She was safer, taking more personal responsibility 
and not putting her health at risk. 
 
Aberdeen Youth Justice Development Programme  
 

The Aberdeen Youth Justice Development Programme, funded by the Scottish 
Government, is an improvement programme involving all youth justice partners in 
Aberdeen that work across the 8 – 18 age group.   
 
The aim of the programme is to reduce re-offending by young people through 
delivering appropriate interventions. This involves a review and re-design of the 
way in which youth justice services are planned and delivered to make sure they 
are more flexible and responsive to the needs of young people, available when 
needed and as early as possible.   
 
This supports the aim of the Responsible and Included Outcome Group to prevent 
youth offending by making sure all services for children and young people meet 
their needs in the right way and at the right time through the Getting it right for 
every child approach. 
 
The programme is being delivered through three workstreams: 
 
Early and Effective Intervention 
 
Pre-referral screening (PRS) was established in May 2010 to ensure that young 
people will receive the appropriate intervention in a timely manner, while at the 
same time being diverted away from formal and statutory systems where 
appropriate.  This will improve outcomes for young people, and will free up 
capacity within SCRA, Social Work, Youth Justice, Health and Education and other 
agencies to concentrate on undertaking assessments and delivering interventions 
to young people and their families. 
 
Aberdeen is the first area in Scotland to include diversion from prosecution for 
under 18s in the pre-referral screening process so that more young people are 
diverted away from court, where, based on the level of seriousness or of the 
offending, court is not considered the most appropriate course of action.  Since 
pre-referral screening has been established there has been a significant decrease 
in the number of reports being sent to the children’s reporter for both welfare and 
offence grounds.  
 
This approach has seen a reduction in inappropriate referrals to the reporter on 
offence grounds of 40%. It has also seen an increase in diversion from prosecution 
of 16 and 17 year olds from 11 cases in 2010-11 to 86 cases from June 2010 to 
February 2011. 
 
 

Page 160



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 29 

 
Effective Court Case Management 
 
From June 2010 improved working practices were introduced by the police, crown 
office and procurator fiscal service, the summary criminal courts and social work to 
ensure cases of young people are dealt with quickly through the courts.   
 
The time taken from first court appearance to making a decision whether to impose 
a sentence or not has reduced by a third (from 147 days to 92 on average).  In 
addition, the post of court support worker was established within Sacro in October 
2010 to provide a visible presence within the courts to offer support, guidance and 
assistance to young people going through the court process and signpost them to 
appropriate services. 
 
Integrated Services 
 
This workstream is delivering effective community based integrated services to 
support children and young people under 18 to prevent the use of custody and 
secure accommodation or where young people are being reintegrated into their 
community.  Service providers are working in collaboration to provide intensive 
support including mentoring, one to one learning, family support, offending work, 
mental health support, movement restriction support, respite care and recreational 
activities. 
 
Activity around the programme is scheduled to run until March 2012 and the 
challenge will be to embed the changes introduced into on-going services to 
become business as usual.  Work is ongoing with all partners to create capacity 
within current services in order to maintain the current activity at a time when 
resources are reducing. 
 
6.4 Safe and Protected 
 
The Aberdeen City Child Protection Sub-Committee co-ordinates the delivery of 
the Aberdeen City Child Protection Action Plan. 
 
Why? (The purpose of the outcome group) 
  
The purpose of the Aberdeen City Child Protection Sub-Committee is to: 
• Work in partnership with the North East of Scotland Child Protection Committee 

(NESCPC) to promote the protection of children as per the Memorandum of 
Understanding dated September 2009 

• Arrange the delivery of services to children to protect children that meets local 
need 

• Exercise effective quality assurance and governance of services to protect 
children in Aberdeen. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 161



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 30 

 
What? (How will service meet the needs of children and families?) 
 
• Delivery of effective integrated services 
• Children and young people who have been abused are protected from further 

harm, and supported to achieve their potential 
• All those working with children, young people and families protect them from 

harm effectively and have the knowledge, skills and capabilities to do so 
• The wider community exercises its responsibility to contribute to the safety and 

protection of children through taking action when children are at risk 
• Our services change and develop to meet evidenced need 
• We know when our services are effective in improving outcomes for children, 

and we take action when this is not happening. 
 
How? (How working together will improve the quality of services) 
 

• Embedding a shared approach to addressing substance misuse across adults 
and children’s services so that children at risk because of parental alcohol and 
drug use are known, supported and protected as a result of services working 
together 

• Ensuring that staff from all agencies know and understand their responsibilities 
in relation to the key child protection processes and can evidence that they can 
use them appropriately 

• Listening to children’s views about how helpful services are in supporting them 
to be safe 

• Making sure that children who need protection have outcome based plans 
which result in them being safer 

• Ensuring that children who have experienced abuse are supported to recover 
from the impact of abuse 

• Encouraging the development and implementation of partnership and strength-
based approaches to working with families 

• Raise public awareness of child protection and develop more effective 
mechanisms for the public reporting of child protection concerns. 

• Evaluating the effectiveness of our work and using this to improve what we do 
to make sure that children are protected. 

 
So What? (How will we know we have made a difference?) 
 
• All children who experience reduced parenting capacity as a result of parental 

alcohol or drug use are identified by the Named Person, an assessment of 
need is completed and a support plan is written 

• All children and young people who are affected by parental alcohol or drug use 
have a support plan, and those who require it have a protection plan.  The 
support and protection plans meet their needs. 

• Children and young people report that the services they receive as part of a 
support or protection plan resulted in them being safer 

• Staff from all agencies report that they are confident in recognising and 
responding to child protection concerns and supporting children who need 
protection 

 
 

Page 162



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 31 

 
• Children return to stay with their parents more quickly after being looked after 

away from home for the first time when it is safe for them to do so 
• More relatives are supported to look after children and young people when their 

parents are not able to do this safely 
• More members of the public recognise when children are not safe and know 

how to share their concerns so that the child or young person’s safety can be 
assessed. 

 
Illustration of Good Practice - Making sure that Tommy is safe 
 
Tommy is 8 years old.  He attends primary school, but recently he has been late 
and has had some unexplained days off.  Tommy sometimes comes to school 
without a jacket when it is cold and he is often hungry. Tommy has stopped talking 
about his mum and dad very much and hasn’t got many friends. 
 
Tommy’s teacher noticed that he was sad and quiet and that he was absent or late 
and made time to speak to him.  Tommy was reluctant to tell his teacher much 
about his home life, but she spent some time with Tommy every week encouraging 
him to talk.  Eventually Tommy told his teacher that he thought that his mum and 
dad were using drugs and that he sometimes had to look after his 4 year old sister.  
Tommy told his teacher that he loved his mum and dad and wanted them to keep 
looking after him, but he didn’t want to be afraid any more. Tommy’s teacher had 
been to Getting It Right training and knew that she needed to do something to 
support Tommy. 
 
Tommy’s teacher asked Tommy’s parents if she could refer him to the Pre-Referral 
Screening Group for information and support from all the agencies.  The Pre-
Referral Screening Group gathered all the information they had from Grampian 
Police, NHS Grampian and Social Care and Wellbeing and gave this to Tommy’s 
teacher.  The Pre-Referral Screening Group suggested that Tommy’s teacher 
arrange a meeting with everyone involved to talk about the support that Tommy 
needed. 
 
Tommy teacher arranged a meeting with the health visitor, the school nurse, the 
social worker and Tommy’s mum and dad and invited a worker from the drugs 
service to come along.  They talked about the things that were worrying Tommy, 
and his mum and dad decided to ask for help about their drug use.  Tommy’s 
teacher wrote a support plan for Tommy about what everyone, including his mum 
and dad, would do to help him feel safer. 
 
Tommy’s parents found it difficult to get help for their drug use and look after their 
children at the same time.  Tommy told his teacher that he sometimes saw drugs 
and needles lying around the house, and there were adults fighting in the house 
sometimes.  He said that he had to get himself up for school.  Tommy’s teacher 
became more concerned about Tommy’s safety and asked for a Child Protection 
Case Conference to be arranged.  Tommy and his parents went to the case 
conference and talked about what was happening at home.   
 
 
 

Page 163



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 32 

 
Everyone at the case conference agreed that Tommy and his sister needed to 
have a protection plan.  This plan said that: 
 
• Tommy and his sister should go and stay with their granny until his mum and 

dad got help with their drug use;   
• Tommy’s mum and dad should have someone to work with them to help them 

reduce their drug use and to help them to understand more about what 
Tommy and his sister needed from them; 

• Tommy should have a befriender who would spend time with him each week 
and take him swimming; and 

• Tommy should have a social worker to make sure that the plan was working. 
 
Tommy was pleased with this plan because he was staying with people he knew, 
he felt safe and he was still able to see his mum and dad.  Tommy was also 
pleased that he was able to learn to swim.  Tommy went to school more often and 
he enjoyed being there.  He made more friends and told everyone that he was 
happier. 
 
It took a long time but Tommy’s mum and dad managed to stop using drugs so 
much.  Tommy and his sister went home to stay with them during the week and 
continued to stay with his Granny at the weekends.  Eventually Tommy didn’t need 
a protection plan any more, but he still needed some support.   
 
Tommy had a support plan which said that he would continue to have a befriender 
and Tommy knew that he could tell his teacher if things at home got worse.  
Tommy’s Granny and his teacher both knew what signs to look for which would tell 
them that Tommy might not be safe and knew that they could ask for another child 
protection case conference if this happened. Tommy’s mum and dad knew what 
they had to do to provide Tommy with support and make sure that he felt safe.  
Tommy’s teacher, the school nurse, the social worker, the befriender and the 
Drugs Service worker had review meetings with Tommy and his parents every few 
months to check how things were and make sure he was safe. 
 
Services worked well together with Tommy, his parents and his Granny to make 
sure that Tommy and his sister were safe. His teacher knew that something was 
wrong and encouraged Tommy to talk about it.  She took responsibility for involving 
other agencies and writing a support plan for Tommy.  When the support plan was 
not working well, a child protection case conference was held and a protection plan 
was written.  Once the protection plan had worked well and was no longer 
required, Tommy continued to receive the support that he needed.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 164



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 33 

 
6.5 Successful Transitions to Adulthood 
 
The Successful Transitions to Adulthood Outcome Group will co-ordinate the 
delivery of the More Choices, More Chances: A Strategy to Reduce the Proportion 
of Young People not in Education, Employment or Training in Aberdeen City 2010-
13. 
 
Its priorities are to: 
 
• Develop an effective partnership to ensure local leadership, planning and 

delivery through joint commitment and action 
• Improve information management to support timely, proportionate and 

appropriate multi-agency information sharing 
• Ensure early identification of, and support to, young people in need of more 

choices, more chances to stem the flow of school leavers moving onto 
negative destinations 

• Deliver a universal offer of 16+ Learning Choices to all young people in 
advance of their statutory school leaving date 

• Ensure the right levels of support and provision to enable young people in 
need of more choices, more chances to take up offers and sustain positive 
destinations in education, employment or training. 

 
Why? (The purpose of the outcome group) 
 
The aim of the Successful Transitions to Adulthood Outcome Group is to work 
together to: 
 
• Reduce the number of young people disengaged from learning before 

completing compulsory education 
• Ensure that robust processes and practices are in place locally to offer more 

opportunities for all young people 
• Increase the number of young people entering positive and sustained 

destinations in education, employment and training 
• Provide targeted support to those young people in need of more choices, 

more chances. 
 
What? (How will service meet the needs of children and families?)  
 
There has been significant progress to develop a robust approach and a renewed 
focus on how to support local services to drive forward improvements and ensure 
we improve outcomes for children and young people. These include:  
 
• Leadership and dedicated support for the agenda within the council’s 

Education, Culture and Sport directorate 
• A dedicated team to support the development and delivery of the MCMC 

strategy and plan with 1.5 new posts funded by the Scottish Government to 
coordinate the implementation of 16+ learning choices for all school leavers in 
the city 

• Direct representation of youth justice and social care and wellbeing services. 
 

Page 165



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 34 

 
• Establishment of multi-agency 16+ Learning Choice Teams in all secondary 

schools 
• Implementation of 16+ Learning Choices in all secondary schools 
• Development of a local eProspectus that includes all local providers of 16+ 

Learning Choices.  
 
How? (How working together will improve the quality of services)  
 
Successful progress in reducing the number of young people in the MCMC 
category will be dependent on local partners across the employment, training, 
education and vocational sectors working together to: 
 
• Develop and enhance opportunities for the young people for whom we have 

responsibility; 
• Help maintain opportunities for young people during in the current economic 

downturn; 
• Increase opportunities for young people who have additional support needs or 

physical and mental health needs; and 
• Improve outcomes for young people leaving the care of the local authority, 

young parents or young carers, and young people who present particular 
challenges arising from their involvement in substance misuse and/or 
offending behaviour, thus requiring a coordinated and multi-agency approach. 

 
 
So what? (How will we know when we have made a difference?) 
 

• Increased proportion of school leavers in positive and sustained 
destinations, a key priority set out within our single outcome agreement 

• Reduction in the number of young people unemployed (16-19). 
 
Illustration of Good Practice - Story of a Christmas Leaver  
 
Aimee attended Hazlehead Academy from first year until she left school at 
Christmas. She initially enjoyed school but started to lose interest in many of the 
subjects around about the time she started her third year. Aimee likes being active 
and particularly enjoyed Physical Education and Dance classes: she was a 
committed member of the school trampoline club and girl’s football team. However, 
she struggled to engage in subjects which were orientated around the classroom. 
Although Aimee was still attending school every day as she got closer to leaving 
school, she occasionally skipped the classes that she wasn’t interested in. 
 
Guidance staff in the school recognised that Aimee would benefit from an 
alternative pathway to further learning at this stage of her development and 
recommended that she enquire about the Transition Extreme group which was 
running an open day for potential school leavers. This would allow Aimee to 
explore options for her to pursue her interest in sports through Transition Extreme’s 
‘Alternative Academy’.  Aimee was keen to join the Academy as it was environment 
in which she felt she could be herself and where she could develop as an 
individual. 
 

Page 166



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 35 

 
One of the main objectives of the Academy is to enable young people to gain the 
skills, confidence and capacity to progress in learning, life and work. Being part of 
the Academy is helping Aimee re-engage with the learning process by tapping into 
her passion and enthusiasm for action sports, art and music. She is a keen in-line 
skater and during her time at the Academy she is hoping to gain a Sports Leader 
certificate with the view to becoming a volunteer coach in the Transition Extreme 
team.  
 
Aimee is a confident individual and is now much clearer about what she wants to 
achieve in the coming months: her next step will be a sport & fitness course at 
Aberdeen College which she should start in August.  This will enable her to follow 
her passion for sport and develop the important coaching skills to help her 
progress in this field.  
 
Through 16+ Learning Choices, Aimee has access to the opportunities that best 
meet her needs and has the support to help her progress into further learning, 
training or employment. Hazlehead Academy, Skills Development Scotland and 
other partners are continuing to monitor Aimee’s progress and future development 
with interest and she knows that on-going support is available to help her make the 
most of the opportunities available to her. 

Page 167



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 36 

 
7. Workforce Training and Development 
 
The contribution of the workforce is critical to the success of integrated and high 
quality children’s services.  
 
Our priorities include: 
 

• Recruitment in critical areas 
• Retention of skills in a shifting workforce 
• Skills development – what we all need to be trained on to achieve common 

practice and language. 
 
7.1 Continuous Professional Development (CPD) and Workforce 

Development Programme 2011 
 
The multi-agency training programme delivered during 2008-10 introduced and 
supported the inauguration and implementation of Aberdeen’s multi-agency 
‘Getting it Right for Every Child’ procedures. We now need to recognise and build 
on the progress that has been made towards implementing the ‘team around the 
child’ model of working and to the embedding of GIRFEC core principles into 
practice and process. 
 
It has been agreed that the city will move to a closer alignment and compatibility 
with the Highland Pathfinder model. To successfully achieve this move we need to 
develop and deliver the next phase of training, this will build on the current good 
practice recognising the progress that has been made and will be supported by an 
updated, reviewed version of the Operational Guidance. 
 
We need to raise the profile of the ‘GIRFEC questions’, to introduce the ‘Named 
Person‘ role and to ensure that practitioners feel supported as the demands and 
responsibilities on them change. Throughout all the work and training it will be 
essential to ensure that the child and young person remains the centre of all 
practice design and delivery. 
 
The training programme will have to ensure that all training delivered to all and any 
colleagues in both services for children and young people as well as those services 
that are closely associated or influential in their lives (such as Housing Officers or 
Youth workers) has been designed incorporating GIRFE Core principles and that it 
uses GIRFEC language. All the training delivered must underpin and support the 
multi agency approach and language promoted by the ‘Highland Pathfinder model’. 
 
There is a need to identify the training requirements of practitioners and services 
across the city, to raise awareness of the costs associated with the delivery of the 
training, and to quantify the risks of not providing an updated training programme. 
It is also necessary to highlight shortfalls or unmet need, gaps and or shortfalls in 
resources. 
 
 
 
 

Page 168



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 37 

 
The aims of the training programme are to: 
 
• Embed GIRFEC core principles into practice ensuring that they are central 

to the delivery of services and supports to children and young people. 
• Raise the profile of the ten agreed national questions. 
• Build on good practice – including the links to both Child protection and to 

Consent and confidentiality. 
• Introduce the new role and the modification to the established roles. 
• Highlight the changes in process and practice. 
• Raise awareness of the ‘Pre referral Screening group’. 
• Develop support systems for colleagues both through the availability of 

mentoring as well as through dedicated training.  
7.2 Continuous Professional Development and Training Audience 
 
The training will be accessible to anyone who works and or who has direct contact 
with children, young people or their parents or carers. 
 
This will include the universal services of health and education (teachers, head 
teachers, health visitors or General Practitioners) as well as those who can have a 
less consistent or regular contact such as out of school care workers, early years  
staff, practitioners in child and adolescent mental health services. It must also 
include staff in services who work with adults who are either parents or carers, and 
services who come into contact with children such as community wardens, housing 
assistants or breakfast club workers. 
 
Some of the practitioners in the universal services have a good understanding of 
GIRFEC as implemented in the city in 2009. Other practitioners have a much more 
limited understanding of both the process and the implications of GIRFEC for them 
and their responsibility within the system. Others who are experienced in 
supporting children within the current model will need introduction to the changes 
in role and may require training in others aspects of supporting children and young 
people if they are to carry out the enhanced responsibilities of the named person, 
for example chairing a multi agency meeting may be a new experience or building 
a single multi agency plan may cause a degree of anxiety that should or could be 
addressed through training. 

Page 169



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 38 

 
8. Resources - What We Spend On Services 
 
Our objective is to ensure that we protect the quality of public services with a 
diminishing budget in order to achieve the best possible improvement in outcomes 
for our children and young people.   This section of the plan provides a breakdown 
of the planned spend for the year 2011-12 for the council and some of its partners 
to give an indication of the level of expenditure on children’s services in Aberdeen. 
 
Expenditure from services such as education can be identified easily as these 
services directly support children and families. Children and families do of course 
also benefit from services that are provided for the whole population e.g. police and 
housing but resources specifically on children from these services is not as easy to 
quantify because of the way these budgets are organised. Nevertheless, services 
have proportioned their budgets in an attempt to illustrate how much of their 
expenditure is for children and families work. 
 
Expenditure on Children’s Services     £   
 
Aberdeen City Council       
(Source: POBE return for Scottish Government) 
 
Education, Culture and Sport       147,564,000 
(Total budget of Pre-School, Primary, Secondary, Special 
Education and Community Learning and Development) 
        
Social Care and Wellbeing          34,915,000 
(Total budget of Children and Family Services)        
    
Housing                          529,000 
(Total of 2 projects – Family Project and 
Single Homeless)       
 
Grampian Police  
(Source: Outcome Budgeting Project for Community Planning Partnership) 
 
(Includes spend for whole population  
including children and young people) 
 
Community Safety - Local Policing        18,877,000 
 
Community Safety - Dealing with the Public            936,000 
 
Community Safety - Criminal Justice          1,775,000 
  
NHS Grampian  
It has not been possible to disaggregate the  
NHS Grampian budget to provide details of spend  
on children and young people in Aberdeen at this time.   
          ------------------  
Total for 2011-12             £204,596,000 
            =========== 

Page 170



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 39 

 
Other services not listed also have an impact on the lives of children and young 
people such as the fire service, local leisure facilities, museums and galleries, 
public libraries, and the plethora of third sector and community organizations 
working in the city.  Similarly many services directed at adults like criminal justice 
and mental health, contribute to the care and support of children but again to 
attempt to quantify this would be a difficult task to undertake. 
 
The Third Sector 
 
A report on the economic impact of the third sector, undertaken on behalf of ACVO 
in 2007, suggested that the third sector contributes an estimated income of £217.9 
million to the local economy in Aberdeen. 31% of this income is generated by 
fees and charges for services and approximately 33% is obtained through grants.  
This figure will include grant from the local authority. 
 
In addition, there are approximately 44,000 volunteers committing, on average, 
around 83 hours each per annum. The estimated number of volunteer hours 
contributed annually is 3.7 million and the economic value of volunteer activity 
equates to almost £52 million. 
 
 

Page 171



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 40 

 
Appendices 
 
1. Key National Policies and Reports 
 
• Children (Scotland) Act 1995 
• For Scotland’s children 
• National Care Standards 
• Getting it Right for Every Child 
• Equality Act 2010 
• Early Years Framework 
• Health for all Children (Hall 4) and Hall 4 Update 2011 
• A Curriculum for Excellence 
• Education (Additional Support for Learning) (Scotland) Act 2004 (as amended 

2009) and respective codes of practice 
• Supporting Children’s Learning: code of practice 2010 
• Scottish Schools (Parental Involvement) Act 2006 and Guidance to the Act 

(September 2006) 
• HMIE Educational Psychology in Scotland: Making a difference 
• HMIE Learning in Scotland’s Communities 
• Disability Discrimination Act 
• Delivering Healthy Futures (2007) 
• Equally Well (2008) 
• National Delivery Plan for Specialist Children’s Services (2008) 
• The Healthcare and Quality Strategy for NHS Scotland (2010) 
• The Mental Health of Children and Young People: A Framework for 

Promotion, Prevention and Care (2004) 
• Active Schools Programme 
• Healthy Eating, Active Living 
• National Guidance for Child Protection in Scotland (2010) 
• Protecting Children and Young People: Framework for Standards 
• Looked After Children: We Can and Must Do Better 
• Looked After Children (Scotland) Regulations 2009 
• The Health of Looked After and Accommodated Children and Young People 

in Scotland 
• The Adoption and Children (Scotland) Act 2007 
• Getting our Priorities Right 
• Housing (Scotland) Act 2001 
• Homelessness etc (Scotland) Act 2003 
• The Children’s Hearings (Scotland) Bill 2010 
• Early and Effective Intervention 
• The Young People who Offend 
• Preventing Offending by Young People: A Framework for Action (2008) 
• More Choices, More Chances: A Strategy to Reduce the Proportion of Young 

People Not in Education, Employment or Training 
• 16+ Learning Choices – Policy and Practice Framework 2010 
• Skills for Scotland Strategy 
• Sweet 16 – Scotland’s Commissioner for Children and Young People 
 

Page 172



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 41 

 
2. Key Local Strategies and Reports 
 
• Aberdeen City Children and Young People’s Audit 2010-11 
• Aberdeen City Council Vibrant, Dynamic and Forward Looking 
• Aberdeen City Single Outcome Agreement 
• Aberdeen City Council 5-Year Business Plan 
• Aberdeen City Getting it Right for Every Child Implementation Plan  
• Aberdeen City Operational Guidance for Getting it Right for Every Child 
• Aberdeen City Council Corporate Parenting Policy 
• Aberdeen City Council Social Care and Wellbeing Eligibility Criteria 
• Aberdeen Learning Strategy 
• Aberdeen City Child Protection Action Plan 
• Aberdeen City Alcohol and Drugs Partnership Alcohol Strategy 
• Aberdeen City Alcohol and Drugs Partnership Drug Strategy (Draft) 
• Aberdeen Inclusion Strategy  
• Early Years Framework Implementation Plan 2010 
• More Choices More Chances Local Strategy 2010-13 
• NHS Grampian Local Health Plan 
• NHS Grampian Our Children Our Future: A Strategy for Protecting Children 

(2010) 
• Parental Involvement Strategy 
• Volunteering in Aberdeen: A Rewarding Experience 2008-12 
• Youth Justice Strategy 2010-13 
 

Page 173



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 42 

 
3. Membership of the Integrated Children’s Services Partnership 
 
• Director of Social Care and Wellbeing, Aberdeen City Council (Chair) 
• Director of  Education, Culture and Sport, Aberdeen City Council   
• Director of Housing and Environment, Aberdeen City Council  
• Chair of Aberdeen City Youth Council 
• Chief Executive, Aberdeen Council of Voluntary Organisations  
• Chair of Children’s Panel  
• Reporter to the Children’s Panel  
• Chief Superintendent and Divisional Commander, Grampian Police  
• Depute General Manager, Aberdeen City Community Health Partnership, 

NHS Grampian  
• Strategic Co-ordinator Child Health, NHS Grampian 
• General Manager - Combined Child Health Services, Royal Aberdeen 

Children’s Hospital  
 
4. Membership of the Integrated Children’s Services Management Team 
 
• Director of Education, Culture and Sport, Aberdeen City Council (Chair) 
• Head of Communities, Culture and Sport, Aberdeen City Council 
• Head of Schools and Educational Establishments, Aberdeen City Council 
• Head of Children’s Services, Social Care and Wellbeing, Aberdeen City 

Council 
• Service Manager – Vulnerable Families and Learners, Education, Culture and 

Sport, Aberdeen City Council 
• Children’s Services Manager (Planning and Development), Social Care and 

Wellbeing, Aberdeen City Council 
• Housing Manager, Housing and Environment, Aberdeen City Council 
• Youth Participation Officer, Education, Culture and Sport, Aberdeen City 

Council 
• Integrated Children’s Services Officer, Aberdeen Council of Voluntary 

Organisations 
• Assistant Director of Barnardos Aberdeen 
• Detective Inspector, Intelligence / Public Protection, Grampian Police 
• Service Manager – Combined Child Health Service, Royal Aberdeen 

Children’s Hospital, NHS Grampian 
• GP Lead and Cluster Lead for Central South Aberdeen, NHS Grampian 
• Health Visitor Team Lead, NHS Grampian 
• Public Health Team Lead, NHS Grampian 
• Director of Children and Families Services (Young Carers), Voluntary Service 

Aberdeen 
• Chair of ‘Best Start in Life Outcome Group 
• Chair of ‘Achieving their Potential’ Outcome Group 
• Chair of ‘Responsible and Included Citizens’ Outcome Group 
• Chair of ‘Safe and Protected’ Outcome Group 
• Chair of ‘Successful Transitions to Adulthood’ Outcome Group 
 

Page 174



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 43 

 
5. List of Consultees 
 
• Members of Integrated Children’s Services Partnership 
• Members of Integrated Children’s Services Management Team 
• Members of Getting the Best Start in Life Outcome Group (Aberdeen Early 

Years and Childcare Partnership) 
• Members of Achieving their Potential Outcome Group 
• Members of Respected and Included Outcome Group (Youth Justice Strategy 

Group 
• Members of Aberdeen City Child Protection Sub-Committee 
• Members of Successful Transitions to Adulthood Outcome Group (More 

Choices, More Chances Implementation Group) 
• All Elected Members, Aberdeen City Council 
• Chief Executive, Aberdeen City Council 
• Director of Education, Culture and Sport, Aberdeen City Council  
• Director of Housing and Environment, Aberdeen City Council 
• Director of Social Care and Wellbeing, Aberdeen City Council 
• Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure, Aberdeen City Council 
• Director of Corporate Governance, Aberdeen City Council 
• Head of Communities, Culture and Sport, EC&S 
• Head of Schools and Educational Establishments, EC&S 
• Head of Education Development Policy and Performance, EC&S 
• Head of Children’s Services, Social Care & Wellbeing, Aberdeen City Council 
• Head of Adult Services, Social Care & Wellbeing, Aberdeen City Council 
• Head of Housing and Community Safety, Aberdeen City Council 
• Quality Improvement Officers, Education, Culture and Sport, Aberdeen City 

Council 
• Service Manager – Policy and Performance, Education, Culture and Sport 
• Service Manager – Vulnerable Families and Learners 
• Service Manager – Communities 
• Service Manager – Culture and Sport 
• Service Manger - Schools 
• Service Manager – 0-7 and School Improvement 
• Service Manager – 5 -14 Education and ASN 
• Principal Educational Psychologist, Education, Culture and Sport 
• Children’s Service Managers - Social Care and Wellbeing, Aberdeen City 

Council 
• Lead Officer Child Protection, Social Care and Wellbeing, Aberdeen City 

Council 
• Housing Manager, Housing and Environment 
• Youth Participation Officer, Education, Culture and Sport 
• Strategic Co-ordinator Child Health, NHS Grampian 
• General Manager - Combined Child Health Services, Royal Aberdeen 

Children’s Hospital  
• Service Manager – Combined Child Health Service, Royal Aberdeen 

Children’s Hospital, NHS Grampian 
• Lead Nurse – School Nursing, NHS Grampian 
• Health Visitor Team Lead, NHS Grampian 

Page 175



For Aberdeen’s Children     Final Draft – 14.06.11 
Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15  

 44 

 
• Public Health Team Lead, NHS Grampian 
• Aberlour Childcare Trust - Children’s Services Training and Assessment 

Centre 
• Aberdeen City Youth Council 
• Aberdeen Children and Young People’s Voluntary Sector Providers Forum 
• Aberdeen Children’s Panel 
• Aberdeen Children’s Service Network,  
• Aberdeen Council of Voluntary Organisations 
• Aberdeen Foyer 
• Barnardos 
• Grampian Police 
• Homestart 
• NHS Grampian 
• Reporter to the Children’s Panel 
• Sacro 
• VSA 
 
 
 
 

Page 176



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE:  Finance and Resources     
 
DATE:    16 June 2011 
 
REPORT BY:  Head of Finance 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: Treasury Management Policy and Strategy 
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG/11067 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To update the Committee on Treasury Management activities 
undertaken during financial year 2010/11. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
  

It is recommended that the Committee : 
 

a) Notes the Treasury Management activities undertaken in 2010/11 
as detailed; and 

b) Notes that the report will be presented to Council on 29 June 2011. 
  

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Treasury Management activities influence the loans pool interest rates 
and aims to minimise the cost of borrowing.  This directly impacts upon 
costs chargeable to the Council's revenue budgets through the interest 
rates that are applied to capital financing costs.  Whilst the level of 
borrowing a Council can undertake is now devolved from the Scottish 
Government to individual Councils, it will still be constrained by the 
requirement for capital investment to be affordable, sustainable and 
prudent.  The main test of affordability will be whether the capital 
financing costs can be contained within the revenue budgets. 

 
4. SERVICE AND COMMUNITY IMPACT 
 

None 
 

5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

If an active Treasury Management policy is not undertaken and 
implemented there may be future budgetary implications for the Council 
through greater than budgeted capital financing costs. 

 

Agenda Item 9(f)

Page 177



6. REPORT 
 

6.1 Introduction 
 
The Council previously approved Treasury Management policy for 
2010/11 to 2012/13 on 17 June 2010.  Part of this policy is to report a 
year-end review to committee on Treasury Management activities 
undertaken during the financial year 2010/11. 
 
With effect from 1 April 2004, Councils are now required by regulation 
to have regard to the Prudential Code (the Code) when carrying out 
their duties under part 7 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003. 
 
Historically, the Council's annual programme of capital investment has 
been funded by Treasury Management activities, such as additional 
long-term borrowing.  
 
It is a requirement of this Code that Treasury Management is carried 
out in accordance with good professional practice. The Code requires 
the Council to comply with CIPFA "Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management in the Public Services", which this Council does. 
 
This “year-end” review on activities undertaken is also in line with new 
reporting requirements from the latest update of the CIPFA Code of 
Practice. 
 
 

6.2 Treasury Management 2010/11 
 
The following is a summary of the significant Treasury Management 
activities which were undertaken during 2010/11: - 
 

6.2.1 Loans Pool Rate The Council’s average Loans Pool Rate takes 
account of all loan interest and expenses paid, as well as investment 
interest received during the financial year. 
 
The Loans Pool Rate for 2010/11 was 4.65%, which can be broken 
down to 4.62% for interest, and 0.03% for expenses.  
 
This is a reduction from the 2009/10 rate which was 4.83%, a reduction 
of 0.18% which to equates to £957k in interest charges.  
 

6.2.2   Long Term Borrowing 
 
Six new PWLB (Public Works Loans Board) loans totalling £40 million 
were borrowed at an average rate of 3.42%, in order to finance the 
Council’s capital programmes.  These new loans were borrowed over a 
range of repayment terms, from 3 to 50 years, with the Council’s 
existing debt Maturity Profile in mind.  

Page 178



PWLB Interest Rates  As a direct result of the Government Spending 
Review in October, there was a major change to PWLB public sector 
lending rates. There was an immediate increase to all PWLB borrowing 
rates by some 90 basis points. The rationale behind this major change 
is that HM Treasury will now set the rates at an average of 100 basis 
points over the relevant gilt price. 
 
This change presented the Council with 2 challenges. 
 
The first of these was to minimise any rise in borrowing costs. During 
the 2010/11 financial year, this was achieved using a combination of 
factors - due to the previously undertaken borrowing at relatively low 
rates, and by reducing the repayment term of new loans. (e.g. 
borrowing for up to 10 years, rather than 20-50 years). 
 
The second problem was that, as reported last year, the PWLB 
introduced "penalty rates" which discourages debt rescheduling by 
Councils. This reduced the Council's ability to make rescheduling 
savings, as it had in the past. However, the “Spending Review” 90 
basis point rise in rates was not similarly reflected in the penalty rates; 
thereby further reducing opportunities for the Council.  
 
This discourages the use of PWLB loans and forces the Council to look 
increasingly to other forms of long term borrowing, such as LOBO 
loans (Lenders Option Borrowers Option) from financial institutions.   
 

6.2.3 Short Term Borrowing  
 
Short-term borrowing rates for periods of up to 1 year continued at 
relatively low levels. The Council's borrowing strategy during the year 
was to borrow short-term where possible, to take advantage of these 
lower rates. After the Spending Review related rise in PWLB rates, 
short-term borrowing rates also rose slightly, but were still much lower 
than the comparative PWLB rates. To illustrate this, as at 31st March 
2011, the Council had some £70m of Temporary Loans from other 
Local Authorities, at an average rate of 0.90%. Compared to similar 
PWLB rates of 1.89%, this represents a savings of £693k in interest 
costs. 
 

6.2.4 Investments 
 
Over the last few years, the downturn in the global economy has seen 
many financial institutions removed from the Council's Counterparty list 
as their credit ratings fell.  The list is compiled using credit rating 
information supplied by the major credit rating agencies to Sector 
Treasury Services; the Council’s appointed Treasury Management 
advisors. 

Page 179



Reviews of the Council's Counterparty list were undertaken and 
approved by Committee during the year.  This meant reducing the   
lending periods to certain institutions, and increasing the lending limits 
and periods for the UK Nationalised Banks, as their stability and 
profitability returned. This gave the Council some flexibility to maximise 
returns on short-term cash balances. 
 
As at 31st March 2011, the Council had temporary investments totalling 
£19.8m at an average rate of 0.74%.  These were invested in line with 
the current Counterparty list to the following institutions -  

• Santander   £ 6.0m 
• Clydesdale Bank  £ 6.7m 
• Royal Bank of Scotland £ 7.1m 

 
6.2.5 Member Training Session 

 
A Treasury Management workshop was held for members and key 
officers on 1st February 2011.  The purpose of this session was to fully 
explain Elected Members’ and Officers’ roles and responsibilities within 
the Treasury Management environment, and how to maintain effective 
scrutiny of the Treasury Management framework.   
 
The session was conducted by Sector Treasury Services, and was well 
received. The latest update of the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management actively encourages this type of session and it is the 
intention to hold another of these sessions in the near future. 
 
 

7.  AUTHORISED SIGNATURE 
 
 
 
 
  Barry Jenkins, Head of Finance,  
  bjenkins@aberdeencity.gov.uk, (52)2551 

 
 

8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
 
 
 
Neil Stewart, Treasury Officer,  
nstewart@aberdeencity.gov.uk, (52)2696 

 

Page 180



 
9. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

CIPFA "Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public 
Services",   
Sector Treasury Services "Treasury Management Annual Investment 
Strategy", Scottish Government "The Investment of Money by Scottish 
Local Authorities". 

 

Page 181



Page 182

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Council  
                             
DATE     29th June 2011 
 
DIRECTOR    Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Energy Cities Network 
 
REPORT NUMBER: EP&I /11/180  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report seeks approval for Aberdeen City Council to join the Energy 
Cities Network.  
 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
 That the Council: 
 

1. Approves the Council joining the Energy Cities network 
 
2. Notes that this may involve future travel for the Lord Provost and an 

officer to represent the City and attend relevant meetings, 
conferences, events, draft and candidate projects, etc.  and that 
such travel arrangement will be approved in the normal manner, 
once the detail of any such travel requirements  become apparent. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The annual subscription is based on the population size of member cities, in 
accordance with the following table. 

ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION (in euros) 

Population  Fees Special Fees* 
Less than 100,000  1250 625 
Between 100,000 and 300,000  2500 1250 
Between 300,000 and 500,000  3750 1875 
More than 500,000  5000 2500 
Associations of local authorities 2500 1250 

 

Agenda Item 9(g)

Page 183



 

 

*New Member States (until 2011), other East-European countries, non EU 
cities. 
 
The annual subscription of Euros 2,500 (£ 2,197.00 approximately) will be met 
from the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure budget (Projects, 
Partnerships and Funding) 
 
The costs for the Lord Provost to attend relevant meetings will be met from 
the Lord Provost’s travel budget. 
 
The costs for an Officer accompanying the Lord Provost or attending relevant 
membership meetings will be met by the E P & I budget (Projects, 
Partnerships and Funding) 
 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

• Travel 
The Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure or a nominated 
Officer by the Director will represent Aberdeen City initiatives and 
projects. As far as possible, measures relevant to the destination will 
be taken to reduce any risks in line with Council Policy. 

 
• Risk Management 

It is important that Aberdeen is fully represented in all European 
matters; especially those dealing with energy issues, and that all 
opportunities for influencing policy and the development of 
transnational projects for the City’s benefit are grasped in order that 
opportunities are maximised. This level of participation will help to 
increase the understanding of the new programmes and will assist in 
developing the capacity to successfully develop new projects and work 
with other European cities that will benefit Aberdeen City. 

 
• Human Rights/Equalities/Diversity 

European Policy takes full account of the Equal Opportunities Policy of 
the Council. 

 
• Sustainability 

Aberdeen City Council has a clear contribution to make to sustainable 
development with an emphasis on enhances productivity through 
improved resource efficiency, new business opportunities in the 
developing market for sustainable technologies and delivering better 
and more efficient Council services.  By attending these events, it will 
give us the opportunity to look at the possibilities of best practice and 
drawing down more funds from EU programmes to raise the quality of 
life through increasing economic opportunity for all on a socially and 
environmentally sustainable basis. Also, this membership will help 
Aberdeen to be internationally recognized as an energy efficiency hub 
and pool for generating innovative solutions. 

Page 184



 

 

 
 

• Environmental 
European activities are implemented in line with the aim of achieving a 
quality and sustainable environment. 

 
• Social 

The principles of Social inclusion underpin European cohesion policy. 
 

• Economic 
European representation and inter-regional networking contributes to 
the City’s overall effort to maximize opportunities and to promote its 
interests, both at home and overseas with the aim of creating 
sustainable economy and energy efficient environment. 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
A. Energy Cities 
Energy Cities is the European Association of local authorities inventing 
their energy future. The association created in 1990 represents now more 
than 1,000 towns and cities in 30 countries. Close to 200 local authorities 
among them are individually Members of Energy Cities. There are 284 actions 
and 272 projects within the Energy Cities members. From April 2009 to April 
2011, Energy Cities is under the Presidency of the City of Heidelberg (DE) 
with a Board of Directors of 11 European cities: Bielsko-Biała (PL), Braşov 
(RO), Cork County (IE), Delft (NL), Heidelberg (DE), Helsinki (FI), Leicester 
(UK), Pamplona (ES), Paris (FR), Salerno (IT), Växjö (SE). Energy Cities’ 
premises are located in Brussels (BE) and Besançon (FR). The full list of 
members can be found at http://www.energy-
cities.eu/cities/members_in_europe_en.php  
Energy Cities has succeeded in building expertise, both at political and 
operational level, in its sphere of activity and is now recognized as an 
indispensable partner by an increasing number of organisations. Its co-
operation with the EU institutions since the early beginning has enabled 
Energy Cities to acquire a sound knowledge of Community mechanisms. 
 
The network is driven by a team of 18 people representing 7 nationalities with 
multidisciplinary skills in energy, environment, geography, local administration, 
economics, sociology, logistics, communication, documentation and 
information. 
Main objectives are:- 

• To strengthen members’ role and skills in the field of sustainable 
energy, 

• To represent members’ interests and influence the policies and 
proposals made by European Union institutions in the fields of energy, 
environmental protection and urban policy and 

Page 185



 

 

• To develop and promote members’ initiatives through exchange of 
experiences, the transfer of know-how and the implementation of joint 
projects. 

 
Why should Aberdeen City Council join Energy Cities?  

• Discover new practices and enlarge our partnership with other local 
authorities 

• Input opinion on European Community proposals and future policy 
directions 

• Be involved in projects supported by the European Commission 
(almost 400 municipalities have been involved in various projects 
aimed at improving their energy efficiency) 

• Disseminate information regarding the City on an international scale 
• Benefit from exclusive services: individual assistance in the 

preparation of projects, general and current awareness and 
information researches upon request, organization of study tours, 
conferences, etc. 

• Obtain a greater chance of securing EU programme support in relation 
to the funding of energy related projects and programmes, due to the 
fact that membership of Energy Cities is one of the factors taken into 
account when determining successful funding applications. 

As 75% of all energy consumption in Europe occurs in urban areas, local 
authorities more than ever have a pivotal role to play. Taking action at local 
level will help cities to reduce the energy consumption and energy bill whilst 
reducing local emissions and effluents, stimulate local growth by making use 
of locally available resources, and be recognized as an innovative town or 
city.  

 
Benefit from European innovative initiatives and projects! 
 
Energy Cities coordinates a number of ongoing initiatives and projects 
involving local authorities from EU Member States as well as Candidate 
countries, such as: 
 
DISPLAY: This is the campaign currently supports around 400 local 
authorities in their efforts to make public buildings more energy efficient. Since 
2003, Display® encourages its participants to display the energy performance 
of their buildings and to initiate awareness-raising amongst the building users. 
www.display-campaign.org 
 
IMAGINE: In 2006, Energy Cities launched the “IMAGINE the Energy Future 
of our Cities” initiative to help local authorities prepare for their future. This 
initiative gives local authorities a framework to initiate a participative multi-
stakeholder dialogue process around the territorial energy future issues. Also, 
an exhibition, a series of thematic workshops and an annual seminar allow 

Page 186



 

 

exchange and discussion to take place around the concept of low energy 
cities with high quality of life for all. 
www.energy-cities.eu/imagine 
 
MODEL: This initiative aims at helping local authorities to become models for 
both the citizens and the other European municipalities. Its main objective is 
to improve the practical capacities of local authorities and/or local energy 
management agencies from 10 New Member States plus Croatia to better 
deal with intelligent energy issues at both individual (municipalities) and 
collective (national networks or embryos of networks) levels. 
www.energymodel.eu 
 
Free services (exclusive to members): 
 
Members receive the following services for free as part of their membership: 

• The bi-annual magazine Energy Cities Info 
• Information on European policies, programmes, calls for proposals on 

a regular basis via the twice monthly NEWS and through personalized 
contacts 

• Support and personal advice from the association’s staff for the 
realization of projects 

• Promotion of your local actions thanks to Energy Cities’ 
numerous communication supports: Energy Cities’ website, blogs, 
best practice database, magazine, newsletters and social networking 
websites, etc. 

• Participate for free at the Annual Rendezvous, in the Display® 
Campaign, in European projects and in other partnership-building 
opportunities 

 
Discounted services for members 
 
The following services are available to members at discounted rates: 
 

• Participate with Energy Cities’ tailor-made study tours: use others’ 
practices as a source of inspiration for implementing projects, whether 
at European level or in your own city (http://www.energy-cities.eu/-
Study-Tours-) 

• Get the IMAGINE exhibition in the language of your choice 
(www.imagineyourenergyfuture.eu/exhibition) 

• Have a permanent representation in our Brussels’ office as well as 
the use of a meeting room 

• Benefit from our expertise and assistance in organising international 
conferences in your city 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 187



 

 

 Energy Cities members commit to? 
 
As a member of Energy Cities you engage: 
 

• To make energy efficiency, renewables and sustainable planning an 
integral part of your local policies 

• To carry out initiatives and actions on your territory so as to 
(contribute to) reach the EU 2020 objectives 

• To give your opinion on European decisions (in consultation 
processes, etc.) 

• To share your experiences, ideas and information with the network 
• To provide support to other members upon request 
• To inform our personal contact at Energy Cities about our initiatives & 

projects by sending one or more local action(s) using the template we 
will provide you; these will be promoted via our communication 
channels such as EC website, EC INFO, etc. 

• To establish a link between Aberdeen City website and the Energy 
Cities website www.energy-cities.eu 

• To promote our Energy Cities membership when talking about your 
sustainable energy activities 

• To participate in Energy Cities’ Annual Rendezvous and the 
General Assembly 

Justification 
Energy Cities is leading, in cooperation with Climate Alliance, CEMR, 
Fedarene and Eurocities, the Covenant of Mayors Office and is an official 
Supporting Structure. Moreover, 90 Energy Cities members are involved 
as signatories in the Covenant of Mayors which will provide a multiplying 
effect of the membership Aberdeen City has in other networks (the Covenant 
of Mayors) by strengthening partnerships, increasing the influence and 
importance of Aberdeen City and by joining and applying the most advanced 
projects and policies especially in the new initiatives coming out of the 
European Union such as the SMART CITIES / REGIONS Initiative. 
As leader of the Covenant of Mayors Office, Energy Cities is committed to 
facilitate networking activities within the Covenant, support the promotion of 
the Covenant of Mayors, monitor the implementation of the Covenant by 
signatories, provide technical support, support liaison with other actors in the 
Covenant, and support liaison with other relevant EU initiatives and policies. 
As a supporting structure, Energy Cities is committed to encourage the 
highest possible number of its members to join the initiative, enhance the 
exchange of experiences and know-how on tools and methodologies helping 
cities to put in place their SEAP’s (Sustainable Energy Action Plan), 
promote its members’ activities and SEAP’s as to inspire and show the way to 
other European cities, set up a "Covenant Task Force" within its Board of 
Directors aiming to better respond on the cities’ expectations and formulate 
the proposals for improvements, and promote the Covenant of Mayors in 
Europe and beyond. 

Page 188



 

 

In relation to this, ‘’Aberdeen City Council has a strong track record of tackling 
carbon emissions. The council was one of the first to sign up in 2004 to the 
Carbon Trust Local Authority Carbon Management Programme (LACMP), 
which aims to reduce emissions from our buildings, vehicles, street lighting 
and landfill sites. We committed ourselves at that time to a carbon reduction 
target of 10% by 2010, and a further 15% by 2015. We surpassed that four 
years ago in 2006, when we achieved a 31% CO2 reduction. We now want to 
build on our impressive achievements so far and strive even harder to do all 
we can to combat climate change. Last year the council signed up to the 
LACMP programme again, setting an ambitious target of further cuts of 23% 
by 2015 and 42% by 2020’’, as stated in the Carbon  Management Plan 
(2010-2015).  
On the Energy Cities website one can find a list of projects, conferences, 
study tours, cities actions, events and the newsletter. Energy Cities benefits 
from its experienced team’s project management skills and participates in 
numerous European campaigns and projects in the framework of programmes 
such as INTERREG, CONCERTO or Intelligent Energy Europe (IEE). 
Aberdeen City will certainly take advantage of this membership in order to 
establish new partnerships and receive practical information when applying 
projects to these programmes. Also, Aberdeen City can really promote itself 
as the Capital of Energy Efficiency, Renewable Energy or Urban Mobility 
projects and events.  
Although Aberdeen belongs to the World Energy Cities Partnership 
(WECP) which represents collaboration of 18 "energy cities" around the world, 
Energy Cities offer more than 200 local authorities as individual members 
which will give way for the new partnerships and projects. 
Having in mind that it is very difficult to reduce energy consumption and to 
increase energy efficiency by standing alone by working with other local 
authorities and stakeholders and by exchanging best practices, debating our 
successes and failures, pooling our resources and our ideas Aberdeen City 
would multiply the effect of the local projects, activities, events and policies. 
Energy Cities regularly publishes opinions on the various Community 
legislative documents in relation with its fields of action. Whereas a 
municipality alone has little influence, Energy Cities is able to combine the 
forces of all to take more appropriate action. Since Energy Cities knows the 
work, targets and initiatives of each member city and the targets of different 
European Union programmes, and directives, it is easy for them to organise or 
help to organize fruitful joint projects which will benefit as many member cities 
as possible. We are aware of the fact that the City is investing itself, but 
external funds should also be used as much as possible by establishing 
stronger and broader partnerships with the pioneers in this field. This will 
provide Aberdeen City with new know-how and expertise in this field and also 
raise Aberdeen’s international profile. Energy Cities can be a very good 
channel for dissemination of our own experience which means that our work 
will not have effects only locally. When speaking about Energy Cities one 
cannot forget extremely well organized Annual Conferences and meetings. 
These occasions offer all members a possibility to hear about highly topical 

Page 189



 

 

issues, good experience of other cities and have interesting discussions with 
others working with the same issues and deepen relationship with other cities. 
 
B. Sustainable Energy Europe Campaign 
Energy Cities is an Official Associate of the Sustainable Energy Europe 
Campaign which showcases activities dedicated to energy efficiency and 
renewable energy solutions. The focus is on spreading best practice in 
sustainable energy technology, build alliances and inspire new energy ideas 
and actions. Any activity, be it a project or event carried out to encourage the 
use of renewables or energy efficiency is welcome. There are no limits except 
to support the overall goal: to spread inspiring stories and be coordinated from 
Europe. More than 250 new projects join each year and the Campaign 
promotes around 450 events. Also, more than 1, 200 organizations across 
Europe are involved in the activities of Campaign and their membership has 
no financial implications. 
Fore example, one of the projects Sustainable Energy Europe Campaign 
promotes is the Energy Day, organized in order to promote renewable energy 
or energy efficiency. Moreover, by signing up to the Covenant of Mayors, local 
authorities commit to reduce their CO2 emissions by at least 20% across their 
territories. Covenant signatories pledge to organize local Energy Days once a 
year to promote the support of citizens and local stakeholders needed to meet 
this challenge. Therefore, Aberdeen City, already being one of the Covenants 
of Mayors signatories, can get additional visibility to energy efficiency 
projects by organizing such an event.  
Aberdeen City Council can join Sustainable Energy Europe Campaign by 
submitting projects which must make a significant and demonstrable 
contribution to the EU 2020 objectives with regards to energy efficiency 
and renewable energy sources. This implies the need to present concrete 
facts and figures which demonstrate the energy savings and/or the increased 
use of renewable energy sources which are a direct result of the project. Also 
projects should be an outstanding example in its area. 
Once accepted, the project summary will be edited and published on the 
Campaign website but there are more communication tools in place to 
promote truly inspiring stories – for example the monthly media news alert, the 
Awards Competition and featured articles.  
Thus, by joining the Sustainable Energy Europe Campaign Aberdeen 
City will improve the visibility of all energy projects implemented in the 
City, receive information about the best practices and most daring 
breakthroughs worldwide and enlarge the number of partnerships. 

 
6. IMPACT 
 
European policy, representation and best practice supports the Council’s 
objective of representing the interests of the people and organizations of 

Page 190



 

 

Aberdeen within North East Scotland, the UK, and Europe. The Europe 2020 
Strategy aims for a Smart, Sustainable and Inclusive Europe which is re-
elected in the Council’s 2011-2016 5 Year Business Plan.   
 
Energy Cities takes note of the Public consultation on Smart Cities and 
Communities which is of particular interest of Aberdeen City. Energy Cities 
welcomes Smart Cities and Communities, and will actively contribute to its 
success, for instance by promoting the upcoming Call for Proposals and 
accompanying its members in their project preparation and implementation. 
Several of the challenges of the Community Plan identified in the Single 
Outcome Agreement are also supported, such as:  Leading the City, Being 
Informed, Getting Involved, Land Use and the Environment and Clean City, 
Transport and Connections, Prosperity and Jobs, and Aberdeen’s Image. 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Energy Cities Membership pack 2010 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Bojana Vujanac 
Serbian intern 
VBojana@Aberdeencity.gov,uk 
 
Yasa Ratnayeke 
Manager EU Policy & External Funding 
yratnayeke@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
Tel: 523807 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 191



Page 192

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE   Council 
 
DATE     29 June 2011 
 
DIRECTOR    Director of Corporate Governance 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  The Aberdeen City Council (Off-Street Car Parks) Order 

2011 
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG//11/077 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This report confirms that no objections (to date) have been received in light of the 
statutory advertisement of the proposed removal of the recently-introduced overnight 
charge of £1.50 in off-street car parks, and that it be replaced by extended operational 
hours in the most straightforward sense (i.e. 8.00am until 10.00pm instead of 8.00am 
until 8.00pm).The statutory notice is attached as an appendix. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

 
 It is recommended that Council resolve to make The Aberdeen City Council (Off-
 Street Car Parks) Order 2011 as contained in the Appendix to this report. 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The revised proposals will not reduce the revenue generated by the current 
charge, and there will be minimal costs associated with the promotion of a new 
traffic regulation order and the replacement of the tariff plates on the parking 
machines. 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

None. 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
Since the overnight charge was introduced in September, 2010 a number of 
issues have been experienced. Complaints had been received from members of 
the public who had had difficulties paying the overnight charge, the problems 
occurred particularly in the evenings during the transition between the day rate 
and night rate at 2000 hours.  

 

Agenda Item 9(h)

Page 193



 

 

The complaints had been about the amount of text contained in the operating 
instructions, the size of the text and the difficulties understanding the instructions. 

 
The operating instructions on the parking ticket machines had been reviewed and 
subsequently revised, however the detail which must be included was perceived 
by the general public as complicated and lengthy. Complaints had also been 
received regarding the way in which the overnight charge was applied, where 
drivers must pay the £1.50 for parking at any time between 2000 – 0800 hours. 
This meant that tickets bought just before 2000 hours would expire at 2000 unless 
the overnight charge was paid, similarly night tickets bought just before 0800 
hours would expire at 0800 hours unless additional daytime hours were 
purchased. The result was disproportionately high parking rates for short periods 
of parking around the changeover between day rate and night rate or vice versa. 

 
Ticketing information indicated that only 10% of overnight tickets were purchased 
after 2200 hours, therefore replacing the complicated overnight charge of £1.50 
with two hours of charging at the newly approved rate of £1 per hour, would offset 
the removal of the overnight charge.  
 
On consideration of the above, the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 
Committee at its meeting on 15 March, 2011 recommended that the recently-
introduced overnight charge of £1.50 in off-street car parks be removed, and that 
it be replaced by extended operational hours in the most straightforward sense (ie 
8.00am until 10.00pm instead of 8.00am until 8.00pm, and requested that officers 
commence the traffic order process to introduce this.  
 
The statutory advertisement of the above traffic order which provides for revised 
operational hours for charging in Off-Street car parks has now been undertaken 
and to date no statutory objections have been received. The matter is a 
straightforward one and there are no legal or procedural issues of note. Therefore, 
it is recommended that the order be approved and made as envisaged.  
 

6. IMPACT 
 

The changes provided for by these orders have merits from some points of view 
and disadvantages from others. 
 

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

No background papers were used as a point of departure for writing this report 
(other than the statutory objection itself). 

 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Allison Swanson 
Committee Services Officer 
aswanson@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
(01224) 522822 

 
 
 

Page 194



 

 

Appendix  
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984 

 
THE ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL (OFF-STREET CAR PARKS) ORDER 2011 

 
Aberdeen City Council proposes to make “The Aberdeen City Council (Off-Street Car Parks) Order 2011” in terms of its 
powers under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. 
 
The effect of the order is to restate all the Council’s existing off-street car parking arrangements and to make changes to 
those arrangements. 
 
The changes are that (1) the existing overnight charge of £1.50 (which comes into effect at 8.00pm when the normal 
daytime tariff ends) is being dropped, but (2) the daytime tariff will now apply until 10.00pm. 
 
After 10.00pm vehicles can be left free of charge until the beginning of the next day’s daytime tariff. 
 
Also, any period of time paid for on any day shall be taken to continue into (and expire) during the next day’s charging 
hours wherever it has not already expired during the charging hours on the day it was purchased.  This restores the old 
arrangement where “unused residue” from one day could be carried forward into the next, something which (at present) 
is conditional upon payment of the overnight fee. 
 
A final consequence of these changes is that, in the Council’s long-stay car parks, an extra tariff level (for parking for 
10-14 hours) will be established, at a cost of £14.00. 
 
The schedule below presents the new charging arrangements at a glance. 
 
The draft order, together with an accompanying statement of the Council's reasons for promoting it, may be examined 
during normal office hours on weekdays between 25 May, 2011, and 14 June, 2011, in the offices of the roads officials in 
the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure department, at 74-76 Spring Garden, Aberdeen. 
 
It is recommended that anyone visiting Spring Garden to view any of the documents should make an appointment to do 
so, in order that a member of staff can be present to offer an explanation if necessary.  Anyone unable to visit Spring 
Garden can telephone (01224 538069) to speak to one of the officials. 
 
Anyone wishing to object to the proposed order should send details of the grounds for objection in writing to the 
undersigned during the statutory objection period which also runs from 25 May, 2011 until 14 June, 2011, inclusively. 
 
Any person who submits an objection should note that the Committee agendas are public documents, available in 
libraries and also distributed to the press.  Objectors’ names and addresses, perhaps with summaries of their 
observations, may be able to be found in these agendas.  Also, although the original letters of objection will not ordinarily 
be copied as part of the agenda, they are available for inspection by Councillors and are essentially in the public domain.  
To that extent, however, they are redacted, with e-mail addresses, telephone numbers and signatures blanked out. 
 

Jane MacEachran 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

Aberdeen City Council, Town House, ABERDEEN 
SCHEDULE 

Off Street Car Park Period Charges (£) 
Gallowgate 
Summer Street 
East North Street 
Golden Square 
Jack’s Brae 
St. Nicholas House car parks 
  (Saturdays and Sundays only) 

up to 2 hours 2.00 
2 to 3 hours 3.00 
3 to 4 hours 4.00 
(maximum stay 
- 4 hours)  

Chapel Street Multi-Storey 
Denburn Multi-Storey 
West North Street Multi-Storey 
Virginia Street 

up to 2 hours 2.00 
2 to 3 hours 3.00 
3 to 4 hours 4.00 
4 to 5 hours 5.00 
5 to 6 hours 6.00 
6 to 10 hours 10.00 
10 to 14 hours 14.00 
(maximum stay 
 - 14 hours)  

• Denburn Multi-Storey only - special additional short-stay option of £1.00 for one hour 

Broomhill Road and the car park adjacent to Ferryhill Library up to 1 hour 1.00 
1 to 2 hours 2.00 

 

Page 195



Page 196

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE:   COUNCIL     
 
DATE:    29 June 2011   
 
DIRECTOR:    Fred McBride   
 
TITLE OF REPORT: Formation of a Local Authority Trading Company
  
REPORT NUMBER:   SCW/11/059        
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

The purpose of the report is to seek approval from Council to take 
forward the implementation of a Local Authority Trading Company 
(LATC), to include older people and rehabilitation services.  The report 
presents the results of an options appraisal on models of service 
delivery and an Outline Business Case for the alternative delivery of 
services.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
  
It is recommended that members note the information in this report 
and: 

(i) approve the request to progress to implementation of the LATC; 
(ii) accept the Outline Business Case as the basis for development of a full 

business case and a plan for the implementation of the LATC; 
(iii) agree that support be provided from within the Council’s Corporate 

Governance directorate to ensure that the Council’s requirements on 
financial, legal and HR matters are met;  

(iv) agree that external, expert support for implementation be engaged 
through an appropriate procurement process, with associated costs to 
be met from the Social Care & Wellbeing budget; and 

(v) agree to accept a further report on the plan for implementation of the 
         LATC.  
  

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

3.1     The LATC would be a company with around £25 million turnover, based 
on the current service budget for the following services proposed for 
inclusion in the LATC: 
• older people’s resources; 
• occupational therapy and rehabilitation resources; 
• learning disability resources (one day centre and one supported 
accommodation complex); and 

• learning and development. 

Agenda Item 9(i)

Page 197



 

 

3.2 The LATC will have powers to trade and, through this, the ability to 
generate income. The Outline Business Case demonstrates that the 
LATC has the potential to generate a trading surplus that will provide a 
basis for investment in services for the future and/or redistribution back 
to the Council.   

 
3.3 A Value for Money comparison demonstrates that, at constant demand, 

the Council will be £3 million better off after 5 years compared to 
continuing as at present with the services that would transfer to the 
LATC. 

 
3.4 The details of the financial forecast, with financial and operating 

assumptions, are set out in the Outline Business Case. 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The LATC will be wholly owned by the Council and the Council will 

exert influence through a contractual relationship that will define 
arrangements for robust performance management. 

 
4.2  The Outline Business Case assumes that all service staff and 

managers will transfer from the Council to the LATC under TUPE. A 
contract mechanism will be required for the resolution of cost allocation 
in relation to any future redundancy or pension strain costs.  

 
4.3 It is proposed that Council property occupied by services in the LATC 

will be subject to a lease arrangement.   
 
4.4 The LATC provides an opportunity for the Council to ensure that 

services are flexible and adaptable so that they remain sustainable for 
the future.  The expected benefits of the LATC are: 
• improved value for money through a formal contractual relationship 
that incentivises services to improve; 

• efficiency savings, providing the Council with a reduction in costs or 
opportunity to invest to meet increasing demand; 

• opportunity for the workforce to secure a stake in their own future in 
an entrepreneurial culture  that rewards performance;   

• services that are more flexible and adaptable so that they remain 
sustainable, respond to current and future demand and deliver 
improved outcomes; 

• promotion of choice and potential to generate income through 
trading; and 

• retention of the vital function for the Council of provider of “last 
resort”. 

 
4.5      The LATC supports the policy agendas of shifting the balance of care 

towards community based services and reshaping care for older to 
meet growing demand through new ways of working. 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

Page 198



 

 

 
5.1 In February 2011, the Council approved a Priority Based Budget (PBB) 

proposal that Social Care & Wellbeing should prepare a business case 
for the establishment of a LATC.   

 
5.2 Social Care & Wellbeing contracted with consultants Ernst & Young to 

assess the feasibility of establishing a LATC as a mechanism to enable 
the Council to achieve efficiencies while improving outcomes for 
vulnerable people.  

 
5.3 Ernst & Young is familiar with the Council and the business of Social 

Care & Wellbeing, having acted as consultants to the Council for PBB. 
In addition, Ernst & Young provided expertise of consultants who have 
recent experience of establishing a LATC with similar services for an 
English council.  

 
5.4 Social Care & Wellbeing worked with Ernst & Young on the detail of the 

business case and participated in an options appraisal exercise with 
key stakeholders.  

 
5.5 The options appraisal considered the five options against a set of nine 

design criteria, using paired comparison of options. The options 
considered were: in house provision, outsource provision, social 
enterprise, LATC, shared service or joint venture.  

 
5.6 The Outline Business Case presents the results of the options 

appraisal which ranked the LATC as the option most likely to meet the 
design criteria, and the proposal for the alternative delivery of services 
through an LATC.  

 
6. IMPACT 
 
6.1 The proposal supports the Single Outcome Agreement, Local Outcome 

6:  “Improve the overall health and wellbeing of the people of Aberdeen 
City in particular by supporting those most vulnerable; this outcome 
particularly focuses on improving the health and wellbeing of older 
people." 

 
6.2 The proposal supports the following strategic priorities of the Council’s   
 
6.2.1 Five Year Business Plan:   

• provide for the needs of the most vulnerable people; 
• ensure efficient and effective delivery of services by the council and 
with its partners; 

and the plan for delivery: 
• make best use of the financial resources available to us, ensuring 
best value for the public purse; 

• have a flexible, skilled and motivated workforce; and 

Page 199



 

 

• listen to, and be responsive to, our customers, shaping our services 
around their needs and focusing our resources where they are most 
needed. 

 
6.3     The joint Partnership Agreement for Reshaping Care for Older People 

in Aberdeen 2010-2013 states, "Optimising independence at home or 
in a homely setting will be a key success measure."   

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

In preparation of the report, the following documents have been 
consulted:  
Single Outcome Agreement 
Aberdeen City Council Five Year Business Plan 2011/12 to 2015/16 
Partnership Agreement for Reshaping Care for Older People in 
Aberdeen 2010-2013   

 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Liz Taylor 
Head of Older People’s and Rehabilitation Services 
litaylor@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
Tel. 01224 522457  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 200



Agenda Item 11(a)

Page 201

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 4, 6 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11(b)

Page 221

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 8, 10 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 226

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11(c)

Page 227

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 8 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 316

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7(a) Business Statement
	8(a) Housing and Environment Committee of 10th May 2011 - Security in Multi Storey Blocks Progress Report - Report by Director of Housing and Environment
	Security Services in Mainstream Multi Storey Blocks - Progress Update

	8(b) Housing and Environment Committee of 10th May 2011 - Temporary Accommodation Units - Smoking Policy - Exception - Report by Director of Housing and Environment
	Temporary Accommodation Units  Smoking Policy Exception

	9(a) Accounts Commission Findings - Progress - Report by Chief Executive
	9(b) Draft Financial Statements 2010/11
	Pension Fund Draft Accounts report
	Pension Fund Accounts

	9(c) Committee Places, Appointment of Conveners, Vice Conveners and Depute Provost and Representation on various Outside Bodies, Boards and Trusts - Report by Director of Corporate Governance
	9(d) Aberdeen City Council Business Plan 2011/12 - 2015/16 - Report by Director of Corporate Governance
	Aberdeen City Council business plan 2011 to 2016

	9(e) For Aberdeen's Children - Integrated Children's Services Plan 2011-15 - Joint Report By Directors of Education, Culture and Sport and Social Care and Wellbeing
	Integrated Children's Services Plan appendix

	9(f) Treasury Management Policy and Strategy - Report by Head of Finance - referred by Finance and Resources Committee of 17th June 2011
	9(g) Energy Cities Network - Report by Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
	9(h) The Aberdeen City Council (Off-Street Car Parks) Order 2011 - Report by Director of Corporate Governance
	9(i) Formation of a Local Authority Trading Company - Report by Director of Social Care and Wellbeing
	11(a) Transition Extreme - Report by Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
	11(b) National Housing Trust Initiative - Report by Director of Housing and Environment
	11(c) Options Appraisal and Outline Business Case for item 9(i)

